
By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you have saved the Authority approx. £** in printing costs

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

AGENDA

Committee PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date and Time 
of Meeting

WEDNESDAY, 19 SEPTEMBER 2018, 1.30 PM

Venue COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - COUNTY HALL

Membership Councillor Keith Jones (Chair)
Councillors Lay, Ahmed, Asghar Ali, Congreve, Driscoll, Gordon, 
Hudson, Jacobsen, Jones-Pritchard, Murphy and Sattar

1  Apologies for Absence

2  Minutes

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2018. 

3  Declarations of Interest

To be made at the commencement of the agenda item in question, in accordance 
with the Members Code of Conduct.

4  Petitions

Petitions have been received in relation to the following applications in 
accordance with  Committee Meeting Procedural Rule 14.2.  The petitioners have 
been advised of their right to speak and the applicants/agents of their right to 
reply:

Application no, 18/01545/MJR, Land on the East Side of Thornhill Road and 
North of M4, Lisvane 

5  Development Control Applications

a  18/01545/MJR, Land on the East Side of Thornhill Road and North of M4, Lisvane

b  18/01114/MNR, Brodawel, Druidstone Road, Old St Mellons

c  18/00576/MJR, Youth Offending Team, The Rise, Pen-Hill Road, Llandaff



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

d  18/01563/MJR, 24 Park Lane Student Living, Park Lane, Cathays Park

6  Applications decided by Delegated Powers - August 2018

7  Urgent Items (if any)

Davina Fiore
Director Governance & Legal Services
Date:  Thursday, 13 September 2018
Contact:  Kate Rees, 029 2087 2427, krees@cardiff.gov.uk



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

WEBCASTING 

This meeting will be filmed for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website.  The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except 

where there are confidential or exempt items, and the footage will be on 
the website for 6 months.  A copy of it will also be retained in 

accordance with the Council’s data retention policy.

If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have 
consented to being filmed.  By entering the body of the Chamber you 
are also consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 

images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.  
If you do not wish to have your image captured you should sit in the 

public gallery area.

If you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please 
contact Committee Services on 02920 872020 or 

email Democratic Services

mailto:democraticservices@cardiff.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

PLANNING COMMITTEE

11 JULY 2018

Present: Councillor Keith Jones(Chairperson)
Councillors Lay, Ahmed, Asghar Ali, Congreve, Driscoll, Gordon, 
Jacobsen, Jones-Pritchard, Murphy and Sattar

11 :   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

12 :   MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2018 were approved as a correct record 
and signed by the Chairperson.

13 :   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None

14 :   PETITIONS 

There were no petitions.

15 :   DEVELOPMENT CONTROL APPLICATIONS 

The Committee considered the schedule of development control applications 
submitted in accordance with the Town & Country Planning Act 1990:
RESOLVED: That pursuant to this Committee’s delegated powers the following 
development control applications be determined in accordance with the 
recommendations as set out in the report of the Director City Operations subject to 
any further amendments as detailed below and notification be given of the decision in 
accordance with Section 74 of the Planning (Listed Building & Conservation Act 
1990).

APPLICATIONS GRANTED

18/00735/MJR – BUTETOWN

BRAINS BREWERY, CRAWSHAY STREET
Full planning application for an office building providing business (use Class B1), 
floorspace, with ancillary gym (use Class D2), marketplace/retail (use Class A1) and 
food and drink (use Class A3) uses; a multi-storey car park (sui generis) with ancillary 
retail (use Class A1); and public realm, access, drainage and other infrastructure 
works required for the delivery of Central Quay (phase 1)

Subject to an amendment to Condition 3 to read:

‘Material Samples: Excluding demolition, site preparation, ground works (foundations 
and basement structures to ground floor slab) and construction of building cores no 
other development shall take place until samples of the external finishing materials 

Agenda Item 2



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved  details’

Subject to an amendment to Condition 4 to read:

‘Architectural Details: Excluding demolition site preparation, ground works 
(foundations and basement  structures to ground floor slab) and construction of 
building cores no other development shall take place until architectural details of all 
building facades have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and the development shall not be brought into use until the 
approved scheme is implemented’

Subject to an amendment to Condition 5 to read:

‘Drainage Plan: No development shall take place until comprehensive proposals 
showing how foul and surface water flows from the site have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority.  The works shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details’

Subject to an additional Condition 6 to read:

‘Grease Traps: Prior to the first operational use of individual café/restaurant uses, 
details of a grease trap of grease digester system to be installed in the commercial 
kitchens of the relevant café/restaurant shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved grease trap or digester system shall 
be installed prior to the occupation of the individual café/restaurant use and shall be 
permanently maintained thereafter’

Subject to a new Condition 7 to read:

‘Potable Water Scheme: No development shall take place until a potable water 
scheme to serve the application site has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall demonstrate that the existing 
water supply network can suitably accommodate the proposed development. If 
necessary a scheme to upgrade the existing public water supply network in order to 
accommodate the proposed development shall be delivered prior to the occupation of 
any building.  Thereafter the agreed scheme shall be constructed in full and remain in 
perpetuity’

Subject to an amendment to Condition 14 to read:

‘Construction Environmental Management Plan: Prior to commencement of 
development Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority to include details of construction traffic routes, details of the site/compound, 
site hoardings, site access/ egress, wheel washing and road cleansing facilities, 
storage of plant and materials, parking of contractors vehicles, the reinstatement of 
any part of the public highway affected by construction works, a noise & vibration 
control plan including details of hours of work, details of how dust and dirt emissions 
will be controlled, details of how pollution risks to controlled waters will be managed 
during the works, and a scheme for recycling/ disposing of waste resulting from 



This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

construction works.  The construction of the development shall be managed strictly in 
accordance with the scheme so approved.

Subject to an amendment to Condition 16 to  read:

‘Plant Noise: The rating level of the noise emitted from fixed plant and equipment on 
the site shall not exceed the existing background noise level minus 10dBA at any 
time at any residential property when measured and corrected in accordance with BS 
4142: 1997 (or any British Standard amending or superseding that standard.

Subject to an additional Condition 26 to read:

‘For the avoidance of doubt, and unless otherwise agreed in writing, the maximum 
gross internal floor area for retail use (Use Class A1) are a follows and shall not be 
exceeded:

 The Ledger Office Building 1,437sqm
 Multi-Storey Car Park 418sqm

No retail unit erected pursuant to this permission shall be more than 350sqm of gross 
floor area’

16 :   APPLICATIONS DECIDED BY DELEGATED POWERS - JUNE 2018 

Noted

17 :   URGENT ITEMS (IF ANY) 

None

18 :   DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 15 AUGUST 2018 

The meeting terminated at 2.28 pm



This page is intentionally left blank



LOCAL MEMBER, AM & MP OBJECTIONS & PETITION 
 
COMMITTEE DATE: 19/09/2018 
 
APPLICATION No. 18/01545/MJR APPLICATION DATE:  03/07/2018 
 
ED:   LISVANE 
 
APP: TYPE:  Full Planning Permission 
 
APPLICANT:   Cardiff Council 
LOCATION:  LAND ON THE EAST SIDE OF THORNHILL ROAD AND  
   NORTH OF M4, LISVANE, CARDIFF 
PROPOSAL:  CHANGE OF USE FROM AGRICULTURAL LAND TO A  
   BURIAL SITE AND ASSOCIATED BUILDINGS,   
   INFRASTRUCTURE AND ENGINEERING WORKS,   
   INCLUDING NEW AND ALTERED VEHICULAR ACCESS  
   TO/FROM THORNHILL RD,  PROVISION OF ROADS,  
   FOOTPATHS, CAR PARK, TOILET BLOCK, PUBLIC  
   SHELTERS, BURIAL AREAS, LANDSCAPING WORKS  
   (INCLUDING SUDS), AND RE-GRADING OF SITE LEVELS  
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDATION 1 :  That planning permission be GRANTED subject to 
the following conditions :  
 
1. C01 Statutory Time Limit 
 
2. Subject to the provisions of the conditions below, the development shall 

be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans and 
documents:  

 
• 'Site Location' (drawing no. CO17144-01) 
• 'Existing Site Plan' (drawing no. CO17144-02) 
• 'General Arrangement' (drawing no. CO17144-03RevA) 
• 'Proposed Landscaping' (drawing no. CO17144-04RevA) 
• 'Proposed Drainage' (drawing no. CO17144-05RevA) 
• 'Proposed Long Section' (drawing no. CO17144-06RevA) 
• 'Proposed Sections Sheet 1 of 3 (drawing no. 

CO17144-07-1RevA) 
• 'Proposed Sections Sheet 2 of 3 (drawing no. 

CO17144-07-2RevA) 
• 'Proposed Sections Sheet 3 of 3 (drawing no. 

CO17144-07-3RevA) 
• 'Proposed Building & Shelter' (drawing no. CO17144-08RevA) 
• 'Flower Preparation and Bin Store' (drawing no. CO17144-09) 
• 'Development Extents' (drawing no. CO17144-11) 
• 'Vehicle Movements' (drawing no. CO17144-12)  
• 'Proposed Landscaping Post Construction' (drawing no. 

Agenda Item 5a



CO17144-3000-01RevA) 
• 'Proposed Landscaping Mid Life Point' (drawing no. 

CO17144-3000-02RevA) 
• 'Proposed Landscaping Fully Developed' (drawing no. 

CO17144-3000-03RevA) 
• 'Drainage Standard Details Sheet 1 of 4' (drawing no. 

70042065-WSP-XX-XX-CE-510) 
• 'Design and Access Statement (Planning Stage)' Issue 2 August 

2018' 
• 'Transport Assessment Ver 1.4 July 2018' 
• 'Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment Version 3 August 

2018' 
• ‘BS5837 2012 Tree Information’ (Treecare Consulting, 2018) 
• 'Aerial tree Inspection’ (Gritstone Ecology, Ref CA11281 dated 

August 2018)  
• 'Addendum to Thornhill Crematorium Extension – BS5837 – Tree 

Data By Treecare Consulting Addendum prepared  Jonathan 
Green CMLI, Cardiff Council - Aboricultural Impact Appraisal’ 
including Appendix A: A1A Proposed Sections 1-4 

• 'Ecological Impact Assessment’ (Report number 002, Version 0.1 
August 2018) 

• ‘Clarification regarding filter drain depth’ (Word document ref 
2075755) 

• ‘Preliminary Ecological Appriasal’ (Report number 001- Rev A 
April 2018) 

• ‘Tier One Hydrological Risk Assessment’ (Peter Mitchell 
Associates January 2015) 

• ‘An investigation into the soil condition and drainage status of 
land designated for a proposed extension to Thornhill, Cardiff’ 
(TGMS Ltd Cemetery Development, Revision 2 6th April 2018) 

 
 It should be noted that drawing no CO17144-10 'Proposed Visuals' no 

longer forms part of the application.  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.  
 
CONDITIONS TO BE DISCHARGED 
ACCESS DETAILS AND HIGHWAY WORKS 
3. Notwithstanding the provisions of condition 2, prior to the 

commencement of development or any site clearance, details of (i) the 
proposed cemetery site vehicular and pedestrian access off Thornhill 
Rd, (ii) the vehicular and pedestrian access to the PROW off Thornhill 
Road, (iii) the internal pedestrian and vehicular access that links to New 
House Farm and (iv) the proposed footway, bus stops and location of the 
30mph speed limit along Thornhill Road shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The details shall 
show the required vision splay and the alignment of existing and any 
diverted/proposed functional services above and below ground and their 
associated easements (e.g. the trunk and distribution watermains, the 
low pressure gas main and any power and communication cables).  



Details submitted under criterion (ii) shall include a metalled waymarker 
post at the start of the PROW footpath where it joins off Thornhill Road.  
Details submitted under criterion (iii) shall include a directional 
waymarker showing the PROW footpath that goes off in the direction of 
the Farm shop.   The development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the development being put into 
beneficial use, with the implementation of the 30mph speed limit being 
subject to any associated Traffic Regulation Orders being approved.  
Reason: To ensure the provision of satisfactory access to and from the 
site.  

 
ENTRANCE GATES  
4. Notwithstanding the provisions of condition 2, no development or site 

clearance shall take place until details of all of the entrance gates and 
means of site enclosure have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details prior to the development being put 
into beneficial use.   

 Reason: To ensure that the visual amenities of the area are protected.  
 
MATERIAL SAMPLES OF THE MAIN ENTRANCE 
5. No development shall take place until samples of the external finishing 

materials of the main entrance off Thornhill Rd have been submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the 
development being put into beneficial use. Reason: To ensure that the 
visual amenities of the area are protected. 

 
CYCLE PARKING 
6. Notwithstanding the provisions of condition 2, no development shall take 

place until details showing the provision of cycle parking have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The approved details shall be implemented prior to the development 
being put into beneficial use and shall be maintained thereafter and shall 
not be used for any other purpose.  

 Reason: To ensure that adequate provision is made for the secure 
parking of cycles. 

 
TREE ASSESSMENT 
7. Notwithstanding the provisions of condition 2, no development or site 

clearance shall take place until a tree assessment has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The tree 
assessment shall include: 
a) A finalised Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) 
b) An Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) setting out the 

methodology that will be used to prevent loss or damage to 
retained trees 

c) A Tree Protection Plan (TPP) in the form of a scale drawing 
showing the finalised layout and the tree and landscaping 
protection methods detailed in the AMS that can be shown 



graphically. 
 The development shall be carried out in full conformity with the approved 

AIA, AMS and TPP.   
 Reason: To protect the arboricultural and ecological resource. 
 
HARD AND SOFT LANDSCAPING SCHEME 
8. Notwithstanding the provisions of condition 2, no development or site 

clearance shall take place until full details of both hard and soft 
landscape works and an implementation plan have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The details 
shall include the following: proposed finished ground levels in relation to 
existing ground levels; retaining structures; existing and any 
diverted/proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. the 
trunk and distribution water mains, the low pressure gas main, the high 
voltage power cable that is proposed to be undergrounded and any 
other drainage, lighting, power and communication cables) and their 
associated easements; vehicle, cycle and pedestrian circulation areas 
and any other hard surfacing materials; external lighting; minor artefacts 
and structures including litter bins and signs; finalised scaled planting 
plans (noting schedules of plants, species, plant sizes and proposed 
numbers/densities); top soil and sub soil specifications in accordance 
with the Soil Resource Survey and Plan required under condition 9 
(SOILS); scaled tree pit sectional and plan drawings that show the Root 
Available Soil Volume for each tree; planting and post-planting aftercare 
methodology including full details of how the landscape architect will 
oversee landscaping implementation and report to the LPA to confirm 
compliance with the approved plans and specifications; details of the 
proposed proprietary green roofs, proposals for remediation in the event 
that any element of the landscaping fails and a landscaping 
implementation programme.  (The topsoil and subsoil specifications 
shall include full details of soil assessment, protection, stripping, 
storage, handling, amelioration and placement to ensure it is fit for 
purpose. Where imported planting soils are proposed, full specification 
details shall be provided including the parameters for all imported 
planting soils, a soil scientists interpretive report demonstrating that the 
planting soil is appropriate for the landscaping type proposed and not 
only meets British Standards, but exceeds them in terms of suitability for 
the proposed end use. The specification shall be supported by a 
methodology for handling, amelioration and placement.)   The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.   

 Reason: To maintain and improve the appearance of the area and in the 
interests of visual amenity. 

 
SOILS 
9. No development or site clearance shall take place until there has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a 
Soil Resource Survey (SRS) and Soil Resource Plan (SRP) for the site 
that shall accord with the ‘Construction Code of Practice for the 
Sustainable Use of Soils on Construction Sites’ (DEFRA 2009).   The 



development shall be carried out in full conformity with the approved 
SRP unless modifications to the SRP are agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.   

 Reason: To ensure the successful delivery of green infrastructure 
proposals. 

 
DRAINAGE SCHEME  
10. Notwithstanding the provisions of condition 2, no development shall 

commence until a scheme for the disposal of foul, surface water and 
land drainage, including details of the implementation, inspection, 
maintenance and management of that scheme, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation 
with NRW, DCWW and Welsh Government Network Management 
Division.  Before these details are submitted, an assessment shall be 
carried out of the site potential for disposing of surface water by means 
of a sustainable drainage system, and the results of the assessment 
provided to the local planning authority. Where a sustainable drainage 
scheme is to be provided, the submitted details shall: 
i)  provide information about the design storm period and intensity, 

the method employed to delay and control the surface water 
discharged from the site and the measures taken to prevent 
pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters; 

ii)  include a period for its implementation; and 
iii)  provide a management and maintenance plan of the 

development which shall include the arrangements for adoption 
by any public authority or statutory undertaker and any 
other  arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme 
throughout its lifetime. 

 The submitted details shall show the alignment of existing and any 
diverted/proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. the 
trunk and distribution wate rmains, the low pressure gas main and any 
power and communication cables) and their associated easements.  
Details for the disposal of surface water shall include construction details 
and specifications, details of the construction of the attenuation pond(s), 
details of the connection to the existing M4 motorway drainage system 
and details of flow rate attenuation. Details for the disposal of foul water 
to a cesspit/pool shall include details of: the design and management of 
the installation of the cesspit, a level warning device to indicate when the 
tank needs emptying, and a maintenance and monitoring plan.  The 
cesspit shall meet the requirement of British Standard BS 6297.  The 
scheme for the disposal of foul, surface water and land drainage shall be 
implemented as approved prior to the development being put into 
beneficial use and shall be retained and maintained for the lifetime of the 
development. Reason: To ensure protection of controlled waters and the 
environment. 

 
GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
11. Notwithstanding the provisions of condition 2, no development or site 

clearance shall take place until a Green Infrastructure Management 
Strategy (GIMS) for the delivery, establishment and ongoing 



management, maintenance and monitoring of green infrastructure for 
the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The GIMS shall include the following details: 
a) Proposals for the protection, creation, enhancement, 

management and maintenance of habitats, including Llanishen 
Brook (North) SINC, hedgerows, trees, woodland, grasslands, 
water features and SuDs, and verges 

b) Assessment/survey, mitigation and enhancement measures to 
be delivered for European and other protected species affected 
by the development, including nesting birds, bats, dormice, 
badgers, reptiles, Great Crested Newts and common toad. 

c) A plan showing the location of proposed bat, bird and dormice 
nest boxes. 

d) A lighting scheme to control light spillage to wildlife corridors and 
habitats 

e) An independent assessment of, and proposals to ensure, the 
safety of the proposed pond(s) and SuDS features for the general 
public 

f) Treatment for the eradication of Japanese Knotweed and any 
other unsuspected invasive species found at the site 

g) Proposals for the laying out, operation and future maintenance of 
the burial areas and memorial garden landscaping  

h) Implementation programme 
 The approved GIMS shall be implemented in accordance with the 

approved details and programme for implementation. Should monitoring 
and/or surveys indicate a failure of the mitigation measures or a decline 
in a population, remedial measures shall be agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority and shall be implemented as agreed.  

 Reason: To protect and enhance the Green Infrastructure resource of 
the site and to safeguard species protected by the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. 

 
CEMP 
12. Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction 

Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The CEMP shall 
include details of the storage of plant and materials; site hoardings and 
means of enclosure to prevent unauthorised access during construction; 
construction compounds; any temporary facilities for staff; site 
hoardings; site access; construction lighting; parking; wheel washing 
facilities; dust suppression measures and the methods to monitor 
emissions of dust arising from construction activities on site; a site waste 
management plan for the recycling and/or disposal of all waste resulting 
from construction works; a construction drainage scheme that also 
includes measures to prevent contamination of Llanishen Brook and 
harm to water quality of the SINC; a Green Infrastructure Construction 
Protection Strategy detailing measures for the protection of the 
ecological, aboricultural and soil resource during site clearance and 
construction; a detailed scheme for the treatment and disposal of soils 
affected by Japanese Knotweed during site clearance and the 



construction phase; a list of on-site contacts and their responsibilities 
and arrangements for site inductions for contractors working on 
site.  The clearance and construction phase shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved CEMP throughout that phase.   

 Reason: To manage the impact of construction in the interests of 
highway safety, protection of the environment and public amenity. 

 
CONTAMINATED LAND MEASURES – UNFORSEEN CONTAMINATION 
13. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 

the approved development that was not previously identified, it shall be 
reported in writing within 2 days to the Local Planning Authority, all 
associated works shall stop, and no further development shall take place 
unless otherwise agreed in writing until a scheme to deal with the 
contamination found has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.  An investigation and risk assessment 
shall be undertaken and, where remediation is necessary, a remediation 
scheme and verification plan shall be prepared and submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Following 
completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, 
a verification report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The timescale for the above actions shall be 
submitted to the LPA for approval within 2 weeks of the discovery of any 
unsuspected contamination.    

 Reason: To ensure that any unacceptable risks from land contamination 
to the future users of the land , neighbouring land, controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems are minimised, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 

 
IMPORTED SOIL 
14. Any topsoil [natural or manufactured],or subsoil, to be imported shall be 

assessed for chemical or other potential contaminants in accordance 
with a scheme of investigation which shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority in advance of its importation. 
Only material approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be 
imported. All measures specified in the approved scheme shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the relevant Code of Practice and 
Guidance Notes. Subject to approval of the above, sampling of the 
material received at the development site to verify that the imported soil 
is free from contamination shall be undertaken in accordance with a 
scheme and timescale which shall be first submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.   

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced. 
 
IMPORTED AGGREGATES 
15. Any aggregate  (other than virgin quarry stone) or recycled aggregate 

material to be imported shall be assessed for chemical or other potential 
contaminants in accordance with a scheme of investigation which shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
in advance of its importation. Only material approved by the Local 



Planning Authority shall be imported. All measures specified in the 
approved scheme shall be undertaken in accordance with the relevant 
Code of Practice and Guidance Notes. Subject to approval of the above, 
sampling of the material received at the development site to verify that 
the imported material is free from contamination shall be undertaken in 
accordance with a scheme and timescale which shall be first submitted 
to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in 
accordance with policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
USE OF SITE WON MATERIALS 
16. Any site won material including soils, aggregates, recycled materials 

shall be assessed for chemical or other potential contaminants in 
accordance with a sampling scheme which shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in advance of the 
reuse of site won materials. Only material which meets site specific 
target values approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be reused.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in 
accordance with policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
COMPLIANCE CONDITIONS 
BURIAL AREAS 
17. Burials shall only take place in the areas identified as such on approved 

drawing titled 'General Arrangement' (drawing no. CO17144-03RevA).   
 Reason: The assessment of impact has been made on this basis.  
 
REFUSE 
18. The facilities for waste storage shall be provided before the development 

is brought into beneficial use and shall be thereafter retained for future 
use.   

 Reason: To secure an orderly form of development and to protect the 
amenities of the area. 

 
VEHICULAR PARKING 
19. The development shall not be brought into beneficial use until the car 

parking spaces have been laid out in accordance with the provision 
shown on the 'General Arrangement' plan (drawing no. 
CO17144-03RevA) and thereafter the spaces shall be retained and shall 
not be used for any purpose other than the parking of vehicles.  

 Reason: To make provision for the parking of vehicles.  
 
LANDSCAPING IMPLEMENTATION 
20. Any retained or planted trees or plants which within a period of 5 years 

from the completion of the development die, are removed, become 
seriously damaged or diseased, or (in the opinion of the Local Planning 
Authority) otherwise defective, shall be replaced in the planting season 
following their death with others of similar size and species, unless the 
Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.   

 Reason: To maintain and improve the appearance of the area in the 
interests of visual amenity. 



 
PROTECTION OF GROUNDWATER 
21. All burials in the cemetery hereby approved shall be positioned a 

minimum of 50m from a potable groundwater supply sources, a 
minimum of 30m from a watercourse or spring and a minimum of 10m 
distance from field drains and there shall be no burial into standing water 
and the base of the grave shall be above the local water table.    

 Reason: To protect controlled waters in the area. 
 
INFORMATIVES 
RECOMMENDATION 2 : That the developer be advised of the advice from: 
• Wales and West Utilities dated 12/07/2018, a copy of which was sent to 

the Agent 13/07/18. WWU advise that they have pipes in the area, and 
that their apparatus may be affected and at risk during construction 
works and provide general conditions for the protection of apparatus and 
the prevention of disruption to gas supplies.  The developer is advised 
to contact them to discuss their requirements in detail prior to 
commencement, that any diversion works would be fully chargeable and 
that the developer must not build over any of their plant or enclose their 
apparatus. 

• DCWW dated 17/07/18 and 03/09/18. DCWW advise that the site is 
crossed by a 10” trunk watermain and 110mm distribution watermain, 
and provides advice on development near watermains, noting that no 
structure is to be sited within 5m from the centreline of the water main 
pipe, that it may be possible to divert it the cost of which will be 
re-charged to the development and that the developer must consult 
DCWW before any development commences on site.  

• NRW dated 18/07/18 and 03/09/18who provide advice in respect of 
European Protected Species, Foul Drainage and the Protection of 
Groundwater.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 3 : The contamination assessments and the effects of 
unstable land are considered on the basis of the best information available to 
the Planning Authority and are not necessarily exhaustive.  The Authority 
takes due diligence when assessing these impacts, however you are minded 
that the responsibility for  
 
(i)  determining the extent and effects of such constraints and; 
(ii)  ensuring that any imported materials (including, topsoils, subsoils, 

aggregates and recycled or manufactured aggregates / soils) are 
chemically suitable for the proposed end use.  Under no circumstances 
should controlled waste be imported.  It is an offence under section 33 
of the environmental Protection Act 1990 to deposit controlled waste on 
a site which does not benefit from an appropriate waste management 
license.  The following must not be imported to a development site: 
• Unprocessed / unsorted demolition wastes. 
• Any materials originating from a site confirmed as being 

contaminated or potentially contaminated by chemical or 
radioactive substances. 

• Japanese Knotweed stems, leaves and rhizome infested soils.  



In addition to section 33 above, it is also an offence under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to spread this invasive weed; 
and 

 
(iii)  the safe development and secure occupancy of the site rests with the 

developer. 
 
Proposals for areas of possible land instability should take due account of the 
physical and chemical constraints and may include action on land reclamation 
or other remedial action to enable beneficial use of unstable land. 
 
The Local Planning Authority has determined the application on the basis of the 
information available to it, but this does not mean that the land can be 
considered free from contamination. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 4  : To protect the amenities of occupiers of other 
premises in the vicinity attention is drawn to the provisions of Section 60 of the 
Control of Pollution Act 1974 in relation to the control of noise from demolition 
and construction activities. Further to this the applicant is advised that no noise 
audible outside the site boundary adjacent to the curtilage of residential 
property shall be created by construction activities in respect of the 
implementation of this consent outside the hours of 0800-1800 hours Mondays 
to Fridays and 0800 - 1300 hours on Saturdays or at any time on Sunday or 
public holidays. The applicant is also advised to seek approval for any 
proposed piling operations. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 5 : That the developer be advised of the following advice 
from Network Management Division, Welsh Government: 
• The applicant shall demonstrate the design as compliant with HD22/08 

of the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges, in order to maintain the 
integrity of the M4 embankment. 

• The soft estate between Junctions 30 – 32 is known Dormouse habitat 
and the presence of this European Protected Species is highly likely. 
The South Wales Trunk Road Agent has previously worked under a 
protected species disturbance licence to carry out works on the soft 
estate at this location. The applicant must ensure that the potential 
disturbance to habitat is considered as part of any works that might 
affect protected species and apply for any licences required through 
Natural Resources Wales. Additionally, vegetation clearance/cutting 
should be done outside of the bird nesting season. 

• Regardless of whether a licence is required or not, WG would require 
that any work (in connecting drainage) should be done so as to have as 
minimal an impact as possible, both in designing the drainage system 
and with any required clearance or damage to vegetation; or soil 
excavation, undertaken on that basis. Ideally through an agreed method 
statement with WG / SWTRA. The method statement should also 
include details regarding reinstatement, replanting and aftercare (should 
that be required). This would best be achieved through direct liaison with 
SWTRA’s Principal Engineer (Environment). 

• That a suitably detailed engineering scheme be submitted for the 



approval of WG showing exactly how surface water drainage outfall 
connection from the site will be made to the adjacent existing M4 
drainage system within the motorway embankment area. This will 
include detailed drainage calculations, storm simulations and 
engineering details showing how the outfall discharge rate from the site 
will be maintained at the current undeveloped greenfield run off rate from 
the site. 

• The applicant shall enter into a suitable legal agreement with Welsh 
Government to formalise the proposed surface water connection into the 
motorway drainage system. Detailing future maintenance obligations, 
responsibilities, discharge quality and quantity considerations and 
absolving WG from all water quality issues emanating from the site and 
entering the motorway drainage system and natural watercourse 
downstream. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 6 : That the Developer be advised that prior to the 
commencement of development, the Developer must notify the local planning 
authority of the commencement of development , and must display a site notice 
and plan on, or near the site, in accordance with the requirements of Article 12 
of the Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(Wales) (Amendment) Order 2016 
 
RECOMMENDATION 7 : If any European Protected Species are discovered on 
site during development, all works must cease until further advice has been 
sought from a qualified ecologist or Natural Resources Wales.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 8 : That the Developer be advised that it will be 
necessary for an amended TRO to be produced, moving the location of the 
30mph speed limit to the north of the proposed access junction.  
 

1. DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
1.1 This full application, as amended, has been submitted by the Director of Cardiff 

Bereavement Services, Cardiff Council for a change of use from agricultural 
land to a burial site and associated buildings, infrastructure and engineering 
works, including new and altered vehicular access to/from Thornhill Rd, 
provision of roads, footpaths, car park, toilet block, public shelters, burial areas, 
landscaping works (including SuDS) and re-grading of site levels.  

 
1.2 In addition to a package of plans and drawings, the application is accompanied 

by a Design and Access Statement (as amended), Pre-Application 
Consultation (PAC) Report, Transport Assessment (as amended), Tier 1 
Hydrological Risk Assessment, Site Investigation Report, Landscape and 
Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) report (as amended), Aerial Tree 
Assessment, Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Preliminary Ecological 
Appraisal, Ecological Impact Assessment, North Cardiff Cemetery Needs 
Assessment and Alternative Site Assessment, and an Equality Impact 
Assessment.  

 
1.3 The proposed elements of the application include:  



 
Access and Hard Landscaping 

1.4 The site would be accessed from a new vehicular access to/from Thornhill 
Road. The existing farm and PROW access off Thornhill Road would remain 
and a self-closing gate installed to improve access to the PROW in place of the 
existing style.  The existing PROW footpath would fall outside the cemetery 
itself and would remain as a grass surface.  Within the site, an access road link 
will be provided to New House Farm and the PROW, which would provide the 
potential for visitors to the cemetery to visit the farm and its facilities. There 
would be lockable vehicle and pedestrian gates, which would be operated by 
Bereavement Services and locked when the site is non-operational. A 
30-space car park, with 6 disabled bays, would be provided and finished in 
tarmac. An additional 56 additional spaces would be provided in parking laybys 
adjacent to the access roads within the site. Two Sheffield type parking stands 
are proposed.   

 
1.5 The main internal vehicle access roads would be 6m wide and, along with the 

car park, would be finished in tarmac.  Secondary vehicle access roads would 
be 3m wide and finished in tarmac, with parking bays to the side finished in a 
permeable cellular paving system manufactured from recycled waste and 
infilled with buff coloured gravel. Footways would be provided within the site 
adjacent to the main internal access road and main site facilities, and where 
footways are not provided, a ‘shared surface’ approach is proposed. Footpaths 
would be 3m wide and would also be finished in the above buff coloured gravel 
material. Illuminated bollards would provide low level lighting adjacent to the 
access from the main entrance. A formal entrance is proposed, set back from 
Thornhill Road, comprising two pillars and cast iron gates (details of which are 
required by condition).  A slate entrance sign is proposed in the form of a slate 
monolith to create a visual link to the main cemetery at Thornhill.  The site 
would be enclosed by 2.4m high metal fencing in a green finish (details of which 
are required by condition). 

 
1.6 The footway along Thornhill Rd adjacent to the site would be widened to 3m 

and resurfaced along the site frontage down to the M4 Bridge to enhance 
access to the site, and local facilities and bus stops in the area. Two bus stops 
would be provided near the southern end of the site on Thornhill Road, with the 
southbound direction including a shelter.  A pedestrian crossing is also 
proposed and the existing 40 mph speed limit would be changed to 30 mph by 
extending the current 30 mph limit south of the M4 bridge.  The high-level 
power cables running across the site would be undergrounded. 

 
Soft Landscaping  

1.7 The site is proposed to be re-profiled to improve access for all, and a soil 
resource survey and plan is proposed to be undertaken to minimise harm to the 
soil resource.  A landscaping scheme is proposed which includes:  
• An attenuation pond in the south west corner to assist drainage and create 

a valuable wetland habitat 
• An ornamental pond to the north of the access road into the cemetery  



• A memorial garden, which would include stones and boulders incorporating 
memorial plaques, and ornamental planting opposite the pond and car park 
area 

• The creation of a perennial wildflower meadow in the eastern sections 
which would gradually be replaced by burial ground 

• 4 new native species hedgerows –adjacent to the northern boundary to 
screen the site from the PROW, within the site to the east and south of the 
car park, and to the SW of the site, separating the cremated remains burial 
area from the infant burial area 

• Approximately 50 standard trees distributed within the site 
• An avenue of flowering trees to the north of the access road into the site, 

leading visitors into the cemetery and serving to help screen the mast to the 
north of the site and the site from the PROW 

• Native woodland edge planting, including extra heavy standard trees 
around the perimeter (with the exception of the areas where the retained 
and created hedges are located to the north) to ensure a continuous field 
boundary habitat, reinforce the boundaries, soften views into the site and 
reduce noise from Thornhill Road and the M4.  Evergreen oak and holly 
within the planting mixes would help to reduce noise and visual intrusion 
from Thornhill Road and the M4 throughout the year.   

• Enhancement of the Thornhill Road boundary with a wildflower verge, in 
addition to additional native hedgerow and woodland planting. 

 
1.8 Through the landscaping, new habitats would be created to enhance the 

biodiversity of the site, including a pond, wildflower meadows, wetland area, 
new trees, hedgerows and woodland edge areas.  Hedgerows would include 
native species to enhance them as Dormice habitats.  Bat, bird and dormice 
nest boxes, and insect hotels/log piles for invertebrates are also proposed to be 
incorporated into the scheme. 
 
Burial Plots 

1.9 Burial plots will be delivered across the site over many years in a phased 
manner.  Burial areas identified for immediate use would be grass seeded and 
would receive regular cuts to maintain a close cut sward.  Those areas 
identified for longer-term development would planted and maintained as 
wildflower meadows incorporating fine grasses.  As and when burial blots 
come into use, these areas will be managed such that the grasses become 
dominant. 

 
1.10 A range of burial options would be provided, including traditional graves, lawn 

graves, cremated remains graves, and a dedicated natural burial area and 
infant burial area. It is estimated that 3500 full size graves and 4000 cremated 
remains graves would be provided.  

 
1.11 Traditional graves are a full size grave space with space for up to 2 adult burials 

(10’ x 4’ and dug to a depth of 6’6’’). The memorialisation permitted can cover 
the whole grave space and the grave would often have a set of stone kerb 
edgings which measure 7’ long x 3’ wide.  Further to the amended submission, 
the area outside of the graves would be maintained as lawn.  The 
memorialisation of area inside the edging would be down to the grave owners; 



they can sometimes be covered with a single piece of stone referred to as a 
landing or left open and planted with seasonal bedding plants. The headstone 
would sit at the top of the grave and would measure a max of 5’ high x 3’ wide. 
Regulations permit a natural material to be used for memorials, the most 
common option taken up being granite. 

 
1.12 Lawn graves are also a full size grave space, with space for up to 2 adult burials 

(10’ x 4’ and dug to a depth of 6’6’’).  The memorialisation permitted consists of 
a single headstone up to a max of 5’ high x 3’ wide. The remainder of the grave 
space is grass and being laid out back to back provide large open runs of 
grassed areas around 20’ wide, offering a well maintained and more soft 
landscaped environment that traditional graves. Regulations also permit a 
natural material to be used for memorials, the most common option taken up 
being granite. 

 
1.13 Cremated remains graves are generally 3’ wide x 3’ wide, and are dug to a 

depth of 3’ to accommodate up to 3 sets of ashes.  There are two basic types 
offered; the first being a grassed area that has 2 flat tables measuring 15’’ x 11’’ 
placed flat on the grave with the surrounding area maintained as a lawn area. 
The second, more popular option, is a more hard landscaped area consisting of 
paved footways adjoining 3’x3’ grave spaces with memorials set on top of a 
hard foundation and an area of 3’ x 18’’ in front of the memorial to 
accommodate floral tributes or seasonal bedding. 

 
1.14 The woodland burial area offers woodland graves set within a wooded glade. 

The grave spaces are 10’x4’ and generally dug to a depth of 5’ to accommodate 
a single burial. No stone memorialisation would be permitted on the grave 
spaces and the area would be planted as a perennial wildflower meadow.  
Graves are marked with a single wooden post, which is left to weather.  The 
DAS notes that woodland burial is an option that only a small percentage of the 
population require. 

 
1.15 Infant and baby graves are a particularly sensitive issue. The grave spaces are 

approx 4’ long x 2’ wide and accommodate a small granite headstone 
measuring 10’’ x 15’’ on a hardstanding.  The area in front of the grave is 
covered in gravel or is personalised by the family with flowers soft toys or 
coloured chippings.  Given the sensitive natures of these types of burials and 
the minimal amount of maintenance required, this type of personalisation is 
permitted.  

 
Structures and Buildings 

1.16 A timber, single storey public toilet facility housing 3 unisex accessible WC’s, a 
plant room and cleaners cupboard and an external covered seating area is 
proposed adjacent to the car park.  This has a proprietary ‘living’ green roof 
and would be 13.3m long, 6.3m wide with a sloping roof falling from 3.4m to 
3.0m high.  In addition, two timber public shelters (3.3m high, 4.95m wide, 
4.95m long) with a ‘living’ green roof and five flower preparation tables (1.7m 
high, 3.4m long, 1.1m wide), complete with water supply and waste bins are 
proposed.  The flower preparation tables would be finished in timber cladding 
with polished concrete worktops and splashbacks.  



 
 
 

Opening Hours 
1.17 The facility will only be open to the public during daylight hours, and hours of 

opening are anticipated to be: 
April to Sept: Mon – Fri 9am – 6pm, weekends & bank holidays 10am – 6pm 
Oct & March: Mon – Fri 9am – 5pm, weekends & bank holidays 10am – 5pm 
Nov & Feb: Mon – Fri 9am – 5pm, weekends & bank holidays 10am – 4:30pm 
Dec & Jan: Mon – Fri 9am – 5pm, weekends & bank holidays 10am – 4:00pm 
 

1.18 Amended plans were prepared (issued for consultation 14 and 17 August) 
which included the following key changes:  
• retention of existing trees and hedgerow along the Thornhill Rd frontage, 

with the exception of removals necessary to create the new access 
• all boundary planting to be strengthened to help prevent sound and 

obscure visibility into the site 
• omission of a second pond with a cascading water feature to the north of 

the site  
• all pathways to and around individual burial plots to be formed from grass to 

minimise hard landscaping 
• reduction in width of some internal carriageways from 6m to 3m to reduce 

the impact of hard landscaping 
• all footpaths and off-road vehicle parking areas would be constructed using 

a permeable cellular paving system manufactured from recycled waste 
infilled with a buff coloured gravel  

• creation of additional off-road parking, increasing car parking spaces to 
approx 86  

• Reduction in the number of pillars at the cemetery entrance from 3 to 2, and 
the number of signs from 2 to 1 

• Minor amendment to the cemetery boundary to allow continued access to 
the septic tank located in the northeast corner of the site. 

 
1.19 The description was amended to make it clear that the proposed alterations to 

vehicular access included the creation of a new access. 
 

1.20 The initial needs assessment submitted as part of the application describes this 
application as an initial phase and that an area of (2.02ha) 5 acres would then 
be developed to provide further graves for the next 15 to 20 years. It did not 
identify the location of this site and this further phase does not form part of the 
current application.  
 

1.21 A Planning Committee site visit took place on 06/08/2018.  
 
2. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND LOCATION 
 
2.1 The broadly rectangular site comprises approximately 3.7ha of agricultural 

land, in the form a single, semi-improved grassland field, currently used for 
grazing and which forms part of New House Farm. The site is located on the 
East side of Thornhill Road and North of the M4. 



 
2.2 The site lies outside of the Cardiff Settlement Boundary (and is, therefore, 

defined as open 'countryside') and within the Green Wedge, as defined on the 
Proposals Map of the adopted LDP. The majority of the site comprises Grade 
3a Best and Most Versatile agricultural land, with the remainder Grade 3b.  
The land does not constitute Public Open Space. 

 
2.3 There is an existing vehicular access to the site to/from Thornhill Road.  The 

site is also accessed from New House Farm via Capel Gwilym Road. A PROW 
(Lisvane No.15 footpath) is accessed from the same access off Thornhill Road 
and runs within the site, along part of the northern boundary before exiting the 
field, and crossing the farm access road and field before terminating on Capel 
Gwilym Road.   

 
2.4 The site is gently sloping, with the land falling its highest point in the northeast 

corner (approx 130m AOD) towards the southwest corner by up to 16m.  High 
voltage power cables operated by Western Power Distribution run at a high 
level across the south from north to south supported on timber poles, with a 
pole mounted transformer just beyond the northern boundary.  A septic tank is 
located in the northeast corner of the site. 

 
2.5 The site is bounded by: 

• the M4 and its embankment to the south, with the boundary formed by 
fencing and a strip of planted woodland and scrub on the sloping highway 
embankment 

• the A469 Thornhill Road to the west, which is separated from the site by 
fencing and a block of semi-natural broadleaved woodland protected by a 
TPO, with agricultural land and Manor Parc Hotel further to the west 

• a covered reservoir and agricultural land to the north, which are separated 
from the site by a hedge, trees and gate, with woodland, a pub/steakhouse 
and an extended frontage individual dwellings further north to Capel 
Gwilym Rd 

• Agricultural land to the east, separated from the site by a fence, two gates 
and a line of trees 

• New House Farm, farm shop and cafe, and caravan site to the northeast, 
separated from the site by fencing and a hedge. 

 
2.6 A narrow footway runs along the eastern side of Thornhill Road and the site, 

and is positioned below the level of the carriageway in places. There are no 
current Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) restricting parking on Thornhill Road 
near the site. A recent speed limit change to 30mph has been introduced on 
Thornhill Road from the M4 Bridge south to just north of Heol Llanishen Fach 
where the original 40 mph limit started. There are bus stops located on 
Thornhill Road at the Capel Gwilym junction and Bassett’s Field junction near 
the site. There are further bus stops along Excalibur Drive and near the existing 
Thornhill Crematorium and Cemetery site. The closest crossing facility on 
Thornhill Road is approx 430m to the south of the proposed site and is located 
at the Bassett’s Field junction.  

 



2.7 Streams run from north to south approx 400m to the west and 300m to the east 
of the site.  A poorly maintained ditch runs along the western boundary, 
considered to no longer be viable. A French drain has been installed along the 
top of the motorway cutting, flowing into three deep gullies, which the drainage 
scheme for the site would connect to. The site does not lie within a flood pain or 
within the total catchment of a groundwater source protection zone. No wells 
are located within a 250m radius of the site.   Arable fields and blocks of 
woodland make up the majority of the landscape surrounding the site to the 
north, east and west. The surrounding topography is gently undulating, rising 
towards the Caerphilly ridge to the north and west of the site. 

 
2.8 The site is located approximately 350m northeast of the existing Thornhill 

Crematorium and Cemetery site (approx. 650m between the access into each 
site). The site is located approx. 72m from the nearest residential property 
south of the M4 (Woodruff Way). An ancient monument, Castell Morgraig 
(GM031) lies approx 800m north of the application site. There is a Site of 
Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) approx 55m to the south of the M4 
(Coedifanbychan/Coedtirhwnt) comprising semi-natural woodland, and a SINC 
approx 215m to the west (Briwnant Wood).  Llanishen Brook (North) SINC is 
located approx 0.27km to the east. 

 
2.9 The field that forms the application site forms part of New House Farm, Capel 

Gwilym Road. The land is owned by Cardiff Council, but is leased to the tenant 
farmer who uses it for grazing and who owns Thornhill Farm shop, cafe and 
caravan site. The land is subject to a Farm Business Tenancy lease, which still 
has 18 years to run.  The Council will need to amend the lease to regain 
control of the site and it is hoped that the site will come back into Council 
administration by October 2019, subject to planning permission and serving the 
appropriate notice.  

 
3. RELEVANT RECENT SITE HISTORY 
 
3.1 SC/17/00014/MJR – Screening opinion in respect of new burial site.  
 
4. POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 

Local Policy 
4.1 Cardiff Local Development Plan 2006-2026 (Adopted January 2016) 

Key Policies: 
KP1: LEVEL OF GROWTH 
KP3(A): GREEN WEDGE 
KP3(B): SETTLEMENT BOUNDARIES 
KP4: MASTERPLANNING APPROACH 
KP5: GOOD QUALITY AND SUSTAINABLE DESIGN 
KP6: NEW INFRASTRUCTURE 
KP7: PLANNING OBLIGATIONS 
KP8: SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT 
KP12: WASTE 
KP13: RESPONDING TO EVIDENCED SOCIAL NEEDS 
KP14: HEALTHY LIVING 



KP15: CLIMATE CHANGE 
KP16: GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 
KP18: NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
Detailed Policies: 
EN1: COUNTRYSIDE PROTECTION 
EN3: LANDSCAPE PROTECTION 
EN5: DESIGNATED SITES 
EN6: ECOLOGICAL NETWORKS AND FEATURES OF IMPORTANCE FOR 
BIODIVERSITY 
EN7: PRIORITY HABITATS AND SPECIES 
EN8: TREES, WOODLANDS AND HEDGEROWS 
EN9: CONSERVATION OF THE HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT 
EN10: WATER SENSITIVE DESIGN 
EN13: AIR, NOISE, LIGHT POLLUTION AND LAND CONTAMINATION 
EN14: FLOOD RISK 
T1: WALKING AND CYCLING 
T2: STRATEGIC RAPID TRANSIT AND BUS CORRIDORS 
T5: MANAGING TRASPORT IMPACTS 
T6: IMPACT ON TRANSPORT NETWORKS AND SERVICES 
C3: COMMUNITY SAFETY/ CREATING SAFE ENVIRONMENTS 
C6: HEALTH 
W2: PROVISION FOR WASTE MANAGEMENT FACILITIES IN 
DEVELOPMENT 

 
4.2 The application site lies outside Cardiff’s settlement boundary and within the 

Green Wedge as identified on the Proposals map of the Adopted Cardiff Local 
Development Plan (LDP). 

 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) and other local guidance 

4.3 Relevant SPG approved following the adoption of the Cardiff Local 
Development Plan: 
‘Green Infrastructure’ (approved November 2017) 
‘Managing Transport Impacts (Incorporating Parking Standards)’ (April 2018) 
‘Planning Obligations’ (approved January 2017) 
‘Waste Collection and Storage Facilities’ (approved October 2016) 

 
National Planning Policy 

4.4 Planning Policy Wales and the Wales Spatial Plan set out the land use policies 
of the Welsh Government.  These are supplemented by a series of Technical 
Advice Notes and Circulars.  

 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9, November 2016) 

4.5 Section 1.2 explains that the purpose of the planning system is to manage the 
development and use of land in the public interest, contributing to improving the 
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, as required 
by the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  It notes that the 
planning system should reconcile the needs of development and conservation, 
securing economy, efficiency and amenity in the use of land, and protecting 
natural resources and the historic environment. It recognises that a 



well-functioning planning system is fundamental for sustainable development 
(para 1.2.1). 

 
4.6 PPW has been updated to take into account the Well-being of Future 

Generations (Wales) Act 2015 more fully, and includes information on the 
provisions of the Act. It notes that the Act establishes a ‘sustainable 
development principle’ which it notes means that a defined public body must 
act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met 
without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs 
and lists a series of key principles that they expect all those involved in the 
planning system to adhere to. PPW sets out a series of sustainability objectives 
that reflect the vision for sustainable development and which should be taken 
into account in taking decisions on individual planning applications in Wales, 
structured around 7 well-being goals: a prosperous Wales, a resilient Wales, a 
healthier Wales, a more equal Wales, a Wales of cohesive communities, a 
Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language, and a globally 
responsible Wales.  

 
Technical Advice Notes (TANs)  

4.7 Key TANs and Circulars include:  
TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning (2009) 
TAN 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (2010) 
TAN 11: Noise (1997) 
TAN 12: Design (2016) 
TAN 15: Development and Flood Risk (2004) 
TAN 18: Transport (2007) 
TAN 21: Waste (2014) 
TAN 24: The Historic Environment (2017) 
Circular 008/2018 ‘Planning requirement in respect of the use of private 
sewerage in new development, incorporating septic tanks and small 
sewage treatment plants’. 

 
5. INTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
5.1 Waste Management advise that the proposal to use the existing waste 

contract for the site would be acceptable and that refuse facilities must be 
retained for future use.  
 

5.2 Pollution Control (Contaminated Land) advise that the risk of water 
contamination is low and confirm they have no objection, subject to conditions 
to control unforeseen contamination, the importation of soils and aggregates 
and the re-use of site won materials, and advisory notices in respect of 
contamination and unstable land.  

 
5.3 Pollution Control (Noise) recommends a construction site noise advisory 

notice. 
 
5.4 The County Ecologist provided the following advice in respect of the initial 

submission:  



• The application has been submitted with a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 
(PEA), which, as set out in Section 2.1.5 of that document, does not 
constitute an ecological impact assessment (EcIA), and does not consider 
the proposed layout of the site.  Normally, for a major development on a 
greenfield site, I would expect an EcIA of the full impact of the finalised 
plans for this site to be submitted. 

• I have some queries in relation to some of the information that has been 
submitted.  For example, on the amended Proposed Landscaping plan, 
there is a linear area of land parallel to the Thornhill Road which is hatched 
in a colour which is not described in the key.  We should ask the applicant 
to clarify this. 

• Also I am not clear as to the fate of the hedgerow which runs along the 
north of the site, in the section to the west of the access track.  To the east 
of this track the proposal is to lay and bolster plant the hedge, but to the 
west a new native species hedgerow is proposed.  Therefore I am not 
clear what is to happen to the existing hedgerow at this point.  Generally I 
would resist any unnecessary hedgerow removal at this site, as the site’s 
main ecological value lies in the surrounding hedges, trees, scrub etc.   

• One of my main concerns with this application is the proposed removal of 
the vegetation along the Thornhill Road, and in this respect, cross sections 
of the site at this point are helpful.  However, with the two cross sections 
provided, it is not clear whether the depicted vegetation is meant to be that 
which is existing or that proposed.  In fact, cross sections showing what is 
there at present, and what is proposed to be planted afterwards, would both 
be useful.  Similarly, the proposed and existing levels change from north to 
south, so a greater number of sections (for example, at least four), would be 
useful in depicting this transition.   

• Specifically in relation to the southern Section (Section 2) I am not clear as 
to why the levels need to be altered, especially as this would entail 
substantial clearance of native vegetation.  With Section 1 it is evident that 
the change is needed to accommodate a level footway adjacent to the road, 
but this does not appear to be necessary in Section 2, apart from a very 
small wedge behind the bus stop. 

• I would emphasise that with the arrangement along Thornhill Road, it is 
critical that clearance of trees and bushes etc is kept to the minimum 
necessary to provide a widened road and level footway adjacent to it.  Any 
alterations which exceed this minimum should not be accepted. 

• The Proposed Landscaping plan appears to show a swathe of ‘Close-cut 
general amenity grass mix’ between the site and Thornhill Road.  I 
recognise that a more formal treatment is necessary around the entrance to 
the site, but not along the whole length of the boundary with Thornhill Road.  
Away from the main entrance, a wildflower meadow treatment should be 
used. 

• I note that eight trees were recorded as having low or moderate bat roost 
potential, though I would query some of these categorisations.  For 
example Tree 6 is described as a large mature oak with multiple knot holes 
present on the tree’s southern face, which suggests a ‘moderate’ rather 
than ‘low’ bat roost potential.  However, the PEA recommends that all 
eight trees are subject to further survey, so there is no value in disagreeing 



with the categorisations.  The results of these surveys should be provided 
in support of the application.   

• With reference to Section 5.1.14, and for the avoidance of doubt, all 
surveyors undertaking survey techniques which may cause disturbance to 
bats should hold a bat licence issued by Natural Resources Wales, not 
Natural England.   

• A better understanding of the extent of tree loss along the Thornhill Road 
would subsequently inform an assessment of impact upon Dormice.   As I 
have explained to the applicant, it should be possible to assume the 
presence of this species at the planning stage, and secure appropriate 
mitigation accordingly.  However, this approach would be dependent upon 
the vegetation being cleared in such a way as to avoid harm to any Dormice 
present.  Normally, one would clear the above-ground vegetation during 
the winter while the dormice are in hibernation at ground level, then clear 
out the roots and stumps in the summer when they have made their way to 
remaining vegetation nearby.  Also, the replacement habitat would have to 
be capable of supporting Dormice, and so should consist of native species 
woodland edge planting.  Assurance that these measures would be in 
place should be provided prior to determination of the application.  This 
would enable us to demonstrate that we have had due regard to the 
protection afforded to this species, and would provide comfort that a 
subsequent EPS licence application would be successful, in accordance 
with our duty under Reg 9(3) of the Habitats Regs. 

• Should planning consent be granted, NRW should then be approached for 
an EPS licence to allow works to take place.  They may or may not require 
further survey work to inform this licence application. 

• I would not say that a reptile survey is needed, as the area of suitable 
habitat is limited to the northern margin of the site, and the likely species 
present, together with the impacts upon them, can be readily predicted and 
mitigated accordingly. 

• I agree with the Reasonable Avoidance Measures (RAMs) proposed in 
respect of nesting birds, Badgers, Hares, Hedgehogs, Otters, Water Voles, 
Great Crested Newts and all other species/groups listed.  These 
measures, and others to mitigate impacts upon dormice, reptiles and bats, 
and to control Japanese Knotweed, should be consolidated in a GIMS or 
similar, secured by planning condition. 

• The PEA for this site pre-dates the Aerial Tree Assessment (ATA), so the 
latter supersedes the parts of the PEA which consider bats.   As the two 
sections are different, any subsequent EcIA or amendment to the PEA 
should adopt the more recent findings of the ATA. 

• There are some aspects of the ATA which I would like to see amended or 
clarified:- 
o In Appendix 1 – Results – T4 is listed as an Ash, but the ‘Comments’ 

section for that tree states ‘Mature Beech in northwest corner of the 
site…’.  The report should be clear whether T4 is a Beech or an Ash 

o Appendix 1 – Results -  identifies two trees as having high bat roost 
potential, and two as having moderate potential, however the key in 
Appendix 2 – Tree Locations – does not depict any trees with high bat 
roost potential 



o In Appendix 1 – Results – T1 is assessed as having moderate bat roost 
potential, however in Appendix 2 this is depicted as ‘Low’ potential 
according to Figure 2 

o Appendix 2 – Tree Locations – is a duplicate of ‘Figure 2 – Extended 
Phase 1 Habitat Survey Results’ from the PEA.  Given that the ATA 
post-dates the PEA, Appendix 2 of the ATA should be updated with the 
results of the ATA survey. 

• However, subject to these clarifications, I agree with sections 5 and 6 of the 
ATA in that should any trees of high or moderate bat roost potential need to 
be felled as part of the proposals for this site, further surveys and mitigation 
may be necessary.  Further surveys would take the form of emergence / 
re-entry surveys at an appropriate time of year (roughly April to September 
inclusive).  When the full extent of tree loss at this site is established it will 
become apparent which further surveys are needed.  These surveys 
should be carried out in the active season immediately before tree removal, 
though it is not essential that this is prior to determination. 
 

5.5 The County Ecologist provided the following comments in response to the 
amended proposals:  

 
I am broadly happy with the amended plans and with the Ecological Impact 
Assessment as submitted.  The EcIA contains a number of 
recommendations for avoidance and mitigation of harmful impacts, as well 
as for compensation for habitats lost and enhancement of habitats.  The 
question is then how best to secure implementation of these measures.  In 
most cases the proposed mitigation measures are set out in sufficient detail 
that we could use a condition to secure the implementation of Sections 4 
and 5 of the EcIA.  However my preference would be to apply a condition 
requiring the submission and implementation of a green infrastructure 
mitigation and management strategy, to secure consideration of all 
elements of green infrastructure relevant to this site in a holistic way, 
including ecology, trees, landscaping and drainage.  The ecological 
elements of a GI strategy are summarised in Table 3 of the EcIA. 
 

5.6 The Tree Officer provides the following comments in respect of the initial 
submission: 
• The submitted tree assessment does not incorporate an Arboricultural 

Impact Assessment, Method Statement or Tree Protection Plan based on 
the proposed development plans. 

• There is no Soil Resource Survey or Plan. These should be prepared in 
accordance with the Soils and Development TGN in order to inform planting 
proposals and the landscape specification, including a planting and 
aftercare methodology prepared in accordance with the Trees and 
Development TGN. 

• A sense of enclosure can be important when visiting a place of burial or 
cremation, and whilst I acknowledge that over time, the landscaping 
proposed to replace what appears to be the complete loss of existing 
vegetation on the Thornhill Road boundary, may help to create a sense of 
enclosure, I am unclear why it is necessary to remove all of the existing 
vegetation and am concerned that the proposed landscaping in mitigation 



for this loss is not fit for purpose. Large species trees comprising 
hornbeam, English oak and the evergreen/semi-evergreen Lucombe oak 
are proposed at spacing that will result in gross mutual suppression. These 
are low spreading trees with mature radial branch spreads exceeding 10m, 
that have been spaced between 2m up to a maximum of 4.5m apart. I 
suggest an alternative approach as follows – plant Quercus petraea at 12m 
centres, staggered, and never closer than 3m to footways or highways, but 
use single Lucombe oaks either side of the main entrance to tie in with the 
more ornamental, formal character here. Quercus petraea is considered a 
good choice because it is quicker growing, more upswept and of more 
regular form than Q.robur, and has a better tolerance to extremes of wet 
and dry. Under-plant with the proposed woodland edge mix but remove the 
Pinus sylvestris, which I fear will be suppressed in the context of oaks and 
use occasional specimen Ilex aquifolium ‘J.C. Van Tol’ at 6m centres to 
help establish a stronger broad-leaved evergreen under-storey. Ilex 
aquifolium works well with oaks, sitting beneath them happily, and 
broad-leaved evergreens represent the best option for screening and 
buffering sound pollution. The site, even with the existing established 
landscaping, is notably noisy and will certainly not be a pleasant 
environment to visit unless there is a strong visual and sound buffer to 
Thornhill Road. 

• I note that there is an existing low pressure gas pipe running along the 
Thornhill Road frontage. The presence of this pipeline may impede or 
prohibit some of the proposed screen and entrance feature planting along 
this frontage. Wales & West guidelines state that only hedging is 
permissible over the pipeline, with birch, maple (it doesn’t specify which), 
‘most conifers’ and oak to be planted no closer than 6m. ‘Dense mass 
planting’ (density and species not defined) is not permitted within 10m 
whereas where screening is required, blackthorn, hazel, elder and 
hawthorn may be planted close to the pipeline.  If the gas pipe does 
impede or prohibit certain planting, it means that it will be even more difficult 
to mitigate the loss of the existing trees and vegetation in a way that results 
in an effective visual and sound buffer to Thornhill Road. 

• S1 is annotated a different colour to the other woodland edge mixes – is 
there a reason for this? 

• The x5 Lucombe oaks lining the eastern edge of the internal road facing 
Thornhill Road are a good choice in terms of a visual and sound buffer, but 
are large and low spreading trees, so should be positioned at 10m centres 
and no closer than 3m to footways and highways. This means x4 trees, x2 
in the northern quadrant and x2 in the southern quadrant. To function best 
in terms of a visual and sound buffer, they should be supported by a 
broad-leaved evergreen hedge bounding the access road. I suggest Ilex 
aquifolium ‘J.C. Van Tol’ or Quercus ilex.  In this way there should be year 
round buffering at a low and high level, helping to give the sense of 
enclosure I think is so important here. Each Quercus will need to be 
allocated at least 30mᶟ root available soil volume (e.g. a tree pit of 6m x5m 
x1m depth) and it will need to be borne in mind that Lucombe oak is low 
spreading, so cremation and burial features should not be located where 
low branches will interfere with them. Preferably, a clearly defined green 



corridor will be proposed here rather than cremation plots coming close to 
trees. 

• Sorbus aucuparia is the only small-medium sized flowering tree used within 
the burial/cremation quadrants. It is a short-lived and disease prone tree 
that should be used sparingly as part of structural landscaping and at 
minimum 6m centres, at least 1.50m from highways and footways. I 
suggest mixing in some different species such as standard grown 
Crataegus monogyna and laevigatum, to give continuity of flowering. 
Specimen hollies would also be appropriate as a native tree with traditional 
links to burial grounds – I suggest specimens with different characteristics 
such as ‘J.C. ‘Van Tol’, ‘Handsworth New Silver’ and f. bacciflava (yellow 
berried). 

• The semi-mature Quercus robur should be positioned at least 3m from 
footways. 

• Carpinus betulus is used extensively but is not locally native and is a tree 
requiring lots of space, so would need to be planted at 12m centres 
minimum and at least 3m from footways or highways. It is a dense, low 
spreading tree and should be used sparingly in unconstrained locations – 
the proposed numbers should be reduced in favour of Quercus petraea, 
which is quicker growing, more upswept and more tolerant of dry and wet 
soils, but will require the same spacing as the Carpinus. 

• Gross mutual suppression will result as a consequence of the tight spacing 
of large species trees on the southern boundary. The narrow width of this 
verge means that root architecture may be distorted and large species 
trees will be in danger of damaging highway infrastructure. Given the 
importance of providing a visual and sound buffer on this boundary, a 
doubling of the verge width would be supported. Otherwise, unless a root 
barrier can be installed and root available soil is readily available beyond 
the site boundary to the south (I assume it is), smaller trees must be 
proposed here. Otherwise I would suggest Quercus petraea at 12m centres 
with selected specimen Ilex aquifolium ‘J.C. Van Tol’ as per the Thornhill 
Road boundary, to give visual at sound buffering at lower level. 

• Proposed Taxus baccata should be at least 3m from footways and 
highways. 

• I would not use Prunus avium as a linear planting adjoining the main 
entrance. It is a short-lived, disease prone pioneer tree with disruptive 
roots, and is better used as stand-alone specimens as per the woodland 
cemetery. I suggest that Quercus robur ‘Fastigiata Koster’ or Acer 
campestre ‘Streetwise’ be used instead, at 6m centres and at least 1.5m 
from the footway and highway, assuming a root-barrier edging. 

• X2 groups of x3 Prunus padus are proposed in the SW corner adjoining the 
attenuation pond. Prunus padus is a spreading, suckering tree and planted 
at the density shown will grossly mutually suppress and become 
structurally unstable. I suggest that they are reduced to single trees, or 
perhaps replaced by single Alnus glutinosa. 

• I cannot see a schedule for the ornamental shrub planting. 
• A full landscape specification is required comprising topsoil and subsoil 

specification, tree pit section and plan view, planting and aftercare 
methodology. 

 



5.7 The Tree Officer provides the following response in respect of the amended 
plans:  
• The submitted Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) reports that x1 

category ‘B’ tree along with part of a category ‘B’ group of trees will be lost 
to development, whilst the ‘B’ category trees T11a, T12, T13 and T14 will 
see incursions into their Root Protection Areas, though the extent of this is 
not made clear and the assessment refers to further information being 
provided as the detailed construction drawings are developed. The 
worst-case scenario is the loss of a total of x5 ‘B’ category trees and part of 
a ‘B’ category group. It is clear from the submitted landscaping drawings 
that new planting will more than offset these losses (though the potential 
conflicts with drainage should be noted below), so I could not object on the 
basis of unacceptable harm to trees of amenity value, but it is important to 
consider that the losses could be focused on the western boundary, where 
vegetation is especially important for screening in visual and noise pollution 
terms, and new planting with large species trees may be constrained by a 
gas pipe. Consequently it would be helpful to have a little more clarity in the 
AIA since we do not want the impact to worsen once detailed construction 
drawings are prepared. The section concerning the impact on tree T13 for 
example, is incomplete. A finalised AIA should inform an Arboricultural 
Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan. 

• Prior to consultation, Geoff Whittington (Landscape Architect) sent me the 
landscaping plan. I annotated it with my suggested amendments (attached) 
and my comments were as follows: - I’m suggesting a slight reduction in 
tree numbers to avoid mutual suppression problems and the use of the 
native Sorbus torminalis by the main entrance instead of the Pyrus. The 
Pyrus is proving problematic in terms of weak forks – the leader typically 
bifurcates and I’ve seen several cases of failure. Also, as it has become a 
very popular urban tree in recent times, its associated diseases have also 
become more common, particularly scab and mildews which can be 
disfiguring. The Sorbus is a more imposing tree with equal if not greater 
visual amenity in terms of flower, leaf shape, autumn colour and berries – I 
think it will be well-suited to the soils, has a more naturalistic feel than the 
Pyrus and should attract lots of wildlife. I think you could mix up the Ilex a bit 
to avoid having too many ‘J.C. Van Tol’. The odd yellow berried holly would 
contrast nicely (Ilex aquifolium f. bacciflava), as would variegated forms 
such as Ilex aquifolium ‘Handsworth New Silver’ – used particularly in the 
‘internal’ areas these could contrast nicely with the red berried ‘J.C. Van 
Tol’ but give the same sense of enclosure. I’m a bit worried about 
availability of Quercus x lucombeana ‘William Lucombe’ (I believe the 
correct current name is Quercus x crenata, but Quercus x hispanica 
‘Lucombeana’ or ‘William Lucombe’ is likely to be the trade name 
encountered), particularly in numbers and at reasonable size, and you may 
need to consider alternatives unless you’ve found a good source. I’ve 
avoided Quercus ilex due to its invasive characteristics. Quercus suber is a 
possibility, as is Quercus x turneri.  I think broad-leaved evergreens will 
offer the best return in terms of visual and sound buffering and evergreen 
oaks will have a more naturalistic feel than other species. 

• The plan submitted with the application does not address my comments 
and it varies slightly from the one Geoff sent in that the submitted plan 



shows the addition of x3 Quercus petraea and x1 Carpinus betulus on the 
eastern boundary adjoining a swale. These trees are planted too close 
such that mutual suppression and structural problems will result. Just x2 
Quercus petraea should be specified, well-spaced, though I seek 
clarification on the soil volume available for these trees, assuming the 
swale will represent a barrier, adequate soil volume should be available 
off-site to the east. 

• Potential conflict between drainage and tree planting is apparent and I’ve 
highlighted areas of concern.  

• The x5 Quercus ‘William Lucombe’ proposed towards the western edge are 
key in my view to ensuring there is some sense of enclosure and buffering 
of sound pollution from Thornhill Road. I see this as a really important 
element in ensuring that people visiting the cemetery can feel at ease. 
Consequently I had expected a landscape corridor here or a staggered 
avenue with Quercus or Ilex planted on the opposite side of the access 
road, though I appreciate that the alignment of the gas pipe may constrain 
space here. What we have is trees planted within isolated and relatively 
small beds, with no scope for under-storey planting with Ilex, which was my 
original conception to give a continuous evergreen corridor. I fear that the 
Quercus, which by nature are very spreading, low to the ground (this is 
ideal in terms of sound and visual buffering) will require crown-lifting and 
other pruning to constrain their size in relation to the plots and highway, 
limiting the benefit they provide. Each tree will require access to 30mᶟ root 
available soil volume and it needs to be clear that they will have this 
assuming that the plots will be edged by root barriers 

• Finalised landscaping details should comprise the following, and be 
informed by a Soil Resource Survey and Plan prepared in accordance with 
our Soils and Development TGN: A landscaping implementation 
programme, Finalised, scaled planting plan, Evidence to confirm that the 
design of landscaping does not conflict significantly with proposed or 
existing services, drainage, lighting or CCTV, Finalised schedules of plant 
species, sizes, numbers and densities, Scaled tree pit sectional and plan 
drawings that show the Root Available Soil Volume for each tree, Topsoil 
and subsoil specification for all planting types, including full details of soil 
assessment, protection, stripping, storage, handling, amelioration and 
placement to ensure it is fit for purpose. Where imported planting soils are 
proposed, full specification details shall be provided including the 
parameters for all imported planting soils, a soil scientists interpretive report 
demonstrating that the planting soil is appropriate for the landscaping type 
proposed and not only meets British Standards, but exceeds them in terms 
of suitability for the proposed end use. The specification shall be supported 
by a methodology for handling, amelioration and placement, Planting 
methodology and post-planting aftercare methodology, including full details 
of how the landscape architect will oversee landscaping implementation 
and report to the LPA to confirm compliance with the approved plans and 
specifications. 

 
5.8 Parks Services provide the following comments in respect of the initial 

submission:  



• Given confirmation of the low pressure gas main by Wales and West, the 
location and depth of this needs to be established, as it will affect both the 
planting along the front of the site (with planting being restricted to outside 
the easement) and the regrading proposed. This could significantly 
influence the design. 

• I share Matt Harris’ comments about the removal of all the existing trees 
and other vegetation along the Thornhill Road. My view is that although the 
vegetation along the existing frontage would benefit from additional 
planting, the current trees and shrubs serve 3 valuable functions 
1. The overall design of the cemetery is to blend in with the surrounding 

landscape, and in many respects this has been achieved, but removal of 
all the vegetation along the frontage will change the character of the site 
and open it up visually for a few years when viewed from Thornhill Road 

2. It provides valuable ecological connectivity along Thornhill Road, and 
although the replacement planting will provide this again over time, it will 
take some time to establish 

3. When inside the cemetery site, noise and visual disturbance from 
Thornhill Road and the M4 are key factors in detracting from the sense of 
peace. Therefore having good quality screening for both is vital and 
again removal of all the vegetation along the front seems contradictory 
to this. 

• Removal of vegetation around the entrance is definitely necessary to 
achieve the visibility splay and provide a high quality formal entrance to the 
cemetery. However I agree with Matt that it is less clear as to why all 
sections need removal. Some selective vegetation removal and 
replacement is desirable but complete removal depends only on levels. It 
needs to be clarified if removal results from : 
a. a requirement for level changes within the site in order to make it work 

in terms of burial space, drainage and roads and / or 
b. removal is as a result of the proposed highway works to accommodate 

a 3m wide footpath and bus shelter 
• I remain unclear as to why a 3m wide highway footpath is needed is needed 

rather than the standard 2m width. This gives a very hard frontage to the 
development and seems to be to accommodate the bus stop; if a bus 
shelter is required could the path be widened in this location rather than the 
whole way along. The remaining footway to the south along Thornhill Road 
is much narrower and limited in width where it crosses the M4.   

• I agree with Matt Harris that given the significant change in levels down 
Thornhill Road some additional existing and proposed sections across the 
front area would be useful. 

• Replacing some of the amenity mix with wildflower meadow mix would also 
be beneficial along the front. 

• Planting along the M4 boundary will provide additional visual and noise 
screening, with good variety of species. I’m unclear following on 
discussions held at pre-application stage whether any work was done to 
identify if this planting is sufficient to provide enough of an acoustic barrier, 
particularly during winter where there is less leaf cover. 

• Although I welcome the internal design of the cemetery has many positive 
elements and has improved in a number of respects from pre-application 
stage. Relocation of the attenuation basin further towards the southern 



boundary makes sense; I’m assuming that this will be an attenuation 
feature only rather than providing public access. The ponds at the top of the 
site will provide attractive features and seating will give good views over the 
countryside although seating is not shown on plan but is mentioned in DAS. 

• Enclosure of car park by hedge provides good visual screening but 
pedestrian access to the southern cremated remains area requires quite a 
convoluted and long walk and there is a risk that people will seek a more 
direct desire line. 

• Couldn’t see any information on knotweed treatment near to the entrance.  
• Layout of graves / cremated remains shows them extending very close to 

the edge of the road, which will create a hard feel to the area. This may 
simply be representational on the drawing but setting them back further 
from the road edge as happens in phase 2 (pond section of Thornhill 
Crematorium) would give a softer feel (accepting limitations from the need 
to create significant burial / cremated remains space).  

 
5.9 Parks Services provide the following comments in respect of the amended 

plans and additional information:  
• Having looked at the updated plans many of my earlier comments have 

been addressed.  
• The revised levels mean that only selective removal of the existing trees 

and other vegetation along the Thornhill Road is required, rather than 
complete removal. This will be enhanced by additional planting. It appears 
that the location of the gas main will limit new tree planting, but allow other 
low level planting. Loss of additional tree planting on the frontage has been 
largely overcome by additional tree planting within the site. As a result my 
concerns about the ability of the burial area to blend in with the surrounding 
landscape, loss of ecological connectivity, and internal screening of the 
burial area from noise and visual disturbance created by Thornhill Road 
and the M4 , have all been addressed. 

• The amenity mix along the front has been replaced with wildflower meadow 
mix, which supports my previous comments.  

• I still remain slightly unclear as to why a 3m wide highway footpath is 
needed is needed rather than the standard 2m width (except where the bus 
shelter is placed) as its connectivity to elsewhere down Thornhill Road, and 
presence of the bus shelter makes it difficult to envisage joint use for 
cycling and pedestrians. However given the other changes along the front 
of the site in terms of vegetation the visual impact of a 3m width of tarmac 
will be significantly lessened. 

• I couldn’t see any information on knotweed treatment near to the entrance; 
if this hasn’t been provided to date it could be conditioned.   

• I welcome the introduction of pull in areas demarcated by a change in 
surfacing next to a number of burial areas. This has enabled a reduction in 
the width of the tarmac road, and will provide valuable additional parking 
when required, increasing parking capacity well above that provided by the 
car park alone. It will also guide visitors where to park rather than them 
potentially obstructing the road.  

 



5.10 The PROW team advise that PROW Lisvane no 15 footpath crosses the 
proposed development along the Northern boundary and that they have no 
objection to the proposed development, noting that:  
• . PROW Lisvane No.15 footpath crosses the proposed development along 

the Northern boundary and does not appear to be affected other than 
where proposed vehicle access to the farm shop is being considered.   

Signage 
• A metalled waymarker post is required at the start of the PROW footpath 

where it joins off Thornhill Road. 
• Additional signage will need to be installed at the junction of the lockable 

gate accessing the cemetery and the improved access to the farm shop.  
Access 
• Confirmation request: The design plan does not indicate an access gate off 

Thornhill Road. Currently there is a blocked stile which we would like to 
have removed and replaced with either a self-closing gate or bollards to 
prevent vehicle access. Either option needs to be moved closer to the 
Thornhill Road footway with appropriate PRoW signage.  

 
5.11 In response to the amended submission, the PROW team reiterate previous 

comments and advise that a directional waymarker is required to show the 
PROW footpath that goes off from the internal access to the PROW towards the 
Farm shop. 

 
5.12 The Operational Manager Transportation provide the following comments in 

respect of the initial submission: 
• As the report is accompanying a planning application, it is recommended to 

remove the sentence in Section 1 referring to it only being a Draft document 
whilst Public Consultation is undertaken. 

• The principle of a new highway access in the proposed location is 
accepted, but the wording in the fourth paragraph of 4.1 needs to be 
amended as this states that “the precise location of the main junction will be 
determined following a detailed investigation…”, and the location of the 
access point needs to be fixed. There would be a condition added relating 
to the access and some further details could be covered via that 
subsequently, but not the location. 

• An amendment to the existing speed limit TRO would be required, in order 
to move the 30mph limit to the north of the proposed access point, and this 
would need to follow the standard TRO process. 

• 4.3 should set out some further details on why a figure of 30 spaces in the 
main parking area has been selected. Whilst having some additional 
overflow parking beyond that figure may be acceptable, there is concern 
with the wording of “unrestricted parking is available around the site”, as 
this suggests there could potentially be a large number of additional 
vehicles trying to access the site and parking at various locations.  

• In terms of meeting Cardiff’s aspirations to encourage cycling I would like to 
see a greater number of cycle spaces than the 2 no. proposed (accepting 
that cycling is unlikely to be a major travel mode, but it will be an option for 
some burial attendees, as well as potentially for staff). It would be 
preferable if 6 spaces (thus 3 Sheffield stands) could be provided, and 



these should be covered and secure. It is not clear from the submitted plans 
where the currently proposed two spaces are intended to be located. 

• It appears that a 3m footway/cycleway is proposed on the eastern side of 
Thornhill Road to the south of the access, although this is not dimensioned 
and its southern extent is not shown, but this needs to form a continuous 
route from the site to the existing footway network to the south (the 
references to “ambition to” and “further investigation” should be removed, 
as the details need to be confirmed/agreed as part of this planning 
application.) 

• It is noted that a zebra crossing is proposed to the north of the access to 
Manor Parc, and that there will be bus stops on either side of the junction. 
Whilst in principle such provision is welcomed, at pre-application stage we 
were discussing the provision of bus stops much closer to the site access, 
as this reduces walk distances. It would be useful for some explanation of 
why bus stops are now proposed further south. In addition, a southbound 
bus shelter is proposed but this seems to block most of the footway, and so 
the footway should be widened at this location. 

• The seventh paragraph of 4.4 states “In view of the issues associated with 
traffic islands, this option will not be explored”. It is not clear exactly what 
option this is referring to, but this sentence should be clarified. 

• Given the specific nature of the development and its use, and considering 
the non-car measures being discussed, it is not considered a Travel Plan 
will be required. 

• It appears that Section 5.1 refers to the usage at the existing Thornhill site, 
and that this has been used to forecast the usage of the new facility. It may 
be this means that the figures in Table 5.1 are robust, although it is noted 
that the table shows a worst case of 50 vehicles, which is some way larger 
than the proposed main car park that will accommodate 30 vehicles. 

• The last paragraph of Section 5 makes it sound like additional work is being 
progressed and it may be easiest for this paragraph to be removed? 

• Appendix A.9 (Swept Path Analysis) does not indicate what vehicle has 
been used. However, it appears it is a Large Car, and SPA should also be 
undertaken for the largest vehicles likely to regularly use the site. This is 
likely to be refuse vehicles, and the TA should also set out the 
refuse/delivery strategy for the site. 

• The dimensions of the car park spaces should be confirmed/marked, 
although ideally the standard spaces should have minimum dimensions of 
5m x 2.5m. 

• The TA should add a section on the access road linking through to New 
House Farm, and why it is being produced and who will be using it. 

 
5.13 Following preparation of an amended Transport Assessment, the Operational 

Manager Transportation provided the following comments:  
• It has been confirmed that as well as the main car park that will 

accommodate 30 vehicles, it will also be possible that parking can occur in 
designated parallel lay-bays alongside a number of the on-site burial 
access roads, and that this latter parking can accommodate a total of 56 
vehicles. 



• The TA indicates that funeral services will take place between 0930 and 
1530 hours, and will therefore not generally coincide with the standard peak 
highway hours. The average funeral time will be up to 40 minutes, and thus 
there should be at least 20 minutes available for attendees to disperse the 
site before traffic for the next funeral arrives. If Bereavement Services are 
aware of a funeral that may have higher than average demand, then the 
following hour would remain free in order to have additional time for 
vehicles to disperse. The predicted off-peak worst case for parking is 66 
vehicles, comprising 50 people associated with a funeral, and 16 people 
visiting existing plots. This is below the overall maximum parking available 
throughout the site, and thus is able to deal with some additional use at 
busy times. Given the extent of the parking being provided there is no 
reason that vehicles cannot be accommodated with the burial site. 

• The anticipated additional traffic is a maximum of 10% in the highest hour 
(although much less in the standard highway peaks) and it is not 
considered that the proposed access junction would result in any traffic 
safety concerns, or that the junction should operate as a left-turn exit only. It 
is accepted that there may be some short-term queuing and congestion in 
the immediate locality at times of busy funerals, but drivers on the network 
will see when a funeral is in operation, and highways are content with the 
potential parking and traffic impacts of the scheme, subject to appropriate 
conditions. 

• Whilst it is accepted that the majority of visitors to this site are likely to arrive 
by car (whether as driver or passenger), it will be necessary for some cycle 
parking to be provided. This is shown to the north of the toilet block, 
although will need to be secure and covered. Cycle parking can be covered 
by condition. 

• It is proposed that a zebra crossing and two bus stops/boarders will be 
provided on Thornhill Road to the south of the site, together with a new 3m 
footway on the eastern side of the road between the M4 bridge and the 
access junction, to include a cantilever bus stop on the eastern side of the 
road. This will help to maximise the staff and visitors who can access the 
site by sustainable travel modes. 

• The TA confirms that the vehicular link between the site and New House 
Farm will only be accessible at times when the funeral site is in operation 
and will be controlled via a lockable gate and thus there is no reason that 
this will end up being a link that would be used by extensive numbers of 
vehicles that are not visiting the cemetery. 

• It is recommended that the following conditions be added to any planning 
permission: Access Junction Details, Vehicular Parking, Cycle Parking 
Details, Construction Management Plan, Details of the footway/bus stops 
to be submitted, and implemented prior to the site becoming operational. 

• In addition, and as set out in the TA, it will be necessary for an amended 
TRO to be produced, moving the location of the 30mph speed limit to the 
north of the proposed access junction. 
 

5.14 Drainage Services commented as follows in respect of comments from Welsh 
Government in respect of the proposal to connect to the existing M4 drainage 
system within the M4 motorway embankment: 



• Welsh Government is not looking for Cardiff Council to adopt any of their 
system. Cardiff Council will be responsible for the drainage up to the point 
of connection, or last boundary fence (to be determined as part of a legal 
agreement). The legal agreement will fall outside the planning process so 
we can draw this up at a later date.  

• Welsh Government is looking for assurity should our system fail and cause 
pollution or flooding to their system and this will be via a legal agreement.  

• A drainage condition is recommended.  
 

5.15 Further to the submission of amended plans, Drainage Services provide advice 
on condition wording.  

 
6. EXTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
6.1 Caerphilly County Borough Council have no objection.  

 
6.2 Network Management Division, Welsh Government confirm that they 

accept the principle of development / connection to its drainage system, subject 
to a condition to require full details of drainage proposals, including that for the 
construction of attenuation pond(s) and the connection to the existing drainage 
infrastructure, to be submitted to the LPA for approval prior to development on 
site. Advice is also provided for the Applicant's attention (attached as an 
advisory). 
 

6.3 Network Management Division, Welsh Government subsequently confirm they 
accept the principle of the scheme, subject to condition.  They advise that once 
the finer detail is agreed following planning, the Applicant would be required to 
enter into an appropriate legal agreement with the Welsh Government as the 
asset owner of the drainage system. For avoidance of doubt, they advise the 
Applicant would take responsibility for their drainage to the connection to the 
WG system and that they are not seeking for the Applicant to take responsibility 
for the highway drainage asset on the M4. 

 
6.4 The Asset Lead for Drainage, Welsh Government advises that WG has no 

issues in principle with the development and to the surface water connection 
into their existing drainage system, subject to details to be developed and 
agreed to protect their interests downstream.  The details can be covered in 
the legal agreement (and supporting plan) and developed to suit the specifics of 
the site and their concerns detailed below that need to be adequately 
addressed and controlled by the design and detailed within the agreement are:- 
• Flow rate attenuation 
• Flow quality considerations, both long term and during construction 

activities. 
• Inspection, management and maintenance responsibilities and extent  to 

point of tie in with M4 system  
• Construction details and specifications 
These should not be purely planning considerations but would be beneficial if 
included as conditions to be satisfied as part of the PP process. 

 



6.5 Wales and West Utilities advise that they have pipes in the area, and that their 
apparatus may be affected and at risk during construction works.  The 
developer is advised to contact them to discuss their requirements in detail 
prior to commencement, that any diversion works would be fully chargeable 
and that the developer must not build over any of their plant or enclose their 
apparatus.  

 
6.6 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water advise that: 

• the site is crossed by a 250mm trunk watermain, with the approximate 
position being shown along the Thornhill Rd frontage and provide advice in 
respect of development near watermains (including that no structure is to 
be sited within a minimum of 5m from the centreline of the watermain). 

• it may be possible to divert the watermain, the cost of which will be 
re-charged to the development. 

• the developer must consult DCWW before any development commences 
on site. 

• there is no public sewerage in the area and any new development will 
require the provision of satisfactory alternative facilities for sewerage 
disposal. 

• whilst noting that the proposal  does not intend to connect to the public 
sewer network, a drainage strategy for the site be appropriately 
conditioned, implemented in full and retained for the lifetime of the 
development. 

This advice is reiterated in response to the amended plans and additional 
information, but it is additionally noted that the site is also crossed by a 110mm 
distribution watermain.  
 

6.7 Natural Resources Wales provide the following comments in respect of the 
initial submission, noting that they have significant concerns but that they would 
not object to the application providing conditions are attached in respect of 
European Protected Species, foul drainage and protection of groundwater. 
European Protected Species – Bats, dormice and Great Crested Newts 
Dormice The hedgerows surrounding the site were assessed as having the 
potential to support dormice. Limited works, which could impact on the species, 
are proposed.  
Bats The linear features and adjacent woodland are likely to be used as 
flightlines and foraging habitat by bat species. In addition, four trees with 
moderate bat roost potential and four trees with low bat roost potential may be 
impacted by the proposal.  
Great Crested Newt The presence of great crested newts in the hedgerows, 
scrub and woodland on and adjacent to the site could not be discounted, due to 
the fact that at least two ponds, which could not be assessed for suitability, lie 
within 500 metres of the site.  
Bats, dormice and great crested newts, and their breeding sites and resting 
places, are protected under the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2017. Where these species are present and a development 
proposal is likely to contravene the legal protection they are afforded, the 
development may only proceed under licence issued by Natural Resources 
Wales, having satisfied the three requirements set out in the legislation. One of 
these requirements is that the development authorised will “not be detrimental 



to the maintenance of the population of the species concerned at a favourable 
conservation status in its natural range.”  
These requirements are translated into planning policy through Planning Policy 
Wales (PPW) July 2016, sections 5.5.11 and 5.5.12, and Technical Advice 
Note (TAN) 5, Nature Conservation and Planning September 2009. The 
planning authority should take them into account when considering 
development proposals where a European protected species is present.    
We welcome the proposed mitigation measures to avoid and minimise potential 
impacts on the above protected species, set out in section 5 of the Preliminary 
Ecological Appraisal report.  
On the basis of the information provided, we do not consider that the 
development is likely to be detrimental to the maintenance of the population of 
the species concerned at a favourable conservation status in their natural 
range, provided that suitable avoidance and mitigation measures are 
implemented. 
Therefore, should your authority be minded to grant permission, we advise that 
the following condition is attached to any permission granted: 
Condition 1 The scheme should be implemented in accordance with the 
recommendations in sections 5.1.9, 5.1.11, 5.1.12, 5.1.13 and 5.1.14 (in 
relation to bats); 5.1.19 and 5.1.20 (in relation to dormice); and 5.1.24 (in 
relation to great crested newts) of the document ‘CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL 
THORNHILL CEMETERY - PRELIMINARY ECOLOGICAL APPRAISAL 
NOVEMBER 2017’ by Wardell Armstrong. Reason: To safeguard species 
protected by the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. 
If any European Protected Species are discovered on site during development, 
all works must cease until further advice has been sought from a qualified 
ecologist or Natural Resources Wales.  
Foul Drainage 
We note that the proposed method of disposal for foul water is a cesspool/pit, 
due to the limited space on site for soakaways. We, therefore, request the 
following condition be attached to any planning permission granted: 
Condition 2 
The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until such time as 
a scheme to dispose of foul drainage to a cesspit/pool has been submitted to, 
and approved in writing by, the local planning authority.   The scheme shall be 
implemented as approved. Reason:To ensure protection to the controlled 
waters. 
Details on the design and management of the installation of the cesspit should 
be submitted to support the discharge of the condition to ensure protection of 
the controlled waters. 
It is essential that any cesspit is installed correctly. Incorrectly maintained 
cesspools can cause pollution by contamination the ground, groundwater and, 
sometimes surface water. Any damage to the fabric of the cesspool, such as 
cracks or holes, is difficult to detect but needs to be rectified immediately in 
order to prevent pollution. The cesspit should meet the requirement of British 
Standard BS 6297. It should be fitted with a level warning device to indicate 
when the tank needs emptying. 
Where private sewage treatment/disposal facilities are utilised, they must be 
installed and maintained in accordance with British Standards 6297 and 
Approved Document H of the Building Regulations. We also refer the Applicant 



to Guidance for Pollution Prevention 4 which provides further information. 
Protection of Groundwater   
Based on the information submitted and the 12 months monitoring of 
groundwater levels, we agree with the scoring for the environmental setting, but 
note the high burial rate per year, which results in the site having a high-risk 
score.   We note the layout of the site has been designed to accommodate the 
higher groundwater levels in the south western corner of the site.   In order to 
protect the water environment, we therefore request the following condition is 
imposed on any planning permission granted. 
Condition 3 
All burials in the cemetery shall be:  
• a minimum of 50 m from a potable groundwater supply source;  
• a minimum of 30 m from a watercourse or spring;  
• a minimum of 10 m distance from field drains. 
In addition, there shall be no burial into standing water and the base of the 
grave must be above the local water table.  Reason: To protect controlled 
waters in the local area. 

 
6.8 NRW provided further clarification in respect of cesspools/pits, noting that an 

environmental permit is not required for them and that they do not have to be 
registered with NRW as an exemption, such that the LPA could specify a 
requirement for a maintenance plan and monitoring if necessary as part of the 
drainage condition. 

 
6.9 NRW also provided further clarification in respect of the proposed filter drains 

and their recommended condition in respect of field drains, noting that the filter 
drains are okay as they are quite shallow and designed to collect the surface 
water from the paths and track around the site, and that field drains are 
normally for lowering the water table so would sit a bit deeper in the ground.  

 
6.10 Following confirmation that the filter drains are proposed at a max of 2.35m 

from the proposed ground level, NRW requested clarification as to why the filter 
drains had to be so deep, noting: 
• they understand the filter are to be installed to only collect surface water 

from the internal road, so actually need to be shallow the collect the water 
and convey away for discharge. 

• The risk is that deep drains could collect surface water and also 
groundwater, which has the potential to pick up leachate from the burials 
that may contain contaminated water 

• From the drawing it looks like the trenches for the drains (not the catch pits 
chambers as these are lined with concrete) are lined with a geotextile – this 
fabric is normally permeable so would allow groundwater to infiltrate into 
the drain.   Parts of the site will be above the water table so unlikely to 
collect groundwater, but the south western section of the site has a shallow 
water table so likely to be intercepted by the trenches. 

(The Applicant’s response to this issue was issued for public consultation 
17/07/18). 

 
6.11 Further to the submission of amended plans and additional information, NRW 

recommend that permission should only be granted subject to conditions 

http://www.netregs.org.uk/environmental-topics/pollution-prevention-guidelines-ppgs-and-replacement-series/guidance-for-pollution-prevention-gpps-full-list/


relating to European Protected species, drainage and the protection of ground 
water, and provided the following detailed comments:  
European Protected Species – Bats, Dormice and Great Crested Newts 
We note the submission of the document titled ‘CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL 
THORNHILL CEMETERY -  ECOLOGICAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT, August 
2018, ’ by Wardell Armstrong, CA11281, Report No 002, Version VO.1:   
In our letter of 18 July 2018, reference CAS-65119-Y4H3, we provided advice 
on bats, dormice and great crested newts and requested a condition based on 
the recommendations set out in in section 5 of the CITY OF CARDIFF 
COUNCIL THORNHILL CEMETERY - PRELIMINARY ECOLOGICAL 
APPRAISAL NOVEMBER 2017’ by Wardell Armstrong. We note that this 
document has been appended to the submitted Ecological Impact Assessment. 
Therefore, should your authority be minded to grant permission, we advise that 
that condition is attached to any permission granted:  
Condition 1 The scheme should be implemented in accordance with the 
recommendations in sections 5.1.9, 5.1.11, 5.1.12, 5.1.13 and 5.1.14 (in 
relation to bats); 5.1.19 and 5.1.20 (in relation to dormice); and 5.1.24 (in 
relation to great crested newts) of the document ‘CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL 
THORNHILL CEMETERY - PRELIMINARY ECOLOGICAL APPRAISAL 
NOVEMBER 2017’ by Wardell Armstrong.  
Reason: To safeguard species protected by the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017. 
If any European Protected Species are discovered on site during development, 
all works must cease until further advice has been sought from a qualified 
ecologist or Natural Resources Wales.  
Drainage 
We have reviewed the additional information received in respect of the filter 
drains. …With regards to the installation of filter drains to collect surface water 
runoff from the internal road network, we had concerns that the proposed 
drainage scheme would not be sealed from the surrounding groundwater at the 
proposed depth of 2.35m.   Unsealed filter drains would allow burial leachate to 
infiltrate into the filter drains and then cause pollution of receiving waters.   The 
document referenced above states that the filter drainage will be constructed 
with impermeable membranes instead of the proposed permeable geotextile as 
outlined in drawing number 70042065-WSP-XX-XX-CE-510.  We agree to the 
sealed filter drainage and require this to be secured through condition.  
In this respect, we have reviewed your draft foul, surface water and land 
drainage condition (set out in your email of 17 August 2018) and agree the 
wording addresses our interests. This includes the requirement for sealed filter 
drainage. The applicant should demonstrate this through discharge of this 
condition.  (The recommended condition reflects that recommended.) 
Protection of Groundwater   
Based on the information submitted and the 12 months monitoring of 
groundwater levels, we agree with the scoring for the environmental setting, but 
note the high burial rate per year, which results in the site having a high-risk 
score.   We note the layout of the site has been designed to accommodate the 
higher groundwater levels in the south western corner of the site.   In order to 
protect the water environment, we therefore request the following condition is 
imposed on any planning permission granted. 
Condition 3 



All burials in the cemetery shall be:  
• a minimum of 50 m from a potable groundwater supply source;  
• a minimum of 30 m from a watercourse or spring;  
• a minimum of 10 m distance from unsealed field drains. 
In addition, there shall be no burial into standing water and the base of the 
grave must be above the local water table; Reason To protect controlled waters 
in the local area. 

 
6.12 Cadw advise that there are no schedule monuments or registered historic 

parks and gardens that would be affected by the proposed development, and 
that they have no comments to make.  

 
6.13 South Wales Police advise that the advice they provided at the pre-application 

consultation stage has been included within the Design and Access Statement 
and that as long as these recommendations are implemented South Wales 
Police have no further observations. In response to the amended plans, SWP 
restate their previous advice.  

 
6.14 Lisvane Community Council OBJECTS to the application on the following 

summarised grounds: 
• Little or no regard has been taken of the views expressed following the 

pre-application consultation. 
• Parking and highway safety –up to 100 cars could be parked at the same 

time, with only 30 car parking spaces provided and with excess cars 
proposed to park on internal roads, impacting on pedestrian safety. A larger 
car park is sought. 

• Increased traffic congestion on Thornhill Rd and harm to the safety of road 
users and pedestrians. A left-turn only exit is recommended. 

• Potential for the link between the proposed cemetery and New Farm to 
become a vehicle short-cut. The lockable gate should be closed and locked 
at all times except for emergency use.  

• Recommend that advice is taken from road safety agencies, including 
WAG, Road Safety Wales, Highways agency, Police.  

• Conflict with green wedge policy and concern that a precedent would be 
set. 

 
6.15 Further to the submission of amended plans and additional information, 

Lisvane Community Council submitted a further OBJECTION , summarised as 
follows: 
• The car park with a capacity of 30 spaces is inadequate 
• Increased traffic congestion on Thornhill Road with harm to road safety, 

including challenge to the assertion that the busiest period for the cemetery 
coincides with the quietest period of road use and concern over dangers of 
crossing Thornhill Rd. 

• The need for left-turn only exit and for the link between the proposed 
cemetery and New House Farm to be locked at all times is restated.  

• Conflict with green wedge policy restated. 
 
 



7. REPRESENTATIONS 
 
7.1 The application was subject to an initial 21-day consultation period, being 

advertised by press and site notices (16 no.) as a major application, a departure 
from the approved development plan and as affecting a PROW, and neighbour 
notification letters also sent.  The amended submissions were subject to a 
14-day consultation. 

 
7.2 A valid petition of objection has been submitted by the tenant of New House 

Farm, signed by 780 people, albeit that not all of the signatories are valid.  The 
petition was submitted on grounds of ‘keep[ing] the green-wedge land North of 
the M4 as agricultural land to be enjoyed by our customers here at the Farm 
Shop, our guests on the caravan site and of course our animals that live and 
graze on the land. We feel it would have a negative impact on our family-run 
business and would set a precedent to exploit more green spaces in North 
Cardiff in the future’.   
An on-line petition was also submitted, ‘signed’ by 383 people. However, this 
petition is not valid. 
 

7.3 Four objections were received from the owner/occupier of New House Farm 
Thornhill (the tenant), 41 Heol Uchaf, 32 Woodruff Way, Cardiff and 26 
Agincourt Square, Monmouth in respect of the initial submission. The 
objections and representations received are summarised as follows:  
(i) The PAC report indicates that the Council have responded but haven't.  
(ii) Pleased to see that the proposals consider the Japanese knotweed.  
(iii) Concern over close proximity to family housing 
(iv) Concern over close proximity to the existing cemetery 
(v) Harm to the local environment 
(vi) Exacerbation of traffic and congestion, resulting in driver frustration 
(vii) Disruption to traffic and access from building works 
(viii) Reduced accessibility of local businesses/amenities to the north  
(ix) Concern over resulting location of their home between two parts of the 

cemetery, restricting movement and enjoyment of the area 
(x) Cemetery development is not in principle 'inappropriate' in the Green Belt, 

but the proposal should respect green wedge objectives of preventing 
urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open. The proposal is urban in 
form and will suburbanise the land. 

(xi) The DAS does not demonstrate that alternatives been considered which 
could (a) protect the openness of the countryside, (b) put less pressure on 
wildlife and (c) meet high-level environmental commitments, which can be 
achieved without compromising the use of the land for burials. 

(xii) What is proposed is a mis-match - right design, wrong location or right 
location, wrong design. The format of Thornhill has been used as a 
template, but the site is different, outside the development boundary, in 
open countryside on green wedge land. 

(xiii) The DAS should steer the design to meet site parameters, but seeks to 
justify a pre-conceived design. This objection does not oppose the use of 
the land for burials; it calls for more sensitive design, reflecting 
commitments to landscape, environment and sustainability.  



(xiv) Adverse impact on New House Farm’s popular farm shop, threatening the 
employment of their 15 employees, and on New House Farm’s caravan 
site, which adjoins the site. Both ventures were given planning permission 
and landlords permission by the Council 

(xv) The drainage of the site isn’t very good and has rain run off 
(xvi) The site doesn’t offer the tranquillity required for a burial site as it’s next to 

the M4. Questions whether a noise pollution survey has been carried out 
(xvii) The application is believed to be phase 1 and phase 2 is already being 

talked about. Questions how many phases are proposed. Concern that 
once phase 1 is approve, future phases will be easier to achieve 

(xviii) Concern over precedent for other types of development beyond the M4 
(xix) Public transport to the site is very bad especially from Caerphilly. 
(xx) There was no mention of this in the LDP and questions why not, as it might 

have been refused then.  
 

7.4 The Director of Leedham Natural Heritage, a company who specialise in 
developing and managing sustainable natural burial grounds around the UK 
and operate eight sites, including the Cardiff and Vale natural burial ground on 
the western edge of Cardiff, provided comments summarised in (x) - (xiii) 
above, and also provided a further 11 page letter of OBJECTION, which are 
summarised in the following Executive Summary.  The full document is 
available to view on the Council's website.  
The design process should have 
• met the Council's  published commitments to the landscape, 

environment and sustainability 
• recognised the incongruity of a modern cemetery in the countryside 
• researched alternative possibilities and re-evaluated standard practise 
• tailored the facility to the location 
• taken measures to avoid visual impact 

The proposal will harm the landscape 
• urban form will sprawl beyond the development boundary 
• hard infrastructure will intrude on the openness of the green wedge 

compromising its objectives 
• it contains materials and features which are alien to the countryside 
• major engineering works will alter ground levels and damage soil 

structures 
• the maintenance regime will create a marked contrast with surrounding 

land 
Sustainability issues 
• the proposals do not address the design's economically sustainable 

future 
• once the income from plot sales ends it will be another long-term liability 
• maintenance regime impacts on ecology 
• extensive infrastructure consumes finite resources and energy 

The environmental concerns are 
• excessive hard infrastructure with visual impact and environmental 

damage 
• trees protected by TPOs will be felled 



• the layout is specifically design to receive environmentally-destructive 
imported materials 

• features of the design exacerbate environmentally damaging behaviour 
• unnecessary light nuisance 
• toxic and polluting materials are interred. 
• cemeteries can be barren, wildlife deserts.  

 
7.5 In response the amended plans and additional information, The Director of 

Leedham Natural Heritage provided a further objection summarised as follows:  
• The revised design fails to preserve the openness of the green belt and 

conflicts with its purposes. 
• The new proposals are not materially different from the original design. 

In terms of the openness of the site: 
1. the revision of road width from 6m of Tarmac to 3m of Tarmac + 3m of 
buff-coloured stone (as a parking strip) does not diminish the extent of 
hard landscaping. Buff-coloured stone is not locally sourced and is alien 
to the landscape, and will stand out even more than Tarmac. 
2. car parking still relies on a large number of cars occupying open 
space, negatively impacting on the openness of the countryside 
3. the visual impact of memorials, roads, earthworks, paths, gravelled 
areas, floral tributes and grave goods on the openness of the landscape 
remains inadequately represented in the submission. 
4. The countryside character of the greenbelt would remain 
compromised by this urban-style cemetery development.  

• The applicant has submitted a Needs Assessment to support the 
premise that the new cemetery needs to replicate the Thornhill offer. It 
argues that it is an essential requirement to provide meaningful options 
that the public want. However, meaningful options is not defined and no 
reference is made to published research to support the claim. The 
application does not demonstrate that other design options have been 
given fair consideration.  

• What an individual or small minority might want needs to be balanced 
against the cost to all other members of a community and their 
environment. Some people choose to express their grief in a highly 
visible way; their displays 'shout' so loudly, others feel compelled to 
compete to show that they too grieve. Those who wish a simple grave 
are engulfed by visual noise and clutter, causing anxiety, mental stress 
and fatigue. 

• No environmental impact assessment accompanies the application, 
though the area of the site is large enough to require one and application 
fails to address the harmful environmental impact of the development. 
This should include the burial of toxic and non-biodegradable materials; 
the use of herbicides and the impact of the maintenance regime; the 
environmental cost of the multitude of imported memorial stones that will 
occupy the land; the encouragement of placing hot-house and imported 
cut-flowers at graves.  

• If the application is given consent a condition should be included to 
mitigate the visual impact by 
1. sub-dividing and further compartmenting the burial areas with native 



hedging and extra tree planting to act as visual screens.  
2. restricting areas where adorned graves are permitted 
3. requiring only locally sourced gravel and stones to be used 
4. the restriction of gravelled and hard-surface[s]  

In addition, photographs and a description are provided of different types of 
graves in order to demonstrate their negative impact on the openness of the 
countryside in the green wedge and their lack of charm and beauty.   

 
7.6 Cllr David Walker OBJECTS to the proposal on the following summarised 

grounds: 
• Land north of the M4 has long been protected from development, with a 

large number of applications refused on grounds that the green open space 
cannot be built on. The Council cannot ignore this when proposing their 
own development. Doing so would set a precedent.  

• The search for alternative sites is limited, and has ignored other local 
authority land and other sites the Council owns. The requirement for 
convenience in having a site close to Thornhill may have limited the search.  

• The site is only medium term in and pressure may be put on other nearby 
fields north of the M4 in future years until this area becomes a large 
cemetery, with the decision regretted and seen as environmental short 
termism.   

• The lack of EIA. 
• Traffic impact, congestion, delays and highway safety concerns, 

particularly for vehicles travelling south and turning right. Lack of 
accessibility by bus and problems crossing safely to use bus stops.  

• Impact on the business of the adjacent farm shop and café, which 
overlooks the proposed burial site, and threat to 15 local jobs. The owner 
has organised a petition that has gained local support. 

 
7.7 Cllr Phil Bale OBJECTS to the proposal on the following summarised 

grounds: 
• the design does not meet tests for a new cemetery within the green wedge 

land, given its urban form, elevated position and visibility across the city, 
and lack of consideration to advances in burial site design to sufficiently 
mitigate impacts on openness and setting of its green wedge location 

• If granted, further expansion will be sought on green wedge land north of 
the M4, such that design standards need to meet a much higher test to 
protect openness and setting  

• The Council could opt for further expansion of this site and stop its efforts to 
identify an additional burial site in eastern Cardiff 

• The Council has failed to provide sufficient evidence that alternative sites 
have been considered within Cardiff or the south Wales region or to 
conduct an adequate needs assessment. No evidence has been provided 
of consultation with neighbouring authorities. Many will regard this as a 
betrayal so soon after the campaign to adopt green wedge policy in the 
LDP. 

• Fear of precedent. 
• Loss of agricultural land. 



• No Environmental Impact Statement was undertaken. No public evidence 
has been provided in the screening opinion to explain why this green 
wedge farmland is not 'particularly environmentally sensitive and 
vulnerable location nor have the potential to have unusually complex and 
potentially hazardous environmental effects'.  A full Environmental 
Statement should be undertaken. 

• The Transport Assessment highlights significant problems with existing 
vehicle, active travel and public transport access arrangements. Public 
transport, cycling and walking options to the site are poor, and cycling and 
walking routes rarely used. The closest bus service only runs at 30min 
frequency and there are no proposals to increase frequencies. 

• Visitors could park cars on Thornhill Rd should parking not be sufficient.  
• Traffic queues frequently extend up from Caerphilly Road crossroads to 

beyond the M4 motorway, harming access to the site.  
• The proposed changes to the public footpath and highway would harm the 

rural character of the area. 
• The development site is not a resilient location; it would be impacted by 

increases in noise levels or future expansion of the M4, its topography and 
geology leave it more vulnerable to climate change, the loss of farmland 
reduces food security and the proposal will permanently reduce the 
openness and character of one of the city's last largely rural settings. 

• The development, together with its expansion plans, will harm a successful 
local business. 

• Should permission be granted, the following mitigations and benefits are 
sought: 

- The development must not impact on the continued operations of 
Thornhill Farm & Shop. The farm business needs unimpeded access 
for its staff and customers to the farm, shop and short let caravan 
holiday accommodation 

-  Section 106 funding should compensate for the loss of open space 
and be used for improvements to off-site open space.  

- Restrictions should be placed on any further expansion of the site. 
The consideration of future burial space needs should form part of the 
proposed Strategic Development Plan for the Cardiff Capital Region.  

- Section 106 funding should be secured for enhanced bus services for 
at least 5 years. 

- Regular inspections should be required to monitor the risks identified 
in the report, in respect of topography, drainage, geology and the 
need to protect ground water and wildlife species 

- Opening hours to be revised to 10am on weekdays to minimise traffic 
impact. 

 
7.8 Cllr Shaun Jenkins OBJECTS to the proposal on the following summarised 

grounds: 
• Negative impact on Thornhill Farm Shop and the need to support local 

businesses 
• The proposals are on Green Wedge land and no information has been 

provided as to how a cemetery meets the requirements of a Green Wedge 



• Disappointment that the Council wishes to develop Green Wedge land 
given the effort that went into securing its Green Wedge status 

• Need to consider medium and long term impacts of the development and 
how third party developers could interpret the Councils actions 

• Impact on the character of Thornhill and surrounding area – Thornhill 
Cemetery has already been extended and this cannot continue indefinitely. 
There is land to the west of the city that could accommodate a cemetery 
and other options available for additional cemetery space and the Council 
is urged to re-think the proposal.  

 
7.9 Anna McMorrin MP/AS OBJECTS to the proposal on the following 

summarised grounds:  
• disappointment that concerns raised during the pre-application consultation 

process have been given little or no regard 
• the land constitutes protected green wedge land and insufficient weight has 

been given to harm to the green wedge  
• whilst supportive of the need for additional burial space, there is a need to 

consider if we can continue justifying expanding our cemeteries onto green 
spaces, and explore other alternatives 

• appreciates that cemeteries constitute an exception to inappropriate 
development where the development maintains the openness of the green 
wedge, but can not imagine it will, given its scale and infrastructure 

• the expansion of a cemetery does not outweigh the harm to the green 
wedge as only 1/5 of the site would be developed as natural / woodland 
burial area 

• undeveloped green spaces are key to Cardiff's character, hence the land's 
green wedge status  

• the Council has not put forward an argument of exceptional circumstances 
which could justify there development in this location 

• the Council are going back on their LDP commitment to protected green 
wedge land  

• impact on the future of Thornhill Farm Shop and the security of the 15 
employees. 

• highlights that the statements in the submission on the discussions with the 
leaseholder and his views are not reflective of his current position. Mr 
Phillips has launched an online (324 signatures) and paper petition. 

• Exacerbation of traffic congestion, due to numbers visiting the cemetery 
and the proposed new zebra crossing and bus stop  

• Parking concerns, with very small parking provision compared to the 
assessment of usage, with concerns that the proposals to park excess cars 
on the internal roads would impact on pedestrian safety. 

 
7.10 Julie Morgan AC/AM OBJECTS to the proposal on the following summarised 

grounds:  
• The proposal will involve developing land designated as Green Wedge, 

which was the subject of campaigning and a petition  
• They are aware that cemeteries constitute an exception if the openness of 

the green wedge is maintained, but thinks this unlikely 



• Appreciates that additional burial space is needed in the near future but 
does not think this is the correct location. Opportunities for agreements with 
adjacent Councils and even to consider alternatives to continually 
expanding our cemeteries need to be considered 

• The council has indicated that if permission is granted, further expansion 
will be sought on more green wedge land, such that there is a danger that 
this application would set a precedent 

• Concerned that no EIA was undertaken and that the Council ruled this was 
not required. This is needed to ensure a decision will be made on the basis 
of all the facts 

• Increased traffic on an already extremely busy Classified Distributor Road 
• The proposed new bus stop and zebra crossing may lead to even greater 

congestion 
• The car park may not be large enough to cope with demand; the 

assumption that extra vehicles will park on the main road is also a concern 
• Impact on Thornhill Farm Shop – the owner and current leaseholder to the 

land objects to the proposals on grounds of the impact on his business, 
arising from the visibility of the site from his premises making it less 
attractive as a destination. Fear of job losses with 15 staff employed. The 
owner has started a petition of objection.  

 
8. ANALYSIS 
 
8.1 The key issues for consideration are:  

 
(i) Whether the proposal would be inappropriate development in the Green 

Wedge, having regard to the effect on the openness of the Green Wedge 
and the purposes of including land within it  

8.2 The site lies outside the settlement boundary and within the Green Wedge as 
defined on the Proposals Map of the Adopted Cardiff LDP.  LDP Policy KP3 
(A): Green Wedge states that development that prejudices the open nature of 
Green Wedge land will not be permitted.  

 
8.3 Planning Policy Wales (PPW) provides specific guidance on the consideration 

of planning applications within the Green Wedge designation.   Paragraphs 
4.8.14 to 4.8.18 state that:  

4.8.14 When considering applications for planning permission in Green Belts or 
green wedges, a presumption against inappropriate development will apply.  
Local planning authorities should attach substantial weight to any harmful 
impact which a development would have on a Green Belt or green wedge.  

4.8.15 Inappropriate development should not be granted planning permission 
except in very exceptional circumstances where other considerations clearly 
outweigh the harm which such development would do to the Green Belt or 
green wedge. Green Belt and green wedge policies in development plans 
should ensure that any applications for inappropriate development would not be 
in accord with the plan. These very exceptional cases would therefore be 
treated as departures from the plan.  

4.8.16 The construction of new buildings in a Green Belt or in a locally 



designated green wedge is inappropriate development unless it is for the 
following purposes:  
• justified rural enterprise needs;  
• essential facilities for outdoor sport and outdoor recreation, cemeteries, and 

other uses of land which maintain the openness of the Green Belt or green 
wedge and which do not conflict with the purpose of including land within it;  

• limited extension, alteration or replacement of existing dwellings;  
• limited infilling (in those settlements and other development sites which 

have been identified for limited infilling in the development plan) and 
affordable housing for local needs under development plan policies; or  

• small scale diversification within farm complexes where this is run as part of 
the farm business. 
 

4.8.17 The re-use of buildings in a Green Belt or green wedge is not 
inappropriate development provided that:  
• the original building is substantial, permanent and capable of conversion 

without major reconstruction;  
• the new use will not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green 

Belt or green wedge and the purposes of including land within it. Strict 
control will need to be exercised over the extension, alteration or any 
associated use of land for re-used buildings; and  

• the building is in keeping with its surroundings.  
 
4.8.18 Other forms of development would be inappropriate development unless 
they maintain the openness of the Green Belt or green wedge and do not 
conflict with the purposes of including land within it. 

 
8.4 PPW provides guidance on the shared purposes of Green Belt and Green 

Wedge designations, but highlights their difference in permanence: 
 

4.8.10 Local designations such as green wedges may be justified where land is 
required to serve the same purpose to a Green Belt (see 4.8.3), but these 
designations do not convey the permanence of a Green Belt.  
 
4.8.3 The purpose of a Green Belt is to:  
• prevent the coalescence of large towns and cities with other settlements 
• manage urban form through controlled expansion of urban areas 
• assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment 
• protect the setting of an urban area; and 
• assist in urban regeneration by encouraging the recycling of derelict and 

other urban land.  
 

8.5 Interpreting national policy: 
• The construction of new buildings in a green wedge which provide essential 

facilities for cemeteries is listed in PPW as an exception to the 
inappropriateness of new buildings in a green wedge, where such facilities 
maintain the openness of the green wedge and do not conflict with its 
purposes (PPW, para 4.8.16).   



• However, this application is for the creation of a new cemetery, rather than 
the construction of new buildings in an existing cemetery, which is not listed 
as an exception.  As such, it is considered that this application should fall 
to be considered as an 'other form of development' which would be 
inappropriate in a green wedge unless it maintains the openness of the 
green wedge and does not conflict with the purposes of including land 
within it (PPW, para 4.8.18). 

• To be deemed to be appropriate development and to be granted 
permission, the proposed cemetery must meet the tests of maintaining the 
openness of the green wedge and of not conflicting with the purposes of 
including land within the green wedge (PPW para 4.8.16 and 4.8.18). 

• Where the development fails to meet those tests, to be granted planning 
permission, 'very exceptional circumstances' have to be demonstrated 
which clearly outweigh the harm to the green wedge (PPW para 4.8.15). 

 
 Impact on Openness of the Green Wedge 
8.6 The concept of 'openness' is not defined in national or local planning policy.  

Inspectors have held that the concept of openness is commonly defined as an 
absence of development and that it has a spatial aspect as well as a visual 
impact (APP/B5480/W/16/3161631). The Courts have held that  

The word “openness” is open-textured and a number of factors are capable of being relevant when 
it comes to applying it to the particular facts of a specific case. Prominent among these will be 
factors relevant to how built up the Green Belt is now and how built up it would be if 
redevelopment occurs (in the context of which, volumetric matters may be a material concern, but 
are by no means the only one) and factors relevant to the visual impact on the aspect of openness 
which the Green Belt presents.  (Turner [2016] EWCA Civ 466, Arden, Floyd and Sales LJJ) 

 
8.7 Turning to the consideration of how built up the green wedge is now, the 

application site comprises a grassland agricultural field currently used by the 
tenants of New House Farm for livestock grazing.  The only development 
within the site is a concrete apron for a septic tank, which is very small scale, at 
ground level and not visible when viewed from across the site, site enclosures 
and an overhead power cable, which crosses the site North to South.   
 

8.8 Whilst the surrounding Green Wedge land to the north of the M4 is mostly rural 
in character and the land use predominantly agricultural, comprising blocks of 
woodland and open fields, there is an extended frontage of built up 
development further north, to the East of Thornhill Road which has an 
urbanising effect, including the Miller and Carter pub buildings and related 
signage, low boundary wall, access and car park, which are very visible from 
Thornhill Rd, with a continuously built up frontage of dwellings extending 
northwards beyond the pub site as far as Capel Gwilym Rd. Other built 
development in close proximity to the site includes New House Farm, the 
caravan site, Farm shop and café, and associated facilities, including car 
parking and overspill parking areas to the NE of the site, and Manor Park Hotel 
to the west.  Whilst the site is generally well screened, visual intrusions that 
can be seen from within the site include an overhead power cable, and 
caravans and buildings forming part of New House Farm, which can be 
glimpsed between the vegetation on the NE boundary.  The most significant 



visual intrusion is the transformer that is located just beyond the northern 
boundary and extends to a considerable height. 
 

8.9 To help assess the site’s visibility and visual impact, the Applicant has 
submitted a Landscape and Visual Impact assessment which concludes that 
visual effects are generally limited to receptors within or adjacent to the site, 
and will decrease over times as proposed planting within the site matures. The 
site is generally well screened by surrounding vegetation and the rolling 
topography of the wider landscape.  Whilst there are long views from within the 
site towards Cardiff and the Bristol Channel, the site is well screened from 
immediately adjoining land by hedges and trees along its Northern, Western 
and Southern boundaries, including from the existing access, which is set back 
from Thornhill Road and currently overgrown.  A notable exception to this 
screening and resulting inter-visibility is the Eastern boundary, which is 'gappy', 
being formed by a line of trees which afford open views from the adjacent field.  
This is used by the tenants of New House Farm as an Animal Paddock, which is 
open to the public.  The site can also be viewed from New House Farm shop 
café and caravan site, although the views are oblique and partially screened by 
vegetation.  Open views of the site are also available to the public from PROW 
Lisvane no 17, from both its location within the site along the northern boundary 
and as it leaves the site and runs north towards New House Farm.  

 
8.10 Development on the site would materially increase as a consequence of 

development, taking the site from an essentially undeveloped and open green 
field to a new cemetery.  New buildings proposed would include the public 
toilet facility, two shelters and five flower preparation tables.  There would be 
significant areas of hard surfacing, including internal access roads and a 30 
space car park finished in tarmac, layby parking and a network of footpaths 
providing graveside access finished in a buff coloured gravel material.  Whilst 
the surfaces of the roads, paths, car parking would be generally flush with the 
surrounding ground, and the graves only extending to a max of approx1.5m in 
height, they would be visible from within the site, given the slope of the land.  
The toilet facility and car park would be located in close proximity to the 
entrance on some of the highest ground and would be visible through the main 
entrance.  Its visibility from within the site and other views, however, would be 
reduced by the hedge that would be planted to the south and east. The impact 
of the burial areas would differ, particularly as a result of their varying 
proportions of hard and soft landscaping, ranging from a natural burial area on 
the highest ground to the NE of the site, lawned burial areas with head stones 
set in lawns, traditional burial areas - larger beds separated by rows of grass 
strips, infant burial areas, through to the cremated remains burial areas, one 
option of which would appear entirely hard surfaced.  The arrangement of the 
graves in densely packed rows has a further visual effect and they would be 
viewed as permanent built features, with those that are colourfully decorated 
with flowers and other paraphernalia being more apparent.  Whilst significant 
parts of the site would comprise green infrastructure and appear undeveloped, 
including the attenuation area and wetland habitat planting to the SW of the 
site, the natural / woodland burial area to the NE, with enhanced planting along 
each of the boundaries and the burial areas being developed in a phased 
manner over time, the majority of the site would be appear developed when full, 



with its buildings and hard surfacing apparent within the site, diminishing the 
openness of the site. The intensified use of the site would also draw attention to 
its more developed nature, albeit that the level of activity would fluctuate and 
diminish once the cemetery reaches capacity.  

 
8.11 Inspectors have held that when openness is reduced, the harm takes place 

regardless of whether or not it is visible or witnessed, but note that the extent to 
which it is visible has some effect on the level of harm 
(APP/B5480/W/15/3132860).  Visitors to the site and those using the PROW 
would be well aware of the development of the site and the impact on 
openness.  However, due to the screening provided by existing and proposed 
planting, particularly along the site boundaries, the majority of people beyond 
the site boundaries would notice little change from the site as it is now over 
time.  To the extent that visitors to the raised Farm shop cafe terrace, animal 
paddock and caravan site could see into the site, this effect would be limited in 
time by the proposed woodland and other planting proposed in the NE of the 
site.  Whilst the new entrance is intended to form a feature to draw attention to 
the site's use as a cemetery and would involve clearing vegetation to form a 
vision splay, that entrance gates would be set back from Thornhill Road and 
would not be visible in long views along Thornhill Road.  Moreover, given the 
extent and visibility of the entrance features associated with the Miller and 
Carter pub and other development in the Green Wedge along Thornhill Rd, the 
effect would be reduced.  

 
8.12 Taking the above into consideration, whilst there are factors as described 

above which would materially limit the extent of the development’s impact on 
the openness on the Green Wedge, it is considered that the proposed 
development would not maintain the current degree of openness possessed by 
the site, assessed against para 4.8.18 of PPW.  

  
 Impact on the Purposes of Green Wedge 
8.13 The purposes of green belts and wedges are set out in para 4.8.3 and 4.8.10 of 

PPW and listed above. In considering the first three purposes listed 
(coalescence with other settlements, managing urban form, safeguarding 
countryside from encroachment), is noted that whilst the site lies beyond the 
Settlement Boundary defined on the LDP Proposals Map, the site boundary 
does not mark the outermost edge of the built up area of Cardiff.  As noted 
previously, there is a significant frontage of built up development north of the 
site up to Capel Gwilym Rd.  Whilst the proposal would result in more 
development on the site and an intensification of its use, given the limited 
number of buildings on the site and the character of the burial areas, it is 
considered that the development would not be read as an extension to Cardiff's 
built up urban area.  Inspectors have noted that cemeteries are commonly 
found in urban, urban fringe and countryside settings, to the extent that a 
cemetery use in itself is not considered to constitute an intrusion into a rural 
area (APP/B5480/W/15/3132860).  That same Inspector also noted that 'the 
safeguarding of the countryside from encroachment is not achieved by limiting 
development [in the Green Belt] to that which is 'typical' in the countryside.  It is 
also noted that the site boundaries (with the exception of that part of the 



boundary that would form the main entrance) and woodland area would remain 
essentially rural in character and appearance.   

 
8.14 With regards the fourth purpose - protection of the setting of an urban area, 

whilst the Caerphilly Mountain ridge forms a very important role as forming a 
setting to Cardiff's urban area, the development of this particular site is not 
considered to harm that setting, given the extent of the site's visibility within the 
wider ridge, resulting in part from the site levels and screening, particularly 
along Thornhill Road.   

 
8.15 With regards to the fifth purpose of encouraging the recycling of derelict ad 

other urban land, it is considered that the proposed use of a new cemetery does 
not directly relate to this purpose, which is primarily aimed at strategically 
encouraging urban regeneration, as opposed to preventing the expansion of 
urban areas.  Having considered each of the five in turn, it is concluded that 
the proposed development would not conflict with the purposes of including 
land within Green Belts/Wedges, as assessed against para 4.8.18 of PPW.  
 

8.16 In conclusion, taking the above and the objections raised into consideration, is 
considered that, whilst there are factors that would limit the impact of the 
proposed development on the openness of the Green Wedge and that the 
development would not conflict with the purposes of including land within the 
Green Wedge, the development would not maintain the current degree of 
openness possessed by the site, assessed against para 4.8.18 of PPW.  As 
such, it has to be concluded that development should be regarded as 
'inappropriate development' in the Green Wedge assessed against para 4.8.18 
of PPW.  In line with PPW, LPAs should attach substantial weight to any 
harmful impact which a development would have on a Green Belt or green 
wedge and inappropriate development should not be approved except in very 
exceptional circumstances. 
 
(ii) Whether the harm by reason of inappropriateness and any other harm, 

would be clearly outweighed by other considerations, so as to amount to 
'very exceptional circumstances' to justify the proposal 

8.17 It is considered that the proposal is a form of development that is inappropriate 
within the Green Wedge, such that the development should not be approved 
except in 'very exceptional circumstances' (VER).  VER will not exist unless 
the potential harm to the green wedge by reason of inappropriateness and any 
other harm is clearly outweighed by other considerations.  Whilst there is no 
policy requirement to submit an assessment of the need for the burial site and 
alternative sites, the Applicant has done so, in order to demonstrate that very 
exceptional circumstances exist.  The report sets out the following 
summarised key considerations:  
• Wider Need - Cardiff is one of the fastest growing cities in the UK and this is 

set to continue, with the LDP setting out provision for over 40,000 new 
homes.  Coupled to this, the death rate is set to increase substantially over 
the next 10 years due to the 'baby boom' generation beginning to die. An 
increased population ultimately results in an increased death rate and it is 
essential that there is adequate infrastructure to cope with current and 
future demand. 



• The first Cardiff Bereavement Services Strategy was published in 2005 
setting out a 10 year plan for the service, and flagged up issues around the 
decline in burial space and identified areas in current sites for extension. An 
updated Strategy was approved by Cabinet in October 2014 and this 
highlighted the need to find new burial space. 

• Cardiff Bereavement Services currently carry out on average 1350 burials 
per year, 800 of which are full size graves and 550 are burials of cremated 
remains.    This uses approx 0.5 acres of virgin land per year.  

• Cremation is the more popular option for disposal of the dead in Cardiff and 
the ratio to burial mirrors that seen in the UK of around 70/30 in favour of 
cremation. The 30% that choose burial do so for a number of reasons, 
ranging from religious belief and family tradition to personal choice and 
even specific instruction from the Coroner.  

• As a diverse and multicultural city, Cardiff must recognise that the choice as 
to how its residents treat their dead is an important factor and the option of 
burial must remain in order to meet the needs of the whole population and 
must not be limited to one particular type.  

• The Council welcomes diversity and promotes freedom of choice.  
Through providing a cremation facility, as well as a range of burial options, 
which include traditional graves, lawn graves and natural burial options, the 
Council can ensure that the residents of Cardiff have a choice of options to 
meet their needs which, in turn, helps promote a healthy grieving process 
where the disposal option selected reflects the deceased's wishes or 
religious beliefs.  The bereaved should be recognised as a vulnerable 
group and the Council must ensure that it puts in place adequate resources 
and facilities to assist them. The inability to grieve in a healthy way impacts 
on social wellbeing and can lead to serious mental health issues, putting 
additional strain on local health services and impacting negatively on 
workforce and productivity.  

• Existing Site Availability - Cardiff Bereavement Services provides burials at 
a total of seven sites around the city; at Thornhill Cemetery, Pantmawr 
Cemetery, Cathays Cemetery, Western Cemetery, Llanishen Curchyard, 
Llandaff Cemetery and St Margaret's Churchyard in Roath. Of these, only 
Thornhill, Pantmawr and Western cemeteries are able to offer new grave 
spaces. 

• Western Cemetery covers the west side of Cardiff from areas such as 
Riverside, Grangetown, Cardiff Bay, Ely, Careau, Llandaff, Canton and 
Radyr. The site was extended in 2013 and will provide burial space up to 
around 2033 based on current usage (450 burials per year with 250 in new 
graves, with the difference accounted for by the reopening of existing 
graves or burials in pre-purchased graves).  

• Pantmawr Cemetery operates as a localised cemetery, being only 10 acres 
in size and serving primarily the residents of Rhiwbina and Pantmawr. 
There is 1 acre of land immediately available for use and just of 1.5 acres 
currently used for grazing within the site. At the current rate of 110 burials 
per year with 50 in new graves, the site will not be full until 2038, with scope 
to extend into the grazing paddock to provide around 20 years of burial 
space. However, should a new burial site not be established elsewhere, the 
burials currently using Thornhill would have to go to other sites and 
providing another 300 burials per year at Pantmawr would result in the site 



being full within 6 years, including the undeveloped area. However, the 
report notes that the infrastructure of the site and vehicle access would not 
be able to cope with the increased number of funerals, with the need for a 
new car park meaning that the site would become full within 3 - 4 years.  

• Thornhill Cemetery is the busiest site, dealing with over 700 burials per 
years and providing over 200 new graves each year. The site services 
residents mainly in the north east and south of the City. It was opened in 
1952 covering a total of 40 acres including the crematorium facility. The 
grounds were extended in 2010 by a total of 5 acres on land adjacent to the 
site, already in council ownership and which had been previously identified 
for cemetery space.  There are no existing options for further expansion of 
the current site. The site has approximately 2 years remaining, based on 
current usage before it is full for new burials.  It is essential that the Council 
identify and develop new areas for burial to meet the needs of the City and 
avoid the position of not providing a major burial location. Current estimates 
are that the existing site at Thornhill will not be able to provide any further 
new graves after June 2020.  

• Alternative Disposal Options - The way the UK population treat the dead is 
slow to change and traditional practices are difficult to diverge from. Natural 
or woodland burial started in the UK 25 years ago and, whilst its popularity 
has grown, it is not the first preference for the vast majority who prefer more 
traditional options. There is a natural burial section at Thornhill, however, 
only 1% of families opt for this method of burial, despite it being available 
for the last 20 years.  Whilst other options for burial are being discussed 
within the industry, such as resomation, promession and green cremation, 
at present there is no other legal option for the disposal of the dead other 
than burial or cremation. 

• Other Service Providers - There are alternative providers for both burial and 
cremation outside of the City boundary, which are in the main provided by 
private operators or other Local Authorities. There is no requirement for a 
person to be buried or cremated in the area that they lived, however, in the 
main, people do not want to travel long distances to visit graves or 
memorial gardens. However, some will if the service they require is not 
available locally or is of a better standard. A good example of this is natural 
burial. 

• A dedicated natural burial ground provider will only provide that one type of 
burial and memorial options etc will be limited.  For some this is not 
acceptable, as they want to purchase a headstone and leave flowers on a 
regular basis and, whilst not requiring them, the Council offer these facilities 
to ensure the needs of the wider population can be met. Others do not wish 
to travel outside of the city boundary.  

• Cost is also a factor influencing demand for other service providers. Fees 
for going to another local authority run cemetery for burial where you were 
not a resident of that area are, in many cases, doubled or even trebled.  
This impacts on the ability to pay for a funeral and contributes to funeral 
poverty and increased debts. Cardiff was able to remove its out of area fee 
a number of years ago due to how the service is financially structured.  

• Grave Re-Use - The re-use of existing graves in older cemeteries is a way 
of extending the supply of burial space, albeit a sensitive one. Specific 
legislation exists in London to allow the disturbance of human remains to 



make additional burial space available in existing graves and, in some 
instances, the Church has issued cemeteries a facility to permit the removal 
of remains to another part of a cemetery in order that land can be re-used. 
However, that option is not available in Cardiff; there is no legislation that 
allows the disturbance of buried remains to occur to facilitate additional or 
new burials and the Church in Wales does not have the same powers as 
the Church in England to permit disturbance. Until there is a change in 
legislation, the only option Authorities have is to keep developing free land 
for burial space to meet the needs of the population.  

Alternative Site Assessments  
• A brief was prepared to assist in identifying possible sites for consideration, 

with the following ‘essential requirements’ identified:  
 North of the city 
 Have a realistic time scale for development before the end of 2020 
 Large enough to accommodate at least 20 years of burial space 
 Be able to offer a range of burial options for service users i.e. 

cremated remains graves, lawn graves traditional graves and natural 
burial options. 

 Good access for funeral corteges and access for cemetery plant and 
equipment 

 Good Transport links to the site 
 Satisfy Natural Resources Wales (NRW) requirements e.g. low water 

table etc. 
 Where practical as close to the existing site as possible to allow 

financial savings against the need to develop new buildings such as 
depots and offices.  

 Sites in Council ownership to save on purchase costs and to avoid the 
need for compulsory purchase orders 

 A suitable topography to allow the cemetery to be workable 
• An initial desk top assessment was undertaken of a large number of sites, 

which included the consideration of candidate sites submitted as part of the 
LDP process and sites within Council ownership. Fourteen sites were 
shortlisted and subject to a more detailed assessment, the proforma for 
which are included in the Applicant’s report. Many sites were deemed 
unsuitable following a more detailed assessment and the application site 
was identified as the most suitable site.  A Tier 1 assessment was 
undertaken by TGMS ltd in 2014, followed by a ground water survey which 
was undertaken during 2015/16. The results were favourable and the 
process of seeking formal cabinet approval began and was granted in 
March 2018.   
 

8.18 Notwithstanding the objections received, it is considered that the Applicant has 
adequately demonstrated that there is a need for the development, that 
alternative sites have been assessed in a structured and sufficiently robust 
way, that the alternative sites assessment includes sites not in the Green 
Wedge and that sufficient evidence has been put forward to demonstrate that 
there are no suitable, alternative sites that are not in the Green Wedge, in the 
countryside or on BMV agricultural land.  On this basis, it is considered that 
‘very exceptional circumstances’ exist which clearly outweigh the harm to the 



Green Wedge sufficient to justify granting planning permission.  In coming to 
this view, substantial weight has been given to the impact on the Green Wedge. 
 
(iii) Landscape impact - whether the development would unacceptably harm 

the character and quality of the landscape and setting of the city  
8.19 The conservation of landscape is a key PPW objective for the conservation and 

improvement of the natural heritage (paragraph 5.1.2). At the development plan 
level, policy KP4 requires major development to accord with the 
‘Masterplanning General Principles', which include the need to 'sympathetically 
integrate existing landscape, biodiversity and historic features of the site into 
the development taking opportunities to protect, enhance and manage 
important features along with mitigation and enhancement measures to provide 
satisfactory compensatory measures'.  KP5 requires all new development to 
'respond to the local character and context of the built and landscape setting'.  
At a detailed policy level, Policy EN3: Landscape Protection states that 
development that would unacceptably harm the character and quality of the 
landscape and setting of the city will not be permitted, with particular priority to 
be given to protecting, managing and enhancing the character and quality of 
Special Landscape Areas identified on the LPD Proposals Map. Para 5.85 if the 
written justification lists criteria that should be used to assess unacceptable 
harm, namely: 
• the impact of the proposed development on key features of the landscape 

in terms of physical character, vegetation and habitats, land use and 
settlement patterns, visual character, historical character and cultural 
associations 

• the need for the proposed development in relation to its impact 
• the availability of alternative locations 
• the ability to provide appropriate mitigation measures.  

 
8.20 In the 2008 Review of Landscape Character areas, the site is located within 

Landscape Character Area 9LCA)7: Caerphilly Ridge Foothills. The area is 
defined as ‘a broad tract of gently rolling landscape located at the foot of the 
Caerphilly ridge running down to the northern edge of Cardiff at the M4 
motorway…the northern boundary is marked by a distinctive break in the slope 
at the foot of the Caerphilly Ridge…and along its southern edge by the M4 
motorway which more or less defines the urban edge of Cardiff…’.  The 2008 
Review identified positive attributes of the LCP, including important areas of 
woodland, remnant semi-improved habitats, extensive views to and from the 
City and its relatively unspoilt, rural landscape character.  Negative attributes 
include visual and noise impact from the M4, general urban fringe land 
management issues and increased use of land for horse grazing, and 
disruption to landscape pattern and character by golf course development. 
Strategically, the area forms the lower part of the backdrop of encircling hills 
and ridges to the north of Cardiff and is, therefore, an important component of 
the wider landscape setting of the city.  In respect of policy EN3, the site does 
not form part of designated Special Landscape Area. 

 
8.21 A Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment of the site has been submitted in 

support of the application.  The landscape character of the site and 
surrounding study area is assessed as being of low-medium sensitivity, taking 



into consideration the landscape designations (Green Wedge, TPOs on site 
boundaries and SINCs in the study area), the LANDMAP characterisation of 
the site and surrounding area as of low to moderate value, and the landscape 
character. The character of the site is noted to be rural, but affected by noise 
impacts from the M4, existing development in close proximity, but with 
inter-visibility between the site and wider landscape limited by topography and 
vegetation.  Overall, it is considered that the susceptibility of the landscape to 
changes from the proposed development is low, taking into consideration the 
proposed planting, which would exceed that lost, the restricted inter-visibility 
between the site and surrounding area as a result of existing and proposed 
boundary vegetation and topography, and the scale of development. Overall, 
the effect of the development on the landscape character of the site and 
surrounding area is assessed in the study as 'slight adverse'. 

 
8.22 The proposed development would undoubtedly change the rural character of 

the site, from its existing status as a grassland field in agricultural use to a 
cemetery. The site itself has a distinctly rural character, despite its close 
proximity to the M4 and long range views of the built up area of Cardiff, and is 
generally well contained by hedgerows and trees. However, it is not considered 
that the development would cause unacceptable harm to the character and 
quality of the landscape and setting of the city in this instance, taking into 
consideration the following factors, in addition to those noted above:  
• the proximity to and noise from the M4, harming the tranquillity of the site 
• the existing visual intrusion from the transformer, overhead power cable, 

and the glimpses of the caravans and farm shop and cafe development to 
the NE of the site 

• the limited number of buildings proposed on site, which would not be unduly 
intrusive, being single storey and constructed from timber, with shallow 
pitched green roofs and a functional appearance not inappropriate to the 
rural character of the location.  Inspectors have held that buildings in 
themselves are not an urban feature; it is generally their number and 
density which, amongst other characteristics, distinguishes an urban 
location from a rural one ((APP/B5480/W/15/3132860)  

• other facilities, including the 5 flower preparation tables, low level lighting, 
seating and cycle parking would not be unduly obtrusive 

• roads, paths and car parks are necessary in all locations and whilst 
accepting that the proportion of the site given over to them is high, their 
impact would be reduced by retained and proposed planting 

• whilst the burial areas, particularly those that have a more 'hard' 
landscaped appearance and adorned with flowers and other items, would 
appear unnatural and conspicuous in their ordered rows, they are limited in 
height and not in themselves an urban feature 

• the majority of the site would remain largely hidden from view for those 
outside its boundaries, limiting the effect on the surrounding area   

• the proposed boundary woodland, trees and hedgerows, which form key 
landscape features of the site would be retained and enhanced, with the 
exception of the part of the Thornhill frontage which would be lost to form 
the main entrance  

• the change in the view resulting from the new access would be reduced by 
the fact that it would be set back from Thornhill Road and not seen in long 



views.  A condition is proposed to control the detailed design of the main 
entrance   

• Whilst this entrance would be likely to have an urbanising effect, it is noted 
that the rural character of the Thornhill Road frontage north of the site up to 
Capel Gwilym Road has been compromised by built development and 
urbanising boundary treatments, which would influence how the site 
frontage is perceived and reduce its impact  

• the proposed undergrounding of the existing overhead power cables would 
be a positive contribution to the landscape 

• the enhanced screening of the caravan site, farm shop and cafe terrace 
from within the site, by the proposed woodland area would be a further 
positive contribution to the landscape 

• whilst the Caerphilly Mountain ridge forms a very important role as forming 
a setting to Cardiff's urban area, the development of this particular site is 
not considered to harm that setting, given the extent of the site's visibility 
resulting in part from the site levels and screening, particularly along 
Thornhill Road 

• the need for the proposed development in relation to its impact, considered 
in part (i) and required to be assessed by para 5.85 of the LDP 

• the lack of suitable, alternative locations, considered in part (i) and required 
to be assessed by para 5.85 of the LDP. 

 
(iv) whether the development is acceptable in principle in this countryside 

location outside the  settlement boundary 
8.23 LDP policy also requires the development to be assessed against policies 

designed to protect the countryside. Policy KP3 (B): Settlement boundaries 
states that in all areas outside the defined settlement boundary, otherwise 
referred to as countryside, there will be a corresponding presumption against 
inappropriate development.  Policy KP16: Green Infrastructure states that 
natural heritage assets, including the undeveloped countryside are key to 
Cardiff’s character, value, distinctiveness and sense of place and if 
development results in overall loss of green infrastructure, appropriate 
compensation will be required.  Policy EN1: Countryside Protection states that 
development beyond the settlement boundaries will only be permitted where 
the use is appropriate in the countryside, respects the landscape character and 
quality and biodiversity of the site and surrounding area and where it is 
appropriate in scale and design. It also states that a landscape assessment and 
landscaping scheme will be required for significant development proposals.  
 

8.24 Policy KP3(B) does not define what is 'inappropriate development' in the 
context of countryside protection. Whilst policy EN1 provides further guidance 
on land uses that are appropriate in the countryside, cemeteries are not 
specifically mentioned.  Inspectors have noted that cemeteries are commonly 
found in urban, urban fringe and countryside settings, to the extent that the 
cemetery use in itself is not considered to constitute an intrusion into a rural 
area (APP/B5480/W/15/3132860).  That same Inspector also noted that 'the 
safeguarding of the countryside from encroachment is not achieved by limiting 
development to that which is 'typical' in the countryside.  Taking into 
consideration the above, the material considerations identified above in the 
assessment of landscape impact, the scale and design of the development, the 



proposed landscaping scheme and proposals, the need to locate the 
development on this countryside site (assessed in section ii), and the impact on 
the biodiversity of the site (assessed in section vi), it is considered that the 
development would not be inappropriate development within the countryside.  
 
(v) The loss of agricultural land, including BMV land  

8.25 National planning policy on the conservation of agricultural land is set out in 
PPW (November 2016) and the accompanying TAN 6: Planning for Sustainable 
Rural Communities (2010).  PPW paragraph 4.10.1 states that land of grades 
1, 2 and 3a in the Agricultural Land Classification (ALC) system is the best and 
most versatile agricultural land should be conserved as a finite resource for the 
future.  The paragraph advises that:  

‘considerable weight should be given to protecting such land from 
development, because of its special importance. Land in grades 1, 2 and 3a 
should only be developed if there is an overriding need for the 
development, and either previously developed land or land in lower 
agricultural grades is unavailable, or available lower grade land has an 
environmental value recognised by a landscape, wildlife, historic or 
archaeological designation which outweighs the agricultural 
considerations. If land in grades 1, 2 or 3a does need to be developed, and 
there is a choice between sites of different grades, development should be 
directed to land of the lowest grade’. 
 

8.26 TAN 6, para 6.2.2, advises that once agricultural land is developed, even for 
‘soft’ uses such as golf courses, its return to agriculture as best and most 
versatile agricultural land is seldom practical.   

 
8.27 At the development plan level, KP18: Natural Resources requires development 

proposals to take full account of the need to minimise impacts on the city’s 
natural resources, which extends to the protection of the best and most 
versatile agricultural land.  

 
8.28 The site comprises approximately 3.7ha of agricultural land in the form a single, 

semi-improved grassland field currently used for grazing.  The development of 
this site would lead to the loss of best and most versatile agricultural (BMV) 
land; the majority of the site comprises Grade 3a agricultural land (which is 
classed as best and most versatile agricultural land) and the remainder Grade 
3b.   

 
8.29 Assessing the application against this context, it is considered that the return to 

agriculture would be extremely unlikely.  PPW states that land in grades 1, 2 
and 3a should only be developed if there is an overriding need for the 
development and either previously developed land or land in lower agricultural 
grades is unavailable. It is considered that the need for the development as 
demonstrated by the Applicant would amount to an exceptional overriding need 
and that it has been satisfactorily demonstrated that there are no suitable 
alternative sites on either previously developed or lower quality agricultural 
land. A condition is recommended to ensure the effective use of the valuable 
soil resource by requiring the submission and implementation of a Soil 
Resource Survey and Plan. 



 
(vi) Impact on wildlife and habitats 

8.30 The conservation of biodiversity and, in particular, the conservation of native 
wildlife and habitats is a key PPW objective for the conservation and 
improvement of the natural heritage (paragraph 5.1.2).  PPW recognises the 
role of the planning system in creating new opportunities to enhance 
biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses where 
damage is unavoidable.  It also recognises the importance of minimising or 
reversing the fragmentation of habitats and improving habitat connectivity 
through the promotion of wildlife corridors, whilst ensuring development 
minimises species and habitat impact (para 5.2.8).   
 

8.31 In respect of protected species, PPW notes that the presence of a species 
protected under European or UK legislation is a material consideration when a 
local planning authority is considering a development proposal which, if carried 
out, would be likely to result in disturbance or harm to the species or its habitat 
(para 5.5.12).  It goes onto state that 

 ‘Developments are always subject to the legislation covering European 
protected species regardless of whether or not they are within a designated 
site. New developments for which development works would contravene 
the protection afforded to European protected species require derogations 
from the provisions of the Habitats Directive. A derogation may only be 
authorised if there is no satisfactory alternative and if the action authorised 
will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the population of the species 
concerned at a favourable conservation status in its natural range. The 
development works to be authorised must be for the purposes of preserving 
‘public health or safety, or for other imperative reasons of overriding public 
interest, including those of a social or economic nature and beneficial 
consequences of primary importance for the environment’. Derogations are 
granted by a licence issued by Natural Resources Wales. Local planning 
authorities are under a duty to have regard to the requirements of the 
Habitats Directive in exercising their functions. To avoid developments with 
planning permission subsequently not being granted derogations in relation 
to European protected species, planning authorities should take the above 
three requirements for derogation into account when considering 
development proposals where a European protected species is present.’ 
 

8.32 At the development plan level, policy KP16 provides a framework for the 
protection, enhancement and management of Cardiff's natural heritage assets, 
including its biodiversity interests.  At a detailed policy level, policy EN5 
provides protection for designated sites, policy EN6, protection for ecological 
networks and biodiversity features of importance, whilst policy EN7 provides for 
the protection of priority habitats and species.  Policy EN8 provides for the 
protection of trees, woodlands and hedgerows for their amenity, natural and 
cultural heritage value. 

 
8.33 The application has been the subject of a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 

(PEA) and a full Ecological Impact Assessment (EcIA). The assessment was 
informed by desk top research, an Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey of the site 
combined with an assessment of the potential for protected species (30 August 



2017), and an aerial inspection of trees which have the potential for roosting 
bats (May 2018).  

 
8.34 A full site description is presented in Section 2 of this report, and confirms that 

the site does fall within a designated site. There are four designated sites of 
nature conservation (Cardiff Beach Woods SAC, Fforestganol A Chwm SSSI, 
Cefn Onn SSSI and Wern ddu Claypits SSSI) and 41 non-statutory designated 
Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) within 2km of the site 
boundary.  

 
8.35 The PEA and EcIA report that the site supports a range of habitats, comprising 

semi-improved neutral grassland, scrub, other tall herb and fern ruderal 
habitats, invasive species in the form of Japanese knotweed, scattered 
broadleaved trees, species poor intact hedge, semi – natural broadleaved 
woodland, fence and hardstanding.  The desk study identified records for 
hazel dormouse, otter, badger, bats, birds, common reptiles, great crested 
newts, common toad, polecat, other small mammals and invertebrates, fungi 
species and protected plant species within 2km of the site.  Following on from 
the desk studies and survey work, the following designations, habitats and 
species were identified as sensitive receptors (Important Ecological Features – 
Llanishen Brook (North) SINC, semi-natural broadleaved woodland, 
hedgerows, invasive species (Japanese knotweed), nesting birds (general), 
bats, badger, hazel dormouse, reptiles, Great Crested Newt and common toad. 
The report concludes that in the absence of mitigation, an adverse effect on 
each of the above important ecological features with the exception of common 
toads is likely to result from the proposed development.   A series of mitigation 
measures are proposed during the construction and operational phases, as 
well as enhancement opportunities.  These include:  
• implementation of a Precautionary Working Method Statement to ensure 

reasonable avoidance measures are undertaken to reduce harm to great 
crested newts, hazel dormice and common reptiles. 

• enhancements for common reptiles and amphibians through the creation of 
a hibernacula 

• pre-construction checks for nesting birds if works carried out during bird 
breeding season 

• enhancement for birds and bats including the provision of nest/bat boxes to 
be erected on suitable  trees 

• enhancement for invertebrates through the use of insect hotels and/or 
creation of log piles 

• landscape planting to include native species 
• details of how retained habitats and fauna will be protected during 

construction works provided within a Construction and Environmental 
management Plan 

• details how retained and created habitats will be managed and maintained 
and enhancements for fauna groups provided within a Biodiversity 
Management Plan.  

 
8.36 With appropriate mitigation in place, no significant negative effects are 

predicted on the various Important Ecological Features, in respect of both the 
construction and operational phases, and no direct or indirect effect on the 



statutory or non-statutory designated sites are predicted. NRW and the County 
Ecologist have raised no objection, subject to a condition to require 
implementation of the recommendations of the ecological reports.  NRW 
advise that they do not consider that the development is likely to be detrimental 
to the maintenance of the population of the species concerned at a favourable 
conservation status in their natural range, provided that suitable avoidance and 
mitigation measures are implemented via condition.  Conditions are, therefore, 
recommended to require both a Construction Environmental Management Plan 
for the construction phase and a Green Infrastructure Management Plan for the 
operational phase to be submitted for approval and implemented. 

 
8.37 Taking into consideration the above, including PPW advice in relation to EPS, 

the lack of objection from the Council’s Ecologist and NRW, the objections 
received, it is considered that the impact on ecology and biodiversity interests is 
acceptable, and would conform to the respective legislative protection and 
comply with both national and local planning policy requirements, subject to the 
recommended conditions. 

 
(vii) Impact on Heritage Assets 

8.38 An ancient monument, Castell Morgraig (GM031) lies approx 800m north of the 
application site, and a Grade II listed (Pantysgawen) building lies approx 250m 
west of the application site.  Policy KP17 provides a high level framework to 
protect, manage and enhance Cardiff's heritage assets.  Policy EN9 provides 
a more detailed development management policy to protect the historic 
environment and states that development will only be permitted where it can be 
demonstrated that it preserves or enhances that assets architectural quality, 
historic and cultural significance, character, integrity and/or setting.  Taking 
into consideration the separation distance, topography and intervening 
vegetation, the site will not be visible from these assets and it is considered that 
their setting would not be harmed.  Cadw have been consulted and confirm 
that there are no scheduled monuments that would be affected by the proposed 
development. (They have no remit to consider the effect on the setting of listed 
buildings.) 
 
(viii) Impact on air quality, noise, light pollution and contaminated land  

8.39 The PPW objective for the management of environmental effects and pollution 
is to 'maximise environmental protection for people, natural and cultural 
resources, property and infrastructure, and prevent or manage pollution and 
promote good environmental practice' (paragraph 13.1.12).  At the local level, 
policy EN13 seeks to protect unacceptable harm caused by air, noise, light 
pollution or land contamination. 
 

8.40 The development would not cause or result in unacceptable harm as a result of 
air quality, noise, light pollution and contaminated land, taking into 
consideration the recommended conditions by, and the lack of objection from 
Pollution Control, Drainage Services and NRW.  Conditions are recommended 
to control land contamination, drainage, and imported soils and aggregates, 
and an advisory notice to control noise from construction activities.  
 
 



(ix) Impact on residential amenity of nearby properties 
8.41 PPW provides that 'insensitive infilling, or the cumulative effects or 

development or redevelopment, including conversion and adaption, should not 
be allowed to damage an area's character or amenity.  This includes any such 
impact on neighbouring dwellings, such as serious loss of privacy or 
overshadowing' (paragraph 9.3.3).  At the development plan level, policy KP5 
requires all new development to ensure no undue effect on the amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers.  The third party responses are noted. Whilst a 
resident has raised concerns over the proximity of the site to family housing, it is 
considered that there would be no harm arising to nearby occupiers as a result 
of loss of privacy, overshadowing or any other matter sufficient to warrant a 
refusal of the application given the separation distances involved, intervening 
vegetation and scale of the development.   
 
(x) Impact on Thornhill Farm Shop 

8.42 Third parties have raised objections on grounds of the impact of the 
development on Thornhill Farm Shop, in respect of the impact on the business, 
the job security of their 15 employees, their customers’ enjoyment of the café 
arising from the visibility of the site from the premises, and access to the farm. 

 
8.43 In respect of impact on the business, it is noted that the farm shop does not fall 

within a shopping frontage or local centre protected by the LDP policies, such 
that the shop and business is not afforded protection in land use policy terms.  
The visibility of the proposed development from the café has been considered 
in section (i) and it should additionally be noted that the loss of a view is not a 
material planning consideration.  In term of the access, the farm access off 
Thornhill Road would remain available to the tenant farmer, with a new 
self-closing gate to be installed, and that access would be separated from the 
proposed development by a new boundary fence, a new hedgerow and an 
avenue of trees. An access to the Farm from the cemetery is proposed as part 
of the application; the TA notes that the access will not be used as the main 
entrance to new House Farm by day to day traffic or for vehicles wishing to gain 
access onto Capel Gwilym Road, but to allow an option for those visiting the 
cemetery to visit the farm shop and café.  There would be lockable vehicle and 
pedestrian gates on the proposed access, which would be operated by the 
Applicant and locked when the site is non-operational.   None of the above 
issues are considered to provide reasonable grounds to sustain an objection to 
the application.  

 
(xi) Whether the proposal would make satisfactory provision for access, 

parking and circulation 
8.44 The Council's transport strategy underpinning the LDP is focused on seeking to 

reduce car use by encouraging people to use more sustainable modes of 
transport.  Policy KP8 aims to ensure that development is properly integrated 
with transport infrastructure to achieve a shift away from car-based travel and 
sets out this 50:50 mode split as a target.  Policy T1 favours development 
which includes design features and facilities for walking and cycling. Policy T2 
identifies the A469 as forming part of the Northern Bus Corridor, one of four 
Rapid Transit Corridors identified as a focus for public transport enhancements 
that will serve the main LDP strategic sites and feed into the City Centre.  



Policy T5 requires new development to make appropriate provision for safe and 
convenient access by all modes. Policy T6 aims to protect the transport 
network and its users from developments which would cause unacceptable 
harm to the operation and use of key transport networks and routes.   

 
8.45 The Applicant has submitted a Transport Assessment which has been 

independently audited. The application's access, parking and transportation 
proposals are set out within Section 1 above.  The third party objections raised 
in respect of traffic impact, parking, highway safety have been considered.  
The Operational Manager Transportation has provided detailed comments 
(replicated in full in section 5) and has no objection subject to conditions.  Their 
suggested conditions are all recommended and include those relating to: 
Access Junction Details, Vehicular Parking, Cycle Parking Details, 
Construction Management Plan, Details of the footway/bus stops to be 
submitted, and implemented prior to the site becoming operational. It is 
considered that the development complies with planning policy in respect of 
highways and transportation matters, and that there is sufficient capacity on the 
adjacent highway to accommodate the traffic generated by the proposals.  

  
(xii) Flood Risk, Protection of Ground Water and Drainage  

8.46 Reference to the development site maps contained in TAN 15 Development 
and Flood Risk indicate that the site is considered to be at no risk of fluvial or 
tidal/coastal flooding and low risk of surface water flooding.  As such, a Flood 
Consequences Assessment has not been submitted.  
 

8.47 A hygrogeologial risk assessment and site investigation was undertaken, 
including a 12 month dip-well monitoring of ground water to assess the 
suitability of the site as a cemetery, which concluded that there would be a low 
risk of water contamination as a result of the proposed development.  The 
assessment indicated that there is no ground water within the upper 3 to 5m 
aside from a discrete area, coinciding with the base of a swale in the lowest 
elevated part of the site, and the report concludes that a land drainage scheme 
will not be necessary.  The high annual burial rate, however, results in the 
development having a high risk score and all burials will need to be carefully 
managed. The site layout has been designed to respond to the elevated 
groundwater levels in the south west corner of the site.  NRW have no 
objection and recommend a condition to protect controlled waters. 
 

8.48 A sustainable urban drainage system is proposed with site run-off entering an 
attenuation pond in the south west corner of the site to control surface water 
outfall. This would connect to the existing M4 motorway drainage system. A 
system of filter drains is proposed to collect surface water runoff from the 
internal road network; these would be constructed with impermeable 
membranes.  As there is no public sewerage system in the area, a cess pit is 
the proposed method of foul drainage. DCWW have no objection to the 
proposed development, and recommend a drainage strategy condition.  They 
also note that the development is crossed by a trunk and distribution watermain 
along the Thornhill Rd frontage and provide related advice. NRW have carefully 
considered the reports and additional information, including the detailed design 
of the proposed field drains, and agree that the recommended condition 



addresses their initial concerns regarding the detailed design of the filter drains. 
Drainage Services have no objection with the recommended condition.   
Welsh Government has no objection, confirming that they accept the principle 
of the scheme, subject to condition.  They advised that following the planning 
stage, the applicant would be required to enter into an appropriate legal 
agreement.  The conditions requested by the above consultees have all been 
recommended.  Advisory notices are also attached to bring Welsh 
Government and DCWW advice to the attention of the Applicant.  

 
Other Legislation 
(xiii) Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

8.49 Section 17(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes a duty on the Local 
Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of 
the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can 
to prevent, crime and disorder in its area. This duty has been considered in the 
evaluation of this application. It is considered that there would be no significant 
or unacceptable increase in crime and disorder as a result of the proposed 
decision.  The Applicant has responded to the advice provided South West 
Police who have no objection to the application. 
 
(xiv) Equality Act 2010 

8.50 The Equality Act 2010 identifies a number of ‘protected characteristics’, namely 
age; disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or 
belief; sex; sexual orientation; marriage and civil partnership. The Council’s 
duty under the above Act has been given due consideration in the 
determination of this application. An Equality Impact Assessment has been 
submitted as part of the application. The DAS notes that all aspects of design 
have been considered to ensure that there are no barriers created and that the 
facilities, including the toilet facility building, can cater for and be accessed by 
all sections of society. It is considered that the proposed development does not 
have any significant implications for, or effect on, persons who share a 
protected characteristic. 
 
(xv) Well-Being of Future Generations Act 2016 and whether the proposal 

would be a sustainable form of development   
8.51 Section 3 of this Act imposes a duty on public bodies to carry out sustainable 

development in accordance with the sustainable development principle to act in 
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs (Section 
5). This duty has been considered in the evaluation of this application.  It is 
considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the 
achievement of wellbeing objectives as a result of the recommended decision. 

 
(xvi) The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 

8.52 The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 enshrines in law principles and polices for 
managing natural resources in a sustainable way. Amongst other things, it 
introduces a new biodiversity duty on public authorities to seek to maintain and 
enhance biodiversity when exercising their functions, and in so doing to 
promote the resilience of ecosystems, so far as consistent with the proper 
exercise of those functions.  This duty and the resilience of ecosystems have 



been considered and discharged in the evaluation of this outline application, 
and has taken into consideration the following aspects of ecosystems - 
diversity, connections between and within ecosystems, scale, condition and 
adaptability.  The mitigation measures sought in respect of green 
infrastructure, habitat connectivity, habitat compensation and protection of 
species are aimed at delivering the Biodiversity and Resilience of Ecosystems 
Duty (BRED).  Additionally, conditions are recommended that would serve to 
create and enhance local opportunities for wildlife and enhance biodiversity 
through new woodland, wetland and grassland habitat creation that will provide 
increased opportunities for wildlife.   This duty would be further considered in 
the future discharge of condition applications. 
 
(xvii) Response to third party and other objections 

8.53 The objections raised by third parties and other objectors have been duly 
noted.  The following comments are provided in respect of matters not 
addressed above:  
(i) The Agent acting for the Applicant was notified of that the resident had not 

received a response to the pre-application consultation as indicated in the 
PAC report.  

(ii) The need for a burial site was not identified as an issue in the LDP and this 
site did not form a candidate site for use as a burial site.  However, the 
LPA has a statutory duty to determine the application before it. 

(iii) The Applicant’s initial needs assessment indicated that a further 2ha site 
may be developed to provide further graves, but did not indicate the 
location of this site.  It does not form part of this application and has no 
status.  The LPA has a statutory duty to determine the application before 
it.  There is no requirement for the Council to consult WAG in respect of 
the loss of best and most versatile agricultural land, as both the 3.7ha 
application site and the potential further 2ha site would fall well within the 
20hectare or more threshold for consulting them (Appendix B2, Tan 6). 

(iv) It would not be reasonable to place a restriction on any further expansion 
of the site onto land outside the red line boundary. The LPA has a 
statutory duty to determine the application before it and each application 
must be assessed on its individual merits.  A condition is recommended 
to ensure that the burial areas do not extend beyond the areas shown on 
the submitted drawings.  

(v) The drainage of the site has been adequately assessed as part of the 
application and Welsh Government, Drainage Services and DCWW have 
no objection, subject to a drainage condition. 

(vi) Pollution Control has considered the application, have not required a 
noise assessment and have no objection. The landscaping proposals 
along the boundary with the M4 will help reduce the noise impact from the 
M4.  

(vii) The Transport Assessment sets out local public bus service information 
and Transportation has not raised any concerns on such grounds.  

(viii) The land does not constitute ‘open space’, such that s106 funding to 
compensate for loss of open space cannot be sought. The TAN 16 
definition of open space which is quoted in the Council’s SPG is ‘open 
space is defined in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as land laid 



out as a public garden, or used for the purposes of public recreation, or 
land which is a disused burial ground’.   

(ix) A screening opinion was requested by the Applicant prior to the 
submission of the planning application to ascertain whether the proposal 
would be subject to the requirement for an Environmental Impact 
Assessment (EIA) (Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 2017).  The application was assessed in 
accordance with the Regulations and the screening response, dated 
09/01/18, concluded that the development described was not considered 
likely to realise such significant environmental effects as to require the 
submission of an Environmental Statement to allow the local planning 
authority to determine a planning application for the proposal. The site is 
not within a 'Sensitive Area' as defined by the Regulations.  The nearest 
Site of Special Scientific Interest is c1.2km to the west (Fforestganol a 
Chwm Nofydd) and the nearest Scheduled Ancient Monument is c.0.8km 
north (Castell Morgraig).  The Local Planning Authority did not consider 
the development to be of more than local importance, did not consider the 
development would occur in a particularly environmentally sensitive and 
vulnerable location nor have the potential to have unusually complex and 
potentially hazardous environmental effects. It was noted that the visual, 
transportation drainage and hydrology, ecological, arboricultural and 
contamination impacts could be assessed through the submission of 
surveys accompanying a future application.  Although the site exceeds 
one of the thresholds for urban development projects in Schedule 2 of the 
regulations, it does not automatically follow that EIA is required.  As 
noted in section 1, the application is supported by a large number of 
technical assessments and it should also noted that none of the internal 
and external technical consultees have requested any additional 
assessments prior to determination of the application, and that they have 
no objection, subject to recommended conditions. 

 
9. CONCLUSION 
 
9.1 A key consideration in the determination of this application is whether the 

proposed development would maintain the openness of the Green Wedge and 
whether it would conflict with the purposes of including land within it (para 
4.8.18, PPW).  The analysis concluded that the proposed development would 
not conflict with the purposes of including land within the Green Wedge and set 
out various factors relating to the application site, the surrounding area and the 
proposed development that would materially limit the impact of the proposed 
development on the openness of the Green Wedge.  Additionally, the report 
set out a series of improvements to the scheme that have been secured 
through amended plans, which materially reduce the development's impact. 
Never-the-less, it was concluded overall that the development would not 
maintain the current degree of openness possessed by the site, given its 
current use and appearance as an open, grassland agricultural field.  As such, 
it has to be concluded that the proposed development is 'inappropriate 
development' in the Green Wedge, assessed against para 4.8.18 of PPW, and 
substantial weight has been given to this impact.   

 



9.2 To be granted planning permission in this circumstances, PPW requires that 
'very exceptional circumstances' have to be demonstrated which clearly 
outweigh the harm to the green wedge (PPW para 4.8.15).  As set out in the 
above analysis, it is considered that those 'very exceptional circumstances' 
exist in this instance, arising from the need for the development and the lack of 
suitable, alternative sites, that would justify granting planning permission, in line 
with PPW.  In addition to delivering a much needed new cemetery, the 
arboricultural and ecological resource of the site would be enhanced through 
the delivery of a pond, a wetland area, wildflower meadows and verge, over 50 
new trees, 4 new hedgerows and strengthened existing hedgerows, and new 
and strengthened woodland edge areas.  Hedgerows would include native 
species to enhance them as Dormice habitats.  Bat, bird and dormice nest 
boxes, and insect hotels/log piles for invertebrates are also proposed.   
 

9.3 The proposal has been fully assessed against local and national policies and 
guidance, and the responses to consultation and objections fully considered.  
It is considered that there are no demonstrable or compelling reasons which 
indicate sufficient harm to warrant refusal of the application, with all material 
factors, policy implications and issues raised through consultation satisfactorily 
addressed. It is recommended that planning permission be granted, subject to 
the recommended conditions.  

 



M

4

M

4

M

4

CITY OF CARDIFF CREMATORIUM

AND THORNHILL CEMETERY

THORNHILL ROAD

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

NEW HOUSE FARM AND CARAVAN SITE

MAES -Y-COED ROAD

CAERPHILLY ROAD

TY-GLAS

ROAD

MORRISONS

SUPERSTORE

BEULAH ROAD

THORNHILL ROAD

CAERPHILLY ROAD

THORNHILL ROAD

CORYTON RAIL LINE

CORYTON RAIL LINE

LIDL SUPERSTORE

LLANISHEN

LEISURE

CENTRE

CEFN ONN PARK

TRAVELLERS REST PUBLIC HOUSE

C
A

E
R

P
H

I
L
L
Y

C
A

R
D

I
F

F
 
C

I
T

Y

C
E

N
T

R
E

except for planning 
application purposes

do not scale drawing

Telephone 029 2287 2456
County Hall, Atlantic Wharf, Cardiff CF10 4UW

COPYRIGHT OF CARDIFF
COUNCIL.
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.C

    DRAWING CAN BE SCALED
FOR PLANNING APPLICATION
          PURPOSES ONLY.

© Crown copyright and database rights (2011) Ordnance Survey 100023376.
© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata (2011) Arolwg Ordnans 100023376.C

Rev By Date Description of Amendment Chk.by Date

CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD THE CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL

Rev

CAERDYDD
CARDIFF

DESIGN CONTRACTS AND DELIVERY

DYLUNIO CONTRACTAU A DARPARU

Andrew Gregory
DIRECTOR FOR PLANNING, TRANSPORT AND

ENVIRONMENT

CYNLLUNIO, TRAFNIDIATH A'R AMGYLCHEDD

THORNHILL CEMETERY 

NORTHERN 

EXTENSION 

SITE LOCATION 

OM

1:10000

APR'18

CO17144 01

FOR PLANNING

NOTES

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FOLLOWING

DRAWINGS:

CO17144-01 SITE LOCATION

CO17144-02 EXISTING SITE PLAN

CO17144-03 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

CO17144-04 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

CO17144-05 PROPOSED DRAINAGE

CO17144-06 PROPOSED LONG SECTIONS

CO17144-07 PROPOSED CROSS SECTIONS

CO17144-08 PROPOSED BUILDING & SHELTER

CO17144-09 FLOWER PREPARATION AREA

CO17144-10 PROPOSED VISUALS

CO17144-11 DEVELOPMENT EXTENTS

CO17144-3000-01 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING POST CONSTRUCTION

CO17144-3000-02 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING MID LIFE POINT

CO17144-3000-03 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING FULLY DEVELOPED

AutoCAD SHX Text
MP 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
HEOL ISAF

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
42.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
(um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Pumping

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
58.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
WINDSOR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
WINDSOR CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Site

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
55.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
WINDSOR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
57.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Radyr County Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
Marsham

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Ty Cornel

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Afon Taf / River Taff

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Factory

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
MP 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Gelynis Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Laboratories

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Horse Ride

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
Path and

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Chy

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
MP 6.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
1d

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Mynydd Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
FOREST FARM

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
5.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
Glamorganshire Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
Pipe Lines

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Melingriffith (Melingruffydd)

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
Pipe Line

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
Nature Reserve

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Reserve

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
Nature

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
Long Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
Glamorganshire Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
NORTHERN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
Ppg Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
Country Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
41.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
1 to 99

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
CORYTON RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
Pant Mawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
CORYTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
CORYTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
Cemetery

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
52.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
28.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
Nature Reserve

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
53.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
NORTHERN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
23a

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
15 to 23

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
13 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Oak House

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
CORYTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
CORYTON CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
50.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
Coryton

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
Hollybush

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
PENYDARREN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
1 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
29.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
44.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
Cedar House

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
Elm House

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
Lletty Newydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
Maes Y Cored

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
/ Afon Taf

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
Tongwynlais County

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
CAE GWYRDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
GRANT'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
IRON BRIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
MERTHYR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
0.91m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
Boro Const, Asly Const & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
Fairways Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
VILLAGE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
OLD FIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
PW

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
QUEEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
39.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
OAK COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
Hillside

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
BIRCH COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
RAILWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
Nant y Fforest

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
WELLINGTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
WYNDHAM STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
Castle Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
CAE LEWIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
Club House

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
Ael y Bryn

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
26a

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
CASTELL COCH VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
Tynewydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
Ty Gwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
A 470

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
A 4054

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
42.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
MICHAEL'S CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
CLOS CAE WAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
Lewis'

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
TAFF STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
GREENMEADOW DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
Castle

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
CASTLE VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
44.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
3 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
PANTGWYNLAIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
Loch Field Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
Newydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
LLWYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
Columbus

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
GG

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
Outfall

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
L Twr

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
HEOL ISAF

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
Old Church Rooms

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
Stables

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
FFORDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
UA, C & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
Co Const, Asly Const,

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
0.91m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
Castle

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
Heights House

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
Ffwrnes Blwm

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
167.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
HEOL-PEN-Y-BRYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
Air Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
Blackcock

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
168.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
178.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
169.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
190.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
188.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
Club House

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
Guide

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
The Woodlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
189.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
171.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
178.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
177.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
Brynau

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
1to3

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
46.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
67.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
Lynwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
29a

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
(Cheshire Home)

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
Dan-y-Bank Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
A 4054

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
Drift

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
(Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
Compound

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
Feeder

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
Glamorganshire Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
Cwrt Brynteg

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
FOREST FARM

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
40.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
Picnic Site

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
(um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
Filling

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
Long Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
(dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
Gelli Quarry

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
Workings

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
Conveyor

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
Holly Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
FFOREST

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
140.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
0.91m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
UA, C & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
The Castle Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
White

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
167.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
150.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
106.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
171.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
93.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
Nant y Fforest

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
143.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
Ton-y-bwlch House

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
170.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
175.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
Sea

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
Fforest-fach

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
HEOL-Y-FFOREST

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
173.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
Forest

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
RHIWBINA HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
HOEL-Y-

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
69.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
Forest

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
55.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
87.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
Coedcefngarw

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
117.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
Fforest Fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
79.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
Allotment

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
CASTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
BEECH

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
Cycle Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
Ty-rhiw

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
The Taff Trail

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
Llywydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
HEOL-Y-FFOREST

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
Valve Control

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
Traffic Management Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
Sports Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
HOLLYBUSH ESTATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
Long Wood (Nature Reserve)

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
A470

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
A470

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
WHITWORTH SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
Outfall

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
A470

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
85 - 95

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
37 to 71

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
Ty  George Thomas

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
Tel P

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
CLOS Y GAMLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
Odet Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
Governors

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
l

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
Melingriffith (Melingruffydd) Feeder

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
44.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
Poplar House

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
41.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
Hypermarket

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
CYNCOED AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
CYNCOED

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
Coedmor

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
Emsworth Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
240

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
160 to 163

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
183

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
233

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
Hillrise

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
203

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
164 to 167

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
219

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
RANNOCH DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
Ifor Jones Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
Byways

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
256

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
CYNCOED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
264

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
266a

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
All Saints

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
55.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
266

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
219b

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
Hillrise

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
62.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
Berkeley Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
Parish Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
HOLLYBUSH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
207

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
254

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
64.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
CYN-COED CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
148 to 151

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
61.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
WERNGOCH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
9a

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
Radnor

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
Ashbrooke

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
298

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
Llandennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
267

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
267a

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
Swn-y-Coed

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
330

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
51.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
257

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
332

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
255

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
49.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
Sks

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
WOODVALE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
308

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
Coedygloriau

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
BRIAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
CYNCOED PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
45.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
294

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
ST EDEYRN'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
278

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
268

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
233

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
241

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
284

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
DAN-Y-COED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
CYNCOED PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
Oakdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
ST EDEYRN'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
St Edeyrns

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
296

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
l4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
(Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
e

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
d

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
c

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
FBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
Boro Const, Asly Const & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
Sloping Masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
0.91m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
HAMPTON CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
Black Oak Ct

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
5 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
42.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
THE FAIRWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
323

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
BLACK OAK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
47.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
49.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
48.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
45.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
HURFORD PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
41.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
28.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
GWERN-RHUDDI

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
ty draw-

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
Brook House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
The Hollies

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
Woodside

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
Church House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
fach

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
RUDRY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
Glandwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
TYN Y BERLLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
GRAIG-LLWYN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
Pen y Brae

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
Ffynnon-fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
Dillons

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
FBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
Cefn-llys

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
Lych Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
The Smithy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
ST MELLONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
B 4562

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
Farthings

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
Mill View House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
Cae Bryn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
Cartref

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
Gates

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
Awelon

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
Nyth y Twyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
West

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
St Denys Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
Cefnsal

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
Woodcote

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
65.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
51.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
Crossways

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
66.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
45.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
Brown Hazel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
Greenacres

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
Tremayne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
Maerdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
51.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
Ty Coch

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
Avondale

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
Llwyn Onn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
STONE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
Old Orchard

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
Brynawelon

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
Glenside

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
Side

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
Pen y Ffordd

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
Trelawne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
Brookfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
Hen Efail

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
Broomfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
White

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
ROBIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
Crescent Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
66.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
208

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
183

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
222

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
226

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
Cardiff Golf Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
275

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
368

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
372

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
370

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
374

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
The Ridings

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
366

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
Derwen Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
CELYN GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
PEN-Y-BRYN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
364

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
362

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
346

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
45.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
293

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
289

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
376

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
WOODVALE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
50.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
BRYN-AWELON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
50.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
DERWEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
313

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
400

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
315a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
CYN-COED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
378

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
46.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
Homelea

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
Ty-Uchaf

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
Ty-Felyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
Glandwr

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
Graig Goch

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
0.91m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
Foxfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
Baptist

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
Channel View

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
105.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
Lisvane

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
1-8 Heath Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
PARC TY GLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
LAMBOURNE CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
34to37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
2 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
25 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
CLEEVE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
Cardiff Business Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
Leisure and Health Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
39.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
ST GILDAS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
ST BRIOC ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
Ton-yr-ywen School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
76a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
ST INA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
ST MALO ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
35.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
ETON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
ST INA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
ST ISAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
ST CADOC ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
ST DENIS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
39.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
ST ISAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
46.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
55.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
Brook Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
Mill Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
Tyrol

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
Berryhill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
73.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
Norton

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
Carn Ingli

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
MAERDY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
Luzern

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
70.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
Cerrig Llwyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
Balancing

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
Morning

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
DDERWEN DEG

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
War Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
The Maples

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
LISVANE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
Mountain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
The Gables

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
Silmaril

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
75.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
-Y-DAFARN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
CLOS COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
Brynllys

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
Lozelles

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
CHURCH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
Aelybryn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
Liby

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
HEOL Y DELYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
82.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
St Deny

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
Amberley

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
CHURCH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
Rising

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
Woodland

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
Long Acre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
Merrywinds

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
80.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
The Sunne

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
Coetgae-sych

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
The Red Gables

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
DELYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
PLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
18a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
90.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
HEOL Y DELYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
11A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
COTSWOLD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
54.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
Llys Onnen

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
The Pines

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
HEOL-Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
BALMORAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
Orchard

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
LISVANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
PORTLAND PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
Rose Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
Wood Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
57.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
THE SPINNEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
Hunters Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
Sunfold

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
(Llys Faen)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
Lisvane

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
Coetgaepengam

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
-DELYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
LLWYN Y PIA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
Beech House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
The Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
Ashton Keynes

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
WOOD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
Waterways

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
Amalfi

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
High Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
55.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
Llysfaen Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
Ty-llwyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
Steynton

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
Thornfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
Southwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
Long Spinney

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
COED-Y-DAFARN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
Ty Gwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
Nursery School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
Pen-y-Maes

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
Treetops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
Y-Celyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
Protea House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
Hafod y Bryn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
White Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
Bryn Glas

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
Helfa

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
Griffin Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
41a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
Protea Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
Nursery Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
54.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
173

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
171

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
Coed Glas County

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
1 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
Cedar Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
WYNDHAM TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
FIDLAS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
Nordale Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
Keepers Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
Presswood House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
Nursery School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
Scout Hut

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
Llanishen

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
GEORGIAN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
203

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
206

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
181

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
REDWOOD COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
184

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
183

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
197

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
187

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
198

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
Baptist Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
School House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
50.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
50.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
50.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
OLD VICARAGE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
189

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
FISHGUARD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
THE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
MELBOURNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
GLEBE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
FIDLAS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
Field House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
209a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
209b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
209c

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
174

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
TY GLAS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
Lych Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
Barclays House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
LLANISHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
Police Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
Ty

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
Onnen

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
Brookview Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
CRUNDALE CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
190

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
50.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
St Isan's

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
13 to 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
283

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
22 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
46 to 57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
51.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
TY-GLAS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
KIMBERLEY TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
43.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
LLANISHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
Church Inn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
47.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
34 to 39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
23a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
STATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
40 to 45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
43.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
38a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
18a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
Deri

AutoCAD SHX Text_2080
CWM NOFYDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2081
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2082
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_2083
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_2084
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2085
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2086
BRYNTEG

AutoCAD SHX Text_2087
CLOS YR WENALLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2088
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2089
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2090
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2091
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_2092
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2093
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2094
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2095
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2096
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2097
83.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2098
74.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2099
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2100
WENALLT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2101
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2102
75.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2103
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2104
48a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2105
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_2106
66.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2107
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2108
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2109
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2110
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_2111
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2112
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2113
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2114
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2115
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2116
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2117
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2118
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2119
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2120
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2121
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2122
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_2123
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2124
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2125
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2126
CLOS Y CRAIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_2127
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2128
80.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2129
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2130
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2131
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2132
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2133
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_2134
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2135
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2136
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2137
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2138
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2139
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2140
COED Y WENALLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2141
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2142
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2143
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2144
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2145
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2146
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2147
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2148
LON-YSGUBOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2149
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2150
155

AutoCAD SHX Text_2151
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2152
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2153
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2154
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2155
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2156
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2157
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_2158
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2159
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2160
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2161
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2162
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2163
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2164
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2165
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2166
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2167
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2168
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2169
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2170
of Latter-Day Saints

AutoCAD SHX Text_2171
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2172
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2173
CWM NOFYDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2174
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2175
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2176
Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_2177
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2178
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2179
BRYNTEG

AutoCAD SHX Text_2180
75.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2181
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2182
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2183
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2184
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2185
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2186
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2187
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2188
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2189
CEFN NANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2190
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2191
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2192
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2193
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2194
FAIRBROOK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2195
WENALLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2196
The Deri

AutoCAD SHX Text_2197
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2198
57.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2199
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2200
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2201
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_2202
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_2203
Nant

AutoCAD SHX Text_2204
Cwmnofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_2205
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2206
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2207
The Church of Jesus Christ

AutoCAD SHX Text_2208
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2209
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2210
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2211
Briar Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2212
Highfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_2213
58.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2214
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2215
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2216
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2217
56.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2218
HEOL-Y-DERI

AutoCAD SHX Text_2219
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2220
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2221
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2222
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2223
HEOL BRYNGLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2224
Tree Tops

AutoCAD SHX Text_2225
Sherwood Rise

AutoCAD SHX Text_2226
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2227
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2228
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2229
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_2230
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2231
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_2232
LON-Y-WINCI

AutoCAD SHX Text_2233
Twyford

AutoCAD SHX Text_2234
Alauna

AutoCAD SHX Text_2235
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2236
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2237
Woodside

AutoCAD SHX Text_2238
Leebridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2239
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2240
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2241
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_2242
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2243
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2244
Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_2245
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2246
Rising Bollards

AutoCAD SHX Text_2247
69.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2248
Gilwern

AutoCAD SHX Text_2249
Recreation

AutoCAD SHX Text_2250
Cardiff (Thornhill)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2251
/ Capel Briwnant

AutoCAD SHX Text_2252
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2253
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2254
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2255
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2256
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2257
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2258
Balancing

AutoCAD SHX Text_2259
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2260
Pp

AutoCAD SHX Text_2261
THORNHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2262
GUENEVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2263
Chapel Briwnant

AutoCAD SHX Text_2264
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_2265
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2266
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2267
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2268
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2269
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2270
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2271
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2272
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2273
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2274
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2275
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2276
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_2277
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2278
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2279
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2280
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2281
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2282
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2283
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2284
76.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2285
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2286
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2287
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2288
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_2289
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2290
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2291
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2292
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2293
PENDRAGON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2294
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2295
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2296
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2297
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2298
GALAHAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2299
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2300
HEOL PEREDUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2301
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2302
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2303
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2304
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2305
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2306
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2307
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2308
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2309
EXCALIBUR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2310
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2311
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2312
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2313
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2314
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2315
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2316
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2317
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2318
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2319
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2320
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2321
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2322
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2323
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2324
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2325
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2326
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2327
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2328
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2329
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2330
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2331
Ffynnon Wen

AutoCAD SHX Text_2332
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2333
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2334
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2335
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2336
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2337
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2338
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2339
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2340
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2341
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2342
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_2343
BRYN GLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2344
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2345
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2346
AVONRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2347
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2348
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2349
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2350
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2351
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2352
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2353
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2354
GLENMOUNT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2355
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2356
The Pendragon

AutoCAD SHX Text_2357
GUENEVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2358
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_2359
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2360
TRISTRAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2361
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2362
l5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2363
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2364
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2365
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2366
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2367
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2368
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2369
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2370
BRON FELEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2371
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2372
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2373
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2374
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2375
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2376
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2377
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2378
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2379
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2380
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2381
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2382
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2383
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2384
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2385
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2386
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2387
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2388
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2389
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2390
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2391
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2392
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2393
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2394
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2395
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2396
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2397
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2398
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2399
GERAINT CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2400
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2401
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2402
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2403
CAMELOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2404
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2405
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2406
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2407
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2408
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2409
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2410
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2411
AVONRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2412
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2413
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2414
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2415
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_2416
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2417
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2418
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2419
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2420
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2421
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2422
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2423
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2424
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2425
21 to 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2426
CAMELOT WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2427
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2428
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2429
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2430
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2431
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2432
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2433
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2434
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2435
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2436
PERCIVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2437
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_2438
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2439
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2440
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2441
Coedyfelin

AutoCAD SHX Text_2442
Mile House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2443
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2444
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2445
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2446
Holmwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_2447
The Beeches

AutoCAD SHX Text_2448
Beechwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_2449
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2450
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2451
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2452
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2453
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2454
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2455
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2456
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2457
85a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2458
RIDGEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2459
Coedyfelin

AutoCAD SHX Text_2460
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2461
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2462
92.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2463
HOLMESIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2464
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2465
RIDGEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2466
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2467
IVYDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2468
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2469
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2470
77a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2471
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2472
Suncrest

AutoCAD SHX Text_2473
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2474
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2475
RIDGEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2476
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2477
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2478
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2479
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2480
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2481
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2482
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2483
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2484
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2485
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2486
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2487
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2488
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2489
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2490
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2491
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2492
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2493
The Laurels

AutoCAD SHX Text_2494
Nulands

AutoCAD SHX Text_2495
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2496
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2497
Mill House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2498
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2499
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2500
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2501
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2502
ROSEWOOD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2503
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2504
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2505
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2506
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2507
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2508
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2509
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2510
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2511
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2512
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2513
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2514
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2515
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2516
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2517
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_2518
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2519
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2520
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2521
MILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2522
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2523
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_2524
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2525
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2526
Charnwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_2527
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2528
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2529
85b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2530
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_2531
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2532
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_2533
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2534
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2535
MILLFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2536
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2537
HEOL CEFN ON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2538
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2539
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2540
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2541
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2542
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2543
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2544
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2545
23a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2546
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2547
HEOL ST DENYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2548
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2549
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2550
GRAIG VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2551
THE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2552
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2553
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2554
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2555
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2556
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2557
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2558
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2559
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2560
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2561
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2562
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2563
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2564
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2565
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2566
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2567
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2568
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2569
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2570
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2571
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2572
MILL PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2573
ROWAN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2574
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2575
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2576
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2577
COPPINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2578
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2579
CHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2580
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2581
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2582
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2583
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2584
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2585
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2586
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2587
24a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2588
Myrtle Grove

AutoCAD SHX Text_2589
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2590
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2591
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2592
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2593
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2594
MILLWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2595
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2596
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2597
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2598
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2599
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2600
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2601
(um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2602
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2603
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2604
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2605
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2606
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2607
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2608
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2609
LARCH GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2610
TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2611
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2612
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2613
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2614
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2615
MILLWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2616
LONG HOUSE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2617
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2618
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2619
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2620
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2621
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2622
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2623
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2624
RIDGEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2625
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2626
THE OAKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2627
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2628
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2629
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2630
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2631
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2632
23.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2633
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2634
Rising

AutoCAD SHX Text_2635
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2636
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_2637
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2638
Bollards

AutoCAD SHX Text_2639
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2640
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2641
Nant Fawr Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2642
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2643
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2644
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2645
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_2646
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2647
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2648
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2649
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2650
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2651
Ty Celyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2652
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2653
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2654
241

AutoCAD SHX Text_2655
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2656
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2657
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2658
Llanishen Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_2659
Christchurch

AutoCAD SHX Text_2660
24.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2661
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_2662
23.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2663
24.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2664
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2665
Nant-fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2666
24.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2667
LLANDENNIS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2668
1 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2669
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2670
218

AutoCAD SHX Text_2671
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2672
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2673
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2674
Redwick

AutoCAD SHX Text_2675
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2676
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2677
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2678
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2679
LLANDENNIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2680
Presbyterian

AutoCAD SHX Text_2681
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2682
Park End

AutoCAD SHX Text_2683
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2684
END COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2685
24.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2686
RHYD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2687
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2688
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2689
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2690
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2691
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2692
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2693
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2694
LLANDENNIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2695
Ffynnon

AutoCAD SHX Text_2696
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2697
Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_2698
l4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2699
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2700
30.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2701
HEOL ESGYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2702
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2703
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2704
27.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2705
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2706
Nant-fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2707
32.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2708
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2709
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2710
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2711
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2712
(Roath Park)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2713
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2714
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2715
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2716
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2717
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_2718
25.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2719
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2720
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2721
Youth

AutoCAD SHX Text_2722
Nant-fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2723
DAN-YR-HEOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2724
26.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2725
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2726
28.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2727
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2728
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2729
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2730
Rivelin

AutoCAD SHX Text_2731
Aylward

AutoCAD SHX Text_2732
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2733
Llandennie

AutoCAD SHX Text_2734
26.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2735
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_2736
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2737
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2738
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2739
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2740
PARK END LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2741
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2742
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2743
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2744
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2745
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2746
-Y-PENAU ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2747
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2748
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2749
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2750
Rosedene

AutoCAD SHX Text_2751
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2752
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2753
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2754
Scout Hut

AutoCAD SHX Text_2755
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2756
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2757
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2758
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2759
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2760
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2761
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_2762
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2763
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_2764
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_2765
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2766
Tennis Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_2767
UA & C Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2768
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2769
L Twrs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2770
Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2771
Craig Llysfaen

AutoCAD SHX Text_2772
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2773
Nant Fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2774
L Twrs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2775
Tennis

AutoCAD SHX Text_2776
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2777
L Twrs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2778
L Twrs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2779
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2780
Nant Fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2781
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2782
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2783
Nant Fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2784
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2785
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2786
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2787
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2788
GRAIG ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2789
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_2790
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_2791
Nant Fawr House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2792
Caerphilly Tunnel

AutoCAD SHX Text_2793
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2794
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_2795
Nant-tydraw-fach

AutoCAD SHX Text_2796
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2797
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2798
Co Const, Asly Const, Asly ER,

AutoCAD SHX Text_2799
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2800
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_2801
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_2802
0.91m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2803
SR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2804
Asly ER, UA & C Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2805
0.91m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2806
Co Const, Asly Const,

AutoCAD SHX Text_2807
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2808
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2809
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_2810
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2811
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_2812
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_2813
100.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2814
MP 5.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2815
Nant-tydraw-fach

AutoCAD SHX Text_2816
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_2817
Channel View Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_2818
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2819
Nant-

AutoCAD SHX Text_2820
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2821
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_2822
255.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2823
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_2824
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2825
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2826
192.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2827
152.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2828
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2829
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2830
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_2831
Brynhill

AutoCAD SHX Text_2832
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2833
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_2834
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2835
124.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2836
Springmeadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_2837
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2838
Pant Teg Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_2839
237.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2840
170.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2841
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2842
181.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2843
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2844
Tyn-y-graig

AutoCAD SHX Text_2845
140.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2846
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2847
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2848
155.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2849
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2850
Ty Mawr Arms

AutoCAD SHX Text_2851
Wern Fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2852
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2853
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_2854
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2855
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2856
(Covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2857
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2858
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_2859
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2860
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_2861
GRAIG ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2862
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2863
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2864
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_2865
220.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2866
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2867
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2868
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2869
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2870
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_2871
171.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2872
Mount Pleasant

AutoCAD SHX Text_2873
Nant Fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2874
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2875
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2876
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_2877
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2878
Fish

AutoCAD SHX Text_2879
148.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2880
Springs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2881
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2882
Sluices

AutoCAD SHX Text_2883
Lime Kiln

AutoCAD SHX Text_2884
Ty'n-y-graig-fach

AutoCAD SHX Text_2885
Windylaw

AutoCAD SHX Text_2886
Derllwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2887
Craig Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2888
Sluices

AutoCAD SHX Text_2889
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2890
Bryn Hyfryd

AutoCAD SHX Text_2891
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2892
Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_2893
Cattle

AutoCAD SHX Text_2894
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_2895
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2896
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2897
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2898
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_2899
Coed Tranch-yr-hebog

AutoCAD SHX Text_2900
Nant Transhyrhebog

AutoCAD SHX Text_2901
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_2902
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2903
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2904
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_2905
Transh yr Hebog

AutoCAD SHX Text_2906
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_2907
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2908
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2909
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2910
Cefn-on Halt

AutoCAD SHX Text_2911
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2912
121.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2913
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2914
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2915
Cefn Onn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2916
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2917
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2918
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2919
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2920
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2921
Nant Fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2922
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_2923
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2924
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2925
115.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2926
Air Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_2927
Nant Transhyrhebog

AutoCAD SHX Text_2928
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2929
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2930
Air Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_2931
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2932
Coed Transh yr Hebog

AutoCAD SHX Text_2933
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2934
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2935
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_2936
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2937
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2938
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2939
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2940
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_2941
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2942
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2943
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2944
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2945
Tennis

AutoCAD SHX Text_2946
Wern-fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2947
Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2948
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_2949
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2950
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2951
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2952
Spr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2953
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2954
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2955
Mast (Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2956
Pumping Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_2957
Craig-y-Nos

AutoCAD SHX Text_2958
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_2959
Pumping Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_2960
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2961
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2962
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_2963
Langdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_2964
Woodlands

AutoCAD SHX Text_2965
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2966
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2967
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2968
Sunridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2969
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2970
Cherry Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_2971
Pine Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_2972
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2973
Yew Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_2974
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_2975
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2976
Valve House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2977
(covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2978
110.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2979
153.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2980
Mount Pleasant

AutoCAD SHX Text_2981
Willsden

AutoCAD SHX Text_2982
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_2983
Coedlan

AutoCAD SHX Text_2984
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2985
Woodhill

AutoCAD SHX Text_2986
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2987
98.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2988
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2989
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2990
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2991
Pant-mawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2992
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_2993
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2994
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2995
PANTMAWR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2996
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2997
WENALLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2998
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2999
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_3000
CAE'R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3001
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3002
Hollybanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_3003
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3004
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3005
ONN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3006
LLWYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3007
Mortuary Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_3008
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3009
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3010
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3011
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_3012
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3013
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3014
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_3015
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_3016
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_3017
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_3018
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_3019
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_3020
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_3021
Laurals

AutoCAD SHX Text_3022
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3023
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3024
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3025
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3026
Aust

AutoCAD SHX Text_3027
Thonock

AutoCAD SHX Text_3028
Fairfield

AutoCAD SHX Text_3029
Sunnybank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3030
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_3031
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3032
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_3033
173

AutoCAD SHX Text_3034
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3035
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3036
Glenside

AutoCAD SHX Text_3037
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3038
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3039
80.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3040
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3041
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3042
76.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3043
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3044
64.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3045
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3046
68.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3047
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_3048
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3049
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_3050
155

AutoCAD SHX Text_3051
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3052
PANTMAWR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3053
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3054
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3055
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3056
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3057
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3058
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3059
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3060
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3061
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3062
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3063
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3064
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_3065
LLWYD COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_3066
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3067
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3068
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_3069
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3070
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3071
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3072
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3073
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3074
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3075
DAN Y GRAIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_3076
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3077
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3078
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3079
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3080
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3081
13 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3082
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3083
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3084
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3085
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3086
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3087
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3088
64c

AutoCAD SHX Text_3089
BRYN ADAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_3090
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3091
CAE'R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3092
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3093
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3094
MAES YR HAF

AutoCAD SHX Text_3095
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3096
64a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3097
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_3098
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_3099
TYLA TEG

AutoCAD SHX Text_3100
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3101
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3102
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3103
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_3104
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_3105
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3106
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3107
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3108
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3109
HEOL FFYNNON WEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3110
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3111
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_3112
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3113
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3114
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3115
CAER WENALLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3116
ARDWYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3117
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3118
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3119
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3120
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_3121
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3122
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3123
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3124
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3125
54.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3126
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3127
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3128
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_3129
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3130
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_3131
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3132
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3133
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3134
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3135
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3136
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3137
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3138
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3139
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3140
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3141
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3142
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3143
ARDWYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3144
CEIRIOG

AutoCAD SHX Text_3145
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3146
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_3147
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3148
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3149
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3150
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3151
ALLT WEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3152
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3153
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3154
LISNAGARVEY COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3155
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3156
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_3157
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3158
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3159
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3160
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3161
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3162
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3163
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_3164
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3165
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3166
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3167
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3168
Pantmawr Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3169
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_3170
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3171
WENALLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3172
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3173
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3174
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3175
49.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3176
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3177
ARDWYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3178
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3179
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3180
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3181
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_3182
53.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3183
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3184
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3185
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3186
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3187
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3188
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_3189
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3190
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3191
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3192
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_3193
64b

AutoCAD SHX Text_3194
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3195
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_3196
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_3197
HAUL FRYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3198
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_3199
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3200
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3201
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3202
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3203
PANTMAWR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3204
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_3205
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_3206
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3207
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_3208
Nestleton

AutoCAD SHX Text_3209
PANTMAWR

AutoCAD SHX Text_3210
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3211
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3212
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3213
75a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3214
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_3215
Tan y Rhiw

AutoCAD SHX Text_3216
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3217
Ty Mynydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_3218
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3219
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_3220
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3221
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3222
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_3223
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3224
43.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3225
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3226
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3227
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3228
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3229
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3230
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3231
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3232
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3233
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3234
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3235
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3236
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3237
56a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3238
HOLLYBUSH ESTATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3239
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_3240
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3241
1c

AutoCAD SHX Text_3242
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3243
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3244
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3245
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_3246
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3247
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3248
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3249
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3250
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3251
23a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3252
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_3253
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_3254
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3255
TY CELYN MEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3256
Tircelyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_3257
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3258
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3259
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3260
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3261
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3262
CLOS COED HIR

AutoCAD SHX Text_3263
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3264
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3265
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3266
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3267
Pentwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_3268
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3269
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3270
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3271
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3272
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3273
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_3274
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3275
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_3276
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_3277
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_3278
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3279
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_3280
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3281
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_3282
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3283
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3284
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3285
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3286
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3287
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3288
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3289
MEADOWGATE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3290
40.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3291
GLAS-Y-PANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3292
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3293
HEOL PANTYCELYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3294
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3295
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3296
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3297
PANTMAWR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3298
50.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3299
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3300
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3301
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3302
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3303
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3304
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3305
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3306
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3307
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3308
43.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3309
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3310
TY CELYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3311
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3312
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_3313
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3314
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3315
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3316
CORYTON RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3317
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3318
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3319
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3320
46.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3321
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3322
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3323
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3324
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3325
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3326
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3327
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_3328
SPRINGHURST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3329
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3330
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3331
47.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3332
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3333
Club House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3334
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3335
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3336
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3337
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3338
Flats

AutoCAD SHX Text_3339
42.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3340
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3341
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3342
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3343
GERDDI

AutoCAD SHX Text_3344
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_3345
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3346
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3347
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3348
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3349
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3350
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3351
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3352
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3353
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3354
41.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3355
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_3356
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3357
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3358
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3359
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3360
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3361
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3362
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3363
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3364
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_3365
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3366
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3367
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3368
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3369
l

AutoCAD SHX Text_3370
HEOL PENTWYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3371
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3372
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3373
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3374
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_3375
Llwyncelyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_3376
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_3377
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3378
HEOL PANT Y RHYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3379
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3380
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_3381
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3382
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3383
Llwyn-celyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_3384
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3385
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3386
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3387
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3388
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3389
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_3390
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_3391
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3392
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_3393
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3394
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3395
NORTHERN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3396
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3397
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3398
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3399
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3400
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3401
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3402
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3403
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3404
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3405
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3406
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_3407
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_3408
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3409
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3410
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3411
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3412
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3413
PARK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3414
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3415
PARK CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3416
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3417
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3418
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3419
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_3420
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3421
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3422
Coryton Halt

AutoCAD SHX Text_3423
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3424
45.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3425
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_3426
LON-Y-CELYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3427
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3428
MP 2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3429
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_3430
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_3431
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3432
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3433
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3434
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3435
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3436
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_3437
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3438
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3439
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_3440
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3441
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3442
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3443
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3444
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3445
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_3446
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3447
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_3448
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_3449
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3450
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3451
CORYTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_3452
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3453
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3454
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3455
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3456
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3457
Stone House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3458
Swn-y-Nant

AutoCAD SHX Text_3459
Electricity Sub Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_3460
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_3461
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3462
Baytree

AutoCAD SHX Text_3463
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_3464
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_3465
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_3466
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_3467
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3468
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3469
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3470
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3471
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3472
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3473
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3474
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3475
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3476
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3477
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3478
FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3479
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3480
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3481
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3482
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3483
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3484
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3485
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3486
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3487
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3488
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3489
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3490
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3491
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3492
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_3493
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3494
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3495
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3496
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3497
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3498
ANGELICA WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3499
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3500
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3501
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3502
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3503
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3504
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3505
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3506
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3507
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3508
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3509
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3510
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3511
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3512
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3513
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3514
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3515
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3516
GOWAN COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3517
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_3518
BASSETTS FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3519
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3520
5 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3521
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3522
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3523
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3524
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_3525
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3526
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3527
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3528
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3529
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3530
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3531
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_3532
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3533
LAKE ROAD NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3534
28.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3535
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3536
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3537
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_3538
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3539
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3540
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_3541
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_3542
HEATH HALT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3543
37.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3544
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3545
36.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3546
CRYSTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3547
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3548
34.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3549
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3550
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_3551
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_3552
HEATH PARK AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3553
244

AutoCAD SHX Text_3554
179

AutoCAD SHX Text_3555
220

AutoCAD SHX Text_3556
39.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3557
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3558
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_3559
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_3560
260

AutoCAD SHX Text_3561
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_3562
CEFN CARNAU ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3563
234

AutoCAD SHX Text_3564
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_3565
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3566
252

AutoCAD SHX Text_3567
189

AutoCAD SHX Text_3568
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_3569
201

AutoCAD SHX Text_3570
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_3571
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3572
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_3573
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3574
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_3575
39.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3576
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_3577
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_3578
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_3579
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3580
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_3581
232

AutoCAD SHX Text_3582
HEATHWOOD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3583
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3584
236

AutoCAD SHX Text_3585
Heath High Level (Station)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3586
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3587
Heath Low Level Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_3588
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3589
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_3590
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_3591
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_3592
Boro Const, Asly Const & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_3593
Outfall

AutoCAD SHX Text_3594
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3595
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_3596
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_3597
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3598
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_3599
HAMPTON CRESCENT EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3600
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_3601
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_3602
FOREST OAK CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3603
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3604
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3605
ALDERBROOK

AutoCAD SHX Text_3606
Outlet

AutoCAD SHX Text_3607
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3608
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3609
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3610
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_3611
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3612
WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_3613
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3614
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3615
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3616
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3617
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3618
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3619
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3620
Coed-ty-llwyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_3621
Sloping Masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_3622
Nant-fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_3623
Stepping Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_3624
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3625
Sloping Masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_3626
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_3627
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_3628
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_3629
Sloping Masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_3630
Sloping Masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_3631
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_3632
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_3633
45.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3634
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3635
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_3636
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3637
Corpus Christi Catholic

AutoCAD SHX Text_3638
High School

AutoCAD SHX Text_3639
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_3640
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_3641
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3642
Balancing Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3643
Sewage

AutoCAD SHX Text_3644
Ppg Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3645
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_3646
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_3647
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3648
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3649
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_3650
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_3651
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3652
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3653
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3654
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3655
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3656
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3657
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_3658
Briwnant

AutoCAD SHX Text_3659
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3660
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3661
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3662
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3663
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3664
Pp

AutoCAD SHX Text_3665
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3666
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_3667
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_3668
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3669
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3670
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3671
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3672
WENALLT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3673
WENALLT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3674
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3675
WENALLT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3676
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3677
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_3678
Briwnantisaf

AutoCAD SHX Text_3679
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3680
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3681
Fort

AutoCAD SHX Text_3682
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3683
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_3684
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_3685
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3686
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_3687
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3688
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3689
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3690
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3691
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3692
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3693
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3694
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3695
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3696
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3697
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3698
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_3699
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3700
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3701
218.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3702
210.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3703
Twynau

AutoCAD SHX Text_3704
Radio Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_3705
Post Office

AutoCAD SHX Text_3706
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3707
220.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3708
Cwm Nofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_3709
Wenallt

AutoCAD SHX Text_3710
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_3711
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_3712
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3713
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3714
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3715
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3716
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3717
Graig

AutoCAD SHX Text_3718
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3719
Briwnant-fach

AutoCAD SHX Text_3720
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3721
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3722
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3723
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3724
Briwnant-fach

AutoCAD SHX Text_3725
The Beech Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_3726
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3727
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3728
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3729
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3730
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3731
Briwnant

AutoCAD SHX Text_3732
146.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3733
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3734
Wenallt

AutoCAD SHX Text_3735
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3736
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3737
Cesail y Bryn

AutoCAD SHX Text_3738
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_3739
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_3740
Coed-y-wenallt

AutoCAD SHX Text_3741
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_3742
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_3743
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_3744
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3745
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_3746
Cwm Nofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_3747
104.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3748
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3749
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_3750
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3751
Reservoir House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3752
158.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3753
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3754
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3755
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3756
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3757
Wenallt

AutoCAD SHX Text_3758
Nant Cwmnofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_3759
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3760
Cwm Nofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_3761
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3762
Kiln

AutoCAD SHX Text_3763
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3764
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3765
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3766
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3767
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3768
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3769
Coed-y-wenallt

AutoCAD SHX Text_3770
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3771
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3772
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3773
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3774
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_3775
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3776
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3777
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3778
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3779
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3780
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3781
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3782
Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_3783
137.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3784
Coach House

AutoCAD SHX Text_3785
137.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3786
The Staddles

AutoCAD SHX Text_3787
Nant Cwmnofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_3788
129.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3789
Pant-mawr Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_3790
Rhos-y-waun

AutoCAD SHX Text_3791
Cwm Nofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_3792
Hafod Wen

AutoCAD SHX Text_3793
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3794
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_3795
Gwynion

AutoCAD SHX Text_3796
213.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3797
152A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3798
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3799
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3800
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3801
Yew Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_3802
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3803
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3804
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_3805
Craig Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_3806
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3807
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3808
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3809
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_3810
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3811
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3812
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3813
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3814
85.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3815
Felin

AutoCAD SHX Text_3816
CEFN MABLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_3817
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3818
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_3819
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_3820
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_3821
RUDRY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3822
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3823
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_3824
Nant y Felin

AutoCAD SHX Text_3825
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3826
Moorlynch

AutoCAD SHX Text_3827
Nant

AutoCAD SHX Text_3828
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_3829
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3830
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3831
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3832
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_3833
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_3834
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_3835
124.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3836
Stables

AutoCAD SHX Text_3837
168b

AutoCAD SHX Text_3838
35a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3839
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_3840
CRUNDALE CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3841
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3842
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3843
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3844
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_3845
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3846
4.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3847
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_3848
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3849
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_3850
221

AutoCAD SHX Text_3851
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3852
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3853
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_3854
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3855
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_3856
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3857
FISHGUARD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3858
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3859
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_3860
47a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3861
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3862
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_3863
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3864
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_3865
FISHGUARD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3866
HEOL GWYNDAF

AutoCAD SHX Text_3867
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_3868
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3869
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3870
251

AutoCAD SHX Text_3871
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3872
ST MARTINS CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3873
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3874
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_3875
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_3876
249a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3877
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_3878
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_3879
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3880
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3881
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_3882
Coedycaeau

AutoCAD SHX Text_3883
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3884
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3885
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3886
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_3887
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3888
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_3889
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3890
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_3891
271

AutoCAD SHX Text_3892
186

AutoCAD SHX Text_3893
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3894
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3895
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3896
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_3897
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3898
261

AutoCAD SHX Text_3899
71a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3900
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3901
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3902
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3903
233

AutoCAD SHX Text_3904
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3905
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_3906
ST DOGMAEL'S AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3907
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3908
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3909
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_3910
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3911
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_3912
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3913
235

AutoCAD SHX Text_3914
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3915
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3916
275

AutoCAD SHX Text_3917
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3918
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3919
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3920
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3921
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3922
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3923
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3924
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3925
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_3926
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_3927
Sports Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_3928
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_3929
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_3930
TON-YR-YWEN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3931
MAES-Y-COED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_3932
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3933
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3934
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3935
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_3936
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3937
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_3938
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_3939
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3940
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3941
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3942
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_3943
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_3944
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3945
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_3946
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3947
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3948
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3949
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3950
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_3951
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3952
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3953
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_3954
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3955
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3956
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3957
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3958
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_3959
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3960
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_3961
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3962
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_3963
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3964
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_3965
HEOL DEWI SANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3966
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3967
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3968
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3969
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_3970
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3971
MILESTONE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3972
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3973
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3974
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_3975
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_3976
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_3977
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_3978
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3979
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_3980
JUBILEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3981
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_3982
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3983
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3984
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_3985
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3986
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_3987
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_3988
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_3989
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_3990
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_3991
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3992
ARMOURY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3993
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_3994
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_3995
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_3996
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3997
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3998
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3999
Tesco House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4000
Bakery

AutoCAD SHX Text_4001
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4002
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4003
38.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4004
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4005
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4006
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4007
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_4008
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_4009
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4010
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4011
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4012
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_4013
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_4014
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4015
128b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4016
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4017
35.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4018
36.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4019
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4020
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4021
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4022
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_4023
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_4024
HEATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4025
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4026
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4027
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_4028
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_4029
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4030
ST ASAPH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4031
36.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4032
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_4033
36.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4034
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4035
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_4036
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4037
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_4038
ST BRIGID ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4039
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4040
128a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4041
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4042
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4043
Bakery

AutoCAD SHX Text_4044
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4045
36.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4046
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_4047
37.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4048
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_4049
MAES-Y-COED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4050
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4051
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4052
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4053
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_4054
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4055
38.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4056
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4057
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4058
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_4059
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4060
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4061
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4062
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4063
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4064
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4065
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4066
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4067
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4068
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4069
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4070
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4071
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_4072
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4073
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4074
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4075
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4076
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4077
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_4078
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4079
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4080
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4081
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4082
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4083
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4084
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4085
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4086
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4087
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4088
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4089
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4090
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4091
ST EDWEN GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4092
ST INA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4093
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4094
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4095
38.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4096
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4097
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4098
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4099
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_4100
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4101
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4102
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4103
ST EDWEN GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4104
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_4105
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4106
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4107
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4108
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4109
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4110
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4111
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4112
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4113
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4114
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4115
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4116
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4117
HEOL POWIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4118
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4119
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4120
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4121
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4122
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4123
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4124
HEOL GWENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4125
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4126
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4127
HEOL GWYNEDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4128
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4129
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4130
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4131
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4132
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4133
HEOL DYFED

AutoCAD SHX Text_4134
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4135
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4136
Silo

AutoCAD SHX Text_4137
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4138
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4139
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_4140
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4141
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_4142
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4143
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4144
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_4145
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4146
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_4147
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4148
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4149
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4150
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4151
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_4152
38.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4153
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4154
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4155
St Fabians

AutoCAD SHX Text_4156
Ty Gwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_4157
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_4158
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_4159
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4160
Sewage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4161
Ppg Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4162
332

AutoCAD SHX Text_4163
286

AutoCAD SHX Text_4164
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4165
31to36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4166
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4167
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4168
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4169
332a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4170
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4171
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4172
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4173
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4174
Phoenix Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_4175
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4176
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4177
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4178
BIRCHGROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4179
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4180
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4181
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4182
256

AutoCAD SHX Text_4183
258

AutoCAD SHX Text_4184
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4185
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4186
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4187
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4188
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4189
1 to 19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4190
WAUN DDYFAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4191
10 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4192
333

AutoCAD SHX Text_4193
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4194
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4195
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4196
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_4197
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4198
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4199
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4200
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4201
86 to 102

AutoCAD SHX Text_4202
28 to 44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4203
66 to 82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4204
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_4205
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4206
50 to 66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4207
47 to 55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4208
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4209
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4210
19 to 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4211
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4212
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4213
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4214
331a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4215
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4216
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4217
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4218
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4219
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4220
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4221
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4222
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4223
HEOL MYNYDD BYCHAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_4224
9a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4225
1 to 46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4226
Birch Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4227
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4228
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_4229
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4230
24 to 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4231
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4232
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4233
2 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4234
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4235
6 to 22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4236
PHOENIX WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4237
LATTEYS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4238
THREIPLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4239
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4240
2 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4241
261

AutoCAD SHX Text_4242
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4243
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4244
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4245
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4246
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4247
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4248
304a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4249
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4250
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4251
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4252
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4253
PHILIP CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4254
381

AutoCAD SHX Text_4255
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4256
25 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4257
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4258
383

AutoCAD SHX Text_4259
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4260
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4261
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4262
352

AutoCAD SHX Text_4263
334

AutoCAD SHX Text_4264
345

AutoCAD SHX Text_4265
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_4266
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4267
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4268
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4269
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_4270
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4271
40.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4272
Lilleshall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4273
304

AutoCAD SHX Text_4274
WAUN-FAWR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4275
CAERPHILLY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4276
39.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4277
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4278
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4279
TY WERN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4280
314

AutoCAD SHX Text_4281
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4282
363

AutoCAD SHX Text_4283
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4284
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4285
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4286
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4287
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4288
359

AutoCAD SHX Text_4289
332b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4290
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4291
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4292
FAIRFAX ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4293
MAVIS GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4294
319

AutoCAD SHX Text_4295
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_4296
The Gables

AutoCAD SHX Text_4297
37.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4298
24a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4299
24b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4300
The Birches

AutoCAD SHX Text_4301
36.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4302
253

AutoCAD SHX Text_4303
Rusticana

AutoCAD SHX Text_4304
270

AutoCAD SHX Text_4305
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4306
DRYBURGH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4307
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4308
242

AutoCAD SHX Text_4309
232

AutoCAD SHX Text_4310
252

AutoCAD SHX Text_4311
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4312
259

AutoCAD SHX Text_4313
230

AutoCAD SHX Text_4314
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4315
282

AutoCAD SHX Text_4316
249

AutoCAD SHX Text_4317
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4318
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4319
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4320
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_4321
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4322
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4323
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4324
223

AutoCAD SHX Text_4325
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4326
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4327
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4328
24c

AutoCAD SHX Text_4329
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4330
THORNBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4331
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4332
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4333
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4334
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_4335
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4336
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_4337
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4338
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4339
260

AutoCAD SHX Text_4340
237

AutoCAD SHX Text_4341
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_4342
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4343
Westlyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_4344
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4345
331

AutoCAD SHX Text_4346
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4347
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4348
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4349
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4350
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_4351
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_4352
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4353
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4354
Bay Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_4355
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4356
Ashgrove House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4357
Wheatham

AutoCAD SHX Text_4358
HOLLY GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4359
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4360
ST DENYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4361
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_4362
Alders

AutoCAD SHX Text_4363
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4364
Cherry Orchard Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4365
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4366
MOUNT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4367
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4368
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4369
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4370
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4371
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4372
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4373
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4374
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4375
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4376
CHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4377
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4378
ORCHARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4379
CHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4380
ORCHARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4381
PADDOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4382
THE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4383
MILLBROOK PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_4384
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_4385
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4386
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4387
Orchard

AutoCAD SHX Text_4388
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4389
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_4390
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4391
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4392
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4393
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4394
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4395
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4396
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4397
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4398
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4399
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4400
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4401
96.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4402
Cherry

AutoCAD SHX Text_4403
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4404
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_4405
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4406
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4407
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4408
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4409
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4410
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4411
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4412
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4413
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4414
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4415
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4416
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_4417
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4418
99.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4419
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4420
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4421
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4422
LODGE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4423
JADE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4424
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4425
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4426
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4427
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4428
Tair

AutoCAD SHX Text_4429
105.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4430
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4431
CARDINAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4432
Ywen

AutoCAD SHX Text_4433
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4434
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4435
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4436
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4437
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4438
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4439
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4440
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4441
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4442
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4443
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4444
106.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4445
BLOSSOM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4446
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4447
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4448
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4449
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4450
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4451
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4452
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4453
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4454
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4455
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4456
CHERRY ORCHARD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4457
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4458
CORNFLOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_4459
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4460
SABLE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4461
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4462
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4463
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4464
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4465
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4466
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4467
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4468
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4469
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4470
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4471
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4472
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4473
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4474
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4475
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4476
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4477
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4478
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4479
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4480
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4481
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4482
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4483
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4484
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4485
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4486
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4487
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4488
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4489
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4490
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4491
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4492
CHURCHILL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4493
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4494
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4495
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4496
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4497
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4498
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4499
Yellow-wells

AutoCAD SHX Text_4500
THE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4501
The Stables

AutoCAD SHX Text_4502
Meadows

AutoCAD SHX Text_4503
Saffron

AutoCAD SHX Text_4504
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_4505
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4506
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4507
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4508
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_4509
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4510
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4511
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4512
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4513
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4514
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4515
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4516
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_4517
Nant Fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_4518
ORCHARD COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4519
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_4520
The Firs

AutoCAD SHX Text_4521
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_4522
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_4523
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4524
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4525
Sewage Ppg Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4526
Gas

AutoCAD SHX Text_4527
Distribution

AutoCAD SHX Text_4528
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_4529
Sewage Ppg Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4530
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4531
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4532
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4533
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_4534
(Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4535
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_4536
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4537
ROUNDEL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4538
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_4539
13 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4540
5 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4541
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4542
Caedelyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_4543
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4544
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_4545
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4546
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4547
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4548
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4549
CLOS LLYSFAEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_4550
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4551
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4552
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4553
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4554
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4555
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4556
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4557
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4558
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4559
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4560
LLANDEGFEDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4561
GVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4562
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_4563
ALWEN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4564
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4565
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4566
STELLA CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4567
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_4568
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4569
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4570
AMBERHEART DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4571
BRIANNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4572
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4573
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4574
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4575
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4576
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4577
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4578
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4579
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4580
BRENIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_4581
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4582
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4583
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4584
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4585
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4586
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4587
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4588
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4589
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4590
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4591
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4592
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4593
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4594
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4595
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4596
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4597
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4598
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4599
Bryncoed

AutoCAD SHX Text_4600
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4601
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4602
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4603
CHERRY ORCHARD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4604
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_4605
89.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4606
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4607
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4608
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4609
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4610
Old Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4611
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4612
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4613
Holmes View

AutoCAD SHX Text_4614
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_4615
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4616
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4617
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4618
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4619
Felindre Fach

AutoCAD SHX Text_4620
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4621
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_4622
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4623
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4624
Llysfaen a Draenen

AutoCAD SHX Text_4625
Pen-y-Graig /

AutoCAD SHX Text_4626
Lisvane and Thornhill

AutoCAD SHX Text_4627
Cherry Orchard Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4628
Haul Fryn

AutoCAD SHX Text_4629
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_4630
Cotwolds

AutoCAD SHX Text_4631
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4632
Malvern

AutoCAD SHX Text_4633
Chiltern

AutoCAD SHX Text_4634
35.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4635
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4636
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_4637
Velindre Cancer Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_4638
KELSTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4639
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4640
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4641
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4642
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4643
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4644
VELINDRE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4645
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4646
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_4647
34.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4648
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_4649
Methodist Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_4650
Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_4651
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4652
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4653
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4654
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4655
War Meml

AutoCAD SHX Text_4656
PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4657
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4658
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4659
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_4660
73 to 115

AutoCAD SHX Text_4661
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_4662
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_4663
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4664
Glendower Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4665
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4666
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4667
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4668
VELINDRE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4669
36.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4670
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4671
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4672
1 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4673
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4674
Heol Don

AutoCAD SHX Text_4675
35.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4676
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4677
1 to 72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4678
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_4679
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4680
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_4681
Velindre Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_4682
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4683
53a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4684
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4685
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4686
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4687
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_4688
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_4689
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_4690
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4691
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_4692
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4693
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4694
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_4695
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4696
Long Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_4697
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4698
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4699
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_4700
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_4701
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_4702
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_4703
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4704
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_4705
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_4706
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4707
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_4708
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_4709
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_4710
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4711
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_4712
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_4713
Coryton

AutoCAD SHX Text_4714
PENDWYALLT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4715
Hotel and Leisure Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_4716
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4717
60.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4718
1 to 95

AutoCAD SHX Text_4719
Larch House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4720
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4721
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4722
Locks

AutoCAD SHX Text_4723
Disused

AutoCAD SHX Text_4724
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_4725
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4726
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4727
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4728
Sycamore House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4729
Beech House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4730
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_4731
School House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4732
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4733
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_4734
Forest Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_4735
1 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4736
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4737
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4738
(Nature Reserve)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4739
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4740
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4741
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4742
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4743
GLAS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4744
63 to 79

AutoCAD SHX Text_4745
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_4746
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4747
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4748
WATKINS SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4749
44.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4750
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4751
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_4752
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4753
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4754
MOSTYN SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4755
ASHBOURN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4756
39 to 61

AutoCAD SHX Text_4757
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4758
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4759
145 to 161

AutoCAD SHX Text_4760
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4761
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_4762
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_4763
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4764
414

AutoCAD SHX Text_4765
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4766
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4767
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_4768
1 to 53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4769
81 to 109

AutoCAD SHX Text_4770
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4771
2 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4772
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4773
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4774
197a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4775
197

AutoCAD SHX Text_4776
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_4777
221

AutoCAD SHX Text_4778
ASHBOURN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4779
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_4780
239

AutoCAD SHX Text_4781
1 to 37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4782
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_4783
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4784
283

AutoCAD SHX Text_4785
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4786
227

AutoCAD SHX Text_4787
TATHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4788
TATHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4789
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4790
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4791
30a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4792
TATHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4793
40a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4794
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4795
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4796
TATHAM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4797
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4798
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4799
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_4800
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4801
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4802
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4803
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4804
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4805
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4806
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4807
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_4808
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4809
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_4810
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4811
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4812
241 to 277

AutoCAD SHX Text_4813
127 to 143

AutoCAD SHX Text_4814
169 to 195

AutoCAD SHX Text_4815
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4816
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_4817
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_4818
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_4819
COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_4820
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4821
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4822
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_4823
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_4824
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_4825
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_4826
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_4827
426

AutoCAD SHX Text_4828
416-458

AutoCAD SHX Text_4829
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_4830
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_4831
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4832
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4833
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4834
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4835
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_4836
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4837
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4838
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4839
25 to 41

AutoCAD SHX Text_4840
55 to 71

AutoCAD SHX Text_4841
Quadrant Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_4842
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4843
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4844
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4845
Government Offices

AutoCAD SHX Text_4846
46.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4847
PARC TY GLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4848
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4849
41.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4850
PARC TY GLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4851
44.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4852
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4853
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4854
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4855
493

AutoCAD SHX Text_4856
463

AutoCAD SHX Text_4857
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4858
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4859
461

AutoCAD SHX Text_4860
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4861
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_4862
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4863
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4864
GLAS EFAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4865
41.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4866
42.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4867
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4868
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_4869
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4870
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4871
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_4872
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4873
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_4874
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_4875
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4876
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4877
COED GLAS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4878
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4879
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_4880
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4881
43.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4882
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4883
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_4884
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_4885
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4886
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4887
CAERPHILLY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4888
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_4889
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4890
477

AutoCAD SHX Text_4891
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4892
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4893
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4894
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4895
43.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4896
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4897
451

AutoCAD SHX Text_4898
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4899
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4900
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4901
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4902
HEOL-YR-EFAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4903
PEN-Y-GROES AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4904
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4905
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4906
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_4907
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4908
Mast (Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4909
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_4910
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4911
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4912
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4913
43.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4914
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4915
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_4916
40.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4917
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4918
Cricket Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_4919
Cricket Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_4920
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4921
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_4922
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4923
Boro Const, Asly Const & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_4924
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_4925
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4926
STATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4927
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4928
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_4929
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4930
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_4931
KING'S AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4932
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_4933
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4934
SPs

AutoCAD SHX Text_4935
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_4936
Radyr Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_4937
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4938
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_4939
TCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4940
Picnic Site

AutoCAD SHX Text_4941
Conservation Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_4942
Forest Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_4943
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4944
Tel Ex

AutoCAD SHX Text_4945
Shingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_4946
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_4947
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4948
Picnic

AutoCAD SHX Text_4949
Moyclare

AutoCAD SHX Text_4950
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4951
THE GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_4952
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_4953
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_4954
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4955
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_4956
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4957
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4958
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4959
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_4960
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_4961
Sloping

AutoCAD SHX Text_4962
B 4262

AutoCAD SHX Text_4963
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_4964
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4965
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4966
THE UPLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4967
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4968
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4969
masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_4970
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4971
LONGWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4972
Harlech House

AutoCAD SHX Text_4973
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_4974
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4975
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4976
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4977
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_4978
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_4979
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_4980
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4981
TY NANT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_4982
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4983
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4984
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_4985
1c

AutoCAD SHX Text_4986
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_4987
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4988
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4989
Danybryn

AutoCAD SHX Text_4990
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4991
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4992
(Melingruffydd)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4993
Melingriffith

AutoCAD SHX Text_4994
Feeder

AutoCAD SHX Text_4995
Tow Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_4996
Tow Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_4997
FFORDD MORGANNWG

AutoCAD SHX Text_4998
Forest Glade

AutoCAD SHX Text_4999
Forest Glade

AutoCAD SHX Text_5000
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5001
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5002
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5003
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5004
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5005
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5006
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5007
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5008
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5009
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5010
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5011
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5012
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5013
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5014
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5015
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5016
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5017
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_5018
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5019
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5020
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_5021
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_5022
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5023
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5024
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5025
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5026
44.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5027
Glamorganshire Canal (disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5028
Sports Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_5029
Sewage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5030
Rugby Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_5031
River Taff

AutoCAD SHX Text_5032
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5033
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5034
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5035
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5036
Dismantled Tramway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5037
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5038
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5039
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5040
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5041
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5042
Co Const, Asly Const. UA, C & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5043
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5044
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5045
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5046
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5047
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5048
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5049
171.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5050
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5051
Beechtree

AutoCAD SHX Text_5052
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5053
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5054
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5055
Levels

AutoCAD SHX Text_5056
Nant y Brynau

AutoCAD SHX Text_5057
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5058
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5059
Coed-cae William Andrew

AutoCAD SHX Text_5060
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5061
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5062
Blue Pool

AutoCAD SHX Text_5063
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5064
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5065
HEOL-Y-FFOREST

AutoCAD SHX Text_5066
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5067
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_5068
Nant Llywydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_5069
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5070
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5071
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5072
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5073
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5074
120.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5075
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5076
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5077
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5078
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5079
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5080
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5081
Nant

AutoCAD SHX Text_5082
Nant y Brynau

AutoCAD SHX Text_5083
(Path and Cycleway)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5084
79.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5085
71.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5086
Ty  Nant Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5087
Co Const, Asly Const, UA & C Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5088
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5089
MP 1.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_5090
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5091
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5092
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5093
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5094
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5095
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5096
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5097
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5098
THE GRAYLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5099
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5100
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5101
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5102
217a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5103
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_5104
PORTHAMAL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5105
217

AutoCAD SHX Text_5106
207

AutoCAD SHX Text_5107
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_5108
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_5109
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5110
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5111
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5112
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5113
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5114
HEOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5115
Allotment

AutoCAD SHX Text_5116
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5117
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5118
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5119
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5120
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5121
228a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5122
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5123
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5124
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5125
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5126
228

AutoCAD SHX Text_5127
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5128
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5129
Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_5130
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5131
218

AutoCAD SHX Text_5132
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5133
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5134
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_5135
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5136
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5137
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5138
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5139
44.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5140
Rhiwbina (Station)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5141
LLANGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5142
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5143
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5144
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5145
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5146
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5147
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_5148
(TREFORGAN)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5149
MORGANSTOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5150
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5151
The Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_5152
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5153
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5154
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5155
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_5156
Valve

AutoCAD SHX Text_5157
Cycleway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5158
Boro Const, Asly Const

AutoCAD SHX Text_5159
Boro Const, Asly Const & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5160
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5161
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5162
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5163
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5164
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5165
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5166
Denley Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_5167
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5168
Horse Ride

AutoCAD SHX Text_5169
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5170
LONGWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5171
& ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5172
Sports Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_5173
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_5174
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5175
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5176
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_5177
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5178
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5179
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5180
Arms

AutoCAD SHX Text_5181
MERTHYR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5182
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5183
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5184
Tongwynlais

AutoCAD SHX Text_5185
61.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5186
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5187
(restored)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5188
Ivy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5189
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5190
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5191
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5192
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5193
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5194
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5195
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5196
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5197
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5198
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5199
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5200
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5201
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5202
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5203
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5204
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_5205
Ty Bedw

AutoCAD SHX Text_5206
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_5207
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5208
MILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5209
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5210
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5211
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5212
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5213
Dale

AutoCAD SHX Text_5214
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5215
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5216
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5217
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5218
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5219
MARKET

AutoCAD SHX Text_5220
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5221
Ivy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5222
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5223
Over

AutoCAD SHX Text_5224
South View

AutoCAD SHX Text_5225
43.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5226
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5227
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5228
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5229
Castell Coch

AutoCAD SHX Text_5230
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5231
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5232
Dene

AutoCAD SHX Text_5233
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_5234
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5235
Caewal

AutoCAD SHX Text_5236
PW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5237
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5238
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5239
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5240
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5241
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5242
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5243
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5244
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5245
TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5246
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5247
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5248
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5249
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5250
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5251
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5252
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5253
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5254
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5255
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5256
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_5257
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5258
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5259
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5260
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5261
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5262
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5263
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5264
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5265
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5266
A 470

AutoCAD SHX Text_5267
BIRCH HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5268
Track and Cycleway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5269
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5270
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5271
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5272
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5273
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5274
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_5275
A 470

AutoCAD SHX Text_5276
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5277
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5278
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5279
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5280
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5281
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5282
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5283
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5284
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_5285
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5286
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5287
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_5288
CROSS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_5289
Hermon

AutoCAD SHX Text_5290
HERMON HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5291
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_5292
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5293
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5294
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5295
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5296
Boothville

AutoCAD SHX Text_5297
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5298
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5299
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5300
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_5301
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5302
Track and

AutoCAD SHX Text_5303
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5304
MERTHYR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5305
Old Station House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5306
60.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5307
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_5308
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_5309
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_5310
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5311
IRON BRIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5312
The Retreat

AutoCAD SHX Text_5313
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5314
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_5315
Afon Taf / River Taff

AutoCAD SHX Text_5316
Afon Taf / River Taff

AutoCAD SHX Text_5317
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_5318
(covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5319
/ Canolfan Rheoli Traffig

AutoCAD SHX Text_5320
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_5321
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_5322
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_5323
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5324
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5325
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5326
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5327
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_5328
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_5329
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5330
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5331
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_5332
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5333
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_5334
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_5335
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5336
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5337
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5338
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5339
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5340
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5341
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5342
(um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5343
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5344
Greenmeadow Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_5345
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_5346
A 4054

AutoCAD SHX Text_5347
GREENMEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5348
Ty Isaf Stables

AutoCAD SHX Text_5349
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5350
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5351
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5352
Ty Isaf

AutoCAD SHX Text_5353
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5354
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5355
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5356
Tel P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5357
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_5358
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5359
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5360
NORTHERN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5361
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_5362
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_5363
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5364
Valve House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5365
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5366
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5367
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5368
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5369
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_5370
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5371
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5372
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5373
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5374
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5375
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5376
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5377
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5378
PANTGWYNLAIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5379
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5380
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5381
LARCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5382
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5383
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5384
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5385
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5386
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5387
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5388
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5389
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5390
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5391
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5392
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5393
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5394
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5395
GWYNLAIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5396
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5397
Greendale

AutoCAD SHX Text_5398
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5399
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_5400
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5401
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5402
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_5403
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5404
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5405
MALLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5406
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_5407
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_5408
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_5409
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_5410
PWLLHELYG

AutoCAD SHX Text_5411
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_5412
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5413
Paths

AutoCAD SHX Text_5414
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5415
CWM

AutoCAD SHX Text_5416
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5417
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5418
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5419
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_5420
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5421
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5422
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5423
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5424
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5425
Footbridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_5426
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5427
Manse

AutoCAD SHX Text_5428
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_5429
Mast (Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5430
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5431
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_5432
Ger Y Nant

AutoCAD SHX Text_5433
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_5434
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_5435
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_5436
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5437
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5438
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_5439
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5440
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5441
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5442
HEOL MABON

AutoCAD SHX Text_5443
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_5444
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5445
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5446
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5447
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_5448
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5449
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5450
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5451
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5452
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5453
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5454
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5455
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5456
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5457
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_5458
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_5459
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5460
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_5461
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_5462
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5463
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5464
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_5465
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5466
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5467
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5468
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5469
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_5470
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_5471
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5472
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_5473
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_5474
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_5475
RHIWBINA

AutoCAD SHX Text_5476
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_5477
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5478
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5479
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5480
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5481
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5482
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_5483
Ty Gwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_5484
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5485
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5486
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5487
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5488
126b

AutoCAD SHX Text_5489
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_5490
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_5491
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5492
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_5493
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5494
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5495
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5496
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_5497
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_5498
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_5499
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5500
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5501
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5502
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5503
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5504
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5505
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_5506
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5507
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5508
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5509
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5510
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5511
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_5512
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5513
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_5514
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5515
BRYNTIRION

AutoCAD SHX Text_5516
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_5517
Ridgeway

AutoCAD SHX Text_5518
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5519
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_5520
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5521
HEOL-Y-FELIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5522
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5523
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5524
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5525
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_5526
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5527
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_5528
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_5529
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_5530
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5531
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5532
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5533
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_5534
Eastleigh

AutoCAD SHX Text_5535
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5536
HEOL LLANISHEN FACH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5537
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5538
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5539
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_5540
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5541
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5542
NANT WALLA

AutoCAD SHX Text_5543
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_5544
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5545
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5546
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5547
Greenwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_5548
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_5549
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5550
LLWYN GRUG

AutoCAD SHX Text_5551
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5552
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5553
Bethany Baptist

AutoCAD SHX Text_5554
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5555
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5556
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5557
Outfall

AutoCAD SHX Text_5558
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5559
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_5560
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_5561
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5562
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_5563
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5564
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_5565
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5566
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5567
MUR GWYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5568
57 to 60

AutoCAD SHX Text_5569
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5570
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5571
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5572
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5573
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5574
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5575
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_5576
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5577
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5578
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5579
HEOL TY'N Y COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_5580
Dilwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_5581
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_5582
RHOS LLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5583
LLWYN RHOSYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5584
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5585
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5586
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_5587
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_5588
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5589
BLAEN-Y-COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_5590
HEOL-Y-FELIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5591
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5592
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5593
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5594
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5595
MIN-Y-NANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5596
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5597
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5598
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_5599
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5600
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5601
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5602
CLOS-MABON

AutoCAD SHX Text_5603
Rhydwaedlyd Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_5604
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5605
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5606
ERW WEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5607
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_5608
HEOL-Y-FELIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5609
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5610
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5611
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5612
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_5613
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5614
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5615
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_5616
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5617
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5618
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5619
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5620
LON-Y-RHYD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5621
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_5622
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5623
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_5624
Deri

AutoCAD SHX Text_5625
Cwrt

AutoCAD SHX Text_5626
1 to 34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5627
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5628
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_5629
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5630
HEOL NANT CASTAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_5631
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5632
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_5633
HEOL MABON

AutoCAD SHX Text_5634
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_5635
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5636
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5637
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5638
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5639
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5640
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_5641
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5642
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5643
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5644
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5645
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5646
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_5647
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_5648
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5649
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5650
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_5651
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5652
99 to 103

AutoCAD SHX Text_5653
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_5654
Hurstways

AutoCAD SHX Text_5655
PARK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5656
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_5657
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5658
Blanthorn Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_5659
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_5660
/ Whitchurch Hospital

AutoCAD SHX Text_5661
Ysbyty Eglwys Newydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_5662
Rocket Man

AutoCAD SHX Text_5663
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5664
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5665
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5666
Tower

AutoCAD SHX Text_5667
Water

AutoCAD SHX Text_5668
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5669
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5670
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5671
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5672
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5673
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5674
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5675
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5676
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5677
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5678
Park Lodge Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_5679
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5680
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5681
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5682
REGENT GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5683
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5684
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_5685
33a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5686
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5687
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5688
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_5689
Park View

AutoCAD SHX Text_5690
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5691
ST JOHN'S CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_5692
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5693
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5694
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_5695
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5696
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5697
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5698
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_5699
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5700
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_5701
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5702
ST MARGARET'S CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5703
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5704
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_5705
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_5706
28a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5707
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5708
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5709
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5710
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_5711
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5712
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_5713
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_5714
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_5715
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_5716
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_5717
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5718
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_5719
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_5720
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5721
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5722
Rochester Mansions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5723
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5724
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_5725
50b

AutoCAD SHX Text_5726
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_5727
37.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5728
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5729
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_5730
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5731
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_5732
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_5733
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_5734
Underhill

AutoCAD SHX Text_5735
36.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5736
York Mansions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5737
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5738
St Mellons Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_5739
PARK LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5740
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_5741
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5742
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5743
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_5744
12 to 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5745
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_5746
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5747
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_5748
38.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5749
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5750
Dorchester Mansions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5751
41.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5752
Mansions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5753
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5754
54a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5755
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5756
1 to 28

AutoCAD SHX Text_5757
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5758
Mansions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5759
Chy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5760
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5761
3 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_5762
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5763
21 to 29

AutoCAD SHX Text_5764
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_5765
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_5766
Exeter Mansions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5767
Hollytrees

AutoCAD SHX Text_5768
Parc Hafod

AutoCAD SHX Text_5769
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_5770
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_5771
Aylesbury

AutoCAD SHX Text_5772
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_5773
Sutherland Mansions

AutoCAD SHX Text_5774
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5775
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_5776
38.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5777
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_5778
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_5779
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5780
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5781
Mortuary

AutoCAD SHX Text_5782
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5783
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_5784
Glyn-glas

AutoCAD SHX Text_5785
Skyfall

AutoCAD SHX Text_5786
Golf Driving Range

AutoCAD SHX Text_5787
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_5788
Reservoir (covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5789
CEFN CARNAU LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5790
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_5791
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5792
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_5793
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_5794
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_5795
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_5796
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_5797
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_5798
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_5799
(dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5800
Blaengwnlais Quarry

AutoCAD SHX Text_5801
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_5802
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5803
(Hotel)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5804
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_5805
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5806
THORNHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5807
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5808
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5809
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5810
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_5811
CEFN CARNAU LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5812
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5813
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5814
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5815
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5816
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_5817
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5818
Co Const, Asly Const, Asly ER, UA & C Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5819
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5820
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5821
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5822
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5823
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5824
Co Const, Asly Const, Asly ER,

AutoCAD SHX Text_5825
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5826
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5827
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5828
UA, C & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5829
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5830
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_5831
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_5832
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_5833
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5834
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5835
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_5836
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5837
Ty Ffald

AutoCAD SHX Text_5838
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5839
175.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5840
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5841
A 469

AutoCAD SHX Text_5842
A 469

AutoCAD SHX Text_5843
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5844
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_5845
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5846
The Long Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_5847
Cefncarnau-uchaf

AutoCAD SHX Text_5848
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5849
161.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5850
Castell Morgraig (remains of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5851
THORNHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5852
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5853
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5854
210.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5855
Ty Coed

AutoCAD SHX Text_5856
Hillcroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_5857
A 469

AutoCAD SHX Text_5858
250.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5859
Morgraig

AutoCAD SHX Text_5860
247.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5861
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_5862
Wells

AutoCAD SHX Text_5863
218.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5864
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5865
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5866
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5867
WB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5868
246.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5869
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5870
208.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5871
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_5872
Coed y Briwnant

AutoCAD SHX Text_5873
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_5874
WENALLT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_5875
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5876
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5877
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5878
Hafod y Milgi

AutoCAD SHX Text_5879
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_5880
Tan-y-onen

AutoCAD SHX Text_5881
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5882
Thornhill

AutoCAD SHX Text_5883
244.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5884
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5885
Cefncarnau-fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_5886
Garn Llwyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_5887
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5888
Wells

AutoCAD SHX Text_5889
Nant y Briwnant

AutoCAD SHX Text_5890
197.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5891
243.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5892
y-briwydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_5893
210.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5894
Cwm Nofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_5895
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5896
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5897
Nant Cwmnofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_5898
Castell-

AutoCAD SHX Text_5899
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5900
New House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5901
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5902
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5903
208.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5904
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5905
Cefncarnau-fach

AutoCAD SHX Text_5906
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5907
222.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5908
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5909
211.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5910
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_5911
Glenside

AutoCAD SHX Text_5912
Pant-y-gollen

AutoCAD SHX Text_5913
Blaen-nofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_5914
(remains of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5915
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5916
Castell Morgraig

AutoCAD SHX Text_5917
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5918
204.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5919
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_5920
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5921
Wenallt

AutoCAD SHX Text_5922
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5923
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5924
Cliff

AutoCAD SHX Text_5925
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_5926
Thornhill Gospel Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_5927
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5928
Bryn coed

AutoCAD SHX Text_5929
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5930
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_5931
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5932
221.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5933
200.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5934
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5935
Travellers Rest

AutoCAD SHX Text_5936
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5937
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5938
Wide View

AutoCAD SHX Text_5939
214.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5940
Sheep Dip

AutoCAD SHX Text_5941
216.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5942
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5943
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5944
Garn Llwyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_5945
213.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5946
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_5947
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5948
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5949
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5950
188.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5951
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_5952
Ty'n-y-coedcae

AutoCAD SHX Text_5953
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_5954
Graig-goch

AutoCAD SHX Text_5955
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5956
Beech Croft

AutoCAD SHX Text_5957
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5958
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5959
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5960
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_5961
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5962
200.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5963
Cwm Nofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_5964
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5965
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5966
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5967
194.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5968
Nant Cwm Nofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_5969
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_5970
Rose Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_5971
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5972
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_5973
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_5974
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5975
178.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5976
Cwmnofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_5977
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5978
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_5979
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_5980
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_5981
The Fort

AutoCAD SHX Text_5982
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5983
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_5984
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_5985
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5986
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5987
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5988
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_5989
Golf Driving Range

AutoCAD SHX Text_5990
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_5991
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_5992
Craig-yr-Allt

AutoCAD SHX Text_5993
(covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5994
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_5995
(dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5996
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_5997
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_5998
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_5999
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_6000
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_6001
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_6002
Batching

AutoCAD SHX Text_6003
Spreads

AutoCAD SHX Text_6004
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6005
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6006
WAUNWAELOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6007
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6008
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6009
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_6010
Rhiwbina Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6011
Clwyd-y-Gurnos

AutoCAD SHX Text_6012
UA, C & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_6013
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_6014
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_6015
Co Const, Asly Const, Asly ER

AutoCAD SHX Text_6016
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_6017
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6018
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_6019
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_6020
Tk H

AutoCAD SHX Text_6021
Co Const, Asly Const,

AutoCAD SHX Text_6022
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6023
WAUNWAELOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6024
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6025
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6026
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6027
196.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6028
185.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6029
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6030
Blaengwynlais

AutoCAD SHX Text_6031
Nant y Brynau

AutoCAD SHX Text_6032
Nant y Brynau

AutoCAD SHX Text_6033
Brynau

AutoCAD SHX Text_6034
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6035
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_6036
188.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6037
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_6038
165.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6039
RHIWBINA HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6040
179.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6041
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6042
Fforestganol

AutoCAD SHX Text_6043
Picnic Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_6044
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6045
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6046
Kiln

AutoCAD SHX Text_6047
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_6048
139.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6049
Nant y Fforest

AutoCAD SHX Text_6050
165.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6051
127.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6052
St Hilarion

AutoCAD SHX Text_6053
174.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6054
151.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6055
Ton-y-bwlch

AutoCAD SHX Text_6056
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6057
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6058
Bwlch Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_6059
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6060
169.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6061
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6062
Coedcefngarw

AutoCAD SHX Text_6063
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6064
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6065
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6066
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6067
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6068
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6069
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6070
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6071
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6072
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6073
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6074
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6075
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6076
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6077
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6078
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6079
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6080
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6081
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6082
171.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6083
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6084
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6085
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_6086
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6087
Level

AutoCAD SHX Text_6088
Llywydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_6089
Ffynnon

AutoCAD SHX Text_6090
Nant y Fforest

AutoCAD SHX Text_6091
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_6092
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6093
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_6094
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6095
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6096
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6097
MAES Y DRAENOG

AutoCAD SHX Text_6098
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6099
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6100
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6101
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6102
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6103
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6104
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6105
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6106
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6107
CATHERINE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6108
Cefngarw Quarry

AutoCAD SHX Text_6109
Plant

AutoCAD SHX Text_6110
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6111
Bwlch-y-cwm

AutoCAD SHX Text_6112
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6113
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6114
TY'N-Y-PARC ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6115
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_6116
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6117
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6118
HEOL TY'N-Y-CAE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6119
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6120
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6121
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6122
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6123
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6124
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6125
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6126
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_6127
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6128
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_6129
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6130
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6131
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6132
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6133
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6134
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_6135
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6136
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6137
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6138
LON TY'N-Y-CAE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6139
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6140
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6141
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6142
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6143
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6144
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6145
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6146
Gospel Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6147
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6148
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6149
Ty Cornel

AutoCAD SHX Text_6150
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6151
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6152
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6153
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6154
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6155
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_6156
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6157
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6158
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6159
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6160
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6161
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6162
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6163
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6164
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6165
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6166
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6167
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6168
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_6169
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6170
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6171
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6172
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6173
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6174
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6175
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_6176
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_6177
MANOR WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_6178
NORTHERN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6179
HEOL NEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_6180
KYLE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6181
LON-Y-PARC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6182
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6183
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6184
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6185
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6186
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6187
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6188
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6189
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6190
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6191
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6192
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6193
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6194
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6195
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6196
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6197
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6198
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6199
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6200
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6201
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6202
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6203
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6204
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6205
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6206
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6207
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6208
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6209
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6210
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6211
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6212
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6213
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6214
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6215
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6216
34.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6217
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6218
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6219
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6220
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6221
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6222
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6223
LEAMINGTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6224
MAES Y PARC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6225
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6226
HEOL-Y-NANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6227
MAES-Y-FELIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6228
LYDFORD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6229
LON PENLLYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6230
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6231
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6232
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6233
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6234
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6235
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6236
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6237
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6238
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6239
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6240
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6241
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_6242
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6243
Upper Ty'n-y-parc

AutoCAD SHX Text_6244
Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_6245
HEOL TY'N-Y-CAE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6246
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6247
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6248
34.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6249
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_6250
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6251
33.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6252
OLD CHURCH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6253
GLAN-Y-NANT TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6254
St Mary's Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_6255
(Public Park)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6256
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6257
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_6258
31.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6259
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6260
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6261
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_6262
Ty'n-y-Pwll

AutoCAD SHX Text_6263
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6264
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6265
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6266
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6267
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6268
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6269
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6270
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6271
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6272
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6273
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6274
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6275
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6276
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6277
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6278
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6279
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6280
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6281
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6282
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6283
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6284
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6285
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6286
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6287
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6288
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6289
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6290
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6291
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6292
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6293
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6294
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6295
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6296
Football Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_6297
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6298
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6299
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6300
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6301
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6302
Anton Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6303
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6304
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_6305
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6306
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6307
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6308
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6309
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_6310
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6311
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6312
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6313
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6314
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6315
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6316
PENLLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6317
32.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6318
TY'N-Y-PWLL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6319
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_6320
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6321
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6322
The Pines

AutoCAD SHX Text_6323
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6324
Ty Lorrall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6325
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6326
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6327
1 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6328
Cwrt Eglwys Newydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_6329
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6330
St Marys

AutoCAD SHX Text_6331
33.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6332
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6333
St Francis

AutoCAD SHX Text_6334
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6335
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6336
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6337
St Marys

AutoCAD SHX Text_6338
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6339
7 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6340
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6341
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6342
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6343
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_6344
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6345
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6346
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_6347
RC Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_6348
St Teilo's

AutoCAD SHX Text_6349
(remains of)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6350
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6351
Fox and Hounds

AutoCAD SHX Text_6352
School House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6353
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6354
Presbytery

AutoCAD SHX Text_6355
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_6356
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_6357
5 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6358
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6359
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_6360
Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_6361
Methodist

AutoCAD SHX Text_6362
Rhiwbina

AutoCAD SHX Text_6363
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6364
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6365
Allotment

AutoCAD SHX Text_6366
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6367
HEOL CAERHYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6368
Library

AutoCAD SHX Text_6369
227

AutoCAD SHX Text_6370
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6371
221

AutoCAD SHX Text_6372
221a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6373
Lloft Deri

AutoCAD SHX Text_6374
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6375
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6376
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6377
7b

AutoCAD SHX Text_6378
Rhydwaedlyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_6379
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6380
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6381
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6382
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6383
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6384
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6385
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6386
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6387
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_6388
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6389
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6390
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6391
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6392
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6393
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6394
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_6395
4a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6396
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6397
4b

AutoCAD SHX Text_6398
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6399
44.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6400
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6401
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6402
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6403
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6404
223

AutoCAD SHX Text_6405
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6406
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6407
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6408
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6409
CLOS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6410
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6411
Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_6412
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6413
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6414
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6415
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6416
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6417
GERNANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6418
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6419
30a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6420
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6421
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_6422
U Ref Ch

AutoCAD SHX Text_6423
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6424
Beulah

AutoCAD SHX Text_6425
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6426
Village

AutoCAD SHX Text_6427
238

AutoCAD SHX Text_6428
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6429
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6430
FELIN WEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6431
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6432
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6433
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_6434
CHARLOTTE SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6435
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6436
41.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6437
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6438
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6439
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6440
Butchers Arms

AutoCAD SHX Text_6441
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6442
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6443
Ye Olde

AutoCAD SHX Text_6444
BRYNDERI

AutoCAD SHX Text_6445
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6446
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_6447
Halls

AutoCAD SHX Text_6448
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6449
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_6450
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6451
All Saints'

AutoCAD SHX Text_6452
Rhiwbina

AutoCAD SHX Text_6453
BEULAH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6454
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6455
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6456
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_6457
Rhydwaedlyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_6458
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6459
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6460
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6461
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6462
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6463
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6464
GLANRHYD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6465
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6466
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6467
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6468
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_6469
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6470
55a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6471
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6472
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6473
TY-GWYN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6474
44.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6475
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6476
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6477
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6478
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6479
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6480
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6481
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6482
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6483
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6484
HEOL-Y-FELIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6485
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6486
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6487
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6488
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6489
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6490
HEOL-Y-BONT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6491
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6492
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6493
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6494
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6495
30b

AutoCAD SHX Text_6496
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6497
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6498
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6499
230

AutoCAD SHX Text_6500
236

AutoCAD SHX Text_6501
234

AutoCAD SHX Text_6502
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6503
219

AutoCAD SHX Text_6504
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6505
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6506
6b

AutoCAD SHX Text_6507
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6508
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6509
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6510
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6511
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6512
6c

AutoCAD SHX Text_6513
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6514
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6515
LON FACH

AutoCAD SHX Text_6516
41.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6517
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6518
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6519
39.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6520
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6521
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6522
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6523
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6524
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6525
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6526
MAES-Y-DERI

AutoCAD SHX Text_6527
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_6528
LON-Y-DERI

AutoCAD SHX Text_6529
LON-Y-DDERWEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6530
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6531
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6532
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6533
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6534
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6535
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6536
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6537
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6538
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6539
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6540
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6541
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6542
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6543
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6544
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6545
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6546
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6547
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6548
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6549
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6550
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6551
42.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6552
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6553
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6554
Rhydwaedlyd Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_6555
Y GROES

AutoCAD SHX Text_6556
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6557
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6558
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6559
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6560
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6561
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6562
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6563
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6564
38.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6565
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6566
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6567
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6568
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6569
Electricity Sub Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_6570
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6571
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6572
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6573
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6574
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6575
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6576
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6577
8c

AutoCAD SHX Text_6578
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6579
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6580
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6581
TY'N-Y-PARC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6582
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6583
L Twr

AutoCAD SHX Text_6584
L Twr

AutoCAD SHX Text_6585
L Twr

AutoCAD SHX Text_6586
Balancing Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_6587
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_6588
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6589
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6590
Parc Caedelyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_6591
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6592
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6593
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6594
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6595
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6596
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6597
CLOS TREODA

AutoCAD SHX Text_6598
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6599
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6600
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_6601
ASHCHURCH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6602
The Pines

AutoCAD SHX Text_6603
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6604
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6605
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6606
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6607
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6608
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6609
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6610
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6611
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6612
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6613
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6614
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6615
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6616
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6617
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6618
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6619
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6620
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6621
FORELAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6622
ST FRANCIS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6623
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6624
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6625
198

AutoCAD SHX Text_6626
206

AutoCAD SHX Text_6627
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6628
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6629
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6630
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6631
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6632
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6633
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6634
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6635
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6636
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6637
19 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6638
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6639
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6640
Minavon

AutoCAD SHX Text_6641
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6642
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6643
Treoda

AutoCAD SHX Text_6644
The Willows

AutoCAD SHX Text_6645
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6646
FORELAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6647
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_6648
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_6649
ST MARGARET'S PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6650
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_6651
ST MARY'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6652
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6653
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6654
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6655
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6656
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6657
HEOL-Y-FORLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6658
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6659
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6660
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6661
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6662
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6663
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6664
ASH GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6665
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_6666
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6667
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6668
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6669
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_6670
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6671
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6672
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6673
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6674
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6675
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6676
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6677
Ashgrove House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6678
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6679
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6680
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6681
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6682
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6683
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6684
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6685
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6686
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_6687
36.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6688
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6689
NORTHERN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6690
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_6691
ST JOHN'S CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_6692
ST MARGARET'S ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6693
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6694
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6695
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6696
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6697
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6698
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6699
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6700
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6701
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6702
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_6703
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6704
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6705
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6706
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6707
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6708
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6709
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6710
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6711
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6712
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6713
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6714
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6715
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6716
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6717
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6718
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6719
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6720
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6721
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6722
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6723
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6724
1 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6725
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_6726
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_6727
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_6728
34.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6729
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6730
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_6731
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6732
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6733
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_6734
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_6735
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6736
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6737
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_6738
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_6739
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_6740
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6741
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6742
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_6743
Minavon

AutoCAD SHX Text_6744
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6745
Fire Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_6746
Melbourne Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6747
Masons Arms

AutoCAD SHX Text_6748
ASH GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6749
NORTHERN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6750
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6751
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6752
BROCASTLE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6753
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_6754
Rhydwaedlyd

AutoCAD SHX Text_6755
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6756
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6757
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6758
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6759
Mason

AutoCAD SHX Text_6760
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6761
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6762
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_6763
Rhiwbina RFC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6764
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_6765
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6766
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6767
33.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6768
MANOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6769
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_6770
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6771
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6772
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6773
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6774
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6775
45.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6776
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6777
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6778
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_6779
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6780
HEOL CAERHYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6781
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6782
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_6783
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6784
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6785
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6786
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6787
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6788
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6789
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6790
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6791
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_6792
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_6793
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6794
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6795
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6796
Well

AutoCAD SHX Text_6797
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6798
CAE MAWR

AutoCAD SHX Text_6799
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6800
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6801
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_6802
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6803
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6804
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6805
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6806
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_6807
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_6808
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6809
WAUN-Y-GROES

AutoCAD SHX Text_6810
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_6811
HEOL-YR-EFAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6812
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6813
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6814
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6815
LON-Y-DAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6816
LON-Y-DAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6817
LON ISA

AutoCAD SHX Text_6818
LON ISA

AutoCAD SHX Text_6819
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_6820
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6821
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6822
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6823
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6824
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6825
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6826
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6827
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6828
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6829
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6830
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6831
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6832
Ysgol Gynradd Rhiwbeina

AutoCAD SHX Text_6833
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6834
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6835
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_6836
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6837
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_6838
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6839
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_6840
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_6841
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_6842
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_6843
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6844
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_6845
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6846
Memorial Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6847
Rhiwbina Prmary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_6848
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6849
LON UCHA

AutoCAD SHX Text_6850
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6851
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6852
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_6853
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6854
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_6855
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6856
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_6857
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6858
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_6859
HEOL-Y-DERI

AutoCAD SHX Text_6860
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_6861
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6862
43.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6863
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_6864
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_6865
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_6866
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6867
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_6868
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_6869
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_6870
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6871
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6872
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6873
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_6874
45.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6875
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_6876
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6877
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_6878
COED CEIRIOS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6879
19a

AutoCAD SHX Text_6880
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6881
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_6882
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_6883
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_6884
HEOL WEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6885
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6886
43.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6887
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_6888
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6889
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_6890
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6891
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_6892
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_6893
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6894
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6895
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_6896
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_6897
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_6898
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6899
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6900
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_6901
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6902
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6903
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6904
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6905
HEOL-Y-COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_6906
Y GROES

AutoCAD SHX Text_6907
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6908
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_6909
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_6910
School House

AutoCAD SHX Text_6911
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6912
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6913
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6914
CLOS-YR-ARDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_6915
LON GANOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6916
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_6917
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_6918
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_6919
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_6920
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6921
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_6922
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_6923
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_6924
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6925
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6926
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6927
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_6928
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6929
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_6930
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_6931
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_6932
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6933
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6934
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6935
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_6936
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_6937
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6938
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6939
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_6940
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6941
HEOL-Y-COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_6942
50.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6943
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_6944
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_6945
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6946
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_6947
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_6948
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6949
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_6950
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_6951
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_6952
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_6953
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_6954
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_6955
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_6956
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_6957
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_6958
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_6959
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_6960
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_6961
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_6962
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_6963
38.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6964
HEOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_6965
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6966
PEN-Y-DRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6967
39.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6968
MP 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6969
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_6970
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6971
40.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_6972
Tennis Courts

AutoCAD SHX Text_6973
Tennis

AutoCAD SHX Text_6974
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_6975
Parc-y-Pentre

AutoCAD SHX Text_6976
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6977
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_6978
Tennis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_6979
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_6980
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_6981
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_6982
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6983
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_6984
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_6985
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_6986
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6987
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6988
WEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_6989
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_6990
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_6991
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6992
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6993
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6994
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_6995
Ynys-yr-ysgallen-fraith

AutoCAD SHX Text_6996
Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_6997
(covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6998
Fraith

AutoCAD SHX Text_6999
Nant

AutoCAD SHX Text_7000
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7001
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_7002
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_7003
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_7004
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_7005
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_7006
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_7007
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_7008
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_7009
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_7010
CLOS Y BRYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7011
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_7012
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7013
BRYNTEG

AutoCAD SHX Text_7014
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7015
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7016
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7017
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7018
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7019
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7020
TROED

AutoCAD SHX Text_7021
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7022
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7023
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7024
Nant

AutoCAD SHX Text_7025
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7026
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7027
74.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7028
BROOKLYN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7029
Twmpath

AutoCAD SHX Text_7030
Cwmnofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_7031
80.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7032
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7033
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7034
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7035
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_7036
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7037
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7038
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7039
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7040
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7041
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7042
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7043
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7044
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7045
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7046
Coed-y-wenallt

AutoCAD SHX Text_7047
Motte

AutoCAD SHX Text_7048
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7049
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7050
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_7051
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7052
145a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7053
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7054
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_7055
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7056
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7057
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7058
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_7059
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_7060
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_7061
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_7062
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7063
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7064
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7065
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7066
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7067
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7068
HEOL-Y-

AutoCAD SHX Text_7069
HEOL-Y-COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_7070
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7071
COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_7072
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7073
HEOL-Y-BRYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7074
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7075
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_7076
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_7077
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7078
Greenhill

AutoCAD SHX Text_7079
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_7080
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7081
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_7082
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_7083
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_7084
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_7085
40a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7086
Langwell

AutoCAD SHX Text_7087
Y GOEDWIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_7088
72.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7089
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7090
64.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7091
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7092
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7093
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7094
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7095
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7096
RHIWBINA HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7097
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_7098
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_7099
Cwmnofydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_7100
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7101
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7102
Special School

AutoCAD SHX Text_7103
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7104
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_7105
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7106
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7107
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7108
68.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7109
HEOL-Y-COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_7110
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_7111
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7112
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7113
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7114
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7115
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7116
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7117
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7118
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7119
13 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7120
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_7121
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_7122
Denbigh

AutoCAD SHX Text_7123
Carew Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_7124
CURLEW CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7125
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7126
Whitchurch Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_7127
MP 2.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7128
Manor Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_7129
ST JOHN'S PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7130
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_7131
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7132
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_7133
CAEDELYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7134
157

AutoCAD SHX Text_7135
39.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7136
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_7137
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7138
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_7139
179

AutoCAD SHX Text_7140
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_7141
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_7142
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7143
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7144
19 to 30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7145
Usk Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_7146
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_7147
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7148
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7149
40.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7150
Harlech

AutoCAD SHX Text_7151
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_7152
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_7153
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7154
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7155
Pembroke Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_7156
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_7157
School House

AutoCAD SHX Text_7158
Greenhill

AutoCAD SHX Text_7159
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7160
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_7161
Whitchurch

AutoCAD SHX Text_7162
40a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7163
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7164
Y RHIW

AutoCAD SHX Text_7165
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7166
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7167
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7168
PEN-Y-DRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7169
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_7170
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_7171
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7172
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7173
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7174
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7175
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7176
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7177
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7178
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7179
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7180
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7181
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7182
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7183
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7184
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_7185
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7186
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7187
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7188
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7189
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7190
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7191
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7192
CEFN GRAIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_7193
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7194
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7195
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7196
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7197
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7198
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7199
HEOL UCHAF

AutoCAD SHX Text_7200
MINAFON

AutoCAD SHX Text_7201
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_7202
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7203
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7204
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7205
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7206
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_7207
PENYGRAIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_7208
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7209
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7210
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7211
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7212
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7213
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7214
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7215
CRAIG YR ALLT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7216
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7217
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7218
GRON FFORDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7219
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7220
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7221
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7222
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7223
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7224
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7225
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7226
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7227
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7228
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7229
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7230
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7231
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7232
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7233
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_7234
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7235
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_7236
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7237
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7238
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7239
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7240
GELLI DEG

AutoCAD SHX Text_7241
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7242
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7243
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7244
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7245
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7246
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7247
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7248
72a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7249
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7250
76b

AutoCAD SHX Text_7251
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_7252
74c

AutoCAD SHX Text_7253
74b

AutoCAD SHX Text_7254
70c

AutoCAD SHX Text_7255
74a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7256
70b

AutoCAD SHX Text_7257
76a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7258
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_7259
72c

AutoCAD SHX Text_7260
72b

AutoCAD SHX Text_7261
76c

AutoCAD SHX Text_7262
70a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7263
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7264
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7265
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_7266
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7267
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7268
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7269
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7270
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7271
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7272
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7273
BRYN BACH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7274
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7275
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7276
CEFN GRAIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_7277
Nant y

AutoCAD SHX Text_7278
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7279
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7280
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_7281
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7282
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7283
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7284
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7285
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7286
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_7287
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7288
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7289
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7290
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7291
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7292
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7293
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7294
WENALLT COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7295
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7296
GROES LON

AutoCAD SHX Text_7297
Clinic

AutoCAD SHX Text_7298
HEOL DERLWYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7299
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7300
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7301
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7302
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7303
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7304
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7305
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7306
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7307
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7308
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7309
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7310
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7311
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_7312
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_7313
Briwnant

AutoCAD SHX Text_7314
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_7315
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7316
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7317
HEOL LLANISHEN FACH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7318
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7319
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7320
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7321
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7322
CLOS YR AER

AutoCAD SHX Text_7323
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7324
CLOS YR HAFOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7325
HEOL HENDRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7326
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7327
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7328
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7329
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_7330
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7331
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7332
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7333
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7334
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7335
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7336
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7337
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_7338
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7339
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7340
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7341
HEOL Y WERN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7342
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7343
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7344
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7345
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7346
HEOL Y WERN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7347
CLOS Y WERN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7348
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_7349
HEOL ISCOED

AutoCAD SHX Text_7350
HEOL AER

AutoCAD SHX Text_7351
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7352
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7353
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7354
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7355
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7356
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7357
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7358
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7359
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7360
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7361
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7362
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7363
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7364
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7365
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7366
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7367
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7368
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7369
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7370
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_7371
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_7372
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_7373
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_7374
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_7375
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7376
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7377
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7378
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7379
133

AutoCAD SHX Text_7380
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7381
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7382
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7383
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7384
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_7385
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_7386
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7387
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7388
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_7389
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7390
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7391
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7392
COED BRIWNANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7393
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7394
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7395
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7396
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_7397
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7398
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_7399
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7400
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7401
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_7402
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_7403
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_7404
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_7405
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_7406
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_7407
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_7408
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7409
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7410
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_7411
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_7412
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7413
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_7414
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7415
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7416
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_7417
Llanishen Fach

AutoCAD SHX Text_7418
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_7419
HEOL NANT CASTAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7420
HEOL IFOR BACH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7421
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7422
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_7423
HEOL BRIWNANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7424
HEOL ISAF

AutoCAD SHX Text_7425
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7426
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7427
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_7428
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_7429
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7430
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_7431
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_7432
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7433
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_7434
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7435
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7436
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_7437
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7438
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7439
CLOS TON MAWR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7440
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_7441
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7442
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7443
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7444
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7445
HEOL LEWIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7446
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7447
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7448
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7449
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_7450
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7451
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7452
LONCAE PORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7453
HEOL ERWIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7454
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_7455
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_7456
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7457
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7458
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7459
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7460
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7461
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7462
HEOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7463
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7464
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7465
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7466
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7467
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7468
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7469
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7470
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_7471
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_7472
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7473
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7474
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7475
CLOS CROMWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7476
HEOL ISAF

AutoCAD SHX Text_7477
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_7478
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7479
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7480
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7481
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_7482
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7483
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_7484
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7485
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7486
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7487
HEOL UCHAF

AutoCAD SHX Text_7488
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_7489
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_7490
CLOS WILLIAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_7491
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7492
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7493
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7494
Llanishen Fach

AutoCAD SHX Text_7495
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7496
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7497
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7498
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7499
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7500
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7501
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7502
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7503
BRIWNANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7504
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_7505
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_7506
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7507
HEOL LEWIS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7508
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_7509
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7510
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_7511
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_7512
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7513
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7514
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7515
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_7516
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7517
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_7518
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7519
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7520
THORNHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7521
LEE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7522
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7523
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_7524
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7525
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7526
68.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7527
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7528
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_7529
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7530
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7531
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_7532
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7533
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_7534
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7535
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_7536
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_7537
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7538
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7539
HEOL ISAF

AutoCAD SHX Text_7540
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7541
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7542
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7543
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_7544
HEOL UCHAF

AutoCAD SHX Text_7545
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7546
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7547
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_7548
GRON FFORDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7549
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7550
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7551
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_7552
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7553
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7554
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7555
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7556
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7557
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_7558
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7559
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7560
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7561
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7562
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7563
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7564
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7565
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7566
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_7567
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7568
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7569
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7570
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_7571
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7572
Nant y Briwnant

AutoCAD SHX Text_7573
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7574
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7575
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_7576
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7577
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7578
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7579
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7580
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7581
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7582
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7583
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7584
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7585
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7586
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_7587
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7588
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7589
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_7590
HEOL BRIWNANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7591
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7592
Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_7593
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_7594
Hill Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7595
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_7596
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7597
Kiln

AutoCAD SHX Text_7598
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7599
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7600
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7601
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_7602
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_7603
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7604
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7605
Tk H

AutoCAD SHX Text_7606
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7607
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7608
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7609
Tk H

AutoCAD SHX Text_7610
Co Const, Asly Const, Asly ER, UA & C Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7611
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_7612
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7613
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7614
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_7615
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7616
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7617
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7618
Cefncarnau

AutoCAD SHX Text_7619
Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_7620
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_7621
Shepherds Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_7622
Craig Llanisen

AutoCAD SHX Text_7623
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7624
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7625
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7626
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_7627
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_7628
Slurry

AutoCAD SHX Text_7629
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_7630
Limekiln

AutoCAD SHX Text_7631
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_7632
Cotters

AutoCAD SHX Text_7633
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_7634
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_7635
Caravan Site

AutoCAD SHX Text_7636
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_7637
Reservoir (covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7638
Capel Gwilym

AutoCAD SHX Text_7639
Pentre Gwilym Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7640
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7641
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7642
CAPEL GWILYM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7643
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_7644
Gwilym Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7645
Deriduon

AutoCAD SHX Text_7646
143.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7647
Ty Bryn

AutoCAD SHX Text_7648
Thornhill House

AutoCAD SHX Text_7649
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7650
124.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7651
Llanisen Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_7652
Sycamore Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_7653
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_7654
146.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7655
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7656
New House

AutoCAD SHX Text_7657
Hillside

AutoCAD SHX Text_7658
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_7659
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_7660
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_7661
Pentre Gwilym House (PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7662
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7663
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_7664
Birchgrove Halt

AutoCAD SHX Text_7665
Hill Snook Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_7666
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7667
MALVERN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7668
Rising Bollards

AutoCAD SHX Text_7669
SMITH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7670
TASKER SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7671
398

AutoCAD SHX Text_7672
400

AutoCAD SHX Text_7673
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7674
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7675
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7676
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7677
49-64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7678
33 to 47

AutoCAD SHX Text_7679
PENTLAND CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7680
65 to 80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7681
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7682
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7683
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7684
1 to 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7685
1 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7686
17 to 32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7687
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7688
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7689
380

AutoCAD SHX Text_7690
FFORDD MOGRAIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_7691
42 to 64

AutoCAD SHX Text_7692
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7693
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_7694
386

AutoCAD SHX Text_7695
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_7696
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_7697
58 to 68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7698
57 to 71

AutoCAD SHX Text_7699
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_7700
70 to 80

AutoCAD SHX Text_7701
34 to 44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7702
46 to 56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7703
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_7704
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7705
44.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7706
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_7707
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7708
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7709
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7710
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7711
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7712
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7713
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7714
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7715
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7716
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_7717
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7718
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7719
33 to 49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7720
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7721
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7722
3 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_7723
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_7724
39 to 53

AutoCAD SHX Text_7725
21 to 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7726
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7727
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7728
FFORDD TY UNNOS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7729
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7730
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7731
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7732
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_7733
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7734
389

AutoCAD SHX Text_7735
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7736
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7737
11b

AutoCAD SHX Text_7738
12e

AutoCAD SHX Text_7739
7b

AutoCAD SHX Text_7740
12a to 12d

AutoCAD SHX Text_7741
CHEVIOT CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7742
9a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7743
12f

AutoCAD SHX Text_7744
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7745
Cardiff

AutoCAD SHX Text_7746
CHILTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7747
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7748
9d

AutoCAD SHX Text_7749
3e

AutoCAD SHX Text_7750
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7751
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7752
10b

AutoCAD SHX Text_7753
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_7754
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7755
Industrial Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_7756
6c

AutoCAD SHX Text_7757
11c

AutoCAD SHX Text_7758
6a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7759
MALVERN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7760
PENTLAND CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7761
PENNINE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7762
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7763
FIELD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_7764
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7765
Warehouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_7766
Warehouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_7767
Warehouse

AutoCAD SHX Text_7768
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7769
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7770
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7771
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7772
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7773
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7774
449

AutoCAD SHX Text_7775
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7776
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_7777
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7778
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7779
439

AutoCAD SHX Text_7780
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_7781
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7782
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7783
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_7784
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7785
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7786
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7787
PENTLAND CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7788
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7789
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7790
431

AutoCAD SHX Text_7791
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7792
40.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7793
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_7794
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7795
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7796
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7797
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7798
40.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7799
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7800
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7801
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7802
437

AutoCAD SHX Text_7803
WAUN-Y-GROES ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7804
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7805
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7806
42.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7807
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_7808
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_7809
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_7810
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_7811
Sports Facility

AutoCAD SHX Text_7812
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7813
Ty Glas Halt

AutoCAD SHX Text_7814
Llys Enfys

AutoCAD SHX Text_7815
WAUN-Y-GROES AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7816
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_7817
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_7818
Mast (Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_7819
Electricity Sub Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_7820
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7821
El Sub Stas

AutoCAD SHX Text_7822
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_7823
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7824
10 to 26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7825
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_7826
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7827
206a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7828
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7829
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_7830
206

AutoCAD SHX Text_7831
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_7832
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7833
90a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7834
208

AutoCAD SHX Text_7835
TY-WERN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7836
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7837
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7838
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7839
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7840
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7841
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7842
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7843
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7844
185

AutoCAD SHX Text_7845
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7846
PORTHAMAL GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7847
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_7848
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7849
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7850
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_7851
39a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7852
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7853
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_7854
Porthamal

AutoCAD SHX Text_7855
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_7856
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_7857
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7858
196

AutoCAD SHX Text_7859
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7860
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7861
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7862
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_7863
38 to 41

AutoCAD SHX Text_7864
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7865
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7866
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7867
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_7868
200a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7869
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_7870
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7871
26 to 33

AutoCAD SHX Text_7872
8 to 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7873
1 to 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7874
101a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7875
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_7876
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7877
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_7878
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7879
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7880
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_7881
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_7882
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7883
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_7884
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_7885
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_7886
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7887
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7888
HOMELANDS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7889
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7890
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_7891
THORNBURY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7892
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7893
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7894
GLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_7895
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7896
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7897
KYLE CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7898
36.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7899
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7900
IFOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_7901
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_7902
36.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7903
37.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7904
HEOL NEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_7905
KYLE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7906
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7907
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7908
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7909
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7910
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_7911
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7912
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_7913
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_7914
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_7915
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7916
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_7917
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7918
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_7919
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_7920
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7921
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7922
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_7923
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7924
24d

AutoCAD SHX Text_7925
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7926
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7927
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_7928
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_7929
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_7930
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_7931
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_7932
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_7933
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7934
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_7935
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_7936
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_7937
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_7938
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_7939
GRAFTON TERRACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7940
Thornbury

AutoCAD SHX Text_7941
38.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7942
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7943
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7944
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_7945
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_7946
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_7947
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_7948
CLAS TY WERN

AutoCAD SHX Text_7949
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_7950
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7951
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7952
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_7953
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7954
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_7955
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_7956
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7957
LANSDOWNE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7958
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_7959
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7960
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_7961
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_7962
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_7963
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7964
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7965
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_7966
CLAS TY'N-Y-CAE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7967
37.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7968
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_7969
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7970
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_7971
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_7972
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7973
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_7974
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7975
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7976
KYLE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7977
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_7978
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7979
178

AutoCAD SHX Text_7980
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7981
173

AutoCAD SHX Text_7982
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_7983
37.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7984
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7985
HOMELANDS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7986
TY-WERN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7987
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_7988
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7989
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_7990
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_7991
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7992
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_7993
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_7994
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_7995
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_7996
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7997
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_7998
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_7999
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_8000
164a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8001
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8002
195

AutoCAD SHX Text_8003
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8004
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8005
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8006
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_8007
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8008
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8009
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_8010
Caedelyn Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8011
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8012
HOMELANDS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8013
THORNBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_8014
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_8015
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8016
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8017
TY'N-Y-PARC ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8018
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8019
37.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8020
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8021
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_8022
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_8023
Homelands

AutoCAD SHX Text_8024
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_8025
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8026
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8027
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8028
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_8029
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8030
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_8031
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8032
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_8033
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8034
197

AutoCAD SHX Text_8035
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_8036
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8037
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_8038
TY'N-Y-CAE GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8039
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_8040
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8041
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8042
The Monico

AutoCAD SHX Text_8043
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8044
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8045
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8046
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8047
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_8048
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8049
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8050
HEATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_8051
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_8052
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_8053
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8054
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_8055
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_8056
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_8057
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_8058
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8059
BARN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8060
18a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8061
THORNHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8062
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8063
Gleider

AutoCAD SHX Text_8064
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8065
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_8066
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_8067
46.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8068
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_8069
BS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8070
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_8071
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_8072
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_8073
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8074
48.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8075
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_8076
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_8077
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8078
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_8079
Highcroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_8080
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_8081
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_8082
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_8083
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8084
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8085
50.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8086
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8087
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_8088
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_8089
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_8090
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_8091
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_8092
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_8093
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8094
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8095
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8096
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_8097
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8098
HEOL HENDRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8099
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_8100
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8101
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_8102
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8103
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_8104
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_8105
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8106
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8107
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8108
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8109
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8110
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8111
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_8112
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8113
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8114
Coedcochwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_8115
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8116
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8117
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_8118
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8119
TEMPLETON

AutoCAD SHX Text_8120
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8121
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8122
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8123
48.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8124
COED GLAS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8125
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8126
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_8127
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8128
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8129
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8130
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8131
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8132
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8133
44.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8134
CILGERRAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_8135
52.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8136
GAERWEN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8137
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_8138
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_8139
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8140
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_8141
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8142
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8143
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8144
TY-GLAS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8145
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_8146
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8147
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8148
North Llanishen Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_8149
Coedcochwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_8150
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8151
FSs

AutoCAD SHX Text_8152
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8153
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_8154
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_8155
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8156
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_8157
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_8158
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8159
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_8160
Westwinds

AutoCAD SHX Text_8161
Church of St Faith

AutoCAD SHX Text_8162
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8163
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8164
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8165
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8166
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8167
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8168
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8169
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_8170
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_8171
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_8172
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_8173
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8174
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8175
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_8176
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8177
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_8178
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8179
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8180
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8181
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_8182
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8183
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8184
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8185
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8186
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_8187
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_8188
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8189
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8190
CORNFIELD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8191
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8192
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8193
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8194
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8195
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8196
171

AutoCAD SHX Text_8197
173

AutoCAD SHX Text_8198
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8199
64.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8200
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8201
65.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8202
Edgehill Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8203
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8204
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8205
EDGEHILL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8206
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8207
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_8208
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8209
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8210
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_8211
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8212
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8213
60.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8214
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8215
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8216
56.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8217
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_8218
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8219
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8220
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8221
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8222
CADNANT CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8223
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8224
62.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8225
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8226
LLANGRANOG ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8227
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8228
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_8229
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_8230
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_8231
JOHNSTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_8232
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8233
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_8234
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_8235
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_8236
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8237
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8238
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_8239
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8240
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_8241
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_8242
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_8243
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_8244
THORNHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8245
MAYFLOWER AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8246
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_8247
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8248
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8249
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8250
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8251
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8252
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8253
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8254
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_8255
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8256
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8257
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8258
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8259
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_8260
Spr

AutoCAD SHX Text_8261
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_8262
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8263
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8264
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_8265
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_8266
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_8267
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8268
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8269
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_8270
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_8271
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_8272
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8273
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8274
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8275
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8276
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8277
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8278
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8279
WHITESANDS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8280
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8281
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_8282
LLANGRANOG PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8283
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8284
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_8285
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8286
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_8287
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8288
TEMPLETON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8289
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_8290
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8291
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_8292
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8293
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8294
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_8295
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8296
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8297
MORRIS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8298
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8299
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8300
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8301
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8302
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8303
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_8304
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8305
BARDSEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_8306
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8307
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8308
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8309
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8310
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8311
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8312
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_8313
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8314
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8315
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8316
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_8317
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8318
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8319
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8320
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8321
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_8322
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_8323
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_8324
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_8325
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_8326
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8327
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_8328
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8329
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_8330
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_8331
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_8332
ANGLE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8333
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_8334
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8335
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8336
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8337
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8338
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8339
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_8340
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8341
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8342
Thornhill Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_8343
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_8344
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8345
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_8346
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_8347
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8348
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_8349
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_8350
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_8351
58.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8352
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8353
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_8354
HEOL ISCOED

AutoCAD SHX Text_8355
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8356
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_8357
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_8358
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_8359
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_8360
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_8361
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_8362
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_8363
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8364
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8365
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8366
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_8367
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_8368
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8369
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_8370
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_8371
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_8372
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_8373
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_8374
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_8375
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_8376
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8377
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_8378
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8379
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8380
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_8381
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8382
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8383
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_8384
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8385
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8386
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8387
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8388
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8389
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8390
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_8391
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_8392
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_8393
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_8394
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_8395
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8396
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_8397
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_8398
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8399
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_8400
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_8401
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_8402
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8403
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_8404
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_8405
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8406
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8407
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_8408
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8409
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8410
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8411
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8412
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8413
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8414
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8415
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_8416
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8417
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_8418
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8419
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8420
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_8421
CLOS HENDRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8422
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8423
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8424
LON Y NANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8425
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8426
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_8427
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8428
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8429
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8430
LON-Y-MYNYDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8431
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8432
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8433
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_8434
PEN-Y-GROES ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8435
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8436
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8437
LON-Y-MYNYDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8438
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8439
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8440
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8441
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8442
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8443
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8444
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8445
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8446
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8447
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8448
PEN-Y-GROES ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8449
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_8450
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8451
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8452
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_8453
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8454
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8455
BEULAH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8456
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8457
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_8458
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8459
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8460
CLOS FACH

AutoCAD SHX Text_8461
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_8462
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8463
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8464
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8465
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8466
CLOS HENDRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8467
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_8468
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_8469
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_8470
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8471
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8472
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8473
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8474
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8475
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8476
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8477
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8478
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8479
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_8480
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8481
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8482
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8483
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_8484
COED YR YNN

AutoCAD SHX Text_8485
The Nine Giants

AutoCAD SHX Text_8486
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8487
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_8488
44.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8489
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_8490
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8491
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8492
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8493
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8494
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_8495
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8496
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8497
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_8498
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_8499
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_8500
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8501
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_8502
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8503
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_8504
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_8505
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_8506
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8507
Coedtirhwnt

AutoCAD SHX Text_8508
New House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8509
THORNHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8510
54-56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8511
71-73

AutoCAD SHX Text_8512
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8513
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_8514
(Hotel)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8515
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_8516
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8517
DYFRGI

AutoCAD SHX Text_8518
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_8519
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_8520
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_8521
Pantysgawen

AutoCAD SHX Text_8522
CLOS-Y-

AutoCAD SHX Text_8523
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_8524
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8525
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_8526
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_8527
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_8528
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8529
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8530
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_8531
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8532
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_8533
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_8534
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8535
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_8536
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8537
CLOS-Y-BLAIDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8538
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_8539
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8540
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8541
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8542
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_8543
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_8544
White Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_8545
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8546
Recreation Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_8547
Filling

AutoCAD SHX Text_8548
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8549
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8550
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8551
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_8552
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8553
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8554
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_8555
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8556
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8557
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_8558
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8559
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8560
WOODLAWN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_8561
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8562
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8563
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8564
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_8565
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8566
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8567
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_8568
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8569
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8570
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8571
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_8572
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8573
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8574
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8575
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8576
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_8577
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8578
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8579
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_8580
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8581
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8582
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_8583
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_8584
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8585
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8586
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8587
CARLTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_8588
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8589
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_8590
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8591
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8592
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8593
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_8594
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8595
GLADESIDE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8596
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8597
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8598
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8599
REIGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8600
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8601
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8602
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8603
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8604
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8605
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8606
HUNTSMEAD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8607
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8608
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8609
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_8610
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_8611
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8612
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8613
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8614
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8615
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8616
ORCHARD CASTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8617
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8618
ORCHARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8619
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8620
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8621
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8622
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8623
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8624
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8625
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8626
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8627
ELAINE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8628
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_8629
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8630
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8631
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8632
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8633
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8634
FAIRACRE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8635
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8636
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8637
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8638
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8639
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8640
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_8641
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8642
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8643
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8644
DERWENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8645
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_8646
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8647
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8648
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8649
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8650
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8651
CASTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8652
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8653
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8654
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8655
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8656
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8657
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8658
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8659
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8660
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8661
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8662
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8663
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8664
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8665
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8666
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8667
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8668
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8669
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8670
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8671
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8672
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_8673
Llanishen

AutoCAD SHX Text_8674
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8675
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8676
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8677
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8678
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_8679
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8680
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_8681
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8682
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_8683
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_8684
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_8685
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8686
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_8687
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8688
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_8689
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8690
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8691
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8692
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8693
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8694
HAVENWOOD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8695
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8696
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_8697
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8698
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8699
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8700
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8701
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8702
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8703
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8704
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8705
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8706
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8707
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8708
GARW

AutoCAD SHX Text_8709
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8710
CLOS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8711
CAE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8712
RHIANNON

AutoCAD SHX Text_8713
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8714
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8715
LOWFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8716
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_8717
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8718
l4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8719
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8720
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8721
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8722
lA

AutoCAD SHX Text_8723
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8724
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8725
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8726
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8727
l5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8728
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8729
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8730
2l

AutoCAD SHX Text_8731
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8732
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8733
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8734
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8735
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8736
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8737
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8738
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_8739
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_8740
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8741
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8742
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8743
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8744
CLOS-Y-CARLWM

AutoCAD SHX Text_8745
CLOS Y GWADD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8746
CLOS-Y-BROCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_8747
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8748
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8749
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8750
Ppg Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8751
Sewage

AutoCAD SHX Text_8752
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8753
90 to 112

AutoCAD SHX Text_8754
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8755
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8756
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8757
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8758
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_8759
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8760
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_8761
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8762
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8763
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_8764
The Acorns

AutoCAD SHX Text_8765
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_8766
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8767
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8768
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8769
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8770
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8771
CLOS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8772
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_8773
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_8774
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8775
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8776
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8777
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8778
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8779
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8780
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_8781
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8782
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8783
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8784
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8785
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8786
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8787
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8788
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8789
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8790
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8791
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8792
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8793
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8794
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8795
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8796
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8797
WIWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_8798
-Y-

AutoCAD SHX Text_8799
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8800
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_8801
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8802
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8803
66 to 88

AutoCAD SHX Text_8804
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8805
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8806
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8807
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8808
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8809
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_8810
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8811
HEOL-Y-CADNO

AutoCAD SHX Text_8812
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8813
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8814
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8815
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8816
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8817
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_8818
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_8819
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_8820
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_8821
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8822
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_8823
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_8824
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8825
Ty

AutoCAD SHX Text_8826
Newydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_8827
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8828
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8829
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8830
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_8831
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_8832
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8833
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_8834
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_8835
Ysgol y Wern

AutoCAD SHX Text_8836
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8837
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8838
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_8839
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8840
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8841
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8842
TINTAGEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_8843
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_8844
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_8845
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8846
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_8847
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_8848
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_8849
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8850
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_8851
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_8852
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8853
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_8854
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_8855
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8856
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_8857
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_8858
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_8859
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_8860
Coedcochwyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_8861
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_8862
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_8863
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8864
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8865
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8866
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8867
BARDSEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_8868
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_8869
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_8870
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_8871
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8872
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8873
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_8874
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8875
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_8876
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8877
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_8878
DEGANWY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8879
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_8880
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_8881
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8882
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8883
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_8884
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8885
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8886
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8887
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8888
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8889
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_8890
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_8891
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_8892
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8893
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8894
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8895
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8896
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_8897
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8898
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8899
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_8900
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8901
BEDAVERE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8902
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8903
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8904
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_8905
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8906
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8907
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_8908
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8909
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8910
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8911
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8912
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_8913
LAUNCELOT CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8914
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_8915
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8916
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8917
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_8918
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_8919
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_8920
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_8921
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_8922
PW

AutoCAD SHX Text_8923
BETHEL PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8924
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_8925
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_8926
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_8927
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8928
LAUNCELOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8929
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_8930
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_8931
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_8932
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_8933
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8934
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_8935
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_8936
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_8937
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_8938
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8939
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_8940
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_8941
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_8942
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_8943
(dis)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8944
Heap

AutoCAD SHX Text_8945
Golf Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_8946
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_8947
Llanishen

AutoCAD SHX Text_8948
Hendre Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_8949
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_8950
Red Barns

AutoCAD SHX Text_8951
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_8952
137.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8953
White Willows

AutoCAD SHX Text_8954
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8955
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8956
ORCHARD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_8957
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_8958
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_8959
Pen Rhos

AutoCAD SHX Text_8960
CHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text_8961
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8962
CLOS Y DRYW

AutoCAD SHX Text_8963
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_8964
M 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_8965
CLOS Y HEBOG

AutoCAD SHX Text_8966
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8967
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8968
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8969
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_8970
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_8971
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8972
Co Const, Asly Const, Asly ER, UA & C Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_8973
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8974
Tk S

AutoCAD SHX Text_8975
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_8976
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_8977
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_8978
Cottage Maurice

AutoCAD SHX Text_8979
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_8980
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_8981
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_8982
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_8983
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_8984
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8985
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_8986
Air Shaft

AutoCAD SHX Text_8987
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8988
147.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8989
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8990
147.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8991
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_8992
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_8993
Craig Llanisen

AutoCAD SHX Text_8994
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8995
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8996
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_8997
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_8998
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_8999
Club House

AutoCAD SHX Text_9000
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9001
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_9002
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9003
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_9004
Sheep Wash

AutoCAD SHX Text_9005
Drains

AutoCAD SHX Text_9006
FAIRTHORN

AutoCAD SHX Text_9007
2l6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9008
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9009
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_9010
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9011
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9012
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9013
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9014
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9015
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9016
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9017
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9018
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9019
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9020
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9021
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_9022
CLOS

AutoCAD SHX Text_9023
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_9024
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9025
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9026
-Y-

AutoCAD SHX Text_9027
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9028
224

AutoCAD SHX Text_9029
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9030
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9031
221

AutoCAD SHX Text_9032
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9033
RAMBLER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9034
Llanishen Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_9035
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9036
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_9037
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9038
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9039
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9040
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9041
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9042
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9043
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9044
CANTREF CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9045
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9046
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9047
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9048
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9049
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9050
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9051
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9052
HEOL Y BARCUD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9053
FRAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_9054
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_9055
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9056
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9057
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9058
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_9059
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9060
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9061
l

AutoCAD SHX Text_9062
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9063
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9064
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9065
42 to 64

AutoCAD SHX Text_9066
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9067
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9068
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9069
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9070
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9071
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9072
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9073
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9074
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9075
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9076
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_9077
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9078
135.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9079
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9080
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9081
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9082
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9083
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9084
HEOL Y BARCUD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9085
HEOL LLINOS

AutoCAD SHX Text_9086
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9087
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9088
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9089
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9090
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9091
l9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9092
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9093
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9094
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9095
CLOS YR ALARCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_9096
11 to 39

AutoCAD SHX Text_9097
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9098
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9099
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9100
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9101
CLOS YR EOS

AutoCAD SHX Text_9102
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9103
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9104
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9105
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9106
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9107
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9108
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9109
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9110
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9111
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9112
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9113
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9114
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9115
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9116
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9117
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9118
Heol-hir

AutoCAD SHX Text_9119
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9120
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9121
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9122
CLOS

AutoCAD SHX Text_9123
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_9124
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9125
4l

AutoCAD SHX Text_9126
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9127
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9128
CLOS Y GWALCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_9129
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9130
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9131
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9132
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_9133
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_9134
CEFN ONN MEADOWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_9135
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9136
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9137
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9138
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9139
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9140
Heol-hir

AutoCAD SHX Text_9141
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9142
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9143
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9144
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9145
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9146
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9147
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9148
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9149
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9150
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_9151
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9152
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9153
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9154
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9155
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9156
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9157
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_9158
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_9159
ED BDy

AutoCAD SHX Text_9160
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_9161
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_9162
CAPEL GWILYM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9163
DRAENOG

AutoCAD SHX Text_9164
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9165
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9166
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9167
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9168
Nant Ddu

AutoCAD SHX Text_9169
Ty  Glas

AutoCAD SHX Text_9170
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_9171
Ty  Nant

AutoCAD SHX Text_9172
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_9173
Llanishen Leisure Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_9174
Ffynnon Las

AutoCAD SHX Text_9175
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9176
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9177
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9178
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9179
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9180
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9181
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9182
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9183
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9184
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_9185
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9186
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_9187
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9188
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9189
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9190
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_9191
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9192
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_9193
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9194
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9195
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9196
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9197
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9198
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9199
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9200
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9201
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9202
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_9203
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9204
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9205
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9206
Factory

AutoCAD SHX Text_9207
Ty Glas Retail Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_9208
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9209
Llys Pegasus

AutoCAD SHX Text_9210
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9211
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9212
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9213
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9214
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9215
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9216
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9217
Dunroaming

AutoCAD SHX Text_9218
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9219
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_9220
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9221
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9222
Parc Ty Glas Industrial Estate

AutoCAD SHX Text_9223
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9224
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_9225
EARLSWOOD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9226
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9227
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9228
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9229
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9230
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_9231
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9232
Changing Rooms

AutoCAD SHX Text_9233
45.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9234
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_9235
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9236
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9237
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9238
WATTON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9239
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9240
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9241
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9242
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9243
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_9244
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9245
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_9246
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9247
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9248
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9249
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9250
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_9251
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9252
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9253
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_9254
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9255
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9256
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9257
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_9258
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_9259
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9260
NEWBOROUGH AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9261
TRECASTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9262
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9263
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9264
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9265
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9266
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9267
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_9268
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9269
TEGFAN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9270
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_9271
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9272
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9273
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9274
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_9275
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9276
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_9277
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9278
38 to 48

AutoCAD SHX Text_9279
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9280
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9281
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9282
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9283
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9284
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_9285
BLUE HOUSE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9286
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_9287
LUNDY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9288
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_9289
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9290
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9291
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9292
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9293
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9294
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9295
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9296
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_9297
1 to 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_9298
Dumbelling

AutoCAD SHX Text_9299
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9300
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9301
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9302
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9303
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9304
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9305
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9306
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9307
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9308
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_9309
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_9310
PARC TY GLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_9311
ILEX CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9312
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_9313
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_9314
St Isan

AutoCAD SHX Text_9315
Llanishen Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_9316
CHEAM PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9317
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_9318
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9319
Old People's Home

AutoCAD SHX Text_9320
Homelong

AutoCAD SHX Text_9321
The Orchards

AutoCAD SHX Text_9322
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_9323
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_9324
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9325
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9326
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9327
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9328
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9329
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9330
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9331
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_9332
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9333
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_9334
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_9335
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9336
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_9337
1 to 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9338
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9339
46.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9340
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9341
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_9342
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9343
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9344
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9345
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9346
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_9347
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_9348
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_9349
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9350
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_9351
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9352
Skatepark

AutoCAD SHX Text_9353
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9354
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_9355
Cwrt

AutoCAD SHX Text_9356
Glas

AutoCAD SHX Text_9357
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_9358
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9359
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9360
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9361
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9362
TY GLAS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9363
MAES-Y-COED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9364
Mast (Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9365
30.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9366
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_9367
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9368
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9369
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_9370
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9371
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_9372
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9373
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9374
255

AutoCAD SHX Text_9375
253

AutoCAD SHX Text_9376
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_9377
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_9378
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9379
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9380
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9381
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9382
The Three Arches

AutoCAD SHX Text_9383
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9384
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9385
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9386
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9387
Spreads

AutoCAD SHX Text_9388
Cycle Way

AutoCAD SHX Text_9389
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9390
22b

AutoCAD SHX Text_9391
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text_9392
1B

AutoCAD SHX Text_9393
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9394
10 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9395
Yr Arglawdd

AutoCAD SHX Text_9396
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_9397
Boro Const, Asly Const and ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_9398
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_9399
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_9400
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_9401
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_9402
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9403
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_9404
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_9405
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9406
Exchange

AutoCAD SHX Text_9407
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9408
29.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9409
27.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9410
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9411
28.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9412
WINGATE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9413
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9414
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9415
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9416
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9417
26.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9418
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_9419
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9420
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9421
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9422
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_9423
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9424
DUFFRYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_9425
HEATHWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9426
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9427
FIDLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_9428
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9429
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_9430
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9431
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9432
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9433
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9434
217

AutoCAD SHX Text_9435
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9436
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_9437
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9438
235

AutoCAD SHX Text_9439
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9440
29.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9441
243

AutoCAD SHX Text_9442
THREE ARCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_9443
266

AutoCAD SHX Text_9444
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9445
Llanishen

AutoCAD SHX Text_9446
286

AutoCAD SHX Text_9447
272

AutoCAD SHX Text_9448
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9449
Telephone

AutoCAD SHX Text_9450
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_9451
312

AutoCAD SHX Text_9452
28.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9453
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9454
263

AutoCAD SHX Text_9455
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_9456
Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_9457
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9458
31.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9459
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_9460
Llanishen

AutoCAD SHX Text_9461
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9462
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9463
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_9464
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9465
251

AutoCAD SHX Text_9466
WINGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9467
259

AutoCAD SHX Text_9468
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9469
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9470
211

AutoCAD SHX Text_9471
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9472
257

AutoCAD SHX Text_9473
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9474
HEATH HALT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9475
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9476
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9477
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9478
203

AutoCAD SHX Text_9479
205a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9480
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9481
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_9482
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9483
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9484
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9485
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9486
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9487
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9488
CRYSTAL WOOD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9489
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9490
CRYSTAL WOOD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9491
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9492
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9493
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9494
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9495
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9496
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9497
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9498
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9499
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9500
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9501
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9502
WAVELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_9503
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9504
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9505
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9506
ST CENYDD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9507
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_9508
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9509
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9510
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_9511
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9512
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9513
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9514
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9515
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9516
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9517
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9518
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9519
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9520
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9521
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9522
CHESHIRE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9523
CRYSTAL GLEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_9524
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9525
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9526
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9527
CRYSTAL RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9528
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9529
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9530
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9531
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9532
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_9533
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9534
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9535
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9536
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_9537
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9538
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9539
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_9540
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9541
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9542
VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_9543
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9544
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9545
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9546
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9547
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9548
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9549
HEATHWOOD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9550
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9551
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9552
35.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9553
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9554
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_9555
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9556
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9557
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9558
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9559
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9560
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9561
GLEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_9562
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9563
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9564
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9565
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9566
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9567
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9568
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9569
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9570
BADER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9571
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_9572
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9573
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9574
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_9575
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9576
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9577
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9578
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9579
MP .5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9580
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9581
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9582
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9583
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9584
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9585
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9586
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9587
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9588
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9589
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9590
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9591
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9592
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_9593
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_9594
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_9595
Viaduct

AutoCAD SHX Text_9596
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_9597
20a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9598
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_9599
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9600
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9601
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_9602
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9603
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9604
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9605
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9606
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_9607
79b

AutoCAD SHX Text_9608
79a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9609
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9610
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_9611
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_9612
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9613
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9614
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9615
BERRYMEAD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9616
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9617
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9618
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_9619
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9620
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9621
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9622
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_9623
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9624
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9625
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_9626
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9627
29.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9628
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9629
RHYD-Y-PENAU ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9630
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9631
30.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9632
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_9633
34.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9634
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9635
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_9636
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9637
23a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9638
Nant-fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_9639
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_9640
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9641
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9642
DAN-Y-COED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9643
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9644
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9645
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9646
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_9647
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9648
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_9649
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9650
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_9651
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9652
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9653
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9654
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9655
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_9656
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_9657
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_9658
30.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9659
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_9660
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9661
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9662
Rhydypenau Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_9663
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_9664
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_9665
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9666
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9667
40a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9668
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9669
46 to 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_9670
to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9671
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_9672
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9673
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9674
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9675
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9676
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9677
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9678
28 to 36

AutoCAD SHX Text_9679
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9680
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9681
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9682
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9683
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9684
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9685
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9686
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9687
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9688
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_9689
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9690
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_9691
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9692
10 to 18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9693
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9694
Iorwerth Jones Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_9695
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9696
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9697
Llanishen Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_9698
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9699
Boro Const, Asly Const and ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_9700
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_9701
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_9702
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_9703
32a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9704
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_9705
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9706
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_9707
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_9708
10 to 14

AutoCAD SHX Text_9709
42.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9710
FISHGUARD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9711
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_9712
FIDLAS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9713
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9714
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9715
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_9716
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9717
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9718
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9719
17 to 21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9720
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9721
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_9722
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_9723
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9724
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_9725
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_9726
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_9727
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9728
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9729
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_9730
52 to 58

AutoCAD SHX Text_9731
44 to 50

AutoCAD SHX Text_9732
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_9733
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9734
11 to 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9735
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_9736
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_9737
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9738
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9739
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_9740
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_9741
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_9742
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_9743
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9744
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_9745
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_9746
39.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9747
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9748
34 to 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9749
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9750
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_9751
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_9752
34a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9753
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_9754
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9755
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9756
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_9757
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_9758
PENAU CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9759
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_9760
RC Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_9761
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_9762
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9763
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9764
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9765
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9766
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_9767
36.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9768
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9769
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_9770
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9771
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9772
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9773
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9774
HEATHBROOK

AutoCAD SHX Text_9775
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9776
RHYD-Y-

AutoCAD SHX Text_9777
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9778
Presbytery

AutoCAD SHX Text_9779
FIDLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_9780
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_9781
18a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9782
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9783
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_9784
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9785
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_9786
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9787
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9788
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9789
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9790
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9791
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9792
St Brigid's

AutoCAD SHX Text_9793
KANE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9794
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_9795
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_9796
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9797
211

AutoCAD SHX Text_9798
PORTFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9799
179a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9800
TRENCHARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9801
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_9802
TEDDER CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9803
153

AutoCAD SHX Text_9804
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_9805
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_9806
Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_9807
CRYSTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_9808
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9809
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9810
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9811
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_9812
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9813
201

AutoCAD SHX Text_9814
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_9815
Emmaus

AutoCAD SHX Text_9816
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9817
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_9818
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_9819
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9820
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_9821
181

AutoCAD SHX Text_9822
37 to 45

AutoCAD SHX Text_9823
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9824
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_9825
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9826
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_9827
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_9828
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_9829
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_9830
37.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9831
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_9832
HEOL MERLIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_9833
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_9834
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_9835
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_9836
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_9837
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_9838
163

AutoCAD SHX Text_9839
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9840
48a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9841
GLEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_9842
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9843
to

AutoCAD SHX Text_9844
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9845
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9846
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_9847
36.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9848
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9849
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9850
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9851
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_9852
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_9853
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_9854
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_9855
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9856
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_9857
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_9858
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9859
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_9860
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_9861
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_9862
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9863
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9864
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9865
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9866
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_9867
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9868
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9869
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9870
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9871
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9872
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9873
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9874
TRENCHARD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9875
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9876
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9877
GIBSON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9878
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_9879
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9880
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_9881
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9882
Llanishen Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_9883
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_9884
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9885
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9886
HANNAH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9887
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_9888
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_9889
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9890
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_9891
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_9892
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_9893
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_9894
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9895
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9896
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_9897
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9898
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_9899
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_9900
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9901
46a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9902
Hockey Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_9903
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9904
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_9905
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9906
BRAMBLEWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9907
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_9908
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_9909
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_9910
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_9911
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_9912
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_9913
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9914
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_9915
85 to 91

AutoCAD SHX Text_9916
33a

AutoCAD SHX Text_9917
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_9918
Education

AutoCAD SHX Text_9919
Community

AutoCAD SHX Text_9920
Llanishen

AutoCAD SHX Text_9921
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9922
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_9923
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_9924
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_9925
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9926
(Ysgol Gynradd RC Crist y Brenin)

AutoCAD SHX Text_9927
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_9928
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9929
Christ the King RC Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_9930
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9931
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9932
STATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9933
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_9934
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_9935
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9936
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9937
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_9938
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_9939
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_9940
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_9941
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9942
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9943
EVEREST WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_9944
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9945
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_9946
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_9947
HUNT CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9948
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_9949
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9950
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_9951
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9952
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9953
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9954
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_9955
Residential Home

AutoCAD SHX Text_9956
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_9957
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9958
Llanishen High School

AutoCAD SHX Text_9959
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9960
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9961
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_9962
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_9963
Cartref

AutoCAD SHX Text_9964
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9965
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_9966
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_9967
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9968
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_9969
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9970
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9971
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9972
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9973
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9974
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_9975
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_9976
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9977
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_9978
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_9979
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_9980
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_9981
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9982
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_9983
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_9984
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9985
HILLARY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9986
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9987
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_9988
TENSING

AutoCAD SHX Text_9989
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_9990
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_9991
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9992
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_9993
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_9994
EVEREST

AutoCAD SHX Text_9995
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_9996
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_9997
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_9998
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_9999
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10000
Mill Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_10001
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_10002
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10003
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_10004
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_10005
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_10006
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10007
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10008
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_10009
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_10010
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10011
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_10012
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10013
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_10014
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10015
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_10016
DOMBEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_10017
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_10018
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10019
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_10020
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10021
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10022
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_10023
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_10024
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10025
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_10026
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_10027
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10028
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_10029
CHERRYDOWN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10030
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_10031
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10032
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_10033
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_10034
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_10035
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10036
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10037
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10038
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10039
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10040
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_10041
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_10042
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_10043
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_10044
WHITEACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10045
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10046
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_10047
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_10048
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_10049
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_10050
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_10051
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10052
BROOKVIEW CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10053
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10054
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10055
COTTAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10056
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10057
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10058
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_10059
CHERITON

AutoCAD SHX Text_10060
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_10061
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10062
SPRING GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10063
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10064
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_10065
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10066
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10067
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10068
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_10069
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10070
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10071
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10072
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_10073
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10074
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10075
BRIARMEADOW DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10076
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10077
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10078
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10079
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10080
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10081
CEINACH

AutoCAD SHX Text_10082
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_10083
BELGRAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10084
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10085
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10086
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10087
BRAMBLING DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10088
2O6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10089
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10090
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10091
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10092
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10093
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10094
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10095
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10096
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10097
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10098
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10099
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10100
THORNWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_10101
MAYFAIR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10102
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10103
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10104
208

AutoCAD SHX Text_10105
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10106
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10107
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10108
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10109
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10110
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10111
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10112
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10113
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10114
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10115
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10116
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_10117
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10118
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10119
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10120
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10121
CLOS-Y-

AutoCAD SHX Text_10122
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10123
211

AutoCAD SHX Text_10124
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10125
2OO

AutoCAD SHX Text_10126
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10127
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10128
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10129
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10130
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_10131
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_10132
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_10133
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10134
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_10135
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10136
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10137
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_10138
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_10139
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10140
11a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10141
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10142
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_10143
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10144
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_10145
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_10146
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10147
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_10148
HILLCREST CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10149
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_10150
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_10151
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10152
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_10153
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_10154
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10155
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10156
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10157
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10158
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_10159
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_10160
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10161
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_10162
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10163
PINECREST DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10164
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_10165
Thornhill Primary

AutoCAD SHX Text_10166
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_10167
OAKRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10168
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_10169
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_10170
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_10171
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_10172
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_10173
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_10174
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_10175
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_10176
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_10177
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10178
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10179
RAGNAL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10180
BROOKVALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10181
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_10182
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_10183
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10184
RAGNALL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10185
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10186
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10187
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10188
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10189
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10190
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10191
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_10192
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10193
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10194
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10195
SHAFTESBURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_10196
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10197
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10198
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10199
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_10200
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10201
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10202
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10203
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10204
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10205
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10206
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10207
BROOKVALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10208
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10209
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_10210
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10211
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10212
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_10213
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10214
CRAWLEY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10215
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_10216
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_10217
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10218
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10219
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10220
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_10221
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_10222
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_10223
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_10224
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_10225
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_10226
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_10227
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_10228
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_10229
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_10230
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_10231
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_10232
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_10233
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_10234
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_10235
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_10236
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_10237
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_10238
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_10239
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_10240
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_10241
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_10242
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_10243
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_10244
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_10245
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_10246
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10247
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10248
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10249
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10250
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10251
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10252
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10253
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10254
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10255
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_10256
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10257
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10258
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10259
WOODLAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_10260
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10261
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_10262
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10263
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10264
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10265
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10266
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10267
The Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_10268
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10269
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10270
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_10271
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10272
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10273
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10274
CAVENDISH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10275
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_10276
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10277
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10278
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10279
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_10280
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10281
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10282
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10283
l

AutoCAD SHX Text_10284
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10285
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10286
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_10287
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10288
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10289
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_10290
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_10291
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_10292
KENNINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_10293
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_10294
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_10295
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_10296
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_10297
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_10298
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_10299
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_10300
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10301
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10302
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_10303
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10304
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10305
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_10306
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10307
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10308
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_10309
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10310
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_10311
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_10312
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10313
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10314
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_10315
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10316
EXCALIBUR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10317
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_10318
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10319
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10320
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_10321
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10322
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10323
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_10324
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_10325
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_10326
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_10327
Upper

AutoCAD SHX Text_10328
Farm Ho

AutoCAD SHX Text_10329
Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_10330
Oakridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_10331
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_10332
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_10333
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_10334
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_10335
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10336
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_10337
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_10338
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_10339
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10340
Crematorium and Cemetery

AutoCAD SHX Text_10341
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_10342
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_10343
(Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10344
Spreads

AutoCAD SHX Text_10345
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10346
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_10347
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_10348
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_10349
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_10350
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_10351
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_10352
Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text_10353
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_10354
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_10355
A469

AutoCAD SHX Text_10356
BASSETTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10357
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_10358
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_10359
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10360
Nant y

AutoCAD SHX Text_10361
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10362
2l

AutoCAD SHX Text_10363
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_10364
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10365
Nant y Briwnant

AutoCAD SHX Text_10366
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10367
LUCERNE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10368
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10369
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_10370
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_10371
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_10372
Malvern House

AutoCAD SHX Text_10373
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_10374
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_10375
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_10376
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_10377
62-72

AutoCAD SHX Text_10378
63-65

AutoCAD SHX Text_10379
55-57

AutoCAD SHX Text_10380
67-69

AutoCAD SHX Text_10381
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10382
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_10383
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10384
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10385
Stables

AutoCAD SHX Text_10386
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10387
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_10388
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10389
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_10390
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_10391
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10392
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10393
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_10394
107.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10395
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_10396
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10397
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_10398
CHARLOCK CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10399
Sewage Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_10400
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_10401
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10402
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10403
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_10404
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_10405
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10406
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10407
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10408
WOODRUFF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_10409
DAN Y MYNYDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_10410
Coedifanbychan

AutoCAD SHX Text_10411
Manor Parc

AutoCAD SHX Text_10412
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_10413
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10414
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10415
TANSY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10416
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_10417
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_10418
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10419
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10420
Chapel Wenallt (Capel Wenallt)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10421
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_10422
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_10423
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_10424
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10425
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10426
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10427
85.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10428
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_10429
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10430
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10431
l9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10432
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10433
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10434
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10435
GARETH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10436
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10437
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10438
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_10439
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10440
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_10441
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_10442
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10443
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10444
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10445
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10446
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10447
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10448
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_10449
PEN-Y-CEFN

AutoCAD SHX Text_10450
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_10451
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_10452
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10453
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10454
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10455
GAWAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_10456
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10457
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_10458
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10459
Nant y Briwnant

AutoCAD SHX Text_10460
179.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10461
Craigbriwnant

AutoCAD SHX Text_10462
Foretop

AutoCAD SHX Text_10463
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10464
Craigbriwnant

AutoCAD SHX Text_10465
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_10466
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_10467
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10468
130.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10469
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10470
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_10471
158

AutoCAD SHX Text_10472
RHIWLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10473
74-76

AutoCAD SHX Text_10474
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10475
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10476
Sewage

AutoCAD SHX Text_10477
Ppg Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_10478
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_10479
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_10480
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_10481
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10482
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_10483
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_10484
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_10485
OCHR Y COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_10486
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10487
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_10488
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_10489
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10490
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_10491
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_10492
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10493
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10494
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_10495
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10496
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_10497
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10498
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10499
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10500
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_10501
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10502
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10503
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10504
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_10505
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_10506
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_10507
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10508
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_10509
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_10510
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10511
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10512
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_10513
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_10514
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_10515
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_10516
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_10517
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10518
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10519
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_10520
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10521
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_10522
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10523
BANKSIDE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10524
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10525
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10526
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10527
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10528
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_10529
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10530
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10531
MAYHILL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10532
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_10533
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10534
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10535
EXCALIBUR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10536
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_10537
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_10538
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10539
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10540
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10541
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10542
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_10543
CHERRYWOOD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10544
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10545
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_10546
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10547
171

AutoCAD SHX Text_10548
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10549
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_10550
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10551
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10552
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10553
79a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10554
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_10555
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_10556
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_10557
North Cardiff Medical

AutoCAD SHX Text_10558
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_10559
Meddygfa Gogledd Caerdydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_10560
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_10561
151 to 169

AutoCAD SHX Text_10562
GARRICK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10563
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10564
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10565
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_10566
EXCALIBUR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10567
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10568
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10569
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10570
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10571
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10572
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10573
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10574
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10575
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10576
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10577
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_10578
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10579
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10580
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_10581
APOLLO

AutoCAD SHX Text_10582
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10583
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10584
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10585
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10586
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10587
l7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10588
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10589
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10590
DRURY

AutoCAD SHX Text_10591
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10592
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10593
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10594
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10595
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10596
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_10597
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_10598
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_10599
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10600
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_10601
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10602
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10603
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10604
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_10605
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_10606
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_10607
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_10608
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_10609
NORWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_10610
Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_10611
Line of Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_10612
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_10613
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_10614
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10615
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_10616
THORNHILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_10617
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_10618
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10619
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_10620
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10621
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10622
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_10623
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10624
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_10625
ALDWYCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_10626
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10627
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10628
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_10629
WINDMILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_10630
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10631
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10632
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10633
LYRIC WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_10634
9a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10635
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10636
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_10637
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_10638
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_10639
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10640
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_10641
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10642
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_10643
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_10644
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10645
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_10646
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10647
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_10648
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_10649
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_10650
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10651
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10652
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10653
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10654
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_10655
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10656
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10657
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_10658
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_10659
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10660
ASTORIA

AutoCAD SHX Text_10661
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10662
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_10663
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10664
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10665
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10666
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10667
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10668
WIGMORE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10669
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_10670
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10671
Llanishen

AutoCAD SHX Text_10672
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_10673
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_10674
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_10675
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10676
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_10677
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10678
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10679
MERLIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_10680
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_10681
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_10682
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_10683
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10684
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10685
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10686
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10687
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10688
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_10689
PICKWICK CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10690
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10691
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_10692
COPPERFIELD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10693
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10694
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10695
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10696
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10697
9b

AutoCAD SHX Text_10698
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_10699
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10700
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10701
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10702
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10703
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10704
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10705
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_10706
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_10707
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_10708
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_10709
57.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10710
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_10711
52a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10712
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_10713
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_10714
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_10715
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_10716
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_10717
145

AutoCAD SHX Text_10718
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10719
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_10720
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10721
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_10722
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10723
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_10724
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10725
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10726
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_10727
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10728
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_10729
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10730
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_10731
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_10732
137

AutoCAD SHX Text_10733
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_10734
LLANGEFNI PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10735
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_10736
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_10737
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_10738
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_10739
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10740
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_10741
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_10742
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_10743
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_10744
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_10745
NEWBOROUGH

AutoCAD SHX Text_10746
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10747
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_10748
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_10749
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_10750
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_10751
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_10752
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_10753
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_10754
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_10755
LLANON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_10756
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_10757
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10758
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10759
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_10760
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_10761
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_10762
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10763
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_10764
GILWERN CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_10765
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_10766
Brentwood Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_10767
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_10768
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10769
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_10770
WOLFS CASTLE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10771
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_10772
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_10773
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_10774
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_10775
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_10776
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10777
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_10778
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10779
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_10780
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10781
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10782
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_10783
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10784
COED COCHWYN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10785
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10786
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10787
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10788
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_10789
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_10790
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_10791
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_10792
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_10793
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_10794
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_10795
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10796
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10797
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_10798
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10799
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10800
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_10801
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10802
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_10803
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_10804
GLENDALE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10805
115a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10806
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_10807
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_10808
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10809
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10810
Gilwern

AutoCAD SHX Text_10811
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_10812
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_10813
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_10814
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_10815
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_10816
TEMPLETON

AutoCAD SHX Text_10817
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10818
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10819
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10820
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10821
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10822
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_10823
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10824
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_10825
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10826
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_10827
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_10828
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10829
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10830
Douglas Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_10831
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_10832
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_10833
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10834
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_10835
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_10836
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_10837
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_10838
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_10839
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_10840
TEMPLETON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10841
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_10842
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_10843
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_10844
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10845
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10846
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_10847
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10848
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10849
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10850
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_10851
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_10852
1 to 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_10853
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10854
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_10855
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_10856
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_10857
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_10858
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_10859
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_10860
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_10861
69.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10862
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_10863
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_10864
Presbytery

AutoCAD SHX Text_10865
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_10866
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_10867
171

AutoCAD SHX Text_10868
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_10869
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_10870
TEMPLETON AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10871
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_10872
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10873
WOLFS CASTLE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10874
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_10875
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_10876
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10877
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_10878
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_10879
65.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10880
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_10881
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_10882
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_10883
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_10884
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10885
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10886
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10887
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_10888
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10889
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_10890
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_10891
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_10892
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_10893
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_10894
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_10895
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_10896
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10897
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_10898
LLANGRANOG ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_10899
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_10900
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_10901
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_10902
54.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10903
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_10904
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_10905
61.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10906
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_10907
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_10908
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_10909
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_10910
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_10911
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_10912
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_10913
Clinic

AutoCAD SHX Text_10914
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_10915
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10916
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_10917
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_10918
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_10919
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_10920
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_10921
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_10922
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_10923
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_10924
Shelters

AutoCAD SHX Text_10925
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_10926
RC Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_10927
Cefn Onn Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_10928
Wolf's Castle

AutoCAD SHX Text_10929
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10930
El Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_10931
Christ the King

AutoCAD SHX Text_10932
Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_10933
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_10934
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10935
Craig Llysfaen

AutoCAD SHX Text_10936
Coed y Graig

AutoCAD SHX Text_10937
239.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10938
260.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10939
Craig Llysfaen

AutoCAD SHX Text_10940
Cardiff High School

AutoCAD SHX Text_10941
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_10942
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_10943
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10944
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10945
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10946
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10947
PADARN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10948
36.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10949
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10950
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_10951
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10952
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_10953
27.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10954
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_10955
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_10956
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_10957
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10958
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10959
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_10960
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10961
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_10962
30.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10963
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_10964
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_10965
28.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10966
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_10967
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10968
l2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10969
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_10970
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10971
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_10972
NANT-FAWR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_10973
NANT-FAWR CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10974
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_10975
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_10976
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10977
32.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10978
PENDRAW PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10979
Wood's Covert

AutoCAD SHX Text_10980
30.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10981
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10982
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_10983
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10984
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10985
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_10986
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_10987
CELYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_10988
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10989
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_10990
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_10991
38.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10992
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_10993
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_10994
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_10995
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_10996
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_10997
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_10998
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_10999
NANT-FAWR CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_11000
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_11001
l4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11002
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_11003
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11004
58.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11005
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11006
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11007
221

AutoCAD SHX Text_11008
61.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11009
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_11010
262

AutoCAD SHX Text_11011
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_11012
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_11013
63.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11014
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11015
51.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11016
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_11017
227

AutoCAD SHX Text_11018
61.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11019
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_11020
58.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11021
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11022
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11023
l

AutoCAD SHX Text_11024
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11025
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11026
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11027
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11028
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11029
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11030
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_11031
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11032
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_11033
LLANDENNIS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11034
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_11035
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11036
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11037
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_11038
LLANDENNIS GREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_11039
LLANDENNIS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11040
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11041
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11042
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_11043
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_11044
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_11045
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11046
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_11047
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_11048
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_11049
36.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11050
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_11051
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_11052
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_11053
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_11054
43.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11055
DUFFRYN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11056
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_11057
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_11058
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11059
4l

AutoCAD SHX Text_11060
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11061
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11062
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11063
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_11064
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_11065
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_11066
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_11067
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_11068
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_11069
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_11070
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_11071
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_11072
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_11073
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_11074
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_11075
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11076
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_11077
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11078
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11079
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11080
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11081
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11082
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_11083
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11084
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11085
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11086
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_11087
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11088
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_11089
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_11090
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11091
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11092
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_11093
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_11094
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_11095
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11096
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11097
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_11098
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11099
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11100
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_11101
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11102
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_11103
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11104
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_11105
TUMMEL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11106
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11107
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11108
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_11109
OGWEN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11110
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11111
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_11112
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11113
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_11114
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_11115
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_11116
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_11117
PENNANT CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_11118
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_11119
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_11120
DUFFRYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_11121
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11122
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_11123
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11124
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_11125
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_11126
LLYN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11127
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_11128
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11129
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11130
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_11131
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11132
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_11133
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_11134
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_11135
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_11136
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_11137
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_11138
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_11139
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_11140
OGWEN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11141
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11142
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_11143
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_11144
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11145
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11146
GWYNANT CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_11147
CLAERWEN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11148
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11149
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11150
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11151
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11152
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_11153
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11154
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_11155
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11156
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_11157
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11158
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11159
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_11160
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11161
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_11162
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_11163
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_11164
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_11165
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_11166
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_11167
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_11168
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_11169
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_11170
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_11171
Palace

AutoCAD SHX Text_11172
41.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11173
61.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11174
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_11175
ALLTMAWR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11176
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11177
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11178
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11179
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11180
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_11181
58.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11182
Brynhill

AutoCAD SHX Text_11183
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11184
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11185
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11186
CYNCOED RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11187
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11188
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11189
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11190
Allens Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_11191
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11192
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_11193
56.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11194
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11195
DUFFRYN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11196
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11197
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11198
239

AutoCAD SHX Text_11199
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_11200
1 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11201
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11202
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_11203
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11204
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_11205
64.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11206
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_11207
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11208
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11209
ST EDEYRNS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11210
39.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11211
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_11212
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_11213
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_11214
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11215
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_11216
HENLLYS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11217
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11218
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11219
DAN-Y-COED RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11220
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_11221
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11222
DAN-Y-COED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11223
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11224
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_11225
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_11226
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11227
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11228
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_11229
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11230
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11231
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11232
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11233
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11234
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_11235
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_11236
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11237
DAN-

AutoCAD SHX Text_11238
32.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11239
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_11240
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_11241
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11242
DAN-Y-COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_11243
33.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11244
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_11245
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11246
35.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11247
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_11248
37.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11249
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11250
-COED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11251
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11252
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11253
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_11254
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_11255
(Telecommunication)

AutoCAD SHX Text_11256
Willowfield Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_11257
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11258
Cotswold Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_11259
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11260
b

AutoCAD SHX Text_11261
126

AutoCAD SHX Text_11262
Ifor Jones Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_11263
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_11264
250

AutoCAD SHX Text_11265
207

AutoCAD SHX Text_11266
66.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11267
199

AutoCAD SHX Text_11268
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_11269
227

AutoCAD SHX Text_11270
64.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11271
220

AutoCAD SHX Text_11272
226

AutoCAD SHX Text_11273
148 to 151

AutoCAD SHX Text_11274
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_11275
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_11276
232

AutoCAD SHX Text_11277
193

AutoCAD SHX Text_11278
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_11279
143

AutoCAD SHX Text_11280
144 to 147

AutoCAD SHX Text_11281
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_11282
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_11283
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_11284
260

AutoCAD SHX Text_11285
219a

AutoCAD SHX Text_11286
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11287
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11288
219

AutoCAD SHX Text_11289
Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_11290
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11291
252

AutoCAD SHX Text_11292
Lych

AutoCAD SHX Text_11293
Blandings Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_11294
215

AutoCAD SHX Text_11295
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_11296
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_11297
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11298
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11299
RANNOCH DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11300
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_11301
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_11302
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_11303
CLARENDON

AutoCAD SHX Text_11304
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_11305
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_11306
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_11307
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_11308
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_11309
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_11310
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_11311
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_11312
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11313
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_11314
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_11315
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_11316
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_11317
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_11318
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_11319
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_11320
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_11321
164 to 167

AutoCAD SHX Text_11322
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_11323
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_11324
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_11325
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_11326
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_11327
Glenwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_11328
Glenwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_11329
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11330
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_11331
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_11332
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_11333
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_11334
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_11335
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_11336
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_11337
253

AutoCAD SHX Text_11338
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_11339
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_11340
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_11341
LLANGORSE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11342
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_11343
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11344
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11345
49.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11346
LLANGORSE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11347
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_11348
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_11349
302

AutoCAD SHX Text_11350
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11351
314

AutoCAD SHX Text_11352
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11353
52.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11354
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_11355
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11356
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_11357
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_11358
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11359
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11360
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11361
43.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11362
LLYSWEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11363
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_11364
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11365
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11366
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_11367
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_11368
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11369
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11370
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11371
HENLLYS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11372
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11373
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11374
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11375
251

AutoCAD SHX Text_11376
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_11377
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11378
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_11379
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11380
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11381
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11382
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_11383
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_11384
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11385
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_11386
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_11387
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11388
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_11389
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_11390
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_11391
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_11392
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11393
88A

AutoCAD SHX Text_11394
BETTWS-Y-COED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11395
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_11396
88B

AutoCAD SHX Text_11397
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_11398
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11399
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11400
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11401
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11402
33.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11403
271

AutoCAD SHX Text_11404
(Childrens Nursery)

AutoCAD SHX Text_11405
Priory House

AutoCAD SHX Text_11406
Nursing Home

AutoCAD SHX Text_11407
71.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11408
STATION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11409
Ty-Coch

AutoCAD SHX Text_11410
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11411
Gower

AutoCAD SHX Text_11412
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_11413
Ysgol-y-Llys

AutoCAD SHX Text_11414
34a

AutoCAD SHX Text_11415
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11416
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11417
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11418
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11419
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_11420
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_11421
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11422
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11423
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11424
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_11425
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11426
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_11427
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_11428
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11429
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_11430
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11431
Rosapenna Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_11432
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_11433
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11434
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11435
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11436
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11437
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11438
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_11439
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11440
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11441
The Court School

AutoCAD SHX Text_11442
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_11443
Beaumont House

AutoCAD SHX Text_11444
NORTH RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11445
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_11446
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_11447
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_11448
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11449
Oldgate

AutoCAD SHX Text_11450
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11451
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11452
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11453
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_11454
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_11455
66.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11456
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_11457
MARION

AutoCAD SHX Text_11458
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_11459
Mont

AutoCAD SHX Text_11460
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_11461
63.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11462
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_11463
Llanishen

AutoCAD SHX Text_11464
Thornton

AutoCAD SHX Text_11465
LISVANE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11466
Coach House

AutoCAD SHX Text_11467
Foxcroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_11468
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11469
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11470
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_11471
WEST RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11472
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_11473
The Rise

AutoCAD SHX Text_11474
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_11475
NEWLANDS COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_11476
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_11477
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_11478
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_11479
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11480
Dene

AutoCAD SHX Text_11481
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11482
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11483
Rosapenna House

AutoCAD SHX Text_11484
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_11485
Beverley Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_11486
THE RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11487
1 to 36

AutoCAD SHX Text_11488
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11489
Rosapenna

AutoCAD SHX Text_11490
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_11491
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11492
Beach

AutoCAD SHX Text_11493
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11494
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_11495
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11496
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_11497
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_11498
SOUTH RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11499
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11500
Wellington House

AutoCAD SHX Text_11501
Copper

AutoCAD SHX Text_11502
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_11503
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_11504
THE GLADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11505
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_11506
Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_11507
65.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11508
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11509
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_11510
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_11511
Clair

AutoCAD SHX Text_11512
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_11513
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11514
Redwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_11515
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11516
Allotment Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_11517
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_11518
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_11519
SOUTH RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11520
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_11521
70.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11522
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_11523
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11524
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_11525
Cornerstones

AutoCAD SHX Text_11526
Beverley Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_11527
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11528
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_11529
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_11530
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_11531
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_11532
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11533
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11534
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11535
Weirs

AutoCAD SHX Text_11536
Weirs

AutoCAD SHX Text_11537
Weirs

AutoCAD SHX Text_11538
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_11539
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_11540
Boro Const, Asly Const and ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_11541
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_11542
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_11543
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_11544
Nant-fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_11545
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_11546
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_11547
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_11548
Rain Gauge

AutoCAD SHX Text_11549
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_11550
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_11551
Spreads

AutoCAD SHX Text_11552
Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_11553
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_11554
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_11555
Sump

AutoCAD SHX Text_11556
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_11557
Sloping

AutoCAD SHX Text_11558
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_11559
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_11560
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_11561
Sloping masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_11562
masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_11563
Llanishen Reservoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_11564
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_11565
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_11566
Parc Rhyd-y-penau

AutoCAD SHX Text_11567
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_11568
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_11569
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_11570
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_11571
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11572
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_11573
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11574
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11575
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11576
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11577
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_11578
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11579
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_11580
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_11581
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_11582
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_11583
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_11584
CW

AutoCAD SHX Text_11585
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_11586
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_11587
Boro Const, Asly Const and ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_11588
Boro Const, Asly Const and ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_11589
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_11590
89b

AutoCAD SHX Text_11591
89a

AutoCAD SHX Text_11592
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_11593
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11594
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_11595
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_11596
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_11597
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_11598
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11599
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11600
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_11601
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_11602
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_11603
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11604
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_11605
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11606
MABERLY COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_11607
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11608
EWENNY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11609
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_11610
43.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11611
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11612
96a

AutoCAD SHX Text_11613
FIDLAS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11614
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_11615
45.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11616
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11617
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_11618
44.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11619
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11620
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11621
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_11622
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11623
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_11624
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11625
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_11626
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11627
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11628
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11629
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_11630
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_11631
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11632
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_11633
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_11634
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_11635
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11636
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_11637
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11638
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_11639
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11640
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_11641
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11642
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_11643
140

AutoCAD SHX Text_11644
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11645
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_11646
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_11647
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_11648
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11649
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_11650
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11651
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11652
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_11653
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_11654
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11655
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11656
ELAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11657
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11658
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11659
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11660
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11661
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_11662
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_11663
TOWY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11664
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_11665
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11666
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11667
79A

AutoCAD SHX Text_11668
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_11669
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_11670
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_11671
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_11672
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_11673
Parc Rhyd-y-Penau

AutoCAD SHX Text_11674
17 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11675
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_11676
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_11677
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_11678
Woodborough

AutoCAD SHX Text_11679
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_11680
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_11681
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_11682
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_11683
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11684
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_11685
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_11686
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_11687
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11688
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11689
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11690
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_11691
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_11692
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_11693
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_11694
THE RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11695
EAST RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11696
MP 4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11697
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_11698
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_11699
SOUTH RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11700
Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_11701
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11702
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_11703
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_11704
RHEIDOL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11705
Gwernybendy

AutoCAD SHX Text_11706
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11707
WEST RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11708
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_11709
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11710
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_11711
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_11712
Nant-fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_11713
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11714
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11715
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11716
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11717
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_11718
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_11719
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_11720
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11721
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11722
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_11723
Durwen

AutoCAD SHX Text_11724
Nant-fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_11725
USK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11726
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11727
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_11728
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_11729
SOLVA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11730
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11731
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_11732
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_11733
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11734
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_11735
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11736
Rugby Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_11737
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_11738
El Sub Stas

AutoCAD SHX Text_11739
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_11740
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_11741
105a

AutoCAD SHX Text_11742
105c

AutoCAD SHX Text_11743
105b

AutoCAD SHX Text_11744
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_11745
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11746
45.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11747
Sluice

AutoCAD SHX Text_11748
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11749
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_11750
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11751
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11752
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11753
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11754
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11755
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11756
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_11757
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_11758
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_11759
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11760
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11761
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11762
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11763
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11764
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11765
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_11766
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11767
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_11768
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_11769
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_11770
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_11771
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11772
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_11773
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11774
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_11775
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11776
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_11777
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_11778
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_11779
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_11780
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11781
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11782
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_11783
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_11784
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11785
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_11786
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_11787
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_11788
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11789
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11790
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11791
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11792
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_11793
Glan

AutoCAD SHX Text_11794
Hafren

AutoCAD SHX Text_11795
Hafren

AutoCAD SHX Text_11796
Glan

AutoCAD SHX Text_11797
Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_11798
Inglewood

AutoCAD SHX Text_11799
Brookdale House

AutoCAD SHX Text_11800
Round House

AutoCAD SHX Text_11801
Glaslyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_11802
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_11803
Cwrtcefn

AutoCAD SHX Text_11804
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_11805
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_11806
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_11807
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_11808
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_11809
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11810
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_11811
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_11812
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11813
Ashford

AutoCAD SHX Text_11814
Cranford

AutoCAD SHX Text_11815
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_11816
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_11817
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11818
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_11819
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_11820
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_11821
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_11822
54b

AutoCAD SHX Text_11823
52a

AutoCAD SHX Text_11824
LONGLEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_11825
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_11826
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11827
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11828
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_11829
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11830
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11831
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11832
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_11833
CHARTWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_11834
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11835
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11836
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11837
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11838
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11839
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_11840
52b

AutoCAD SHX Text_11841
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11842
CWRT CEFN

AutoCAD SHX Text_11843
BUCKINGHAM CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11844
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_11845
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11846
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11847
Tryfan

AutoCAD SHX Text_11848
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_11849
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_11850
Brook Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_11851
Wrangbrook

AutoCAD SHX Text_11852
Glyn Pedr

AutoCAD SHX Text_11853
Westoe

AutoCAD SHX Text_11854
51.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11855
Bridge

AutoCAD SHX Text_11856
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11857
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_11858
WOODSIDE COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_11859
Little Beeches

AutoCAD SHX Text_11860
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11861
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11862
The Willows

AutoCAD SHX Text_11863
MILLGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11864
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_11865
Nant Fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_11866
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11867
West House

AutoCAD SHX Text_11868
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_11869
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_11870
Reflections

AutoCAD SHX Text_11871
Rasa Savana

AutoCAD SHX Text_11872
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11873
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11874
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_11875
CROFTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_11876
Nant Fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_11877
Antibes

AutoCAD SHX Text_11878
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_11879
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_11880
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11881
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11882
LISVANE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11883
52.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11884
Brookwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_11885
54a

AutoCAD SHX Text_11886
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_11887
Barnwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_11888
Barbrook Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_11889
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_11890
CWRT

AutoCAD SHX Text_11891
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_11892
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_11893
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_11894
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_11895
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_11896
Millstone

AutoCAD SHX Text_11897
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11898
TANGLEWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11899
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_11900
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11901
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11902
MILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11903
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_11904
Limetrees

AutoCAD SHX Text_11905
Brooklea Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_11906
CEFN

AutoCAD SHX Text_11907
Still Waters

AutoCAD SHX Text_11908
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_11909
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11910
Brindle

AutoCAD SHX Text_11911
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_11912
Pinecroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_11913
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11914
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11915
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_11916
Coach

AutoCAD SHX Text_11917
57.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11918
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_11919
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11920
Sylverne

AutoCAD SHX Text_11921
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_11922
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_11923
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_11924
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_11925
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_11926
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_11927
Bridge House

AutoCAD SHX Text_11928
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_11929
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_11930
The Orchard

AutoCAD SHX Text_11931
Ratan

AutoCAD SHX Text_11932
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_11933
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11934
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_11935
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11936
MP 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11937
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_11938
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_11939
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11940
FALFIELD CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11941
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_11942
Forest Lyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_11943
Brookside

AutoCAD SHX Text_11944
70.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_11945
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11946
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_11947
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_11948
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_11949
Villa

AutoCAD SHX Text_11950
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_11951
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_11952
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_11953
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11954
Llwyn-celyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_11955
Millhurst

AutoCAD SHX Text_11956
Iscoed

AutoCAD SHX Text_11957
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_11958
CLOS MELIN DDWR

AutoCAD SHX Text_11959
Millbrook

AutoCAD SHX Text_11960
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11961
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_11962
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11963
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11964
Heronston

AutoCAD SHX Text_11965
MILLHEATH

AutoCAD SHX Text_11966
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11967
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_11968
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_11969
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_11970
Hillcrest

AutoCAD SHX Text_11971
Blair Athol

AutoCAD SHX Text_11972
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_11973
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_11974
MILL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_11975
MILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_11976
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_11977
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11978
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11979
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11980
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11981
12b

AutoCAD SHX Text_11982
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11983
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11984
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11985
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_11986
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_11987
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_11988
15A

AutoCAD SHX Text_11989
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_11990
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_11991
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_11992
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_11993
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_11994
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_11995
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_11996
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_11997
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_11998
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_11999
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_12000
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_12001
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12002
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_12003
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12004
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_12005
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12006
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_12007
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_12008
OLD MILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12009
Mill

AutoCAD SHX Text_12010
MILLRACE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_12011
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_12012
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_12013
Millcroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_12014
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_12015
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_12016
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_12017
Nant Fawr

AutoCAD SHX Text_12018
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_12019
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_12020
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_12021
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_12022
60.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12023
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12024
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_12025
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_12026
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12027
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_12028
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_12029
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_12030
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_12031
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_12032
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_12033
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_12034
84.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12035
MILLWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12036
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_12037
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_12038
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_12039
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_12040
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_12041
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12042
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_12043
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_12044
HILLCOT CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_12045
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_12046
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_12047
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_12048
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_12049
MILLWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12050
Coedyfelin

AutoCAD SHX Text_12051
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_12052
66A

AutoCAD SHX Text_12053
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_12054
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_12055
Lisvane

AutoCAD SHX Text_12056
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_12057
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12058
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_12059
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_12060
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12061
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_12062
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_12063
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_12064
THE WOODLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_12065
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_12066
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_12067
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_12068
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_12069
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_12070
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_12071
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_12072
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_12073
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_12074
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_12075
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_12076
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_12077
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12078
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_12079
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_12080
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_12081
Outfall

AutoCAD SHX Text_12082
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_12083
MILLWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12084
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_12085
Pinwydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_12086
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_12087
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_12088
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_12089
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_12090
Rising Bollards

AutoCAD SHX Text_12091
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12092
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12093
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_12094
Rhyd-y-blewyn

AutoCAD SHX Text_12095
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_12096
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_12097
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_12098
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_12099
Boro Const & ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_12100
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_12101
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_12102
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_12103
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_12104
Boro Const, Asly Const and ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_12105
RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_12106
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_12107
49.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12108
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12109
BETTWS-Y-COED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12110
51.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12111
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_12112
49.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12113
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_12114
SHERBORNE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_12115
396

AutoCAD SHX Text_12116
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_12117
277

AutoCAD SHX Text_12118
49.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12119
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_12120
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_12121
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_12122
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_12123
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_12124
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_12125
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_12126
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_12127
WESTMINSTER CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_12128
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_12129
51.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12130
384

AutoCAD SHX Text_12131
358

AutoCAD SHX Text_12132
390

AutoCAD SHX Text_12133
CYNCOED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12134
52.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12135
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_12136
Sandwick Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_12137
BRYN-GWYN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12138
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12139
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_12140
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_12141
136

AutoCAD SHX Text_12142
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12143
151

AutoCAD SHX Text_12144
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_12145
360

AutoCAD SHX Text_12146
52.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12147
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_12148
141

AutoCAD SHX Text_12149
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_12150
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_12151
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_12152
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_12153
RHYD-Y-PENAU ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12154
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_12155
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_12156
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_12157
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_12158
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_12159
285

AutoCAD SHX Text_12160
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_12161
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_12162
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_12163
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12164
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_12165
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_12166
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_12167
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_12168
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_12169
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_12170
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_12171
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_12172
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_12173
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_12174
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_12175
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_12176
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_12177
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_12178
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_12179
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_12180
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_12181
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_12182
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12183
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_12184
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_12185
48.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12186
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_12187
GWERN-RHUDDI ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12188
32.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12189
305

AutoCAD SHX Text_12190
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_12191
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_12192
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_12193
402

AutoCAD SHX Text_12194
40.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12195
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_12196
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_12197
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_12198
50.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12199
315

AutoCAD SHX Text_12200
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_12201
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_12202
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_12203
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12204
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_12205
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_12206
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_12207
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_12208
Rhydypennau Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_12209
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_12210
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12211
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12212
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_12213
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_12214
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_12215
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_12216
HACKERFORD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12217
416

AutoCAD SHX Text_12218
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_12219
428

AutoCAD SHX Text_12220
404

AutoCAD SHX Text_12221
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_12222
WESTMINSTER DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_12223
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_12224
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_12225
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_12226
329

AutoCAD SHX Text_12227
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_12228
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_12229
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_12230
MEADOW CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_12231
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_12232
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12233
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_12234
GWERN-RHUDDI ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12235
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_12236
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_12237
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_12238
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_12239
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_12240
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_12241
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_12242
46.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12243
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_12244
Spreads

AutoCAD SHX Text_12245
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_12246
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_12247
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_12248
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12249
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_12250
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_12251
42.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12252
LLYSWEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12253
Car Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_12254
37.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12255
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_12256
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_12257
108A

AutoCAD SHX Text_12258
110A

AutoCAD SHX Text_12259
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_12260
36.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12261
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_12262
98a

AutoCAD SHX Text_12263
47.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12264
47.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12265
Sloping Masonry

AutoCAD SHX Text_12266
47.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12267
46.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12268
47.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12269
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_12270
271a

AutoCAD SHX Text_12271
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_12272
275a

AutoCAD SHX Text_12273
303

AutoCAD SHX Text_12274
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_12275
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_12276
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_12277
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_12278
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_12279
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text_12280
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_12281
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_12282
Project Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_12283
Drawing Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_12284
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_12285
Title



except for planning 
application purposes

do not scale drawing

    DRAWING CAN BE SCALED
FOR PLANNING APPLICATION
          PURPOSES ONLY.

Rev By Date Description of Amendment Chk.by Date
Telephone 029 2287 2456

County Hall, Atlantic Wharf, Cardiff CF10 4UW

CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD
THE CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL

COPYRIGHT OF CARDIFF
COUNCIL.
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.C

© Crown copyright and database rights (2011) Ordnance Survey 100023376.
© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata (2011) Arolwg Ordnans 100023376.C

CAERDYDD
CARDIFF

DESIGN CONTRACTS AND DELIVERY

DYLUNIO CONTRACTAU A DARPARU

Andrew Gregory
DIRECTOR FOR PLANNING, TRANSPORT AND

ENVIRONMENT

CYNLLUNIO, TRAFNIDIATH A
R AMGYLCHEDD

THORNHILL CEMETERY

EXTENSION

DEVELOPMENT EXTENTS

OM

1:1250

JUN'18

CO17144

11

KEY

EXTENT OF DEVELOPMENT

BOUNDARY OF COUNCIL OWNED LAND

NOTES

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FOLLOWING

DRAWINGS:

CO17144-01 SITE LOCATION

CO17144-02 EXISTING SITE PLAN

CO17144-03 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

CO17144-04 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

CO17144-05 PROPOSED DRAINAGE

CO17144-06 PROPOSED LONG SECTIONS

CO17144-07 PROPOSED CROSS SECTIONS

CO17144-08 PROPOSED BUILDING & SHELTER

CO17144-09 FLOWER PREPARATION AREA

CO17144-10 PROPOSED VISUALS

CO17144-11 DEVELOPMENT EXTENTS

CO17144-3000-01 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING POST CONSTRUCTION

CO17144-3000-02 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING MID LIFE POINT

CO17144-3000-03 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING FULLY DEVELOPED

FOR PLANNING

AutoCAD SHX Text_12286
74-76

AutoCAD SHX Text_12287
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_12288
Manor Parc

AutoCAD SHX Text_12289
Coedifanbychan

AutoCAD SHX Text_12290
WOODRUFF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_12291
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12292
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_12293
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_12294
107.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12295
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_12296
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_12297
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_12298
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_12299
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_12300
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12301
67-69

AutoCAD SHX Text_12302
55-57

AutoCAD SHX Text_12303
63-65

AutoCAD SHX Text_12304
62-72

AutoCAD SHX Text_12305
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_12306
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_12307
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_12308
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_12309
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_12310
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_12311
Newydd

AutoCAD SHX Text_12312
Ty

AutoCAD SHX Text_12313
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12314
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_12315
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_12316
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_12317
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_12318
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12319
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12320
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_12321
HEOL-Y-CADNO

AutoCAD SHX Text_12322
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_12323
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_12324
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_12325
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_12326
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_12327
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_12328
CLOS Y GWADD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12329
CLOS-Y-CARLWM

AutoCAD SHX Text_12330
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12331
White Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_12332
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_12333
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_12334
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_12335
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_12336
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_12337
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_12338
CLOS-Y-BLAIDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12339
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_12340
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_12341
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_12342
Tank

AutoCAD SHX Text_12343
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_12344
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_12345
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_12346
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12347
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_12348
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_12349
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_12350
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_12351
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12352
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_12353
CLOS-Y-

AutoCAD SHX Text_12354
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_12355
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_12356
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_12357
DYFRGI

AutoCAD SHX Text_12358
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_12359
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_12360
(Hotel)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12361
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_12362
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_12363
71-73

AutoCAD SHX Text_12364
54-56

AutoCAD SHX Text_12365
New House

AutoCAD SHX Text_12366
Coedtirhwnt

AutoCAD SHX Text_12367
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_12368
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_12369
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_12370
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12371
Trees

AutoCAD SHX Text_12372
Pentre Gwilym House (PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12373
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_12374
Hillside

AutoCAD SHX Text_12375
New House

AutoCAD SHX Text_12376
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_12377
146.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12378
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_12379
Sycamore Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_12380
Llanisen Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_12381
124.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12382
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_12383
Thornhill House

AutoCAD SHX Text_12384
Ty Bryn

AutoCAD SHX Text_12385
143.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12386
Deriduon

AutoCAD SHX Text_12387
Gwilym Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_12388
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_12389
CAPEL GWILYM ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_12390
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12391
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_12392
Pentre Gwilym Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_12393
Capel Gwilym

AutoCAD SHX Text_12394
Reservoir (covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12395
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_12396
Caravan Site

AutoCAD SHX Text_12397
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_12398
Cotters

AutoCAD SHX Text_12399
Cattle Grid

AutoCAD SHX Text_12400
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_12401
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_12402
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_12403
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_12404
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_12405
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_12406
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_12407
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_12408
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_12409
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_12410
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_12411
Collects

AutoCAD SHX Text_12412
Baytree

AutoCAD SHX Text_12413
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_12414
Electricity Sub Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_12415
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_12416
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_12417
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_12418
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text_12419
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_12420
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_12421
Project Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_12422
Drawing Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_12423
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_12424
Title



LP

LP

LP

LP

LPLP

LP

IC

IC

TP

TP

TP

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

MH

MH

BT

BT

RS

STN1

F

O

O

T

P

A

T

H

F

O

O

T

P

A

T

H

F

O

O

T

P

A

T

H

BT

MH

Ceptic

tank

E

D

G

E

 

O

F

 

M

O

T

O

R

Y

W

A

Y

 

C

A

R

R

A

G

E

W

A

Y

UNDERGROWTH

T

R

A

C

K

T
R
A
C
K

T

R

A

C

K

Overgrown

area

Overgrown

area

Overgrown

area

O
v
e
r
h
e
a
d
 
c
a
b
l
e

Japanese

knotweed

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

IB

CS

CS

CARPARK 30 SPACES

PROPOSED SIGNAGE TO BE SITUATED

AT ENTRANCE TO CEMETERY

ACCESS ROAD TO NEW HOUSE FARM

NEW PEDESTRIAN CROSSING FACILITY AND

BUS STOPS NORTH AND SOUTHBOUND

PROPOSED ATTENUATION FEATURE

SHELTER LOCATION

FLOWER PREPARATION TABLE

THORNHILL ROAD TO BE REDUCED TO 30mph

POND WITH WATER LILIES AND FISH

SHELTER LOCATION

MEMORIAL GARDEN

CREMATED REMAINS BURIAL AREA

INFANT BURIAL AREA

LAWN GRAVE BURIAL AREA

TRADITIONAL GRAVE BURIAL AREA

LOCKABLE SECURITY GATE

SECURITY FENCING

ILLUMINATED BOLLARD FOR

LOW LEVEL LIGHTING

WOODLAND BURIAL AREA

EXISTING PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY PATH

TO BE WIDENED TO ALLOW

SEGREGATION BETWEEN VEHICLES

AND PEDESTRIANS SEGREGATION TO

BE ACHIEVED USING WHITE LINING

REFER TO DETAIL A

PUBLIC TOILET FACILITY

EXISTING PUBLIC RIGHT TO

REMAIN AS GRASSED SURFACE

EXISTING VEGETATION TO REMAIN

PROPOSED BUS SHELTER TO BE

CANTILEVER TO ALLOW MINIMUM

OBSTRUCTION TO THE FOOTWAY

EXISTING CESSPIT TO REMAIN OUTSIDE DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED SELF CLOSING GATE TO

ACCESS PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED VISIBILITY SPLAY

CYCLE PARKING FACILITIES

OFF ROAD PARKING APPROXIMATELY 10 SPACES

OFF ROAD PARKING APPROXIMATELY 11 SPACES

OFF ROAD PARKING APPROXIMATELY 12 SPACES

OFF ROAD PARKING APPROXIMATELY 7 SPACES

OFF ROAD PARKING APPROXIMATELY 10 SPACES

OFF ROAD PARKING APPROXIMATELY 6 SPACES

LPLP

LP

G

G

BT

RS

except for planning 
application purposes

do not scale drawing

Telephone 029 2287 2456
County Hall, Atlantic Wharf, Cardiff CF10 4UW

COPYRIGHT OF CARDIFF
COUNCIL.
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.C

    DRAWING CAN BE SCALED
FOR PLANNING APPLICATION
          PURPOSES ONLY.

© Crown copyright and database rights (2011) Ordnance Survey 100023376.
© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata (2011) Arolwg Ordnans 100023376.C

Rev By Date Description of Amendment Chk.by Date

CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD THE CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL

Rev

CAERDYDD
CARDIFF

DESIGN CONTRACTS AND DELIVERY

DYLUNIO CONTRACTAU A DARPARU

Andrew Gregory
DIRECTOR FOR PLANNING, TRANSPORT AND

ENVIRONMENT

CYNLLUNIO, TRAFNIDIATH A
R AMGYLCHEDD

THORNHILL CEMETERY

NORTHERN

EXTENSION 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT 

OM

1:500

APR'18

CO17144 03

A

KEY

CEMETERY ROADS TO BE TARMAC

PARKING AND PEDESTRIAN AREAS TO BE BUFF COLOURED GRAVEL

PROPOSED GRASSED AREA

NOTES

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FOLLOWING

DRAWINGS:

CO17144-01 SITE LOCATION

CO17144-02 EXISTING SITE PLAN

CO17144-03 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

CO17144-04 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

CO17144-05 PROPOSED DRAINAGE

CO17144-06 PROPOSED LONG SECTIONS

CO17144-07 PROPOSED CROSS SECTIONS

CO17144-08 PROPOSED BUILDING & SHELTER

CO17144-09 FLOWER PREPARATION AREA

CO17144-10 PROPOSED VISUALS

CO17144-11 DEVELOPMENT EXTENTS

CO17144-3000-01 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING POST CONSTRUCTION

CO17144-3000-02 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING MID LIFE POINT

CO17144-3000-03 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING FULLY DEVELOPED

THIS DRAWING IS A VISUAL REPRESENTATION OF THE SITE AFTER 25

YEARS DEVELOPMENT

FOR PLANNING

TYPICAL PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY ARRANGEMENT

DETAIL A

SCALE 1:250

LOCKABLE VEHICLE ACCESS GATE

LOCKABLE PEDESTRIAN ACCESS GATE

NO VEHICLE ACCESS ON TO EXISTING

PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY

EXISTING PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY TO BE WIDENED TO ALLOW

SEGREGATION OF VEHICLES AND PEDESTRIANS

A OM AUG'18 AMENDMENTS TO PROPOSED LAYOUT

EXISTING VEGETATION TO

THE NORTH OF THE PUBLIC RIGHT

OF WAY TO REMAIN

EXISTING PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY

TO REMAIN AS GRASS

PROPOSED FOOTWAY TO TIE

INTO EXISTING BRIDGE DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text_12425
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_12426
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_12427
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_12428
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_12429
Reservoir (covered)

AutoCAD SHX Text_12430
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_12431
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_12432
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_12433
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_12434
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text_12435
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_12436
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_12437
Project Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_12438
Drawing Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_12439
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_12440
Title



2

5

4

4

2

6

4950 mm 4950 mm

1

3
4
0
0
 m

m

3
0
0
0
 m

m

1 2

34

5 6 9

C017144-08 1.

C017144-08

2.

C017144-08

3.

C017144-084.

5.

C017144-08

6.

C017144-08

4.52 m²

Unisex Accessible WC

4.47 m²

Unisex Accessible WC

4.47 m²

Unisex Accessible WC

2.26 m²

Plant room
1.4 m²

Cleaners cupboard

Shelter/Seating 
area

8
4
0
0
 m

m

Outline of Roof

A
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

 B
u
ild

in
g

 D
im

e
n
s
io

n

A
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

 R
o
o
f 

D
im

e
n
s
io

n

Approximate Building DimensionOutline of 
Roof

Approximate Roof Dimension

6300 mm

1
2
8
5
0

.

2.0 X 2.5m

2.0 X 2.5m

2.0 X 2.5m

2950 mm

SECTION 1

ELEVATION 3

ELEVATION 4

ELEVATION 1

SECTION 2

ELEVATION 2

1 27

4

8

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

C
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the 
permission of Ordnance Survey on hehalf of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationary Office © Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings. Cardiff Council, LA09005L 2001.

revision

title

detail

filepath

project number drawing number revision

scale checked drawn date

FOR SIGNIFICANT RISKS SEE ABOVE

County Hall, Atlantic Wharf, Cardiff Bay, CF10 4UW
Telephone: 029 2233 0200 

Do not scale drawing 
except for Planning 
Application Purposes

Significant Risks:

Refer to the Pre 
Contruction 
Health & Safety 
Information Pack

C COPYRIGHT OF CARDIFF COUNCIL.
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

status

DATBLYGIAD ECONOMAIDD

PROJECTS, DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT
PROJECTAU, DYLUNIO A DATBLYGU

ACTING OPERATIONAL MANAGER

RHEOLWR GWEITHREDOL

Gavin M Traylor

1 : 50 @A1

Thornhill Cemetery - New
Burial Site

RI SYT Jun 2018

RSSC1099 C017144-08

Y:\DESIGN + CONSTRUCTION\LIVE PROJECTS FROM 01 04 15\1099 Thornhill -
New Burial Space

Proposed Building and Shelter

PLANNING

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

Proprietary 'Live' green roof 
system at 5° slope - Refer to
Proposed Planting layout

Cladding - Stained timber
weatherboard

Powder - coated
aluminium downpipe

Timber columns stained to
match weatherboarding

Timber benching

Permeable resin bound paving

Hardwood double glazed windows
to match weatherboarding

Hardwood doors stained to match
weatherboarding

Staffordshire blue facing 
birch plinth up to DPC/ fill

Timber fascias + soffits

Electrically operated security
shutters in powder coated 
aluminium

ASection 2

Stand-alone Shelter

Elevation 4

Elevation 3

Site Plan

Site Plan

N

Elevation 1 - East Facing to Car Park

Elevation 2 - West Facing to Site Entrance

Section 1

A  Additional information for planning application  SYT 09.08.18

NOTES

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN
CONJUNCTION WITH THE FOLLOWING 
DRAWINGS:

C017144-01 SITE LOCATION
CO17144-02 EXISTING SITE PLAN
CO17144-03 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
C017144-04 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING 
C017144-05 PROPOSED DRAINAGE
C017144-06 PROPOSED LONG SECTIONS
C017144-07 PROPOSED CROSS SECTIONS
C017144-08 PROPOSED BUILDING & 
SHELTER
C017144-09 FLOWER PREPARATION AREA
C017144-10 PROPOSED VISUALS 
C017144-11 DEVELOPMENT EXTENTS
C017144 -3000-01 PROPOSED
LANDSCAPING POST CONSTRUCTION
C017144- 3000-02 PROPOSED 
LANDSCAPING MID LIFE POINT
C017144-3000-03 PROPOSED 
LANDSCAPING FULLY DEVELOPED

3
3

0
0
m

m



1
.
7

3.4

1
.
1

3.4

1
.
1

0
.
8

1 1 1

except for planning 
application purposes

do not scale drawing

THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE CITY & COUNTY OF CARDIFFCYNGOR SIR DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

Telephone 029 2078 8235 - Fax. 029 2078 8181
Bessemer Close, Leckwith, Cardiff CF11 8XA

003

BS,

FS 25745

TM
COPYRIGHT OF THE CITY
AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF.
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.C

    DRAWING CAN BE SCALED
FOR PLANNING APPLICATION
          PURPOSES ONLY.

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on hehalf of
the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Cardiff County Council, LA09005L 2001.C

Rev By Date Description of Amendment Chk.by Date

PROJECTS, DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

MANAGEMENT

PROJECTAU, DYLUNIO A DATBLYGU

RHEOLAETH CYNLLUNIO AC ADEILADU

Andrew Gregory
DIRECTOR FOR STRATEGIC PLANNING,

HIGHWAYS, TRAFFIC & TRANSPORTATION

CYFARWYDDWR CYNLLUNIO STRATEGOL,

PRIFFYRDD, TRAFFIG A THRAFNIDIAETH
CAERDYDD

CARDIFF

NOTES

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FOLLOWING DRAWINGS:

CO17144-01 SITE LOCATION

CO17144-02 EXISTING SITE PLAN

CO17144-03 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

CO17144-04 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

CO17144-05 PROPOSED DRAINAGE

CO17144-06 PROPOSED LONG SECTIONS

CO17144-07 PROPOSED CROSS SECTIONS

CO17144-08 PROPOSED BUILDING & SHELTER

CO17144-09 FLOWER PREPARATION AREA

CO17144-10 PROPOSED VISUALS

CO17144-11 DEVELOPMENT EXTENTS

CO17144-3000-01 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING POST CONSTRUCTION

CO17144-3000-02 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING MID LIFE POINT

CO17144-3000-03 PROPOSED LANDSCAPING FULLY DEVELOPED

THORNHILL CEMETERY

NORTHERN

EXTENSION 

FLOWER PREPARATION

AND 

BIN STORE

OM

1:20

JUL'18

CO17144 09

FOR PLANNING

AutoCAD SHX Text_12441
Checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_12442
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_12443
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text_12444
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_12445
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_12446
Project Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_12447
Drawing Number

AutoCAD SHX Text_12448
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_12449
Title



LOCAL MEMBER OBJECTION 
 
COMMITTEE DATE: 19/09/2018 
 
APPLICATION No. 18/01114/MNR APPLICATION DATE:  22/05/2018 
 
ED:  PONTPRENNAU/ST MELLONS 
 
APP: TYPE: Full Planning Permission 
 
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Smith 
LOCATION: BRODAWEL, DRUIDSTONE ROAD, OLD ST MELLONS, 

 CARDIFF, CF3 6XD 
PROPOSAL: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING ATTACHED GARAGE TO  

 BRO DAWEL AND ERECTION OF NEW DOUBLE  
 GARAGE FOR BRO DAWEL. CONSTRUCTION OF 
 NEW DETACHED DWELLING    
  

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 RECOMMENDATION 1 :  That planning permission be GRANTED subject to 

the following conditions :  
 

1. C01 Statutory Time Limit 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plans:  
 

• A101 Rev. G, A102 Rev D 
• Bat Survey Report  dated06/06/18 

 
 Reason: To ensure   satisfactory completion of the development and in 

line with the aims of Planning Policy Wales to promote an efficient and 
effective planning system. 

 
3. Prior to the construction of the building above foundation level, details of 

the external finishing materials shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details. 

 Reason: To ensure that the finished appearance of the development is 
in keeping with the area in accordance with Policy KP5: Good Quality 
and Sustainable Design of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
4. Notwithstanding the submitted plans, details of the means of site 

enclosure shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority.The means of site enclosure shall be constructed in 
accordance with the approved details prior to the development being put 
into beneficial use.    

 Reason: In the interests of visual and residential amenity, in accordance 
with Policy KP5: Good Quality and Sustainable Design of the Cardiff 

Agenda Item 5b



Local Development Plan. 
 
5. No equipment, plant or materials shall be brought onto the site for the 

purpose of development until full details of both hard and soft landscape 
works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  These details shall include proposed finished 
levels, hard surfacing materials, planting plans (including schedules of 
plant species, sizes, numbers or densities, and in the case of trees, 
planting, staking, mulching, protection, soil protection and after care 
methods) and an implementation programme. The landscaping shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved design and implementation 
programme. 

 Reason: To maintain and improve the appearance of the area in the 
interests of visual amenity, in accordance with Policy KP5: Good Quality 
and Sustainable Design of the Cardiff Local Development Plan.  

 
6. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (Wales) Order 2013 (or 
any Order amending, revoking or re-enacting that Order) no further 
windows shall be inserted in the dwelling house hereby approved. 

 Reason: To ensure that the privacy of adjoining occupiers is protected in 
accordance with Policy KP5: Good Quality and Sustainable Design of 
the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
7. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 

the approved development that was not previously identified it shall be 
reported in writing within 2 days to the Local Planning Authority, all 
associated works shall stop, and no further development shall take place 
unless otherwise agreed in writing until a scheme to deal with the 
contamination found has been approved.  An investigation and risk 
assessment shall be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a 
remediation scheme and verification plan must be prepared and 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved 
remediation scheme a verification report must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The timescale for 
the above actions shall be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
within 2 weeks of the discovery of any unsuspected contamination.  

 Reason: To ensure that any unacceptable risks from land contamination 
to the future users of the land, neighbouring land, controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems are minimised, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other off-site receptors, in accordance with 
Policy EN13: Air, Noise, Light Pollution and Land Contamination of the 
Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
8. Any topsoil [natural  or manufactured],or subsoil, to be imported shall be 

assessed for chemical or other potential contaminants in accordance 
with a scheme of investigation which shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority in advance of its importation. 



Only material approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be 
imported. All measures specified in the approved scheme shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the relevant Code of Practice and 
Guidance Notes.  

 
 Subject to approval of the above, sampling of the material received at 

the development site to verify that the imported soil is free from 
contamination shall be undertaken in accordance with a scheme and 
timescale to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced, 
in accordance with policy 2.63 of the Cardiff Unitary Development Plan.  

 
9. Any aggregate  (other than virgin quarry stone) or recycled aggregate 

material to be imported shall be assessed for chemical or other potential 
contaminants in accordance with a scheme of investigation which shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
in advance of its importation. Only material approved by the Local 
Planning Authority shall be imported. All measures specified in the 
approved scheme shall be undertaken in accordance with the relevant 
Code of Practice and Guidance Notes.  

 Subject to approval of the above, sampling of the material received at 
the development site to verify that the imported material is free from 
contamination shall be undertaken in accordance with a scheme and 
timescale to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced, 
in accordance with Policy EN13: Air, Noise, Light Pollution and Land 
Contamination of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
10. Prior to the erection of the dwelling hereby approved, a scheme for the 

drainage of the site and any connection to the existing drainage system 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing to the local planning 
authority.  Prior to the submission of the drainage details, ground 
permeability tests shall be undertaken to ascertain whether sustainable 
drainage techniques can be utilised and the results of the tests shall be 
incorporated in the submitted scheme.  No part of the development 
shall be occupied until the scheme is carried out and completed as 
approved. 

 Reason: To decrease the risk of flooding elsewhere and prevent 
hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system in accordance with 
Policy EN14: Flood Risk of the Cardiff Local Development Plan.  

 
11. The car parking and manoeuvring spaces shown on the approved plans 

shall be provided prior to the development being brought into beneficial 
use and thereafter shall be maintained and shall not be used for any 
purpose other than the parking of vehicles. 

 Reason : To ensure that the use of the proposed development does not 
interfere with the safety and free flow of traffic passing along the 
highway, in accordance with  Policy T5: Managing Transport Impacts of 
the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 



12. The first floor bathroom and en-suite windows on the rear elevation of 
the dwelling, shown on drawing reference A102 Rev D, shall be 
non-opening below a height of 1.7 metres above internal floor level, 
glazed with obscure glass and thereafter be so retained. The roof lights 
in the rear roof plane shall be installed such that their lower sill level is a 
minimum of 1.7 metres above the internal floor level of the bedroom and 
thereafter they shall be so retained. 

 Reason: To ensure that the privacy of adjoining occupiers is protected in 
accordance with Policy KP5: Good Quality and Sustainable Design of 
the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
13. Further details of the footway to be constructed along the site frontage, 

as shown on drawing A101 Rev G, shall be submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority. The footway shall be constructed in 
accordance with the approved details prior to the beneficial occupation 
of the dwelling and thereafter shall be retained at all times. 

 Reason: In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety, in 
accordance with PolicyT5: Managing Transport Impacts of the Cardiff 
Local Development Plan 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 2:  The applicant is informed that WelshWater/Dwr 

Cymru has advised the site is crossed by a public sewer  and that no 
operational development should be carried out within 3.0 metres either side of 
its centre line. For further information please contact 
developer.services@dwrcymru.com    

 
 RECOMMENDATION 3  : To protect the amenities of occupiers of other 

premises in the vicinity attention is drawn to the provisions of Section 60 of the 
Control of Pollution Act 1974 in relation to the control of noise from demolition 
and construction activities. Further to this the applicant is advised that no noise 
audible outside the site boundary adjacent to the curtilage of residential 
property shall be created by construction activities in respect of the 
implementation of this consent outside the hours of 0800-1800 hours Mondays 
to Fridays and 0800 - 1300 hours on Saturdays or at any time on Sunday or 
public holidays. The applicant is also advised to seek approval for any 
proposed piling operations. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 4 : The contamination assessments and the effects of 

unstable land are considered on the basis of the best information available to 
the Planning Authority and are not necessarily exhaustive.  The Authority 
takes due diligence when assessing these impacts, however you are minded 
that the responsibility for  

 
(i)  determining the extent and effects of such constraints and; 
(ii)  ensuring that any imported materials (including, topsoils, subsoils, 

aggregates and recycled or manufactured aggregates / soils) are 
chemically suitable for the proposed end use.  Under no circumstances 
should controlled waste be imported.  It is an offence under section 33 
of the environmental Protection Act 1990 to deposit controlled waste on 
a site which does not benefit from an appropriate waste management 



license.  The following must not be imported to a development site: 
• Unprocessed / unsorted demolition wastes. 
• Any materials originating from a site confirmed as being 

contaminated or potentially contaminated by chemical or 
radioactive substances. 

• Japanese Knotweed stems, leaves and rhizome infested soils.  
In addition to section 33 above, it is also an offence under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to spread this invasive weed; 
and 

(iii)  the safe development and secure occupancy of the site rests with the 
developer. 

 
 Proposals for areas of possible land instability should take due account of the 

physical and chemical constraints and may include action on land reclamation 
or other remedial action to enable beneficial use of unstable land. 

 
 The Local Planning Authority has determined the application on the basis of the 

information available to it, but this does not mean that the land can be 
considered free from contamination. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 5:  The applicant is advised to secure the consent of 

the Operational Manager, Asset Management (via 
‘highwaysnetworkmanagement@cardiff.gov.uk’) prior to undertaking any 
works within the adopted highway in relation to the proposed development.   

 
 RECOMMENDATION 6:   The applicant is advised that developers of all new 

residential units   are required to purchase the bin provision required for each 
unit. The bins have to meet the Council’s specifications and can be purchased 
directly by contacting the Waste Management’s commercial team on 029 
20717500. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 7: Bats often roost in houses and other buildings, and 

work on these buildings may disturb a bat roost.  All bats and their roosts are 
protected against disturbance under UK and European legislation.  If works 
are planned on a building in which bats are roosting, Natural Resources Wales 
(NRW) must be contacted for advice. 

 
 If work has already commenced and bats are found, or if any evidence that bats 

are using the site as a roost is found, work should cease and NRW should be 
contacted immediately.   

 
 Where there is a likelihood that bats are present, or where bats are found to be 

present, a suitably qualified and experienced ecological consultant should be 
contracted to provide an assessment of the impact of the proposed works, and 
undertake bat surveys if necessary.  

 
 Where bats or their roosts are present, no works of site clearance, demolition or 

construction should take place unless a licence to disturb these species and/or 
their roosts has been granted in accordance with the relevant legislation.  
Otherwise, a prosecution may result in a fine and/or imprisonment. 



 
 NRW can be contacted at:-  
 Natural Resources Wales, Tŷ Cambria, 29 Newport Road, Cardiff CF24 0TP, 
 0300 065 3000 
 
 Bat Conservation Trust can be contacted at:- 
 5th Floor, Quadrant House, 250 Kennington Lane, London, SE11 5DR, 0845 
 1300228’ 
 
1. DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
1.1 This planning application relates to a dwelling house known as Brodowel, 

Druidstone Road where permission is sought to construct a two storey house in 
the side garden.  The application also proposed a new replacement garage for 
the existing house. 

 
1.2 Details of the siting and appearance of the proposed dwelling and garage are 

shown the plans submitted with the application. The dwelling comprises a two 
storey hipped roof structure with a single storey element attached to the side. It 
rises to a main ridge height of approximately 8.5 metres with the lower element 
rising to approximately 4.8 metres.  

 
1.3 A separation distance of approximately 4.8 metres would be retained between 

both properties. To the rear, the site backs onto the large garden of a 
neighbouring property at Pwll Coch Uchaf. The rear elevation of the proposed 
dwelling is shown to be sited between 8.8 metres and 11.6 metres from the 
boundary with this property.  

 
1.4  The side elevation of the proposed dwelling would be positioned between 6.2 

metres and 6.7 metres from eastern boundary of the site. This boundary 
comprises a hedge which runs alongside the driveway serving Pwll Coch Uchaf 
and a single storey dwelling known as Ty Win. The front garden of Ty Win lies 
opposite the eastern boundary of the application site on the other side of the 
lane.  

 
1.5  The proposed replacement garage for Brodowel would be sited to the front of 

the house, approximately 2.5 metres from the boundary with the front garden of 
the neighbouring property at Bron y Coed. The garage comprises a pitched 
roof structure measuring 6.6 metres by 6.6 metres in plan and rising to an 
eaves and ridge height of 2.1 metres and 4.9 metres respectively. 

 
1.6 Vehicular access serving both houses would be provided from Druidstone 

Road, propositioned mid-way along the site frontage, as existing. A new 
footway would also be provided as part of the development. To facilitate the 
provision of the footway, the existing hedge would be removed and a new 
hedge planted in mitigation. 

 
1.7 The subdivision of the plot, as proposed, would retain a side and rear garden of 

approximately 385 sq metres with the existing house and a rear garden of 
approximately 240 sq metres would be provided for the new dwelling. 



 
1.8 The application is supported by a bat survey which states that no evidence of 

bats was found and that the potential impact of the development on bats is low. 
 
1.9 A drainage strategy has also been included with the application which 

proposes a sustainable drainage solution for surface water (soakaway) with 
foul drainage proposed to be connected into the mains sewer.  

 
2. DESCRIPTION OF SITE 
 
2.1 Brodowel is a detached hipped roof property located on the south eastern side 

of  Druidstone Road, approximately 600.0 metres from its junction with Tyr 
Winch Road. 

 
2.2 Although Druidstone Road has the character of a rural lane, Brodowel lies 

within an established row of houses fronting this section of road.  Planning 
permission has been granted on many occasions in recent years for the 
development of new houses in the gardens of existing properties at Druidstone 
Road  and several of these developments have been carried out. 

 
2.3 To the rear, the site backs onto the garden of a neighbouring property at Pwll 

Coch Uchaf. The eastern boundary of the site comprises a hedge which runs 
alongside the driveway serving Pwll Coch Uchaf and a single storey dwelling 
known as Ty Win. The front garden of Ty Win lies opposite the eastern 
boundary of the application site on the other side of the lane.  

 
2.4 To the west, the site adjoins a large detached property known as Bron y Coed. 

The boundary with this neighbour is enclosed by a close boarded fence, 
approximately 1.8 metres in height. 

 
2.5 The boundary of the site with Druidstone Road is enclosed by a hedge. The 

property is access from a point mid-way along this boundary.  On the opposite 
side of the road lies another detached house known as The Cottage, with fields 
on either side. 

 
2.5 At the time of the officer site visit it was noted that some ground clearance 

works had commenced, some vegetation/trees had been removed and that 
work was also underway on the refurbishment of the existing house. An 
attached garage had been removed.  

 
3. SITE HISTORY 
  
3.1 No recent planning applications. 
 
3.2 There is an extant planning permission to demolish the bungalow at the 

neighbouring Ty Win and the construction of a new two storey house sited 
forward of its existing footprint (ref:14/00380/DCO). 

  



4. POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
4.1 The Cardiff Local Development Plan 2006-2026 provides the local planning  

policy framework. Relevant policies include: 
 
 KP3 (B): Settlement Boundaries 
 KP5: Good Quality and Sustainable Design 
 KP8: Sustainable Transport 
 KP 15: Climate Change 
 EN11: Water Sensitive Design 
 EN13: Air, Noise, Light Pollution and Land Contamination 
 T1: Walking and Cycling 
 T5: Managing Transport Impacts 
 EN1: Countryside Protection 
 EN3: Landscape Protection 
 EN7: Priority Habitats and Species 
 EN8: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 
 
4.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance: Cardiff Infill Sites (2017); 
 Supplementary Planning Guidance: Managing Transport Impacts 

(Incorporating Parking Standards )(2018); 
 Supplementary Planning Guidance: Waste and Collection and Storage 

Facilities (2016); 
 Supplementary Planning Guidance: Green Infrastructure (November, 2017); 
 
4.5 Planning Policy Wales Edition 9 (2016): 
 
 1.2.5 Provided that a consideration is material in planning terms, it must be 

taken into account in dealing with a planning application even though other 
machinery may exist for its regulation. Even where consent is needed under 
other legislation, the planning system may have an important part to play, for 
example in deciding whether the development is appropriate for the particular 
location. The grant of planning permission does not remove the need to obtain 
any other consent that may be necessary, nor does it imply that such consents 
will be forthcoming. 

 4.4.3: In contributing to the Well-being of Future Generations Act goals, 
planning policies, decisions and proposals should (inter alia): 

 • Promote resource-efficient and climate change resilient settlement patterns 
that minimise land-take and urban sprawl, especially through preference for the 
re-use of suitable previously developed land and buildings, wherever possible 
avoiding development on greenfield sites 

 • Minimise the risks posed by, or to, development on or adjacent to unstable or 
contaminated land and land liable to flooding. This includes managing and 
seeking to mitigate the consequences of climate change by building resilience 
into the natural and built environment. 

 • Locate developments so as to minimise the demand for travel, especially by 
private car 

 • Ensure that all local communities – both urban and rural – have sufficient good 
quality housing for their needs, including affordable housing for local needs and 
for special needs where appropriate, in safe neighbourhoods 



 4.7.4: Local planning authorities should assess the extent to which 
developments are consistent with minimising the need to travel and increasing 
accessibility by modes other than the private car. 

 4.7.8 Development in the countryside should be located within and adjoining 
those settlements where it can be best be accommodated in terms of 
infrastructure, access, habitat and landscape conservation. Infilling or minor 
extensions to existing settlements may be acceptable, in particular where it 
meets a local need for affordable housing, but new building in the open 
countryside away from existing settlements or areas allocated for development 
in development plans must continue to be strictly controlled. All new 
development should respect the character of the surrounding area and should 
be of appropriate scale and design. 

 4.11.9: Visual appearance, scale and relationship to surroundings and context 
are material planning considerations. 

 4.11.11: Local planning authorities and developers should consider the issue of 
accessibility for all. 

 5.2.9 Trees, woodlands and hedgerows are of great importance, both as wildlife 
habitats   and in terms of their contribution to landscape character and beauty. 
They also play a role in tackling climate change by trapping carbon and can 
provide a sustainable energy source. Local planning authorities should seek to 
protect trees, groups of trees and areas of woodland where they have natural 
heritage value or contribute to the character or amenity of a particular locality. 

 5.5.11 The presence of a species protected under European or UK legislation is 
a material consideration when a local planning authority is considering a 
development proposal which, if carried out, would be likely to result in 
disturbance or harm to the species or its habitat. 

 9.1.2 Local planning authorities should promote sustainable residential 
environments,   avoid large housing areas of monotonous character and 
make appropriate provision for affordable housing. Local planning authorities 
should promote, inter alia, development that is easily accessible by public 
transport, cycling and walking. 

 9.2.22: Many parts of the countryside have isolated groups of dwellings. 
Sensitive filling    in of small gaps, or minor extensions to such groups, in 
particular for affordable housing to meet local need, may be acceptable, but 
much depends upon the character of the surroundings, the pattern of 
development in the area and the accessibility to main towns and villages. 

 9.3.3: Insensitive infilling or the cumulative effects of development or 
re-development should not be allowed to damage an area’s character and 
amenity. This includes such impact on neighbouring dwellings such as serious 
loss of privacy or overshadowing. 

 9.3.6: New house building and other new development in the open countryside, 
away from established settlements, should be strictly controlled. The fact that a 
single house on a particular site would be unobtrusive is not, by itself, a good 
argument in favour of permission; such permissions could be granted too often, 
to the overall detriment of the character of an area. 

 
5. INTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
5.1 The Operational Manager, Transportation has no objection to the application 

subject to appropriate conditions. An informative is also requested advising the 



application of the need to secure the consent of the Operational Manager, 
Network Management prior to undertaking any works in adopted highway. 

            
5.2 The Drainage Engineer has been consulted on the application. No 

representations have been received. 
 
5.3 Pollution Control (Noise & Air): no observations. 
 
5.4 Shared Regulatory Services (Contaminated Land) requests the inclusion of 

conditions and informative statements in accordance with CIEH best practice 
and to ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced in accordance 
with policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
5.5 The Operational Manager, Waste Management has been notified of the 

application. No representations have been received.  
 
5.8 The Council’s Ecologist, noting the submitted bat report, raises no objections to 

the application but recommends the advisory note in respect of bats. 
      
6. EXTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
6.1 Welsh Water/ Dwr Cymru advises that the site is crossed by a public sewer. 

The Company comments that under the Water Industry Act 1991, it has rights 
of access to its apparatus at all time. It the Council is minded to grant planning 
permission, the following condition is recommended: 

 
 No surface water and/or land drainage shall be allowed to connect directly or 

indirectly  with the public sewerage network 
 
7. REPRESENTATIONS 
 
7.1 Councillor J Williams objects to the application and has requested that it be 

referred to Planning Committee for determination on the grounds of the policies 
KP3(B) and EN1 of the adopted Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
7.2 Councillor D Rees also requests that the application be determined at Planning 

Committee. 
 
7.3 Old St Mellons Community Council objects on the following grounds: 
 
 The Community Council wish to place an objection to the application on the 

following grounds: 
 
 • There is a lack of connectivity, therefore traffic concerns.  
 • Lack of public transportation. 
 • Poor lighting and narrow road. 
 • The site is not included in the local development plan or considered. 
 • Overdevelopment. 
 • The application is outside the settlement boundary of the current Local 

 Plan. 



 • The application is contrary to the plan in force. 
 
 Policy KP3 (B) – Settlement Boundaries 
 In order to strategically manage the spatial growth of Cardiff, settlement 

boundaries are proposed as shown on the Proposals Map. In all areas outside 
the defined settlement boundaries, otherwise referred to as countryside, there 
will be a corresponding presumption against inappropriate development. 

 
 Policy EN1: Countryside Protection 
 Development in the countryside, beyond the settlement boundaries identified 

on the Proposals Map, will only be permitted where the use is appropriate in the 
countryside, respects the landscape character and quality and biodiversity of 
the site and surrounding area and where it is appropriate in scale and design. A 
landscape assessment and landscaping scheme will be required for significant 
development proposals. Proposals for new housing, rural diversification and 
rural enterprise, will only be permitted where they comply with National 
Planning Policy. 

 
 The proposed dwelling is inappropriate development as it lies in the countryside 

outside of the defined settlement boundary. The principle of the proposal 
therefore conflicts with Policy KP3 (B) and EN1. 

 
7.4 An Occupier of Ty Win objects to the application for the following reasons 

(summary): 
 
 A Local Development Plan has been in force since January 2016 to prevent 

spurious building applications in this area. It appears that the applicant is of the 
opinion that consent has been granted as substantial works have already been 
carried out, including the demolition of the attached garage, the removal of 
established mature healthy trees, and heavy duty ground work in the proposed 
location of the development.  

           
 There are eight properties of this nature up for sale within a mile of the address. 
           
 As the existing property is located centrally to the plot, another building would 

create a visual imbalance. The Council is urged to refuse the application. If 
granted it is feared that it would create a precedent and result in many more 
requests to build and destroy gardens in this manner in the area. 

 
7.5 The Occupier of The Cottage, Druidstone Road objects to the application for 

the following reasons (summary): 
 
 The proposed dwelling is inappropriate development as it lies in the countryside 

outside of the defined settlement boundary. The principle of the proposal 
therefore conflicts with policies KP3 (B) and EN1 and should be refused on this 
basis. 

 
 Notwithstanding the above in principle objection, it is also considered that the 

proposed dwelling would overlook The Cottage and garden adversely affecting 
the residential amenity that is currently enjoyed. The proposed siting of the 



dwelling is such that it would look directly down the occupier’s driveway and 
into the front windows of the house and could also look directly at the side 
garden patio dining area. 

 
 It would also be oppressive due to the difference in levels between the site and 

The Cottage house being on a lower level, coupled with the height, mass and 
scale of the proposed dwelling. The proposal would be at odds with the pattern 
of development in the area as there are no examples of two houses that close 
together along this part of Druidstone Lane. 

 
 It is of concern that the hedge would be lost which is a strong characteristic of 

the area.  
 
7.6 An occupier of Pwll Coch House objects to the application for the following 

reasons (summary): 
 
 The proposed development is outside the settlement boundary in the Local 

Development Plan (LDP) adopted on 28th January, 2016. Prior to this date 
there were no major restrictions to building in the gardens of houses along 
Druidstone Road.  However, any new dwellings were constructed in the 
gardens behind the original houses and are discreet and barely visible from the 
road. The current proposal is contrary to this.  The garden of Bro Dawel is 
small in comparison to the gardens of the other properties where developments 
have taken place. 

 
 The gardens of properties where new builds have taken place have provided 

within their own curtilage a new boundary hedge and pavement. On the 
submitted plans, the pavement is to be created on the road because the plot is 
already too small to accommodate the proposed new dwelling, double garage 
and a new garage for the retained house. 

 
 Bro Dowel does not have historic planning permission to build, i.e.,  submitted 

and approved before the adoption of the Local Plan in 2016.The application is 
proposed on land protected by the LDP and no longer in the previous building 
zone.   

           
 The garden has been completely cleared of mature trees, two new driveways 

created using deep compressed hard-core and the proposed demolition of 
existing garage has already taken place. 

 
 The proposed development, if approved, would create a dangerous precedent. 
 
 Druidstone Road provides a leafy rural corridor that leads to open countryside. 

It is not only enjoyed by the residents but is greatly used for recreational 
purposes by people outside the area e.g. walkers, runners, cyclists. The 
proposal would create a permanent eyesore. The need to fulfil the quotas of 
house building has been mentioned. However at present there are house 
building projects for 5000 new homes to take place in the area nearby, so this 
infill is not desperately needed. 

 



 The occupier has requested that the determination of the application be made 
via the committee route.  

 
7.7 The occupier of Chandos objects to the application stating that that the 

proposed dwelling is not in keeping with Druidstone Road and that the site lies 
outside the LDP settlement boundary. Approval would create an unacceptable 
precedent.  It is considered that the dwelling is too near the road and that there 
is a sharp bend which will become a danger to traffic, walkers cyclists and horse 
riders. 

 
7.8 The occupier of Bron y Coed objects for the following reasons (summary): 
 
 The occupier states that the applicant has already started to prepare the site by 

the felling of several mature trees, digging up the garden in preparation for the 
ground work thus destroying an established garden and has demolished the 
'attached' garage. 

            
 The occupier states that it would appear the applicant is working under the 

assumption that planning has already been granted.  
           
 The occupier considers that the proposed dwelling is far too large for the plot 

and will dominate Bro Dawel creating an aesthetically unbalanced, unpleasing 
aspect. The occupier states that in January, 2016, a Local Development Plan 
was put in force to stop this type of development. 

 
7.9 A further occupier of Pwll Coch Uchaf House objects to the application for the 

following reasons (summary): 
 

i)  The proposed dwelling would be totally out of character the semi-rural 
character of the area 

ii)  The proposed size of the dwelling is of concern. It would have an 
overbearing influence on the character and rural appearance within 
Druidstone Road. 

iii)  If successful, it would set a precedent for allowing large detached 
houses on the main road frontage. Previous new builds along the road 
have been constructed at the rear of existing properties which ensures 
that the rural aspect of the area is maintained. 

iv) The proposed development lies outside the settlement boundary 
identified in the Local Development Plan. 

v)  It is pointed out that the applicant has proceeded to demolish the 
attached garage to Brodawel prior to planning permission having been 
obtained and the site has also been cleared of established trees. 

           
 The occupier concludes that the site is not suitable for a development of this 

nature. 
 
7.10 The occupier of The Conifers, Druidstone Road objects to the application for 

the following reasons: 
 



 The proposed development is outside the settlement boundary in Local 
Development Plan. The settlement boundary for the LDP on Druidstone Road 
is approximately ½ mile away from this proposed development. 

           
 The proposed dwelling is far too large for the plot and would be oppressive, 

completely dominating Bro Dawel.  
           
 This proposal would create a permanent eyesore on Druidstone Road, is not 

sympathetic infill and is completely out of character with the existing properties 
on Druidstone Road. If approved, it will set a very dangerous precedent for 
other such applications.  

           
 A pavement is to be created and the plot is already too small to accommodate 

this proposed new build.  The build would also protrude beyond the building 
line. 

           
 As there are 5000 new homes currently being constructed nearby, this infill  

development  is not needed. It is requested that the application is refused and 
that any decisions regarding the application are made via the committee route. 

 
7.11 The occupier of The Evergreens, Druidstone Road objects to the application for 

the following reasons (summary): 
 
 The proposed dwelling is far too large for the plot and will dwarf Bro Dawel and 

is not in keeping with the properties that run along Druidstone Road .  
 
 On approaching Bro Dawel from either direction there is a nearby bend in the 

road that is becoming dangerous. It is considered that  building yet another 
house particularly so close to this bend, with cars entering and leaving the 
property, is only adding to the likely hood of another road accident and perhaps 
more serious in nature.  

           
 The proposed property lies outside the LDP settlement boundary and will erode 

the surrounding countryside. 
 
7.12 Neighbouring and nearby residents have been consulted on amended plans. 

The following additional representations have been received: 
 
7.13 The occupier of Bron y Coed, Druidstone Road advises that her previous 

objections still stand (refer to paragraph 7.8). 
  
8. ANALYSIS  
 
8.1 Planning permission is sought to construct a detached dwelling in the side 

garden of  Bro-dowel, Druidsrone Road and a replacement detached garage 
for the existing house. 

 
8.2 The main planning issues relate to the acceptability of the proposed 

development on land use policy grounds having regard to the location of the 
site outside the settlement boundary, the effect of the proposed development 



on the character and appearance of the area and the general amenities of 
neighbouring occupiers, the acceptability of the proposal on transportation and 
connectivity grounds, the effect on trees and nature conservation. 

 
8.3 The site lies outside the settlement boundary as defined on the Proposals Map 

of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. Policy KP3 (B): Settlement Boundaries   
seeks to control inappropriate development in the countryside outside the 
identified settlement boundaries as shown on the Proposals Map  

. 
8.4 Policy EN1: Countryside Protection provides more guidance on the 

interpretation of this policy approach stating that: there will be a presumption 
against development  in the countryside, beyond the settlement boundaries 
identified of the Proposals Map, except where it can be justified for agricultural 
and forestry needs or it is essential for facilitating sustainable access to and 
enjoyment of the  countryside  including appropriate outdoor recreation and 
tourism uses. 

 
8.5 The aim of Policy EN1 is to ensure that development within the countryside is 

strictly controlled to protect and enhance Cardiff’s natural heritage and setting.  
 
8.6 Policy EN3 Landscape Protection states that: development will not be permitted 

that would cause unacceptable harm to the character and quality of the 
landscape and setting of the City. 

 
8.7 National planning policy guidance is contained in Planning Policy Wales 

(PPW). Paragraph 4.7.8 relating to development in the countryside states that:  
 
 Development in the countryside should be located within and adjoining those 

settlements where it can be best be accommodated in terms of infrastructure, 
access and habitat and landscape conservation. Infilling or minor extensions to 
existing settlements may be acceptable, in particular where it meets a local 
need for affordable housing, but new building in the open countryside away 
from existing settlements or areas allocated for development in development 
plans must continue to be strictly controlled. All new development should 
respect the character of the surrounding area and should be of appropriate 
scale and design. 

 
8.8 Paragraph 9.2.22 of PPW provides more advice in relation to infilling and 

states:  
 
 Many parts of the countryside have isolated groups of dwellings. Sensitive 

filling in of small gaps, or minor extensions to such groups, in particular for 
affordable housing to meet local need, may be acceptable, but much depends 
upon the character of the surroundings, the pattern of development in the area 
and the accessibility to main towns and villages. 

 
8.9 Notwithstanding the location of the application site some distance outside the 

settlement boundary, it comprises part of the garden of Bro Dowel. The 
proposed dwelling would be located within an established row of houses 
fronting this section of Druidstone Road. As a consequence, it would not add to 



unacceptable ribbon development along the road and is considered, in 
principle, to comply with the guidance outlined in PPW in relation to sensitive 
filling of small gaps. Whilst Ty Win to the north east, currently comprises a 
relatively modest single storey dwelling, there is an extant planning permission 
to demolish the bungalow and construction a new two storey house sited 
forward of its existing footprint.  

 
8.10 It should be noted that planning permission for 2 no. detached dwellings on 

land adjacent to Cefn Eirwg, Druidstone Road (located approximately 350.0 
metres south west of the application site) was refused in August, 2017 on 
grounds relating to unacceptable development into the countryside 
(ref.17/01206/MNR). However, that application is considered to differ from the 
current proposal in that the site did not comprise previously developed land and 
was located along a section of Druidstone Road characterised by sporadic 
residential development separated by areas of open countryside. It was 
considered that the development would have consolidating existing sporadic 
ribbon development along Druidstone Road and would not have constituted 
sensitive infilling as referred to in Planning Policy Wales. 

 
8.11 Policy KP5: Good Quality and Sustainable Design  of the Cardiff Local 

Development Plan  states  that… all new development will be required to be of 
a high quality, sustainable design and make a positive contribution to the 
creation of distinctive communities, places and spaces by (inter alia):  

 (i) responding to the local character and context of the built and landscape 
setting so that layout, scale, form, massing, height, density, colour, materials, 
detailing and impact on the built and natural heritage are all addressed within 
development proposals; 

 (x) ensuring no undue effect on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and 
connecting positively to surrounding communities; 

 
8.12 Planning Policy Wales at paragraph 4.11.9 states that ‘visual appearance, scale 

and relationship to surroundings and context are material planning 
considerations.’ 

 
8.13 Further guidance on residential infill development is provided in the Council’s 

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Cardiff Infill Sites (2017).  
 
8.14 The SPG advises at paragraph 2.13 that: 
 
 ‘It is important to strike a balance between maintaining the established 

positive character of a residential street and introducing additional 
housing.  To avoid a ‘town cramming’ effect, any proposals must: 

 
• Maintain a useable amenity space or garden for new as well as 

any existing dwellings/occupiers. 
• Maintain an established spacing between buildings that respects 

the pattern of layout in the vicinity of the site. 
• Maintain appropriate scale and massing which respects buildings 

in the vicinity of the site. 



• Respect the frontage building line and respond to the existing 
street scene. 

 
8.15 At paragraph 3.8 the SPG states that: 
 
 Infill development needs to be sensitive to its context. It is important that in 

residential areas where there is a clear existing pattern and form of 
development, that new buildings, landscaping and boundary treatments (e.g. 
gates, railings, walls and hedges) complement the character of the 
surroundings.  

 
8.16 At paragraph 4.11 the SPG states that: 
 
 To safeguard the amenity of existing residents, proposals must not result in 

unacceptable harm regarding the level of overbearing, overshadowing or 
overlooking of neighbouring properties. 

 
8.17 The proposed dwelling will be of traditional appearance with a hipped roof to 

match the roof design at Bro Dowel. Finished materials are to comprise 
roughcast render with brick detailing and a slate roof. Given the evident variety 
in house design in Druidstone Road, it is not considered that the appearance of 
proposed dwelling would cause unacceptable harm to the character of the 
area. Furthermore, amended plans have been submitted which reduce the 
scale of the dwelling. The original 1 ½ storey double garage with bedroom 
above has been replaced with a single storey garage of reduced width. The 
amended layout plan increases the distance between the structure and the 
eastern site boundary to between 6.2 metres and 6.7 metres. 

 
8.18 A distance of approximately 4.8 metres would be retained between Bro Dowel 

and the proposed dwelling which is considered sufficient to ensure reasonable 
visual  separation  between them. 

 
8.19 Although the existing boundary hedge would be removed to facilitate the 

frontage footway, a new replacement hedge is proposed in mitigation together 
with new tree planting. The proposed layout plan shows sufficient space to 
accommodate this new planting, the details of which are would be addressed 
by condition.  

 
8.20 The proposed replacement garage for the existing house is to be sited forward 

of this property. However, a distance of approximately 11.0 metres would be 
retained between the structure and the front of the site which is considered 
sufficient to ensure that its siting would not appear incongruous in the street 
scene. 

 
8.21 The subdivision of the plot, as proposed, would retain a side and rear garden of 

approximately 385 sq metres with the existing house and a rear garden of 
approximately 240 sq metres would be provided for the new dwelling. 
Consequently, the provision of private amenity areas significantly exceeds the 
Council’s guidelines as set out in the Infill Sites SPG. 

 



8.22 The likely effect of the proposed development on the living conditions of 
neighbouring occupiers has been carefully considered. 

 
8.23 The application site backs onto the garden of the neighbouring property at 

Pwll Coch Uchaf. The rear elevation of the proposed dwelling is shown to be 
sited between 8.8 metres and 11.6 metres from the boundary with this 
property. Where first floor windows are proposed in this elevation which 
would fall below the privacy guideline of 10.5 metres, they are required to be 
obscurely glazed. The proposed dwelling is sited approximately 15.0 metres 
from the front boundary of The Cottage located on the opposite side of 
Druidstone Road and approximately 39.0 metres from its front elevation. 
Having regard to these distances, it is not considered that the amenity of the 
neighbouring occupier would be harmed to the extent that would justify 
refusal of the application on this ground. 

 
8.24 Following the receipt of amended plans, the side elevation of the proposed 

dwelling would be positioned between 6.2 metres and 6.7 metres from eastern 
boundary of the site. This boundary comprises a hedge which runs alongside 
the driveway serving Pwll Coch Uchaf and a single storey dwelling known as Ty 
Win. The front garden of Ty Win lies opposite the eastern boundary of the 
application site on the other side of the lane. It is not considered that the 
proposed dwelling would have an unduly overbearing or dominating effect on 
this neighbouring property or would impact unacceptably on light to habitable 
rooms having regard to the distance between them and the Council’s 
guidelines on these matters. 

 
8.25 The proposed replacement garage for Brodowel would be sited forward  of the 

house, approximately 2.5 metres from the boundary with the front garden of the 
neighbouring property at Bron y Coed .The boundary is enclosed with a 1.8 
metre high close boarded fence. The garage comprises a pitched roof structure 
rising to an eaves and ridge height of 2.1 metres and 4.9 metres respectively. It 
is not considered that it would impact on the living conditions of the adjoining 
occupiers to the extent that it would constitute an unneighbourly form of 
development. 

 
8.26 The Operational Manager, Transportation has raised no objections to the 

application on parking, highway safety subject to the provision of adequate 
off-street parking/manoeuvring and a 1.8 metre wide frontage footway.  

 
8.27 It is acknowledged that connectivity of the site with existing neighbourhoods by 

means of travel other than the car would be restricted having regard to the 
distance from a regular bus service (stop) together with the standard of 
Druidstone Road, which has intermittent footpath provision. However, 
numerous planning permissions have been granted in recent years for 
dwellings within the large garden of properties along the road. Although 
Druidstone Road has limited footway provision, it is illuminated. In considering 
the transportation impact of such applications, the main highway consideration 
is that in the absence of footways, the visibility for vehicles emerging onto the 
road is often poor. The Operational Manager, Transportation has taken the 
view that, on balance, the benefit achieved in terms of highway safety, by 



securing improved visibility for existing accesses outweighs the limited 
increase in the numbers of vehicle/pedestrian movements which would accrue 
from the new dwellings and that a further consequential benefit would be the 
incremental improvement that would be achieved to pedestrian facilities 
generally along the road.  

 
8.28 The Council’s ecologist has raised no objections to the application on nature 

conservation grounds recommending informative 7. 
 
8.29 On balance, the application is considered acceptable and approval is 

recommended subject to the attached conditions.  
 
9. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
 Section 17(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes a duty on the Local 

Authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of 
the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can 
to prevent, crime and disorder in its area. This duty has been considered in the 
evaluation of this application. It is considered that there would be no significant 
or unacceptable increase in crime and disorder as a result of the proposed 
decision. 

 
9.2 Equality Act 2010 
 The Equality Act 2010 identifies a number of ‘protected characteristics’, namely 

age; disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or 
belief; sex; sexual orientation; marriage and civil partnership. The Council’s 
duty under the above Act has been given due consideration in the 
determination of this application. It is considered that the proposed 
development does not have any significant implications for, or effect on, 
persons who share a protected characteristic, over and above any other 
person. 

 
9.3 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
      
 Section 3 of this Act imposes a duty on public bodies to carry out sustainable 

development in accordance with the sustainable development principle to act in 
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs (Section 
5). This duty has been considered in the evaluation of this application. It is 
considered that there would be no significant or unacceptable impact upon the 
achievement of wellbeing objectives as a result of the recommended decision. 

           
9.4 Environment (Wales) Act 2016 
 The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 imposes a duty on the Local Authority to 

seek to maintain and enhance biodiversity in the proper exercise of its functions 
and in doing so to promote the resilience of ecosystems. It is considered that 
the proposed development does not have any significant implications for, or 
effect on, biodiversity. 

 







UP

DN

13500

9
0
0
0

UTILITY FAMILY KITCHEN

FORMAL DINING

OFFICE

FORMAL LOUNGE

5050

6
6
0
0

4750

6
0
0
0

BEDROOM

BEDROOMBEDROOMBEDROOM

AC BATHROOM

Ground Floor GA

0

First Floor GA

2650

Eaves

4850
IVORY THROUGH COLOUR RENDER

WHITE UPVC

BUFF RECON STONE CILL

GREY SLATE ROOF TILE

WHITE FACIAS & BLACK RAINWATER GOODS

Ridge

8455

Ground Floor GA

0

First Floor GA

2650

Eaves

4850

Ridge

8455

Ground Floor GA

0

First Floor GA

2650

Eaves

4850

Ridge

8455

Ground Floor GA

0

First Floor GA

2650

Eaves

4850

Ridge

8455

6600

6
6
0
0

2
1
0
0

4
8
6
5

Do not scale. All Dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise stated.

Client -

Project -

Title -

Scale - A1 Drawing Number Rev

 1 : 100

Steve and Gary Smith

New Dwelling at Bro Dawel

Proposed Plans and Elevations

A102

 1 : 100

Ground Floor GA
 1 : 100

First Floor GA

 1 : 100

Front Elevation

 1 : 100

Rear Elevation
 1 : 100

Side Elevation 2

 1 : 100

Side Elevation 1

D

 1 : 100

Bro Dawel Garage

 1 : 100

Garage Front Elevation
 1 : 100

Garage Side Elevation





This page is intentionally left blank



LOCAL MEMBER OBJECTION 

COMMITTEE DATE: 19/09/2018 

APPLICATION No. 18/00576/MJR APPLICATION DATE:  13/03/2018 

ED: LLANDAFF 

APP: TYPE: Full Planning Permission 

APPLICANT:  THE RISE CARDIFF LTD 
LOCATION:  YOUTH OFFENDING TEAM - THE RISE, PEN-HILL ROAD, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, CF11 9PR 
PROPOSAL:  ERECTION OF 8 4-BED TOWNHOUSES, GARAGES AND  

ASSOCIATED PARKING  
___________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 1:  That permission be GRANTED subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. Statutory Time Limit (The development permitted shall be begun before
the expiration of two years from the date of this planning permission.
Reason: In accordance with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.)

2. The Development shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:

Plans
SP546 – P100 Site Location Plan  
SP546 – P00 Existing Site Plan  
SP546 – P01 Rev A Proposed Site Plan 
SP546 – P02 Proposed House Type ‘A’ Floor Plans  
SP546 – P03 Proposed House Type ‘B’ Floor Plans  
SP546 – P04 Proposed House Type ‘C’ Floor Plans  
SP546 – P05 Proposed Elevations_1 
SP546 – P05 Proposed Elevations_2 
SP546 – P07 Rev A Proposed Elevations_3  
SP546 – P08 Proposed Section A-A and Garage Plans 

and Elevations 

Documents 
• Proposed Mitigation and Enhancement Plan (Bats) - Dated

29.06.2018 - Celtic Ecology and Conservation Ltd 
• Noise Assessment for Planning Purposes – Dated 03.07.2018 –

Acoustics and Noise limited 
• Transport Statement – Report Ref: CC1711/REP01/A (April

2018) - Cambria 
• Swept Path Analysis: Large Private Car (Sheet 1 of 2) - CAM 00

00 GA C 002 Rev P2 – Cambria 

Agenda Item 5c



• Swept Path Analysis: Large Private Car (Sheet 2 of 2) - CAM 00 
00 GA C 003 Rev P1 – Cambria 

• Swept Path Analysis: 7.5t Van - CAM 00 00 GA C 001 Rev P5 – 
Cambria 

• SP546 – CWA - Planning Statement (March 2018) 
• Vehicle Tracking Supporting Text. Email: dated 02.07.2018 from 

Chris Waterworth.   
 
• SP546 – P10  3D Model View_1 
• SP546 – P11  3D Model View_2 
• SP546 – P12  Verified Views of 3D Model  
• SP546  Validated View from the Park 1  
• SP546  Validated View from the Park 2 
• SP546  Validated View from the Park 3  
• SP546  Validated View from the Park 4 
 
• Arboricultural Method Statement – Rev 21 June 2018   
• Landscaping Proposals Planting Beds – 291 2018/46. Rev A 
• Landscape Existing: Drawing No. 291 2018/13. Rev B 
• Landscape Overlay and Tree Protection Plan: Drawing No. 291 

2018/14. Rev D  
• Landscape: Proposals. Drawing No. 291 2018/15. Rev E  
• Planting Schedule - Rev 16th July 2018 
• Tree Pit Sections - 291 2018/68.rev A - Dated 27th July 2018  
• Planting Methodology and Aftercare Management Plan – Rev 3 

August 2018 - Corscadden Associates 
 

 Reason : To ensure satisfactory completion of the development and for 
the avoidance of doubt in line with the aims of Planning Policy Wales to 
promote an efficient planning system. 

 
3. Prior to the commencement of the development an assessment of the 

nature and extent of contamination shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  This assessment must be 
carried out by or under the direction of a suitably qualified competent 
person * in accordance with BS10175 (2011) Code of Practice for the 
Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and shall assess any 
contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site.   

 
 The report of the findings shall include:  
 

(i) A desk top study to identify all previous uses at the site and 
potential contaminants associated with those uses and the 
impacts from those contaminants on land and controlled 
waters.  The desk study shall establish a ‘conceptual site model’ 
(CSM) which identifies and assesses all identified potential 
source, pathway, and receptor linkages;  

 



(ii) An intrusive investigation to assess the extent, scale and nature 
of contamination which may be present, if identified as required 
by the desk top study; 

 
(iii) An assessment of the potential risks to: 

 
- human health,  
- groundwaters and surface waters 
- adjoining land, 
- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, 
livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
- ecological systems,  
- archaeological sites and ancient monuments; and 
- any other receptors identified at (i) 

 
(iv) An appraisal of remedial options, and justification for the 

preferred remedial option(s).  
 
 All work and submissions carried out for the purposes of this condition 

must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency’s ‘Model procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination, CLR 11’ (September 2004) and the WLGA / WG / NRW 
guidance document ‘ Land Contamination: A guide for Developers’ 
(2017), unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to any variation. 

 
 * A ‘suitably qualified competent person’ would normally be expected to 

be a chartered member of an appropriate professional body (such as 
the Institution of Civil Engineers, Geological Society of London, Royal 
Institution of Chartered Surveyors, Institution of Environmental 
Management) and also have relevant experience of investigating 
contaminated sites. 

 
 Reason: To ensure that information provided for the assessment of the 

risks from land contamination to the future users of the land, 
neighbouring land, controlled waters, property and ecological systems 
is sufficient to enable a proper assessment in accordance with policy 
EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan.  

 
4. Prior to the commencement of the development a detailed remediation 

scheme and verification plan to bring the site to a condition suitable for 
the intended use by removing any unacceptable risks to human health, 
controlled waters, buildings, other property and the natural and 
historical environment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include all works to be 
undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, 
a timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under 
Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 

 



 All work and submissions carried out for the purposes of this condition 
must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency’s ‘Model procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination, CLR 11’ (September 2004) and the WLGA / WG / NRW 
guidance document ‘ Land Contamination: A guide for Developers’ 
(2017),unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to any variation. 

 
 Reason: To ensure that any unacceptable risks from land 

contamination to the future users of the land , neighbouring land, 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems are minimised, and 
to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in 
accordance with policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan 

 
5. The remediation scheme approved by condition 4 must be fully 

undertaken in accordance with its terms prior to the occupation of any 
part of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two 
weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme 
works.  

 
 Within 6 months of the completion of the measures identified in the 

approved remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates 
the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 
 All work and submissions carried out for the purposes of this condition 

must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency’s ‘Model procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination, CLR 11’ (September 2004) and the WLGA / WG / NRW 
guidance document ‘ Land Contamination: A guide for Developers’ 
(2017),, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to any variation. 

 
 Reason : To ensure that any unacceptable risks from land 

contamination to the future users of the land , neighbouring land, 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems are minimised, and 
to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in 
accordance with policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
6. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 

the approved development that was not previously identified it must be 
reported in writing within 2 days to the Local Planning Authority, all 
associated works must stop, and no further development shall take 
place unless otherwise agreed in writing until a scheme to deal with the 
contamination found has been approved.  An investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a 
remediation scheme and verification plan must be prepared and 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved 



remediation scheme a verification report must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The timescale for 
the above actions shall be agreed with the LPA within 2 weeks of the 
discovery of any unsuspected contamination.  

 
 Reason: To ensure that any unacceptable risks from land 

contamination to the future users of the land , neighbouring land, 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems are minimised, and 
to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in 
accordance with policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan 

 
7. Any topsoil [natural  or manufactured],or subsoil, to be imported shall 

be assessed for chemical or other potential contaminants in 
accordance with a scheme of investigation which shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in advance of 
its importation. Only material approved by the Local Planning Authority 
shall be imported. All measures specified in the approved scheme shall 
be undertaken in accordance with the relevant Code of Practice and 
Guidance Notes.  

 
 Subject to approval of the above, sampling of the material received at 

the development site to verify that the imported soil is free from 
contamination shall be undertaken in accordance with a scheme and 
timescale to be agreed in writing by the LPA.  

 
 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced 

in accordance with policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 
 
8. Any aggregate  (other than virgin quarry stone) or recycled aggregate 

material to be imported shall be assessed for chemical or other 
potential contaminants in accordance with a scheme of investigation 
which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority in advance of its importation. Only material 
approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be imported. All 
measures specified in the approved scheme shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the relevant Code of Practice and Guidance Notes.  

 
 Subject to approval of the above, sampling of the material received at 

the development site to verify that the imported material is free from 
contamination shall be undertaken in accordance with a scheme and 
timescale to be agreed in writing by the LPA.  

 
 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced 

in accordance with policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 
 
9. Any site won material including soils, aggregates, recycled materials 

shall be assessed for chemical or other potential contaminants in 
accordance with a sampling scheme which shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in advance of the 



reuse of site won materials. Only material which meets site specific 
target values approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be reused.  

 Reason: To ensure that the safety of future occupiers is not prejudiced 
in accordance with policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan. 

 
10. No above ground works shall be commenced until details, which may 

include samples, of the external finishing materials have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory finished appearance to the 
development in accordance with Policy KP5 of the Cardiff Local 
Development Plan (2006 - 2026). 

 
11. No development shall commence until details of a scheme for the 

disposal of surface water has been submitted to and agreed in writing 
by the local planning authority. The scheme shall include an 
assessment of the potential disposal of surface water via sustainable 
means. Where a sustainable drainage scheme is to be provided the 
submitted detail shall: 

 
(i) Provide information about the design storm period and intensity, 

the method employed to delay and control the surface water 
discharged from the site and the measure taken to prevent 
pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters; 

(ii) Include a period for its implementation; and 
(iii) Provide a management and maintenance plan of the 

development which shall include the arrangements for adoption 
by any public authority or statutory undertaker and any other 
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout 
its lifetime.  

 
 Reason: To ensure disposal of surface water via possible sustainable 

means in accordance with Policy EN10 of the adopted Cardiff Local 
Development Plan 2006 - 2026. 

 
12. No development shall commence until a drainage scheme for the site 

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme shall provide for the disposal of foul, surface 
and land water, and include an assessment of the potential to dispose 
of surface and land water by sustainable means. Thereafter the 
scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details 
prior to the occupation of the development and no further foul water, 
surface water and land drainage shall be allowed to connect directly or 
indirectly with the public sewerage system. 

 
 Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage 

system, to protect the health and safety of existing residents and 
ensure no pollution of or detriment to the environment in accordance 
with Policy EN10 of the adopted Cardiff Local Development Plan 2006 - 



2026.. 
 
13. All planting, seeding and turf-laying shown on the approved plans shall 

be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
occupation of the building or the completion of the development, 
whichever is sooner and in full accordance with approved plans and 
specifications. 

 
 Any newly planted trees, plants or hedgerows, which within a period of 

5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed, 
become seriously damaged or diseased, or in the opinion of the Local 
Planning Authority (LPA) otherwise defective, shall be replaced in the 
first available planting season and to the specification shown on 
approved plans and in supporting documents, unless the LPA gives 
written consent to any variation. 

 
 Reason: To maintain and improve the amenity and environmental value 

of the area in accordance with Policy KP5 of the adopted Cardiff Local 
Development Plan 2006 - 2026. 

 
14. Prior to commencement of development a scheme shall be submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to provide 
that all habitable rooms exposed to external road traffic noise in excess 
of 63 dBA Leq 16 hour [free field] during the day [07.00 to 23.00 hours] 
or 57 dBA Leq 8 hour [free field] at night [23.00 to 07.00 hours] shall be 
subject to sound insulation measures to ensure that all such rooms 
achieve an internal noise level of 35 dBA Leq 16 hour during the day 
and 30 dBA Leq 8 hour at night. 

 
 The submitted scheme shall ensure that habitable rooms subject to 

sound insulation measures shall be provided with acoustically treated 
active ventilation units. Each ventilation unit (with air filter in position), 
by itself or with an integral air supply duct and cowl (or grille), shall be 
capable of giving variable ventilation rates ranging from –   

 
1. An upper rate of not less than 37 litres per second against a 

back pressure of 10 newtons per square metre and not less than 
31 litres per second against a back pressure of 30 newtons per 
square metre, to 

2. A lower rate of between 10 and 17 litres per second against zero 
back pressure. 

 
 No habitable room shall be occupied until the approved sound 

insulation and ventilation measures have been installed in that room. 
Any private open space shall be designed to provide an area which is 
at least 50% of the area for sitting out where the maximum day time 
noise level does not exceed 55 dBA Leq 16 hour [free field]. 

 
 Reason: To ensure that the amenities of future occupiers are protected 

in accordance with Policy EN13 of the Cardiff Local Development Plan 



(2006 - 2026).   
 
15. No development shall take place until a Construction Management Plan 

(CMP) has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved CMP shall be adhered to throughout 
the construction period. The plan shall provide for: 

 
a) access 
b) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
c) loading and unloading of plant and materials 
d) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development 
e) the erection and maintenance of security hoardings 
f) wheel washing facilities 
g) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 

construction 
h) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from 

construction works 
i) details of the protection of the adjoining public highway and its 

making good should it be damaged during construction works.  
 
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety, public amenity and to avoid 

any conflict situations with residents and/or staff residing/working on 
this site in accordance with policies T5, T6 and EN13 of the adopted 
Local Development Plan (2006-2026).  

 
16. Details of the privacy screens proposed on the dwellings shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The approved details shall be installed prior to the occupation of the 
dwellings and shall thereafter be retained and maintained. 

 Reason: To ensure that the privacy of occupiers is protected in 
accordance with Policy KP5 of the adopted Cardiff Local Development 
Plan (2006 - 2026). 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2: The contamination assessments and the effects of 
unstable land are considered on the basis of the best information available to 
the Planning Authority and are not necessarily exhaustive.  The Authority 
takes due diligence when assessing these impacts, however you are minded 
that the responsibility for 
 
(i) determining the extent and effects of such constraints; 
(ii)  ensuring that any imported materials (including, topsoils, subsoils, 

aggregates and recycled or manufactured aggregates/ soils) are 
chemically suitable for the proposed end use.  Under no circumstances 
should controlled waste be imported. It is an offence under Section 33 
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 to deposit controlled waste on 
a site which does not benefit from an appropriate waste management 
license.  The following must not be imported to a development site; 

 
• Unprocessed / unsorted demolition wastes. 



• Any materials originating from a site confirmed as being 
contaminated or potentially contaminated by chemical or 
radioactive substances.   

• Japanese Knotweed stems, leaves and rhizome infested 
soils.  In addition to section 33 above, it is also an offence under 
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to spread this invasive 
weed; and  

 
(ii) the safe development and secure occupancy of the site rests 

with the developer. 
 
 Proposals for areas of possible land instability should take due account 

of the physical and chemical constraints and may include action on 
land reclamation or other remedial action to enable beneficial use of 
unstable land. 

 
 The Local Planning Authority has determined the application on the 

basis of the information available to it, but this does not mean that the 
land can be considered free from contamination. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 3: The applicant may need to apply to Dwr 

Cymru / Welsh Water for any connection to the public sewer under 
S106 of the Water industry Act 1991. If the connection to the public 
sewer network is either via a lateral drain (i.e. a drain which extends 
beyond the connecting property boundary) or via a new sewer (i.e. 
serves more than one property), it is now a mandatory requirement to 
first enter into a Section 104 Adoption Agreement (Water Industry Act 
1991). The design of the sewers and lateral drains must also conform 
to the Welsh Ministers Standards for Gravity Foul Sewers and Lateral 
Drains, and conform with the publication "Sewers for Adoption"- 7th 
Edition. Further information can be obtained via the Developer Services 
pages of www.dwrcymru.com. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 4: The applicant is advised that all new 

residential units are required to purchase the bin provision required for 
each unit. The bins have to meet the Council’s specifications and can 
be purchased directly by contacting the Waste Management’s 
commercial team on 029 20717500. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 5 : The developer should consider undertaking a 

comprehensive written, drawn and photographed survey / record of the 
building. This would ideally be to Level 3 standard (Historic England 
‘Understanding Historic Buildings: A Guide to Good Recording Practice’ 
2016, further information from http://www.english-
heritage.org.uk/publications/understanding-historic-
buildings/understandinghistoricbuildings1.pdf).  

 
 In order that the nature and history of the structure can be understood and 

retained for future generations. The completed record should be deposited 

http://www.dwrcymru.com/
http://www.english-heritage.org.uk/publications/understanding-historic-buildings/understandinghistoricbuildings1.pdf
http://www.english-heritage.org.uk/publications/understanding-historic-buildings/understandinghistoricbuildings1.pdf
http://www.english-heritage.org.uk/publications/understanding-historic-buildings/understandinghistoricbuildings1.pdf


in a suitable repository such as the Glamorgan Archives or the Historic 
Environment Record so that future historians can access it.  

 
 RECOMMENDATION 6 : It is the responsibility of the applicant to 

ensure that the retaining wall along the boundary of the site with Cardiff 
Road is designed and constructed fit for purpose. The Local Planning 
Authority has no duty of care over this wall. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION 7 : Prior to the commencement of any soft 

landscaping works within Llandaff Fields, the applicant, or their 
landscape contractor, shall agree a scheme of implementation works to 
trees and other vegetation within Parks land with the Council’s Parks 
department in order to ensure that the approved landscaping provision 
is delivered acceptably. The applicant is advised to contact the 
Council’s Parks Tree Section (Matt Wride – 02920 445924) and 
Western Grounds Maintenance Manager (Mark Cummings – 02920 
563902) to agree implementation of works and long term maintenance. 

 
1. DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
1.1 Planning permission is sought for the erection of 8 X 4 bed town houses with 

associated garages and parking spaces. Each of the 8 dwellings would be 
partially built into the ground and would therefore appear as 3 storeys dwellings 
to their front elevations and 4 storeys dwelling, with 5th floor roof terrace, to their 
rear. Each dwelling would have an external amenity space to the rear along with 
a various balconies and a top floor roof terrace.   

 
1.2 The proposed dwellings would be finished in buff or black brick, with rusticated 

rendered to their ground floor front elevations, and have double glazed powder 
coated aluminium windows. Each of the dwellings would have pitched roofs, 
finished in slate, with small dormers to their front roof slopes and large 
dormer/canopy features and roof terraces to their rear.   

 
1.3 The split level design of the dwellings would utilise the topography of the site with 

the lower ground floors proposed being below ground at the front of the dwellings 
but at garden level at the rear. Light wells are proposed at the front of the 
dwellings to enable increased light provision to the lower ground floor levels.   

 
2. DESCRPITION OF SITE 
 
2.1 The application site is located to the north of the junction between Penhill Road, 

Llandaff Road, Pencisely Road and Cardiff Road and adjacent to Pontcanna 
Fields and Llandaff Fields Historic Park and Garden. 

 
2.2 The site is currently occupied by a part two, part three storey Victorian villa with 

pitched roof and tower feature. To the rear of the villa is a large flat roofed two 
storey extension which is built into the ground, thereby only appearing two storey, 
when viewed from the east. To the southeast of the man villa is a two storey 
mono-pitched outbuilding, again built partially into the ground, utilising the site 
levels.  



 
2.3 A random rubble stone wall measuring approximately 1.8m – 2.3m high 

externally and 1.8m – 6.5m internally encloses the site from its north-western 
corner around to its south-eastern corner, with only a small break for the 
vehicular access point and an additional pedestrian entrance. The northern and 
eastern boundaries of the site are enclosed by trees and landscaping, including a 
substantial laurel hedge.          

   
2.4 Vehicular access to the site is obtained from Penhill Road, approximately 25m to 

the east of the Cardiff Road, Penhill Road, Llandaff Road and Pencisely Road 
junction. Given the close proximity of the site entrance to this junction, vehicles 
leaving the site are currently informally prohibited from turning right. A small, 
arched, break in the boundary wall is located directly adjacent to the junction 
providing an alternative point of access for pedestrians.  

 
2.5 The application site initially slopes steeply upwards from east to west before 

levelling out from approximately the centre of the site towards its western 
boundary. Similarly, the site is level for most of its length in a north to south 
orientation, with a small gradient evident from, approximately the front elevation 
of the existing villa towards its southern boundary with Penhill Road.   

 
2.6 Numerous trees are located both within the application site and immediately 

adjacent to it within Llandaff Fields.  
 
2.7 The majority of the application site lies outside of a flood zone area, as defined by 

TAN 15, with just a small area on the boundary of the site with the adjacent park 
falling within flood zone C1.  

 
3. SITE HISTORY 
 
3.1 17/02997/MNR – Prior approval granted for the demolition of all buildings on the 

site.  
 
4. POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
4.1 National Policy 
 
 Planning Policy Wales (Edition 9) November 2016 
 
4.2 TAN’s 
 
 TAN 12: Design (March 2016) 
 TAN 11: Noise (October 1997) 
 TAN 15: Development and Flood Risk (2004) 
 TAN 18: Transport (March 2007) 
 TAN 21: Waste (February 2014) 
 
4.3 Cardiff Local Development Plan (Adopted January 2016) 
 
 KP5: Good Quality and Sustainable Design 



KP6: New Infrastructure 
KP7: Planning Obligations 
KP8: Sustainable Transport  
KP14: Health Living  
KP15: Climate Change  
KP17: Built Heritage  
H3: Affordable Housing 
H6: Change of Use or Redevelopment to Residential Use    
EN8: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 
EN9: Conservation of the Historic Environment  
EN10: Water Sensitive Design  
EN13: Air, Noise, Light Pollution and Land Contamination  
EN14: Flood Risk  
T1: Walking and Cycling  
T5: Managing Transport Impacts  
T6: Impact on Transport Networks and Services 
C3: Community Safety/Creating Safe Environments 
W2: Provision for Waste Management Facilities in Development    

 
4.4 Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG’s) adopted to the Cardiff Local 

Development Plan   
 
 Infill Sites (November 2017) 
 Waste Collection and Storage Facilities (October 2016) 
 Residential Design Guide (January 2017) 
 Green Infrastructure (November 2017) 
 Managing Transportation Impacts (April 2018) 
 
5. INTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
5.1 The Operational Manager (Transportation): raises no objection to the application 

proposal making the following comments;  
 
 The car parking provision proposed is acceptable and as the Transport 

Statement indicates that the movements to and from the proposed site will be 
low, they would not have a detrimental effect upon the highway. As such, an 
objection on these grounds would be unsustainable. The site is also located in a 
sustainable location in term terms of transport. There are regular bus services in 
the area and the site is within walking distance to the shops of Pontcanna area.  

 
 The submitted tracking diagrams demonstrate that cars can safely move within 

the confines of the site as can a 7.5 tonne lorry, furthermore the tracking has 
demonstrated that such a lorry can leave site in a forward gear, thus improving 
driver, cyclist and pedestrian safety. Therefore an objection on these grounds 
would be unsustainable. 

 
 The applicant has demonstrated that the visibility splay, although restricted is 

adequate due to the slow speeds of traffic turning left on to Penhill Road from 
Cardiff Road. Concerns regarding traffic running a red light to turn on to Penhill 
Road from Cardiff Road are acknowledged, however this is an illegal manoeuvre 



and is an enforcement issue. An objection on these grounds would be 
unsustainable. 

 
5.2 The Affordable Housing Manager (enabling) raises no objection making the 

following comments; 
 
 ‘In line with the adopted LDP, an affordable housing contribution of 20% of the 8 

units (2 units) is sought on this brown-field site. 
 
 Our priority is to deliver on-site affordable housing, in the form of affordable 

rented accommodation, and this site is suitable for social rented accommodation, 
built to Welsh Government Development Quality Requirements (DQR) for 
purchase by a nominated Registered Social Landlord (RSL) partner. 

 
 For information, any affordable housing scheme should be appraised on a NIL 

Social Housing Grant (SHG) basis, and the amount that a Registered Social 
Landlord (RSL) would pay for the unit is specified below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 Given the proposed design/configuration of the scheme, we would need to 

understand how these units can meet DQR standards and how any demarcation 
between the market and the affordable would work in reality.   

 
 The scheme has to be able to be managed practicality and easily maintained by 

the Registered Social Landlord.  
 
 If it is not possible to deliver the units on site then, as an alternative to on-site 

provision, we would be willing to enter into discussions with the applicant with 
regard to providing the affordable housing contribution as a financial contribution 
in lieu. On that basis we would seek a financial contribution of £286,636 (in lieu of 
2 units (20%)) which is calculated in accordance with the formula in the 
Affordable Housing – Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) (2017).’ 

 
5.3 The Tree Officer, following the submission of amended landscaping plans; raises 

no objection to the application proposal subject to conditions. See condition 13. 
 
5.4 The Parks Officer: raises no objection to the application proposal making the 

following comments.    
 
 The site of the proposed development is adjacent to Llandaff Fields and therefore 

has the potential to impact upon it, although some of the existing building line is 
very close to the boundary.  

 
 A number of discussions have taken place with the applicant’s landscape 

designers regarding the proposals and any impact on adjacent vegetation within 
the park. Much of the existing vegetation (which comprises of a laurel hedge and 
mature trees) will be retained and enhanced to provide screening. Agreement 

 Social Rent 
4 bed house   £                         96,000  



has been reached for several poor quality trees with structural weaknesses to be 
removed as they are likely to cause long term issues for the park and 
development. The applicant has agreed to fund / carry out planting of 
replacement trees within the Park in lieu of those lost. 

 
 Overall, given these discussions, Parks believe that Llandaff Fields will not be 

adversely affected by these proposals and will receive benefits through new tree 
planting. 

 
 The landscape plans showing the planting within the park reflect discussions with 

the applicant, landscape architect and grounds maintenance manager. 
 
 Open Space Provision 
 
 These comments relate to the current LDP (C5 Provision for Open Space, 

Outdoor Recreation, Children’s Play and Sport; KP16 Green Infrastructure),  and 
the 2017 Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG). 

 
 The Council’s LDP requires provision of a satisfactory level and standard of open 

space on all new housing/student developments, or an off-site contribution 
towards existing open space for smaller scale developments where new on-site 
provision is not applicable. 

 
 The current LDP requires developments of more than 8 units to provide an off-

site POS contribution. As the current proposals are for 8 units this scheme does 
not reach this threshold. 

 
5.5 The Waste Strategy and Minimisation Manager raises no objection to the 

application proposal stating the following: 
 
 The proposed storage and collection for this development has been noted and is 

acceptable.  
 
5.6 Pollution Control – Contaminated Land: raise no objection subject to conditions in 

respect of contaminated land issues, with further contaminated land advice. 
 
5.7 Pollution Control – Noise: Raise no objection to the application proposal subject 

to road traffic noise condition and an advisory note.  
 
5.8 Pollution Control – Air Quality: Raise no objection to the application proposal.  
 
5.9 The County Ecologist: raises no objection to the application proposal; making the 

following comments;  
 
 The compensation / enhancement measures proposed in respect of bats should 

correspond to the measures required by the EPS licence.   
 
 The development of this site presents an opportunity to remove the Laurel hedge 

which surrounds part of the site, and to replace it with native planting.  Under 
Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 Cardiff Council has a duty to seek 



to maintain and enhance biodiversity in the exercise of its functions, including the 
granting of planning consent.  Replacement of the Laurel with native species 
could be of equal or greater aesthetic value, but of much greater biodiversity 
value.  There are many native trees / shrubs which could provide equal screening 
of the new development, in time, and at the same time enhance the nature 
conservation value of the adjacent park. 

 
5.10 Operational Manager Drainage: raises no objection to the application proposal 

subject to a condition regarding surface water disposal.  
 
6. EXTERNAL CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
6.1 Welsh Water: Raise no objection subject to drainage details condition and an 

advisory note.  
 
6.2 Wales and West Utilities: Raise no objection to the application proposal.  
 
6.3 Natural Resources Wales:  Raise no objection to the planning application and 

make the following comments. 
 
 European Protected Species 
 We are aware that a European Protected Species licence in relation to bats has 

already been consented at this site. 
 
 NRW note the submission of the Proposed Mitigation and Enhancement Plan 

(Bats) (Dated 29.06.2018) and confirm that the bat mitigation plans shown 
thereon correspond with those conditioned under the European Protected 
Species licence granted for the demolition.  

 
 Flood Risk Management 
 A very small part of the application site lies within Zone C1 as defined by the 

Development Advice Map (DAM) referred to under Technical Advice Note 15: 
Development and Flood Risk (TAN15) (July 2004). Our Flood Map, which is 
updated on a quarterly basis, confirms a very small part of the site to be within 
the 0.1% (1 in 1000 year) annual probability flood outlines. However, our 
modelling data confirms the built development (including gardens) is predicted to 
be flood free. Furthermore, we are satisfied that the area described on drawing 
SP548-P01 as a planting scheme would have no effect on flood risk from a 
storage or conveyance perspective. Therefore, we raise no concerns in relation 
to flood risk. 

 
6.4 Cadw raise no objection to the impact of the proposed development on the 

registered historic parks and garden Pontcanna Fields and Llandaff Fields PGW 
(Gm)59 (CDF).  

 
 Cadw acknowledge that the proposed development is likely to have a slight 

impact on the setting of the registered park, however, accept that the additional 
tree planting proposed within the registered park (as shown on the proposed 
landscape proposal plan 2018/15 Rev E) would assist in screening the 
development from the park; mitigating this visual impact. 



 
6.5 The Glamorgan-Gwent Archaeological Trust Limited: Raise no objection to the 

application proposal subject to a condition requiring the accurate recording of the 
existing villa on the site as an historic house.  

 
6.6 South Wales Fire and Rescue: Any comments received will be reported to 

committee.  
 
6.7 South Wales Police: Any comments received will be reported to committee. 
 
7. REPRESENTATIONS 
 
7.1 The local ward members for Llandaff, Riverside and Canton have been consulted 

on the application proposal given the location of site on the boundary of these 
wards, albeit the site itself falls within the Llandaff ward.  

 
7.2 Councillor, Philippa Hill-John (Llandaff) objects to the proposed development 

stressing that she supports the objection submitted on the behalf of the Llandaff 
Society (see para:7.5). She further considers that the proposal would fail to 
improve or enhance the potential of this dominant site.   

 
7.3 The application was publicised by way site notices and neighbour notification. 21 

letters have been received, including 19 letters of objection, 1 letter of support 
and 1 neutral letter. Objections have also been received from the Llandaff Society 
and the Cardiff Civic Society. A summary of the comments received are detailed 
below.   

 
 Neutral 

• The existing building should be retained and redeveloped given its 
prominent position and as a local landmark.  

• Access to the site is not safe, particularly for pedestrians on the adjacent 
footpath. 

• The removal of trees should not be undertaken purely to allow improved 
view for the proposed dwellings. The environmental impact of their loss 
and any impact on the adjacent GII Llandaff Fields should be the highest 
priority in any consideration of their loss.  

• Consideration should be given to the need to cut carbon emissions and 
only one parking space per dwelling should be provided. 

• Any planning gain funds are used to provide protection and enhancement 
of facilities for the well-being of all within Pontcanna fields 

• Planting schemes should be carefully considered to enhance wild life and 
serious consideration must be given to provision of social housing within 
this prestigious site. 

• Photographic imagery should be taken prior to and during demolition of the 
existing villa for historical records. The Rise is not listed but is an imposing 
building which should be remembered. 

• This site should allow for a maximum of 5 town houses with plots 6, 7 and 
8 providing affordable housing units. Cycle racks should be installed in 
place of the garage proposed for plot 8. Garage plots 5, 6 and 7 should be 
replaced with an open green small communal area. 



• Planning Policy Wales sets out the need to provide more housing of the 
right type and offer more choice. 

• Consideration should be given for the un-met need of those requiring 
affordable housing.  

• This house was built by one of the Thompson family who were known and 
respected as great benefactors to Cardiff and its institutions. The house 
displays a character that adds to the quality and distinctiveness that helps 
identify Cardiff as a notable city and distinguishes it from other important 
late Victorian cities. Cardiff has already lost far too many of the buildings 
that bear testament to its massive growth, wealth and influence in the late 
1800s. This aspect of our city should be protected and enhanced before 
the City loses its identity and just becomes another early c21st version of a 
city that could be anywhere in Britain and thus not appealing as a visitor 
destination that projects its important history for tourists looking for unique 
character and atmosphere. 

 
 Support 

• The site benefits from good transport links along with excellent cycling and 
walking routes. 

• Highway safety concerns are minimal as traffic flow has reduced since the 
closure of The Rise facility. A 50/50 transport split for the new build would 
be appropriate. 

• There is a variety of types and sizes of properties in the area and therefore 
the development will not be insensitive nor inappropriate within the locality. 

 
 Object  

• The number of dwellings proposed on the site is excessive. 
• The architecture of the proposed dwellings is not sympathetic to the 

existing tone of the area. 
• We should be protecting such buildings as The Rise, not replacing them 

with featureless architecture in the name of profit. The character of Cardiff 
is slowly being eroded. 

• The existing villa should be converted into flats. 
• The proposal would require the removal on numerous mature trees which 

are of aesthetic value to the area and aid in reducing pollution on the busy 
junction.   

• The buildings proposed are too high. 
• Parking provision in the local area is inadequate and therefore the 

development should have greater car parking provision. 
• The application site is located on an extremely busy junction and the 

current access is very close to the corner. Vehicular access to the site is 
therefore dangerous. Adding residential traffic for 8 houses to this junction 
will compound the problem for pedestrians walking to and from the park, 
cyclists, commuters turning left onto Penhill Road, as well as residents 
accessing or leaving their homes. 

• It is unfortunate that a novel design was not considered for this prime 
location in Cardiff to promote forward thinking residential developments, 
with consideration given to renewable energy, commuting, beauty and 



functionality of design, although interesting addition of lift for mobility 
access. 

• Any impact on Llandaff Fields should be considered and any infringement 
will be put right by developers. 

• The eight 5-storey houses over-develop this small site in terms of height 
and density. 

• The development will be out of character within the surrounding area and 
will be over-bearing compared to existing buildings in the surrounding 
area. 

• The proposed development will also potentially cause safety issues for 
road users on a busy corner, particularly if large delivery vehicles park on 
the main road because they will not be able to enter the site and exit in 
forward gear.  

• There are no vehicle turning facilities within the site for larger vehicles 
such as delivery vehicles, emergency vehicles, refuse vehicles or removal 
vehicles. A road turning head should be provided within the site to 
adoptable standards, to ensure that vehicles can exit the site in forward 
gear.  

• As the development is for eight properties will the internal access road be 
adopted by the local authority? 

• The Street and Park Elevations shown on drawing P06 are misleading in 
that they show large trees obscuring a large proportion of the 
development. It should be noted that the trees will not have foliage on 
them for at least 6 months of the year. Also, many of the trees shown on 
the elevations are new trees which will take many years to grow to 
maturity. 

• It is requested that the trees within the park, designated for removal, are 
kept unless there are grounds for removal due to safety considerations. 
Also, the large laurel hedge within the park provides significant screening 
to the existing building when viewed from the park. It is requested that this 
laurel hedge is kept intact.  

• It is disappointing to see that tree T1 - a broad leaved lime (and the laurel 
hedge within the site to the right of the existing vehicle entrance) are 
proposed to be removed.  

• There are known regular surface water flooding issues at the bottom of 
Penhill Road. Any proposed development on the site should take account 
of this. 

• It would be far more in keeping with the local environment if a maximum of 
five properties are built on the site with a mix of 2, 3 & a maximum of 4 
storey’s in height. 

• The development would result in neighbouring properties being overlooked 
thereby reducing residents privacy. 

• The development would raise concerns over the safety of vehicles existing 
the site towards Cathedral Road given the speed at which vehicles travel 
around the corner from Cardiff Road onto Penhill Road.  

• During construction works, no construction traffic/worker vehicles should 
park on the first 100m of Cardiff Road.  

 
7.4 The Llandaff Society object to the application proposal on the following grounds: 



 
• Llandaff Society was disappointed to see these undistinguished proposals 

for this prominent site. The site overlooks the listed parkland of Llandaff 
Fields and is located at the key gateway to Cardiff Road Conservation 
Area. It presents a significant opportunity, which should not be missed, to 
develop one or more building of prestige and quality.  

• The design of this bland modern block of houses, set at an angle across 
the site, does not take any inspiration from the shape of its site and it's 
surroundings. 

• This outstanding site deserves a much better quality design. 
• We urge you to require a re-think, taking into account the site's unique 

setting and - if a new design is not forthcoming - we urge you to REFUSE 
this application. 

 
7.5 Cardiff Civic Society raises concerns over the application proposal on the 

following basis; 
 
 Firstly, we would like to re-iterate our point in our previous objection [objection to 

application ref: 17/02997/MNR] to the demolition of such an interesting and 
historic building. 

 
 As media coverage, letters to the press, a petition, and a protest at the proposed 

demolition highlight, this is a well-loved local landmark that deserves better than 
the fate meted out by Cardiff Council’s planning committee. 

 
 In response to the above application, Cardiff Civic Society would like to raise the 

following points: 
 

• Eight four-bedroom townhouses is too many for the site, given the 
dangerous access onto Penhill Road, and the number of vehicles which 
will be accessing these large dwellings. 

 
• There are also serious traffic issues to be addressed in the construction 

process. 
 
• Given the sensitive location, adjoining the Grade 2 listed Llandaff Fields, 

and the Pontcanna and Llandaff Conservation areas, the height of the 
buildings raises concerns.  If each were a storey lower, their impact on the 
local environment would be more acceptable. 

 
• The site contains many beautiful, mature trees which are amenity trees for 

the local area, contributing to the health and wellbeing of the local 
population with their visual appeal and ability to absorb pollution.  These 
trees cannot be adequately replaced with new trees as such trees take 
generations to reach maturity.  We would ask therefore that all the mature 
trees at The Rise be preserved. 

 
7.6 Following receipt of additional information a second 14 day public consultation 

was undertaken with a further 2 letters being received in opposition to the 
proposed development. A summary of the objections are detailed below.    



 
• The design of the proposal would be much improved if the roof line 

reflected the ground contours. In other words, making the buildings nearer 
the corner two storeys not three, for the following reasons: 

• Stepping down the roof line would reflect the way the boundary wall steps 
down and the road slopes down as it turns the corner. 

• The visual impact of the new development at the corner would be reduced. 
• The small reduction in dwelling numbers would go some way toward 

meeting the objections on traffic grounds and overdevelopment. 
 
• The addition of the swept path analysis is for a large family car is useful 

however has sufficient space been provide for modern cars to access the 
proposed parking spaces and garages? 

 
• Large cars are now wider than the figures used for 2006 (5079mm long, 

1872mm wide, 1525mm high) and this should be reflected in the submitted 
information. 

 
8. ANALYSIS 
 
 Land Use  
 
8.1 The existing, vacant, buildings on the site were last used by the City of Cardiff 

Council, Youth Offending Team. This use does not have any protection in land 
use policy terms, whilst prior approval has been granted for the demolition of the 
buildings. 

 
8.2 The application site falls within a River Corridor, as designated by Policy EN4, 

however, given the established previous use, the redevelopment of this land for 
residential development does not raise any land use policy concerns. 

 
 Design / Placemaking 
 
 Density 
 
8.3 The application site measures 2,885 sq. m (0.28Ha) in size. As such, the density 

of the proposed development would be 32 dwellings per hectare (dph). Whilst this 
density would be higher than that of the properties immediately to the west of the 
site, fronting onto Cardiff Road and Pencisely Road respectively, it would be 
consistent with, or lower than that of the neighbouring flats and terraced 
properties to the south east. The density of the proposed development is 
therefore considered acceptable within the context of the surrounding area.   

 
 Scale and Massing  
 
8.4 Each of the 8 dwellings proposed would be approximately 1m taller than that of 

the tower feature of the existing villa. Whilst it is recognised that the tower 
represented an isolated feature of the existing building, it is not considered that 
the height of the proposed dwellings would be inappropriate, or inconsistent, with 
that of the surrounding properties given the topography of the site and area and 



the separation distances involved between the proposed dwellings and 
surrounding properties.  

 
8.5 Given the number of dwellings proposed, their linear arrangement and relative 

spacing the proposed scheme would appear bulkier than that of the existing 
buildings on the site. It is however considered that the site could adequately 
accommodate a development of the scale and massing proposed given the 
relative ground levels of the site to the surrounding built form and its isolated 
position on a prominent corner location. Whilst the development might appear as 
a terrace from certain vantage points and therefore potentially heavy in terms of 
its massing, this collective massing is not considered to represent an 
inappropriate or uncharacteristic form within the locality. The variation in the 
building line, small, gaps between dwellings and variation in materials proposed 
would also aid in breaking up the perceived massing of the houses.     

 
8.6 Whilst the proposed dwellings would appear 4.5 storeys in height at their rear, 

within Llandaff Fields, the submitted verified views demonstrate that the buildings 
would be no higher than that of the properties behind, along Cardiff Road, despite 
being closer. Given the proposed retention of numerous trees and the Laurel 
hedge along the boundary of the site with the park, views of the dwellings would 
also be significantly reduced and/or softened.  

 
8.7 Taking the above into consideration, whilst the proposed development would 

represent an intensification of the site, it is considered that the scale, massing 
and general bulk of the proposed development could be acceptably 
accommodated with the site.  

 
 Layout 
 
8.8 The proposed development would consist of 8 dwellings in total, with 2 detached 

properties located at either end of a run of 3 pairs of semi-detached properties. 
The dwellings would be arranged with small, incremental, setbacks evident 
between properties in plots 1 – 7, with the detached dwelling in plot 8 being 
positioned just forward of the pair of adjacent semis. It is considered that this 
subtle staggering of the building line would add interest to the development and 
aid in breaking up the perceived massing of the dwellings given their tight 
spacing relative to their height.    

 
 Architectural Approach 
 
8.9 There is an evident variety in the architecture of properties within the immediate 

vicinity of the application site, from Victorian terraces, to post war semi-detached 
dwellings, to post war art deco flats. Whilst the design of the proposed dwellings 
would differ somewhat from that of those properties immediately adjacent to the 
site, their design is considered to be of high quality and therefore acceptable 
given the evident range in architectural approaches locally. 

 
8.10 The proposed finish of two of the 8 dwellings in a contrasting black brick to the 

buff brick used predominantly across the development, coupled with the 
staggered building line proposed, would aid in adding welcome interest to the 



scheme whilst subtly breaking up the massing of the development as a whole.   
 
 Amenity Considerations 
 
8.11 Given the separation distances involved and layout and orientation of the 

proposed dwellings, the development would not result in any of the neighbouring 
properties, or their associated amenity spaces, being unacceptably overlooked. 
The nearest point between No. 188 Cardiff Road and Plot 1, the closest dwelling 
proposed on site to it, would be approximately 30m; whilst also being at an acute 
angle. Similarly, the separation distance between Melrose Court and Plot 8, the 
nearest property to it, would be approximately 25m and also at an acute angle. 
The Councils design SPG’s specifies that a minimum of 21m would normally be 
required between facing windows to habitable rooms on the private side of a 
development. As such, given the separation distances and the relative angles 
involved here, it is considered that the proposed scheme would not unacceptably 
overlook any of the neighbouring properties.       

 
 Finishing materials 
 
8.12 The finishing materials proposed consist of rusticated render, London stock brick 

(buff and black), white render, dark metal cladding, slate and powder coated 
aluminium windows. Whilst these are considered to be broadly acceptable, a 
condition requiring details of the finishing materials proposed to be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to their use on site 
is considered pertinent.  

 
 Amenity Space 
 
8.13 Each of the proposed dwellings would have a private rear garden of a size which 

meets the minimum requirements set out in the Council’s Design SPG’s. Whilst 
these spaces would be located such that they would often be in shadow from the 
dwellings and adjacent trees, each dwelling would also benefit from balconies at 
their front and rear along with a roof terrace. As such, given the size and mix of 
the differing amenity spaces available to each of the proposed dwellings, the 
amenity space provision would be considered acceptable. It should also be noted 
that the site is located directly adjacent to Llandaff Fields. 

 
 Transportation 
 
 Access 
 
8.14 It is recognised that access and egress from the application site is restricted 

given its close proximity to the Penhill Road, Llandaff Road, Pencisely Road and 
Cardiff Road junction, the level of congestion created at this junction, the limited 
visibility of vehicles turning left onto Penhill Road from Cardiff Road and the 
presence of two lanes of traffic on either side of the street directly outside the 
access. It is however noted that the existing building was previously occupied by 
Cardiff Council’s Youth Offending Team. As such, vehicles would have been 
entering and leaving the site throughout the day, particularly during morning and 
afternoon rush hours, given the largely office based use of the building.  



 
8.15 The submitted Transport Statement demonstrates that the number of vehicular 

movements into and out of the site as a result of the proposed development 
would be reduced relative to that of the former use of the site. Whilst the number 
of vehicles entering and leaving the site at particular times of the day would vary 
as a result of the proposed development, the trip generation resulting from the 
proposed scheme would not be objected to by Highways.  

   
8.16 Tracking diagrams have been submitted which demonstrate that vehicles, 

including a 7.5 tonne van, can access the application site, turn acceptably within 
it, and leave in a forward gear. As such, an ambulance and most delivery 
vehicles would be able to comfortably turn within the site. Whilst larger vehicles 
such as a fire engine or Pantechnicon would not be able to turn on site, given the 
frequency at which these would likely visit the site, it would be considered 
unreasonable to expect a turning area to be provided to allow vehicles of this size 
to turn on site.  

 
 Parking 
 
8.17 13 car parking spaces are proposed serving the 8 dwellings along with 8 

garages, one for each property. The Council’s Managing Transportation Impacts 
SPG sets the maximum level of car parking provision within the Central Area of 
the City at 1 space per dwelling. Whilst it is recognised that the level of parking 
provision proposed would be greater than that specified within the SPG and that 
the application site is located within a highly sustainable location with good public 
transport links and numerous goods and services available locally. 
Notwithstanding the above, it is recognised that the proposed scheme contains 8 
x 4 bedroom houses. As such, it is likely that such properties would be occupied 
by families who may require more vehicles than the resident of a 1 bedroom flat 
located in the heart of the City Centre. Taking this into consideration, the location 
of the site on the periphery of the central area and given the limited availability of 
additional on street space locally, the provision of 2 parking spaces per dwelling, 
would on balance be considered acceptable in this instance.  

 
 Trees and Landscaping  
 
8.18 The proposed development would result in a number of the existing trees within 

the site being removed, whilst elements of the proposed development would be 
located within close proximity of retained trees. Nevertheless, subject to the 
replacement tree and landscaping provision being undertaken in accordance with 
the approved landscaping details, statements and methodologies, the proposed 
scheme would not be opposed by the Council’s Tree Officer. 

 
8.19 The comments of the Council’s Tress Officer and the County Ecologist with 

regard to the potential replacement of the Laurel hedge bounding the application 
site and Llandaff Fields are noted. Whilst it is accepted that the replacement of 
this hedge with native species would allow for greater biodiversity in the area, it is 
the applicant’s intension to retain the Laurel hedge. As such, the application has 
been considered on this basis.  

 



8.20 The retention of the existing Laurel Hedge would provide greater immediate 
screening of the application site when considered against the provision of a 
hedgerow containing more native species; given the length of time this would 
take to establish and provide equal overall screening. Whilst the longer term 
benefits of a native species hedgerow, in terms of biodiversity, are 
acknowledged, the retention of the Laurel hedge is preferred by the Councils 
Parks department, who maintain Llandaff Fields. Taking this into consideration 
and Cadw’s concerns regarding the potential visual impact of the development on 
the setting of the adjacent Grade II* historic park, the retention of the Laurel 
Hedge would, on balance be considered acceptable in this instance. 

 
 Ecology 
 
 Bats 
 
8.21 Provision have been made for bats as part of the proposed development. This 

includes 3 tree mounted bat boxes and 2 building mounted bat boxes. Natural 
Resources Wales (NRW) have been consulted on the application proposal and 
confirm that the bat mitigation plan submitted corresponds with those conditioned 
under the European Protected Species licence granted for the demolition of the 
building. 

 
 Laurel Hedge 
 
8.22 See 8.21 para above. 
 
 Waste 
 
8.23 Each of the 8 dwellings proposed would have individual bins with future owners 

being responsible for presenting them onto the pavement at the entrance to the 
site for collection. Whilst the collection lorry would need to pull in to the side of 
the Penhill Road to collect the bins, this is common along the street and neither 
the Councils Waste Minimisation Officer nor Highways Officers raise objection to 
this arrangement. The councils Waste Minimisation Officer also considers the 
internal refuse storage areas proposed acceptable.  

 
 Flooding 
 
8.24 Whilst a small part of the corner of the application site is located within a C1 flood 

zone, Natural Resources Wales (NRW) have confirmed that their Flood Map 
shows that this small corner is within the 0.1% (1 in 1000 year) annual probability 
flood outlines. Additionally, their modelling data confirms the built development 
(including gardens) is predicted to be flood free.  

 
 Archaeology 
 
8.25 The suggested inclusion of a condition by Glamorgan-Gwent Archaeological 

Trust (GGAT) requiring the existing villa on site be recorded prior to its demolition 
is noted.  However, prior approval for the demolition of the existing buildings on 
the application site was approved under application ref: 17/02997/MNR. As no 



requirement for the recording of the existing villa was included as part of the 
approval for its demolition, it would be unreasonable to require such a 
condition/requirement at this time. 

 
8.26 An advisory note has been added detailing the suggested recording of the 

building for future record. 
 
 Other matters not considered above 
 
8.27 The public comment suggesting historic buildings within the city need to 

protected are noted. However, the existing villa is neither listed nor located within 
a conservation area and therefore has no statutory protection. Additionally, prior 
approval for the demolition of the existing building has been granted under 
application ref: 17/02997/MNR. As such, within this planning application 
consideration has only been given to the planning merits of the proposed 
scheme.   

 
8.28 In terms of the scheme proposed, planning applications must be judged on their 

individual merits and on the basis of the development being applied for. The 
Local Planning Authority cannot impose or dictate to a developer what they may 
apply for or where. 

 
8.29 On the basis of the replacement tree planting and landscaping provision 

proposed, the removal of the trees required as a result of the application proposal 
is considered acceptable by the Council’s Tree Officer and Parks Department. 

 
8.30 The level of car parking provision proposed exceeds the requirement set out in 

the Council’s Access, Circulation and Parking Standards SPG. This is considered 
acceptable in this instance given that is family houses proposed.    

 
8.31 The Councils Transportation section raise no objection to the application proposal 

and note that the submitted Transport Statement indicates that movements to 
and from the proposed site will be low and would not have a detrimental effect 
upon the highway. As such, an objection on these grounds would be 
unsustainable.  

 
8.32 The submitted visibility splay, although restricted, is adequate due to the slow 

speeds of traffic turning left on to Penhill Road from Cardiff Road. Concerns 
regarding traffic illegally running a red light to turn on to Penhill Road from Cardiff 
Road is an enforcement issue.  

 
8.33 Tracking diagrams have been submitted which demonstrate that cars and a 7.5t 

van/lorry would be able to access the site, turn within it and leave in a forward 
gear. Given the limited frequency at which larger vehicles than this would likely 
visit the site, it is not considered reasonable or necessary for a larger turning 
head, which could accommodate such vehicles, to be provided. It is also 
recognised that numerous other properties in the local area would require large 
vehicles to either park, or pull in, on street in order to undertake deliveries or for 
waste collection. 

 



8.34 The access road, parking spaces and turning area within the site would not be 
adopted by the Council. 

 
8.35 The Council’s Tree officer and Parks department raise no objection to the 

application proposal subject to appropriate replacement planting and conditions. 
Whilst any replacement planting will take time to mature this does not represent 
sufficient justification for the application to be refused.  Additionally, the retained 
trees and landscaping, including Laurel Hedge, would provide an appropriate 
level of screening to the development within Llandaff Fields whilst the 
replacement planting proposed matures. 

 
8.36 The Laurel Hedge will be retained as part of the proposed development. The tree 

identified as T1 on the submitted plan is in poor health and will be replaced as 
part of the proposed development. The Council’s Tree Officer raises no objection 
to this or the development as whole.  

 
8.37 The height and density of the proposed development is considered acceptable 

within the context of the surrounding area.  
 
8.38 A pre-commencement condition requiring the provision of a construction 

management plan has been included. 
 
8.39 A suggestion that a reduction in the height/scale the proposed properties as the 

gradient of the site falls away towards Penhill Road would be beneficial is noted. 
However, the application has been assessed on the merits of the individual 
scheme put forward, which is considered acceptable.     

 
9. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 - section 17(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

imposes a duty on the Local Authority to exercise its various functions with due 
regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do 
all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area. This duty has 
been considered in the evaluation of this application. It is considered that there 
would be no significant or unacceptable increase in crime and disorder as a result 
of the proposed decision. 

 
9.2 Equality Act 2010 - The Equality Act 2010 identifies a number of ‘protected 

characteristics’, namely age; disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation; marriage and civil 
partnership. The Council’s duty under the above Act has been given due 
consideration in the determination of this application. It is considered that the 
proposed development does not have any significant implications for, or effect 
on, persons who share a protected characteristic, over and above any other 
person.  

 
9.3 Well-Being of Future Generations Act 2016 – Section 3 of this Act imposes a duty 

on public bodies to carry out sustainable development in accordance with the 
sustainable development principle to act in a manner which seeks to ensure that 
the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future 



generations to meet their own needs (Section 5). This duty has been considered 
in the evaluation of this application. It is considered that there would be no 
significant or unacceptable impact upon the achievement of wellbeing objectives 
as a result of the recommended decision. 

 
10. PLANNING OBLIGATIONS 
 
10.1 The following contribution requests have been made, with reference made to the 

Community Infrastructure Levy tests: 
 

• Affordable Housing – The provision of 2 x 4 bed units for social rent at 
£96,000 or where this is not achievable, a financial contribution of 
£286,636 towards the provision of affordable housing in the vicinity. 

 
10.2 The applicants have since appointed Savills to undertake a viability assessment 

for the proposed development. This was supplemented by additional cost 
information provided by Downies Quantity Surveyors.  

 
10.3 The submitted assessment has been independently verified by the District Valuer 

(DVS) who find that the proposed development, if sold entirely on the open 
market with no S106 financial contributions would be unviable. The calculations 
were also based on a land use value well below that which was paid for the site.  

 
10.4 The site would become viable at a developers return of some 9.47% of GDV 

 but this is again well below that of normal market expectations.   
 
10.5 The Housing Manger accepts that it would be unreasonable to request a financial 

contribution towards affordable housing given findings of the independently 
verified viability report. 

 
10.6 In their report the DVS conclude that if the LPA are minded to grant planning 

permission on the basis of no contributions, then a time scale for delivery be 
agreed, which if not met, would trigger a viability review. As there would be no 
S106 agreement associated with this application, wherein a viability review could 
be requested should works have not commenced on site within a set period, it is 
considered reasonable that the timeframe in which the development must be 
commenced be reduced. As such, condition 1 of the planning permission has 
been recommended to reflect this.      

 
11. CONSLUSION 
 
11.1 The principle of the demolition of the existing building on the site has been 

previously established, whilst the proposal will redevelop a brownfield site, 
providing new housing in the area. The scale, form and massing of the proposed 
development is considered to be acceptable within the context of the surrounding 
area, whilst the development would be finished to a high quality.   

 
11.2 In light of the above, and having regard for adopted planning policy and 

guidance, it is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to 
conditions. 



N

P E N - H I L L       
R O A D

C
 A

 R
 D

 I F F       R
 O

 A
 D

P L O T   2
( T y p e   A )

P L O T   1
( T y p e   C )

P L O T   3
( T y p e   A ) P L O T   4

( T y p e   A )

P L O T   5
( T y p e   A )

P L O T   6
( T y p e   C )

P L O T   7
( T y p e   C )

P L O T   8
( T y p e   B )

G a r a g e 
-  P l o t   4

G a r a g e

T 1 3 
 Broad Leaved lime

(retention category A 2,3)

T 1 2
 Sycamore

(removed)

T 2
 Broad leaved lime

(retention category A 2)

Existing 

substation

G
 a r a g e 

New mixed native 

group 2m thick 

Holly + thorn etc

Existing woodland

Existing footway

E
xisting footw

ay

T 8
 Sycamore

(removed)

T 1 5 / 1 6
 Sycamores

(retention category B 2)

T 1
Broad leaved lime

(removed)

F F L   + 1 9 . 5

F F L   + 1 9 . 5

F F L   + 1 9 . 5

F F L   + 2 0 . 0

F F L   + 2 0 . 0

F F L   + 1 9 . 7

F F L   + 1 9 . 7

+ 1 9 . 3

F F L   + 1 9 . 3

+ 1 6 . 6

+ 1 6 . 5

+ 1 6 . 5

+ 1 6 . 5

+ 1 7 . 2 5

+ 1 6 . 7

+ 1 6 . 7

+ 1 6 . 3

+ 1 9 . 7 5

G
 a r a g e  -  P l o t   3

G
 a r a g e  -  P l o t   2 G a r a g e 

-  P l o t   5

G a r a g e 
-  P l o t   6 G a r a g e 

-  P l o t   7

Line of 1.8m high timber close boarded fence

E
xisting stone w

all

Exi
st

in
g 

st
on

e 
w
al
l

Garden
Garden

Garden

Garden

Garden

Garden

Garden

Garden

down

New replacement 
tree for T1 in Silva Cell 

root mechansim

A

A

Exis
tin

g ve
hicu

lar 

entra
nce

Gate

1.8m high 
brick wall 

+ gate

R
etained buttresses 

around incom
ing gas 

Gate

Gate

1.8m high 
brick wall 

+ gate

Decking

Decking

Decking

Decking

Decking
Decking

Decking

1
.8

m
 h

ig
h
 ti

m
be

r 
cl

os
e 

b
oa

rd
e
d 

fe
nc

e

1
.8

m
 h

ig
h
 ti

m
be

r 
cl

os
e 

b
oa

rd
e
d 

fe
nc

e

1
.8

m
 h

ig
h
 ti

m
be

r 
cl

os
e 

b
oa

rd
e
d 

fe
nc

e

1
.8

m
 h

ig
h
 ti

m
be

r 
cl

os
e 

b
oa

rd
e
d 

fe
nc

e

1
.8

m
 h

ig
h
 ti

m
be

r 
cl

os
e 

b
oa

rd
e
d 

fe
nc

e

1
.8

m
 h

ig
h
 ti

m
be

r 
cl

os
e 

b
oa

rd
e
d 

fe
nc

e

void

void

void

void

void

void

void

void

Parking Spaces
(Tarmac)

Courtyard(Paving)

+ 1 9 . 5 0

+ 1 9 . 3 0

+ 1 9 . 5 0

+ 1 9 . 5 0

+ 1 9 . 2 0

+ 1 9 . 1 5

+ 1 9 . 6 5

+ 1 9 . 6 5

+ 1 9 . 0 0

Setts

Setts

Setts

Setts

Setts

Setts

Setts

Setts

Path (Paved)Access to rear

Path (Paved)Access to rear

Path (Paved)Access to rear

Path (Paved)Access to rear

1.8m high tim
ber c

lose 

boarded fe
nce

Tarmac driveway

down

down

down

down

STREET 
ELEVATION

STREET 
ELEVATION

G 1  
 3 x Sycamore

(removed)

T 1 4
 Sycamore

(removed)

COURTYARD
ELEVATION

C
O

U
R
TY

A
R
D

E
LE

V
A
TIO

N

GARDEN
ELEVATION

GARDEN
ELEVATION

Remove out grown 

laurel hedge

T 1 0
 Broad leaved lime

(retention category A 2,3)

Keep and tidy up; take off ivy

T 1 1
 Broad leaved lime

(retention category A 2,3)

Keep and tidy up; take off ivy

Native low level mix as 

continuation of 

naturalised edge

P E N C I S E L Y       R O A D

New supplementary 

trees - heavy standard

Arch
blocked up

1.5m
 zone of new

 retaining 

structure behind w
all 

1.0
m

 z
one o

f n
ew re

ta
inin

g 

st
ru

ct
ure

 b
ehin

d 
wal

l 

Site Boundary (Legal)

Hatched area within Cardiff 

Council parks land with 

contributed planting scheme 

within this zones

New
Tarmac

Turning Head

Cars/light commercial 

(deliveries)

Increased porous area 
around new tree

Trees agreed to be 

removed with Cardiff 

Council

Existing edge 

of concrete

R
efuse for 

P
lots 2,3 + 4

Refuse for 
Plot 8

Refuse for Plot 1

Refuse for 
Plots 5,6 + 7

Refuse collection point

(alternate waste streams)

rbDrawn by:ARevision:

Scale :

1:200 @ A2

Proposed Site Plan 

SP546 - P01

Drawing Title :

Drawing Number :

Project Ref : SP546

The Rise, Pen-Hill Road, Pontcanna, Cardiff

Tel : +44 (0)2920 223123  Fax : +44 (0)2920 388367  E-Mail  office@cwarchitects.co.uk

Project Name :

Grosvenor House, 8 Park Grove, Cardiff CF10 3BN

C. W. ARCHITECTS Ltd

Date: MAR 2018

Rev A  22.05.18 - Garages for Plots 4-7 re-arranged to minimise impact on RPA for T1
Paths to front doors shown.  Refuse enclosures shown for each plot
Wall adjacent to garages (plot 3) removed.  Wall around T1 replacement
tree amended to suit latest tracking diagrams
Refuse collection point indicated









T
his page is intentionally left blank



LOCAL MEMBER OBJECTIONS 
 
COMMITTEE DATE: 19/09/2018 
 
APPLICATION No. 18/01563/MJR APPLICATION DATE:  27/06/2018 
 
ED:   CATHAYS 
 
APP: TYPE:  Full Planning Permission 
 
APPLICANT:   Charnwood Group 
LOCATION:  24 PARK LANE STUDENT LIVING, PARK LANE, CATHAYS 
   PARK, CARDIFF, CF10 3BA 
PROPOSAL:  CHANGE OF USE OF 34 STUDENT APARTMENTS (SUI  
   GENERIS) TO 34 APART-HOTEL ROOMS (CLASS C1) 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDATION :  That planning permission be GRANTED subject to 
the following condition(s):  

 
1. C01 Statutory Time Limit 
 
2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with 

the following approved plans:  
 

• PL(10)A100 rev1     Location Plan  
• PL(10)A102 revC    Floor Plans 0-1  
• PL(10)A104 revB    Roof plan  
• PL(10)A105 revC    Proposed elevations  

 
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 
 
3. Specified use of premises: The premises shall be used for apart-hotel 

rooms and for no other use within Class C1 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (As Amended). 

 Reason: Permission is granted only because of the characteristics 
peculiar to this proposal. 

 
4. Highway improvement works: No part of the development hereby 

permitted shall be occupied until the highway improvement works 
approved under application 14/402/DCI to discharge condition 10 of 
13/1888/DCI have been implemented to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority.  

 Reason: To ensure the comprehensive enhancement/improvement of 
the public highway in the interests of highway and pedestrian safety. 

 
1. DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
 NB Welsh Government received a Section 77 call-in request on 11th July. 

The Welsh Minister’s powers to call in an application for determination 

Agenda Item 5d



are discretionary and are used exceptionally. Requests are considered 
on a case by case basis. A call-in will usually only be considered where 
an application raises planning issues of more than local importance. A 
draft of the committee report was sent on 9th August to the WG Planning 
Directorate and a decision on whether or not to call in the application is 
expected before the date of Planning Committee. The decision will be 
reported to Committee as a late representation. 

 
1.1 The student apartments form part of a wider scheme granted in February 2014 

(13/01888/DCI) for the retention and refurbishment of existing office use in the 
villas fronting Park Place (nos. 23 & 24) and construction of a 3 storey 
extension to the rear containing 34 student flats.  

 
1.2 The application site is at the corner of Park Place and St. Andrew’s Place and is 

located in the Central and Bay Business Area, the Northern Professional Office 
Area, and the Cathays Park Conservation Area. 

 
1.3 The change of use does not require any external or internal alterations to the 

building fabric. 
 
1.4 The 3no. parking spaces accessed from Park Lane are retained. 
 
1.5 Adjacent premises at 25 Park Place are in use as professional offices. To the 

rear is Caradog House, a 5 storey red brick office building currently being 
converted to student accommodation. 

 
 The application is accompanied by a Planning and Design Statement making 

the planning case, and a report from the managing agents giving background 
on the current and proposed use. 

 
2.    SITE HISTORY 
 
2.1 16/1794/MJR PP granted 12.10.16 for change of use of the upper floors of the 

existing villas at 23 and 24 Park Place to residential accommodation (5no. 
apartments) and retention of B1 offices at ground floor. 

 
2.2 15/515/MJR Change of use from office to managed student accommodation, 

external alterations and external works. Withdrawn. 
 

2.3 14/1947/DCI Change of use from office to managed student accommodation. 
Appeal dismissed 17.7.15. 
 

2.4 13/01888/DCI Planning permission granted in February 2014 for demolition of 
the rear two annexes to the villas, retention and refurbishment of the existing 
office use in the main villas fronting Park Place, and construction of a 3 storey 
extension to the rear containing 34 student flats.  
 

2.5 13/01889/DCI Conservation area consent granted in February 2014 for 
demolition of the rear two annexes to the villas, retention and refurbishment of 
the existing office use in the main villas fronting Park Place, and construction of 



a 3 storey extension to the rear containing 34 student flats.  
 

2.6 13/079/DCI Planning permission refused for demolition of existing buildings 
and proposed mixed-use development comprising 62 bed student 
accommodation plus 212 sqm retail unit. Dismissed at appeal (ref. 
A/13/2195043). 
 

2.7 13/080/DCI Conservation area consent refused for demolition of existing 
buildings and proposed mixed-use development comprising 62 bed student 
accommodation plus 212 sqm retail unit. Dismissed at appeal (ref. 
E/13/2195045). 
 

2.8 12/1267/DCI Planning permission refused for demolition of existing buildings 
and proposed mixed-use development comprising 79 bed student 
accommodation plus 200 sqm retail unit. Dismissed at appeal (ref. 
A/13/2193544). 
 

2.9 12/1268/DCI Conservation area consent refused for demolition of existing 
buildings and proposed mixed-use development comprising 79 bed student 
accommodation plus 200 sqm retail unit. Dismissed at appeal (ref. 
E/13/2193546). 

 
3.    POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
3.1 Cardiff LDP (2016): Policy EC5: Hotel development. 

 
3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance: Cathays Park Conservation Area 

Appraisal (2009). 
 
4.    CONSULTEE RESPONSES 
 
4.1  Land Use Policy: Student accommodation is afforded no protection in terms of 

land use policy. The only relevant LDP policy is EC5: Hotel development which 
permits hotel development in the CCBBA which is where the application 
premises are located. Given that both student accommodation and serviced 
apartments are let on a temporary basis and therefore both operate in a similar 
way, the proposal raises no land use policy concerns.  

 
5.    REPRESENTATIONS 
 
5.1 A letter raising the following concerns has been received from Local Members 

Merry, Weaver and Mackie: 
 

‘We would question whether sufficient time has lapsed to “test the market” for 
student accommodation – they have only provided two years of figures.  But 
more to the point we would ask what lessons this has for the number of student 
blocks that are being approved?  We have generally not objected as a point of 
principle to student accommodation, although we have objected to individual 
applications, as we have been told repeatedly it would relieve pressure on the 
family houses in Cathays.  We are very concerned that applications for 



development are being approved on the basis of being for student 
accommodation that might not otherwise have gained planning permission and 
that subsequently developers will apply for a change of use on the basis that 
the market cannot support the accommodation.  In this particular case it is for 
34 units very close to the university – unless they are charging significantly 
above the market rate it seems surprising they cannot still rent out the units 
because of other larger developments further away. 

 
We have not done a systematic check of the cost of student accommodation in 
the area but a quick scroll through of private accommodation in this general 
area had costs of between £109 and £129 per week (4 different blocks).  We 
cannot make an assessment as to the variation in quality but the price of Park 
Lane is £180 per week which might suggest the reason for the low take up is not 
demand but pricing and raises the question as to whether change of use is 
about maximising profit if the developer can charge more for serviced 
apartments. 

 
We objected originally to the application to build this particular student 
accommodation as it involved the demolition of part of a villa within the 
conservation area and the loss of small office space which a previous 
judgement from the planning inspector had said was integral to the character of 
the area.  Part of the justification members had for voting through the 
application was that it would be helpful in terms of the demographic of Cathays 
and relieving pressure on housing.  We would seriously question whether the 
application to demolish part of a Victorian villa in the conservation area would 
have been approved by the planning committee to build serviced apartments.’ 

 
6.    ANALYSIS 
 
6.1  The number of large city centre purpose-built student housing schemes that 

have been built, are under construction, or have been permitted over the last 
few years, is significant. In general these schemes are much larger (typically 
200-500 beds) and consist predominantly of 5-8 bedroom cluster flats with 
communal kitchen living spaces, and on-site communal facilities such as gyms, 
TV lounges, study areas etc. This type of accommodation is in general able to 
charge lower rents than smaller schemes and/or studio type student 
accommodation due to economies of scale and a more popular model, and 
demand is consequently higher.  

 
6.2  This is reflected in the occupancy data for the application under consideration. 

Occupancy levels have declined over the last 2 years, from 94% for academic 
year 16/17 to 65% for academic year 17/18. Current occupancy levels are 6% 
down on the same period last year. 

  
6.3  The report by managing agents ‘A Space in the City’ states that ‘a serviced 

apartment refers to a furnished apartment available for short-term stays that 
provides amenities, housekeeping and a range of services where most taxes 
and utilities are included within the rental price, it is not a long-term residential 
product’.  

 



6.4  Serviced apartments are in essence short term managed accommodation with 
added facilities (kitchen) and space, and operate much like a hotel use. It is 
therefore considered that the proposed use falls into the C1 Hotels use class. 

 
6.5  A hotel type use is acceptable in principle in the Central Business Area and 

given the scale of the proposals it is not considered that the change of use will 
result in an adverse impact on the character of the conservation area.  

 
6.6  In response to specific concerns from local members over the timing of the 

application, and rates charged for the studio apartments, the student housing 
has been operating for more than 2 years which is considered a reasonable 
time period, and the managing agent has provided some comparative figures 
for other student housing developments which show that rates are broadly in 
line with the market. 

 
6.7  In relation to wider local member concerns that approving such a change of use 

application might give a green light for developers to convert student housing to 
residential uses without meeting affordable housing, open space, and 
community facility policy requirements it is important to note that the application 
is for a change of use to a C1 hotel type use, not a residential use. As such the 
application does not trigger Section 106 affordable housing, open space or 
community facility contributions. Furthermore its highly sustainable city centre 
location does not require any additional parking provision.  

 
6.8  Notwithstanding the above a specified use of premises condition has been 

attached. 
 
6.9  Public realm improvements to the rear lane are required via a planning 

condition attached to planning permission 13/1888/DCI. The developer has 
delayed carrying out the works until the works at the neighbouring Caradog 
House are completed and a breach of condition notice has therefore been 
served. Notwithstanding any agreement between the developer and the 
developer of Caradog House the condition has been reimposed to ensure the 
works are carried out prior to occupation of the development. 

 
 It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to conditions. 



CR

Subw
ay

Posts

13.1m

13.4m

12.8m

13.7m

13.1m

13.4m

13.1m

13.4m

10.4m

13.7m
14.0m

BM 13.50m

BM
 13.61m

BM
 13.51m

BM
 14.62m

BM 14.24m

M
USEU

M
 AVENU

E

PAR
K PLAC

E

ST ANDREW'S PLACE

PAR
K LAN

E

GORSEDD GARDENS ROAD

ST AN
D

R
EW

'S  LA N
E

ST
C

R
ESC

EN
T

PAR
K G

R
O

VE

SENGHENNYDD

PLACE

PAR
K LAN

E

STUTTGARTER STRASSE

PAR
K G

R
O

VE

PAR
K LAN

E

MUSEUM PLACE

ST
C

R
ESC

EN
T

AN
D

R
EW

'S

ST ANDREW'S PLACE

AN
D

R
EW

'S

BOULEVARD de NANTES

CARDIFF(CAERDYDD)

Fn

Statue

Statue

Stones

Statue

LB

TCBs

TCB's
FS

LB

LB

TCBs

Monument

FSs

Gorsedd

El Sub Sta

El
Sub
Sta

Gardens

8

1 to 6

30
22

House

Caradog

Bank

(Amgueddfa Genedlaethol Cymru)
National Museum of Wales

Oakleigh House

5

5 6

7

24

Oakleigh
House

25
29

24

5

3

30 to 31

14

2

7

13

Bank

14

(Am
gueddfa G

enedlaethol Cym
ru)

1

9

18

PW

10
6

Dewi Sant

Eglwys

75

2

31
34

4

Bank

38
23

35

Hall

1 to 6

Caradog House

9

N
ational M

useum
 of W

ales

3

16

20
19

18

1

P

P
P

P

P

P

P

PP

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P
P

P

P P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P
P

P

P

G

G

G

G

G

P

P

P
P

P

P

P

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O
O

G

G

G

G

G

Rev

Drawing No

Scale

Drawing Title

Job Title

Client's Name

Job No

Status

Revision Description Drawn Date Checked

© Scott Brownrigg Ltd

Figured dimensions only are to be taken
from this drawing. All dimensions are to
be checked on site before any work is
put in hand.

1 : 1250 @A1

1

Charnwood Estates Ltd

Location Plan

23/24 Park Place

PL(10)A100130805

Planning

T +44 (02920922450
F +44 (02920376161
W scottbrownrigg.com

3 Callaghan Square
Cardiff
Wales

1 For Planning MW 11.09.13 JJ

North

metres 25 50 75 100 125

NB: Drawings for planning purposes only.
NOT for construction.



UP

UP

DN

DN

UP

17.4 m²
Studio Flat

18.5 m²
Studio Flat

19.6 m²
DDA Studio Flat

19.9 m²
DDA Studio Flat

20.3 m²
Studio Flat

Landscaped bufferLandscaped buffer

Main Entrance

Bin Store

25 Park Place

110.1 m²
Office

16.2 m²
Reception

26 m²
Circulation

Access to
Basement under
stair

10.9 m²
Lobby

3.6 m²
Disabled Toilet

3 m²
Toilet

Secure cycle
store - 20
cycle racks

Secured fire escape

1:16
Ramp

1:12
Ramp

up

up

up

Access to
Basement

2035 1453 2035 2525 1115 2035 1453 2035 1453 2035 1725 1023 2418 2035 609

40
69

Landscaped
Area

Landscaped
Area

Visitor Cycle
Parking

Paviours to drain in
to landscaped area

18.4 m²
Studio Flat

28.6 m²
Studio Flat - Double

19.6 m²
Studio Flat

18.8 m²
Studio Flat

20.6 m²
Studio Flat

18.5 m²
Studio Flat

19.6 m²
Studio Flat

18.7 m²
Studio Flat

25 Park Place
Neighbours window

81
9

7.5 m²
Lobby

2.9 m²
Disabled Toilet

4030

Fire
Escape

21.3 m²
Circulation

3.6 m²
Toilet

1.8 m²
Cleaner

Bu
ilt

 in
 S

to
ra

ge

Secured fire escape

133.5 m²
Office Up

Rev

Drawing No

Scale

Drawing Title

Job Title

Client's Name

Job No

Status

Revision Description Drawn Date Checked

© Scott Brownrigg Ltd

Figured dimensions only are to be taken
from this drawing. All dimensions are to
be checked on site before any work is
put in hand.

 1 : 100 @A1

C

Charnwood Estates Ltd

Floor Plans 0-1

23/24 Park Place

PL(10)A102130805

Planning

T +44 (02920922450
F +44 (02920376161
W scottbrownrigg.com

3 Callaghan Square
Cardiff
Wales

A For Planning MW 11.09.13 JJ
B Amended for Planning MW 20.09.13 JJ
C Minor modifications to building SG 19.02.2014

 1 : 100
Level 01

 1 : 100
Level 12

North

metres 2 4 6 8 10

Notes:

• Two Studio Flats set back from boundary edge
on the first and second floor to allow light to
neighbours windows

NB: Drawings for planning purposes only.
NOT for construction.

c713287
Typewritten Text
AMENDED PLAN
13/01888/DCI
20/02/2014



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Applications decided by Delegated Powers between 01/08/2018 and 31/08/2018 

Total Count of Applications: 213

ADAM

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01200/MNR 30/05/2018  64 FalseHodge 02/08/2018CHANGE OF USE AT 97 BROADWAY 

FROM COMMERCIAL TO 2 FLATS 

RETAINING USE AT 95 BROADWAY 

AND FIRST FLOOR REAR 

EXTENSION

95-97 BROADWAY, 

ADAMSDOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF24 1QF

Permission 

be granted

18/01590/MNR 03/07/2018  43 TrueLadbrooke 15/08/2018CHANGE OF USE TO 4 BED HOUSE 

IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION (C4)

26 EMERALD STREET, 

ADAMSDOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF24 1QB

Permission 

be granted

BUTE

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01541/DCH 25/06/2018  66 FalseBegum 30/08/2018REAR TWO STOREY AND SINGLE 

STOREY EXTENSIONS

37 WEST CLOSE, 

BUTETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF10 5LD

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01658/MJR 16/07/2018  44 TrueCardiff Council 29/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 19 

(TRAVEL PLAN) OF 16/02916/MJR

LAND TO THE SOUTH OF 

HAMADRYAD CENTRE, 

HAMADRYAD ROAD, 

BUTETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF10 5UY

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

A
genda Item

 6



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01236/MNR 08/06/2018  84 FalseCardiff City Council 31/08/2018RETENTION OF 1NO. TEMPORARY 

SINGLE STOREY PORTAKABIN 

BUILDING TO BE USED AS 

ADDITIONAL CLASSROOMS. 

PERMISSION IS SOUGHT FOR A 

TEMPORARY PERIOD OF 156 WEEKS

ST MARY THE VIRGIN 

PRIMARY SCHOOL, 5 

NORTH CHURCH STREET, 

BUTETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF10 5HB

Permission 

be granted

18/01062/MNR 04/05/2018  109 FalseThe Royal Bank of 

Scotland

21/08/2018REMOVAL OF BANKING RELATED 

FITTINGS AND FIXTURES IN ORDER 

TO DECOMMISSION THE BRANCH

125 BUTE STREET, 

BUTETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF10 5AE

Permission 

be granted

18/00128/MNR 02/02/2018  196 FalseMohammed 17/08/2018PROPOSED NEW DWELLING ON 

LAND ADJACENT TO 19B LOUDOUN 

SQUARE

LAND ADJCENT TO 19B 

LOUDOUN SQUARE, 

BUTETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF10 5JA

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

A/18/00083/MNR 06/08/2018  16 TrueFusion Cardiff Capital 

Quarter LLP

22/08/20186 X EXTERNALLY MOUNTED SIGNS 

AND 1 X TOTEM SIGN

ZENITH, HERBERT 

STREET, CARDIFF

Permission 

be granted

18/01683/MNR 13/07/2018  32 TrueShields 14/08/2018EXISTING TEMPORARY DRIVER'S 

FACILITY PORTACABIN TO REMAIN 

IN PLACE FOR A FURTHER THREE 

YEARS, WITH NO CHANGES 

(PREVIOUS PERMISSION 

15/00303/MNR)

BUS DRIVER FACILITY, 

WEST CANAL WHARF, 

BUTETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF10 5DB

Permission 

be granted

18/01803/MNR 31/07/2018  6 True 06/08/2018AMENDMENTS TO 17/02614/MNR 

APPLICATION INCLUDING SOLID 

WALL WITH ALUMINIUM FIRE EXIT 

AND ENTRANCE DOOR TO BE 

REPLACED WITH SLIDING DOOR.

HOUSING OPTIONS 

CENTRE, HUGGARD 

BUILDINGS, HANSEN 

STREET, BUTETOWN, 

CARDIFF, CF10 5DW

Permission 

be granted

CANT

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/01188/DCH 25/05/2018  74 FalseHJB HOMES 07/08/2018SINGLE STOREY AND FIRST FLOOR 

REAR EXTENSION AND REAR 

DORMER ROOF EXTENSION

24 PENLLYN ROAD, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF5 

1NW

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01054/DCH 11/06/2018  51 TrueKerai 01/08/2018ADD A FLAT ROOF DORMER ON 1 

SIDE OF THE ROOF OF GARAGE AS 

APPROVED IN 17/00019/DCH FOR 

ADDITIONAL STORAGE USE

4 BROADACRES, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF11 

8DD

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01358/DCH 14/06/2018  50 TrueJones 03/08/2018SINGLE STOREY OUTBUILDING IN 

REAR GARDEN

35 PENCISELY 

CRESCENT, CANTON, 

CARDIFF, CF5 1DS

Permission 

be granted

18/01334/DCH 05/06/2018  70 FalseWilliams 14/08/2018RETENTION OF A GAZEBO 

ATTACHED TO A SINGLE STOREY 

GARAGE IN THE BACK GARDEN OF 

THE PROPERTY.

61 PENCISELY 

CRESCENT, CANTON, 

CARDIFF, CF5 1DT

Permission 

be granted

18/01182/DCH 29/06/2018  53 TrueFrancesco 21/08/2018GROUND FLOOR SIDE EXTENSION GROUND FLOOR FLAT, 18 

ST JOHN'S CRESCENT, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF5 

1NX

Permission 

be granted

18/01764/DCH 27/07/2018  19 TrueCasey 15/08/2018REAR SINGLE EXTENSION 72 FORREST ROAD, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF5 

1HQ

Permission 

be granted

18/01710/DCH 17/07/2018  37 TruePowell 23/08/2018REAR TWO STOREY EXTENSION 29 PENCISELY ROAD, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF5 

1DG

Permission 

be granted

18/01719/DCH 18/07/2018  36 TrueChlebowska 23/08/2018DEMOLITION OF EXISTING LEAN TO 

EXTENSION AND CONSERVATORY 

AND ERECTION OF NEW SINGLE 

STOREY EXTENSION

25 BROAD STREET, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF11 

8BZ

Permission 

be granted

18/01742/DCH 23/07/2018  39 TrueJenkins 31/08/2018REPLACEMENT REAR SINGLE 

STOREY EXTENSION

45 LANSDOWNE AVENUE 

WEST, CANTON, 

CARDIFF, CF11 8FT

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/01691/MNR 17/07/2018  15 TrueMcQuade 01/08/2018AMENDMENTS TO  17/02166/MNR - 

TO IMPROVE LIVING 

ARRANGEMENTS BY ALTERING 

INTERNAL LAYOUTS & MAKING 

APARTMENT 4 INTO TWO BEDROOM 

APARTMENT

54 LECKWITH ROAD, 

CANTON, CARDIFF, CF11 

6HN

Permission 

be granted

CATH

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01146/DCH 15/05/2018  97 FalseTURVEY 20/08/2018PROPOSED GABLE END AND 

DORMERS FOR NEW LOFT 

CONVERSION

29 SPENCER STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4PG

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01342/DCH 26/06/2018  49 TrueBorja 14/08/2018CONSTRUCT NEW REDWOOD SASH 

WINDOWS TO REPLICATE ORIGINAL 

DESIGN

FLAT 1, MARLBOROUGH 

HOUSE, WESTGATE 

STREET, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 1DE

Permission 

be granted

18/01525/DCH 22/06/2018  54 TrueNiro 15/08/2018FIRST FLOOR REAR EXTENSION, 

ALTERATIONS & REAR DORMER 

EXTENSION TO EXISTING C4 HOUSE 

IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION

101 RHYMNEY STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4DH

Permission 

be granted

18/01702/DCH 20/07/2018  42 TrueAseeley 31/08/2018GROUND FLOOR REAR EXTENSION, 

DORMER ROOF EXTENSION & 

ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING C4 HMO

80 GELLIGAER STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4LB

Permission 

be granted

18/01661/DCH 19/07/2018  18 TrueMelhuish 06/08/2018ERECTION OF REAR DORMER LOFT 

CONVERSION

25 RHYMNEY STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4DF

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/01047/MJR 09/05/2018  93 FalseCardiff University 10/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 20 

(PUBLIC SEWER PROTECTION 

MEASURES) AND 29 

(CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 

SCHEME) OF 16/01739/MJR

46-48 PARK PLACE, 

CATHAYS PARK, CARDIFF, 

CF10 3BB

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

18/01921/MJR 17/08/2018  13 TrueLEOM LLP 30/08/2018AMENDMENT OF CONDITION 14 OF 

17/01906/MJR RELATING TO 

DRAINAGE

CUSTOM HOUSE, 

CUSTOM HOUSE STREET 

AND FORMER YORK 

HOTEL, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 1AP

Permission 

be granted

18/01839/MJR 09/08/2018  20 Truec/o agent 29/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 3 

(PROGRAMME OF HISTORIC 

BUILDING) OF 17/01907/MNR

CUSTOM HOUSE, 

CUSTOM HOUSE STREET 

AND FORMER YORK 

HOTEL, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 1AP

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

18/01884/MJR 14/08/2018  6 TrueRightacres Property 

Company Ltd

20/08/2018AN EXTENSION OF TIME TO SUBMIT 

THE DETAILS FOR CONDITIONS 11 

AND 12 (PUBLIC REALM AND 

ACCESS) OF 17/01751/MJR

LAND NORTH OF WOOD 

STREET, WEST OF 

HAVELOCK STREET, 

SOUTH OF PARK STREET 

AND EAST OF NO.6 PARK 

STREET.  (THE SITE 

ENCOMPASSES PLOTS 6 

(IN PART), 7 AND 8 OF THE 

CENTRAL SQUARE 

MASTERPLAN AREA)

Permission 

be granted

18/01572/MJR 06/07/2018  39 TruePrincipality Building 

Society

14/08/2018REMOVAL OF EXISTING SHOPFRONT 

GLAZING AND DOORS, REMOVAL OF 

GRANITE STONE COLUMN PLINTHS 

AND STALLRISER, STONE COLUMNS 

AND STONE PANEL FASCIAS. 

INSTALLATION OF FULL HEIGHT 

SHOPFRONT GLAZING AND DOORS 

WITH NEW GRANITE COLUMN 

PLINTH AND STONEWORK COLUMNS 

AND NEW RAKING STONEWORK 

FASCIA.

PRINCIPALITY BUILDINGS, 

QUEEN STREET, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

2AH

Permission 

be granted

18/01876/MJR 09/08/2018  6 TrueHermes Property Unit 

Trust

15/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 4 

(CONTRACT FOR THE UNDERTAKING 

OF THE DEVELOPMENT) OF 

PLANNING PERMISSION 

16/02058/MJR

5-10 CHURCH STREET, 

CITY CENTRE, CARDIFF, 

CF10 1BG

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition



18/01650/MJR 13/07/2018  20 TrueRightacres Property 

Company Ltd

02/08/2018AMENDMENTS TO 17/01751/MJR - 

MAIN ENTRANCE DOORS

LAND NORTH OF WOOD 

STREET, WEST OF 

HAVELOCK STREET, 

SOUTH OF PARK STREET 

AND EAST OF NO.6 PARK 

STREET.  (THE SITE 

ENCOMPASSES PLOTS 6 

(IN PART), 7 AND 8 OF THE 

CENTRAL SQUARE 

MASTERPLAN AREA)

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01494/MNR 20/06/2018  51 TrueC/O Agent 10/08/2018GROUND FLOOR REAR EXTENSION, 

REAR DORMER AND CONVERSION 

FROM C3 TO C4 HOUSE IN MULTIPLE 

OCCUPATION

22 FLORA STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4EP

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01434/MNR 14/06/2018  56 TrueQuin & Co Ltd 09/08/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM C3 HOUSE 

TO C4 HOUSE IN MULTIPLE 

OCCUPATION. REAR DORMER ROOF 

EXTENSION AND INSERTION OF 

ROOF LIGHT TO FRONT ROOF

59 CRANBROOK STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4AL

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01469/MNR 19/06/2018  51 TrueJ.T Building & Electrical 

Services Ltd

09/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 5 

(SOUND INSULATION), 6 (NOISE 

ASSESSMENT) AND 7 (ROOM 

INSULATION) OF 18/00761/MNR

SECOND AND THIRD 

FLOOR, 39 WINDSOR 

PLACE, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 3BW

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

18/01521/MNR 22/06/2018  54 TrueMunir 15/08/2018RETENTION OF CHANGE OF USE 

FROM C4 6 BED HOUSE IN MULTIPLE 

OCCUPATION TO SUI GENERIS 7 BED 

HOUSE IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION

91 LISVANE STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4LJ

Permission 

be granted

18/01153/MNR 15/05/2018  94 FalseCardiff & County Club 17/08/2018NEW ENTRANCE TO LOWER 

GROUND FLOOR AND ASSOCIATED 

INTERNAL WORKS AND 

ALTERATIONS

CARDIFF AND COUNTY 

CLUB, WESTGATE 

STREET, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 1DA

Permission 

be granted

18/01586/MNR 04/07/2018  41 TrueChopstix Group 14/08/2018NEW SHOPFRONT CHOPSTIX, 20-22 QUEEN 

STREET, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 2BU

Permission 

be granted



18/01472/MNR 19/06/2018  56 TrueMetro Bank PLC 14/08/2018INSTALLATION OF MECHANICAL 

PLANT ON THE THIRD FLOOR ROOF

40-44 QUEEN STREET, 

CITY CENTRE, CARDIFF, 

CF10 2BX

Permission 

be granted

18/01493/MNR 20/06/2018  55 TrueC/O Agent 14/08/2018RETENTION OF CHANGE OF USE 

FROM C4 6 BED HOUSE IN MULTIPLE 

OCCUPATION TO SUI GENERIS 7 BED 

HOUSE IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION

22 TREHERBERT STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4JN

Permission 

be granted

18/01492/MNR 20/06/2018  56 TrueC/O Agent 15/08/2018RETENTION OF CHANGE OF USE 

FROM C4 6 BED HOUSE IN MULTIPLE 

OCCUPATION TO SUI GENERIS 7 BED 

HOUSE IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION

100 MAINDY ROAD, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4HQ

Permission 

be granted

18/01415/MNR 27/06/2018  56 TrueMicro Doghouse Ltd 22/08/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM POST 

OFFICE TO OFF LICENCE AND 

MICRO PUB

109 CRWYS ROAD, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4NF

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00064/MNR 27/06/2018  56 TrueMicro Doghouse Ltd 22/08/2018SIGNAGE 109 CRWYS ROAD, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4NF

Permission 

be granted

18/01516/MNR 22/06/2018  70 FalseWolfson Capital Ltd 31/08/2018CONVERSION OF A DWELLING INTO 

4 SELF CONTAINED FLATS WITH 

SINGLE STOREY SIDE AND REAR 

EXTENSIONS AND LOFT 

CONVERSION WITH REAR DORMER.

27 RICHARDS STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF, CF24 

4DA

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00070/MNR 06/07/2018  27 TruePret A Manger (Europe) 

Ltd

02/08/2018ADVERT- 1 NO. NON-ILLUMINATED 

FASCIA LETTERING - 2 NO. 

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED FASCIA 

LETTERING

GROUND FLOOR 

COMMERCIAL UNIT 6, BBC 

BUILDING, CENTRAL 

SQUARE, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 1FS

Permission 

be granted

18/01599/MNR 06/07/2018  27 TruePret A Manger (Europe) 

Limited

02/08/2018SHOPFRONT ALTERATIONS AND 

ASSOCIATED WORKS

GROUND FLOOR 

COMMERCIAL UNIT 6, BBC 

BUILDING, CENTRAL 

SQUARE, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 1FS

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00074/MNR 16/07/2018  32 TrueBBC Workplace 17/08/2018THREE NUMBER ILLUMINATED 

SIGNS ON THE BUILDING FACADE. 

TWO NUMBER ILLUMINATED TOTEM 

SIGNS AT BUILDING ENTRANCES

BBC CYMRU WALES, 

CENTRAL SQUARE, CITY 

CENTRE, CARDIFF, CF10 

1FT

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00080/MNR 24/07/2018  24 TrueEE 17/08/2018REBRAND EXTERNAL SIGNAGE 46-48 QUEEN STREET, 

CITY CENTRE, CARDIFF, 

CF10 2GQ

Permission 

be granted



18/01542/MJR 13/07/2018  32 TrueCardiff University 14/08/2018INSTALLATION OF THREE NEW 

EXTERNAL VENTILATION 

DUCTWORK PIPES WITHIN THE 

INTERNAL COURTYARD ELEVATION 

OF THE SIR MARTIN EVANS 

BUILDING FROM LEVEL 2 TO ROOF 

LEVEL TO CONNECT TO AN 

EXISTING ROOF MOUNTED AIR 

HANDLING UNIT

BIOSI WEST, CARDIFF 

UNIVERSITY, PARK 

PLACE, CATHAYS PARK

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00012/MNR 17/07/2018  28 TrueNOW-LONDON 14/08/2018NEW GOLD EFFECT FASCIA WITH 3D 

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED SIGNAGE

35-37 ST DAVIDS WAY, 

CITY CENTRE, CARDIFF, 

CF10 2DP

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00075/MNR 16/07/2018  29 TrueChopstix Group 14/08/2018ONE FASCIA SIGN AND ONE 

PROJECTING SIGN, BOTH 

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED

CHOPSTIX, 20-22 QUEEN 

STREET, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 2BU

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00081/MNR 26/07/2018  33 TrueLloyds Banking Group 28/08/2018SIGNAGE LLOYDS TSB, 31 QUEEN 

STREET, CITY CENTRE, 

CARDIFF, CF10 2AG

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00079/MNR 07/08/2018  21 TrueCardiff University 

Students' Union

28/08/2018TEMPORARY INSTALLATION OF 

DIGITAL ADVERTISING SCREEN TO 

BE DISPLAYED FOR 3 WEEKS 

ANNUALLY OVER THE COURSE OF 

FRESHERS INDUCTION

STUDENTS UNION, 47B 

PARK PLACE, CATHAYS 

PARK, CARDIFF, CF10 

3QN

Permission 

be granted

18/01956/MNR 22/08/2018  7 TrueCadwyn Housing 

Association

29/08/2018ALTERATIONS TO GROUND FLOOR 

FLATS A. RELOCATION OF GROUND 

FLOOR FLATS ENTRANCES TO 

COMMUNAL ENTRANCE B. 

PROVISION OF WET ROOMS IN LIEU 

OF BATHROOMS C. DOORS TO BE 

926MM WIDTH FOR WHEELCHAIR 

ACCESS - PREVIOUSLY APPROVED 

UNDER 15/02247/MNR

LAND TO THE EAST OF 

PENTYRCH STREET 

BAPTIST CHURCH, 

PENTYRCH STREET, 

CATHAYS, CARDIFF

Permission 

be granted

CRE

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/01232/DCH 23/05/2018  92 FalseThomas 23/08/2018DEMOLISH EXISTING GARAGE AND 

CONSTRUCT A NEW EXTENSION

90 PARC-Y-COED, 

CREIGIAU, CARDIFF, CF15 

9LW

Permission 

be granted

18/01626/DCH 11/07/2018  43 TrueGoodson 23/08/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION TO THE REAR OF THE 

EXISTING DWELLING

TY GWYN, 7 

MAES-Y-GOLLEN, 

CREIGIAU, CARDIFF, CF15 

9JW

Permission 

be granted

18/01277/DCH 31/05/2018  76 FalseThomas 15/08/2018EXTENSION TO SIDE AND ATTACHED 

GARAGE, PORCH TO FRONT.

19 ST FAGANS DRIVE, ST 

FAGANS, CARDIFF, CF5 

6EF

Permission 

be granted

18/01673/DCH 26/07/2018  34 TrueEvans 29/08/2018REAR AND SIDE EXTENSION AND 

ALTERATIONS

LLWYN Y BRAIN MAWR, 

HEOL CREIGIAU, 

CREIGIAU, CARDIFF, CF15 

9SG

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01562/MNR 03/07/2018  48 TrueSOANES 20/08/2018PROPOSED ALTERATION OF 

APPROVED DWELLING TO INCLUDE 

REAR CONSERVATORY EXTENSION

38 TREM Y COED (PLOT 

70), ST FAGANS, CARDIFF, 

CF5 6FB

Permission 

be granted

18/01556/MNR 26/06/2018  50 TrueEly Court Care Ltd 15/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 6 

(WINDOW DETAILS CONDITION) AND 

7 (PORCH AND FRONT DOOR 

DETAILS) OF 17/02721/MNR

THE COURT NURSING 

HOME, CWRT Y CADNO, 

ST FAGANS, CARDIFF, 

CF5 6XD

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

18/01557/MNR 29/06/2018  47 TrueEly Court Care Ltd 15/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 6 

(WINDOW DETAILS CONDITION), 7 

(PORCH AND FRONT DOOR DETAILS) 

AND 12 ('NO-DIG' CONSTRUCTION) 

OF 17/02720/MNR

THE COURT NURSING 

HOME, CWRT Y CADNO, 

ST FAGANS, CARDIFF, 

CF5 6XD

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

CYNC

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/01513/DCH 22/06/2018  56 TrueRahman 17/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

AND FIRST FLOOR REAR 

EXTENSION AND EXTERNAL 

ALTERATIONS

37 CELYN AVENUE, 

LAKESIDE, CARDIFF, CF23 

6EH

Permission 

be granted

18/01482/DCH 19/06/2018  56 TrueKhan 14/08/2018PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR REAR 

EXTENSIONS OVER EXISTING 

GROUND FLOOR REAR EXTENSIONS 

& REAR DORMER & AMENDMENT TO 

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR REAR 

EXTENSION ROOF

23 LAKESIDE DRIVE, 

LAKESIDE, CARDIFF, CF23 

6DD

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01422/DCH 21/06/2018  54 TrueWebster 14/08/2018PROPOSED HIP TO GABLE LOFT 

CONVERSION WITH REAR FACING 

DORMER

29 HURFORD PLACE, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6QZ

Permission 

be granted

18/01528/DCH 25/06/2018  42 TrueWatts 06/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR AND SIDE 

EXTENSION.

83 LAKE ROAD WEST, 

ROATH PARK, CARDIFF, 

CF23 5PJ

Permission 

be granted

18/01529/DCH 25/06/2018  42 TrueHilary 06/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION. 85 LAKE ROAD WEST, 

ROATH PARK, CARDIFF, 

CF23 5PJ

Permission 

be granted

18/01335/DCH 13/06/2018  71 FalseMcleod 23/08/2018THE PROPOSED WORKS INCLUDE 

THE CONSTRUCTION OF A FIRST 

FLOOR EXTENSION OVER AN 

EXISTING SINGLE STOREY SIDE 

WING AND A SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION TO THE REAR OF THE 

MAIN HOUSE.

31 CEFN COED GARDENS, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6AX

Permission 

be granted

18/01609/DCH 06/07/2018  46 TrueDar 21/08/2018New pitched roof over existing garage 

and conversion into granny annex

11 CARNEGIE DRIVE, 

LAKESIDE, CARDIFF, CF23 

6DH

Permission 

be granted

18/01584/DCH 02/07/2018  59 FalseLewis 30/08/2018TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION 

INCLUDING RAISING RIDGE FOR 

LOFT CONVERSION

33 LLYSWEN ROAD, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6NH

Permission 

be granted

18/01338/DCH 06/06/2018  86 FalseRafique 31/08/2018RAISE HEIGHT OF EXISTING FENCE 4 LEVEN CLOSE, 

LAKESIDE, CARDIFF, CF23 

6DN

Permission 

be granted

18/01611/DCH 05/07/2018  40 TrueHaywood 14/08/2018GROUND FLOOR REAR & SIDE 

EXTENSION, HIP TO GABLE ROOF 

EXTENSION & REAR DORMER

27 HEOL ESGYN, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6JT

Permission 

be granted



18/01615/DCH 05/07/2018  33 TrueAkhondi 07/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 13 BRIARWOOD DRIVE, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF23 6SR

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01566/MNR 28/06/2018  56 TrueStephens 23/08/2018DEMOLITION OF EXISTING 

BUNGALOW AND CONSTRUCTION 

OF A PAIR OF NEW SEMI-DETACHED 

HOUSES

19 FIDLAS ROAD, 

CYNCOED, CARDIFF, 

CF14 0LW

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

17/02911/MNR 01/12/2017  259 FalseClearwater Property 17/08/2018PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF 

EXISTING GARAGES AND 

REPLACEMENT WITH 

DEVELOPMENT OF A SINGLE 

DWELLING AND ASSOCIATED 

WORKS

GARAGES AT GWYNANT 

CRESCENT, LAKESIDE

Permission 

be granted

ELY

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01660/DCH 19/07/2018  27 TrueCriddle 15/08/2018RETENTION OF DETATCHED 

GARAGE AND PORCH TO SIDE OF 

PROPERTY

42 ST DAVIDS CRESCENT, 

ELY, CARDIFF, CF5 4GQ

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01537/MNR 06/07/2018  56 TrueHallmark Care Homes 31/08/2018INTERNAL CONVERSION WORKS (TO 

CREATE THREE ADDITIONAL 

BEDROOMS) ON SECOND FLOOR OF 

HOME AND CONSTRUCTION OF 2NO 

X FLAT ROOFED DORMER WINDOWS

REGENCY HOUSE CARE 

HOME, MILL ROAD, ELY, 

CARDIFF, CF5 4AE

Permission 

be granted



FAIR

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01136/DCH 22/05/2018  71 FalseSaleh 01/08/2018HIP TO GABLE DORMER ROOF 

EXTENSIONS

212 ST FAGANS ROAD, 

FAIRWATER, CARDIFF, 

CF5 3EW

Permission 

be granted

18/01800/DCH 06/08/2018  11 TrueJones 17/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 5 ST FAGANS CLOSE, 

FAIRWATER, CARDIFF, 

CF5 3AZ

Permission 

be granted

18/01024/DCH 27/06/2018  35 TrueRye 01/08/2018REAR EXTENSION 216 ST FAGANS ROAD, 

FAIRWATER, CARDIFF, 

CF5 3EW

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01473/MNR 19/06/2018  56 TrueRothwell 14/08/2018ERECTION OF ONE PAIR OF 

SEMI-DETACHED HOUSES

REAR OF 32 KEYSTON 

ROAD, FAIRWATER, 

CARDIFF, CF5 3NG

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

GABA

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01841/DCH 06/08/2018  11 TrueAhmed 17/08/2018REAR GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION 

4000MM OR LESS DEPTH FROM 

ORIGINAL MAIN HOUSE AND ANNEXE 

WALLS, AND REAR DORMER SET 

BACK 300MM FROM ORIGINAL MAIN 

HOUSE REAR WALL

141 WHITCHURCH ROAD, 

GABALFA, CARDIFF, CF14 

3JQ

Permission 

be granted



18/01727/DCH 26/07/2018  33 TrueBancroft 28/08/2018DEMOLITION OF EXISTING 

OUTHOUSE. CONSTRUCTION OF 

SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

WITH GABLED VAULTED ROOF

8 SUMMERFIELD AVENUE, 

GABALFA, CARDIFF, CF14 

3QA

Permission 

be granted

18/01734/DCH 25/07/2018  29 TrueWEST 23/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 76 AUSTRALIA ROAD, 

GABALFA, CARDIFF, CF14 

3DA

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01426/MNR 26/06/2018  56 TrueAzzopardi 21/08/2018INSTALLATION OF EXTRACT 

DUCTING AND VERTICAL FLUE

188 WHITCHURCH ROAD, 

GABALFA, CARDIFF, CF14 

3NB

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00071/MNR 17/07/2018  42 TrueWates Residential 28/08/2018SALES HOARDING ADVERTISING AN 

OPEN MARKET AND AFFORDABLE 

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

Former Road Safety Test 

Centre, North Road, 

Gabalfa, Cardiff, CF14 3BL

Permission 

be granted

18/01394/MNR 18/06/2018  58 FalseDickson 15/08/2018RENEWAL OF PLANNING 

PERMISSION 13/00702/DCI TO 

DEMOLISH EXISTING SINGLE 

STOREY BUILDING AND ERECTION 

OF NEW TWO STOREY MIXED USE 

COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT

EX-WEIGHBRIDGE SITE, 

NORTH ROAD, GABALFA, 

CARDIFF, CF14 3BP

Permission 

be granted

GRAN

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01549/DCH 02/07/2018  46 TrueWall 17/08/2018CONSERVATORY TO REAR 

ELEVATION

16 BESSBOROUGH DRIVE, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 8NE

Permission 

be granted

18/01400/DCH 18/06/2018  46 TrueJan 03/08/2018CONSTRUCT A GROUND FLOOR 

SHOWER & WC EXTENSION FOR 

DISABLED OCCUPANT

89 CLARE ROAD, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 6QQ

Permission 

be granted



18/01301/DCH 04/06/2018  63 FalseStenner 06/08/2018RETENTION OF SINGLE STOREY 

REAR EXTENSION

16 GRANGE PLACE, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 7DB

Permission 

be granted

18/01331/DCH 11/06/2018  60 FalseVarsani 10/08/2018PROPOSED REAR SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION TO PROVIDE EXTENDED 

LIVING/ KITCHEN ACCOMMODATION.

92 MARDY STREET, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 6QW

Permission 

be granted

18/01547/DCH 26/06/2018  58 FalseKing 23/08/2018TWO STOREY EXTENSION TO THE 

SIDE OF THE EXISTING HOUSE

9 LANGHAM WAY, 

LECKWITH, CARDIFF, 

CF11 8BJ

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01680/MNR 13/07/2018  41 Truestidworthy 23/08/2018CONVERSION OF EXISTING 

WORKSHOP TO FORM LIVE WORK 

UNIT. GROUND FLOOR TO BE USED 

AS CRAFT/JOINERY WORKSHOP 

AND ART STUDIO, AND FIRST FLOOR 

TO BE USED AS RESIDENTIAL WITH 

ROOF TERRACE.

33A CHESTER STREET, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 6PY

Permission 

be granted

18/01569/MNR 28/06/2018  41 TrueInternational Language 

Monument Founder 

Trust

08/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 3 

(EXTERNAL FINISHING MATERIALS), 

4 (DETAILING OF VARIOUS 

ELEMENTS), 5 (UPKEEP AND 

MAINTENANCE OF THE MONUMENT), 

6 (CONTAMINATION), 9 

(LANDSCAPING) AND 10 

(CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 

PLAN) OF 16/02828/MNR

GRANGEMOOR PARK, 

DUNLEAVY DRIVE, 

GRANGETOWN

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

18/01075/MNR 14/05/2018  84 FalseRailway Pensions 

Nominees Limited

06/08/2018CHANGE OF USE OF UNIT L FROM 

CLASS A1 (RETAIL) TO CLASS D2 

(LEISURE), INCLUDING MINOR 

EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS, TO ALLOW 

THE UNIT TO BE OCCUPIED BY A 

GYM / FITNESS CLUB

UNIT L, CARDIFF BAY 

RETAIL PARK, FERRY 

ROAD, GRANGETOWN, 

CARDIFF, CF11 0JR

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00066/MNR 22/06/2018  54 TrueWilson 15/08/2018INSTALLATION OF NEW BRAND 

SIGNAGE

UNIT 2C, GLYNSTELL 

PARK, GLYNSTELL CLOSE, 

LECKWITH, CARDIFF, 

CF11 8AW

Permission 

be granted



18/01622/MNR 16/07/2018  37 TrueLok'nStore Ltd 22/08/2018CHANGE OF USE TO B8 SELF 

STORAGE AND ASSOCIATED 

ALTERATIONS AND PARKING

234 PENARTH ROAD, 

LECKWITH, CARDIFF, 

CF11 8TU

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00072/MNR 16/07/2018  37 TrueLok'nStore Ltd 22/08/20185 X ILLUMINATED AND 3 X 

NON-ILLUMINATED FASCIA SIGNS 

AND 1 X ILLUMINATED TOTEM SIGN

234 PENARTH ROAD, 

LECKWITH, CARDIFF, 

CF11 8TU

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00084/MNR 02/08/2018  26 TrueHollington 28/08/2018INSTALLATION OF NEW 

ILLUMINATED AND NON 

ILLUMINATED BUILT UP ALUMINIUM 

SIGNAGE, VINYL SIGNAGE AND 

TOTEM SIGNAGE

ICE ARENA WALES, 

OLYMPIAN DRIVE, 

GRANGETOWN, CARDIFF, 

CF11 0JS

Permission 

be granted

18/01819/MNR 06/08/2018  7 TrueStarburst (UK) Limited 13/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 2 

(NOISE ASSESSMENT) OF 

18/01055/MNR

UNIT 3A, FREEMANS 

PARC, PENARTH ROAD, 

LECKWITH, CARDIFF, 

CF11 8EQ

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

18/01656/MNR 12/07/2018  36 TrueDGH Properties Ltd 17/08/2018CHANGE OF USE TO CAR SALES 

AND ANCILLARY USES

CYNHYRCHIADAU 

BOOMERANG 

CYFYNGEDIG, 218 

PENARTH ROAD, 

LECKWITH, CARDIFF, 

CF11 8NN

Permission 

be granted

18/01602/MNR 09/07/2018  36 TrueMoffatt 14/08/2018PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE TO 

(SUI GENERIS) CAR SALES AND 

SHOWROOM

ABSOLUTE CATERING 

SUPPLIES UNIT 1, ST 

ANDREW HOUSE, 

WHITTLE ROAD, 

LECKWITH, CARDIFF, 

CF11 8AT

Permission 

be granted

HEAT

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/01601/DCH 04/07/2018  47 TrueShahzad 20/08/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY REAR 

EXTENSION, WITH ALTERATIONS TO 

EXISTING REAR GABLE ROOF 

STRUCTURE. FRONT BAY 

EXTENSION, REPLACEMENT 

ENTRANCE GABLE PORCH ROOF 

WITH ASSOCIATED EXTERNAL 

WORKS.

119 HEATH PARK AVENUE, 

HEATH, CARDIFF, CF14 

3RG

Permission 

be granted

18/01533/DCH 25/06/2018  43 TrueHopkins 07/08/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY REAR 

AND SIDE EXTENSIONS WITH 

ASSOCIATED EXTERNAL WORKS

15 CEFN CARNAU ROAD, 

HEATH, CARDIFF, CF14 

4LZ

Permission 

be granted

18/01535/DCH 26/06/2018  41 TrueMaya Rehman 06/08/2018NEW FRONT PORCH AND SINGLE 

STOREY REAR EXTENSION

110 TON-YR-YWEN 

AVENUE, HEATH, 

CARDIFF, CF14 4PD

Permission 

be granted

18/01657/DCH 11/07/2018  43 TrueHailan 23/08/2018VARIATION OF CONDITION 4 

(WINDOWS IN SIDE DORMER) OF 

APPLICATION 16/02573/DCH

146 KING GEORGE V 

DRIVE EAST, HEATH, 

CARDIFF, CF14 4EN

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01606/DCH 06/07/2018  39 TruePlain 14/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION. 29 LLWYNFEDW 

GARDENS, BIRCHGROVE, 

CARDIFF, CF14 4NX

Permission 

be granted

LISV

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

17/03122/DCH 21/12/2017  246 FalseBini 24/08/2018DEMOLITION OF EXISTING REAR 

AND SIDE EXTENSION. PROPOSED 

NEW SINGLE STOREY REAR 

EXTENSION WITH ROOF TERRACE 

AND NEW TWO STOREY SIDE 

EXTENSION

MILL FARM HOUSE, MILL 

FARM, ST MELLONS 

ROAD, LISVANE, CARDIFF, 

CF14 0SH

Permission 

be granted

18/01939/DCH 16/08/2018  6 TrueJenkins 22/08/2018CONSTRUCTION OF SUMMER 

HOUSE AND GUEST 

ACCOMMODATION TO REAR

46 HEOL Y DELYN, 

LISVANE, CARDIFF, CF14 

0SR

Planning 

Permission 

be refused



18/01917/DCH 14/08/2018  15 TrueMohamed 29/08/2018AMENDMENTS TO THE DESIGN TO 

ALLOW FOR CLEARANCE OF THE 

MANHOLE - PREVIOUSLY APPROVED 

UNDER 17/02555/DCH

66 CLOS LLYSFAEN, 

LISVANE, CARDIFF, CF14 

0UP

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

17/00559/MJR 28/03/2017  492 FalseRedrow Homes South 

Wales

02/08/2018REVISED ATTENUATION BASIN WITH 

LANDSCAPING

LAND OFF, CEFN MABLY 

ROAD, LISVANE

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01653/MNR 11/07/2018  33 TrueS.A.Brains and 

Company Ltd

13/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 5 

(MATERIALS) OF 18/00927/MNR

TY MAWR ARMS, GRAIG 

ROAD, LISVANE, CARDIFF, 

CF14 0UF

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

LLAN

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01467/DCH 19/06/2018  56 TrueAmlot 14/08/2018REAR AND SIDE DOUBLE STOREY 

EXTENSION

14 PENDRAGON CLOSE, 

THORNHILL, CARDIFF, 

CF14 9BD

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01645/DCH 20/07/2018  42 TrueRolfe 31/08/2018SIDE DOUBLE STOREY EXTENSION 15 GARETH CLOSE, 

THORNHILL, CARDIFF, 

CF14 9AF

Permission 

be granted

18/01395/DCH 12/06/2018  80 FalseCarney 31/08/2018LOFT CONVERSION INCLUDING 

REAR DORMER

3 CEFN ONN MEADOWS, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 0FL

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01468/DCH 19/06/2018  65 FalseO'Halloran 23/08/2018REAR SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION 9 TASKER SQUARE, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 5ET

Permission 

be granted



18/01834/DCH 06/08/2018  18 TruePerera 24/08/2018EXISTING APPROVED PART REAR 

EXTENSION TO BE EXTENDED BY A 

FURTHER 1000MM PREVIOUSLY 

APPROVED UNDER 17/02807/DCH

20 SOUTH RISE, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 0RH

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00850/MJR 12/04/2018  120 FalseHale Construction 10/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 2 

(EXTERNAL FINISHING MATERIALS), 

3 (MEANS OF SITE ENCLOSURE) 

AND 5 (CONSTRUCTION 

MANAGEMENT PLAN) OF 

17/00967/MJR

LAND AT CHILTERN 

CLOSE, LLANISHEN, 

CARDIFF

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01461/MNR 22/06/2018  56 TrueCardiff City Council 17/08/2018RETROSPECTIVE PLANNING 

PERMISSION FOR THE 

INSTALLATION OF 1NO. SINGLE 

STOREY TEMPORARY PORTAKABIN 

BUILDING TO BE USED AS A LIBRARY 

AND ADDITIONAL TEACHING SPACE. 

TO BE HIRED FOR A PERIOD OF 104 

WEEKS.

THE COURT SPECIAL 

SCHOOL, STATION ROAD, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 5UX

Permission 

be granted

18/01456/MNR 06/07/2018  56 TrueMassey 31/08/2018PROPOSED CONVERSION OF A 

DETATCHED SINGLE STOREY 

GARAGE INTO DETATCHED 3 

BEDROOM HOUSE

PART OF LAND AT 91 

TEMPLETON AVENUE, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 5JG

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01595/MNR 03/07/2018  56 TrueReginald Moore Ltd 28/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITON 5 

(LANDSCAPING) OF 17/01026/MNR

24 KIMBERLEY TERRACE, 

LLANISHEN, CARDIFF, 

CF14 5EA

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition



18/01505/MNR 22/06/2018  40 TrueTy Deri Ltd 01/08/2018VARIATION OF CONDITION 2 

(APPROVED PLANS) OF 

16/01511/MNR

LAND ADJACENT TO UNIT 

23, CARDIFF BUSINESS 

PARK, LAMBOURNE 

CRESCENT, LLANISHEN, 

CARDIFF

Permission 

be granted

LLDF

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01714/DCH 18/07/2018  41 TrueWalters 28/08/2018EXTENSION AT GROUND FLOOR 

LEVEL TO HOUSE AT REAR.

36 PALACE ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2AH

Permission 

be granted

18/01608/DCH 04/07/2018  58 FalseKAYE 31/08/2018DEMOLITION OF EXISTING GARDEN 

STORE AND KENNELS AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF NEW GARDEN 

ROOM AND ANCILLARY 

ACCOMMODATION

14 BRIDGE ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2PT

Permission 

be granted

18/01567/DCH 29/06/2018  47 TrueJames 15/08/2018DEMOLITION OF EXISTING REAR 

LEAN-TO ANNEXE AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF SINGLE STOREY 

REAR AND SIDE EXTENSION TO 

PROVIDE EXTENDED KITCHEN AND 

LIVING SPACE, UTILITY ROOM, 

WC/SHOWER ROOM AND BIKE 

STORE

36 PROSPECT DRIVE, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2HN

Permission 

be granted

18/01531/DCH 02/07/2018  44 TrueOjla 15/08/2018DEVELOPMENT AND 

REFURBISHMENT INCLUDING 

SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION

71 ST MICHAEL'S ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2AN

Permission 

be granted

18/00382/DCH 20/06/2018  55 TrueJames 14/08/2018ALTERATIONS TO WINDOWS 36 THE GRANGE, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2LH

Permission 

be granted

18/01210/DCH 06/06/2018  62 FalseFrampton 07/08/2018PROPOSED 2 STOREY EXTENSION 

TO FORM ADDITIONAL BEDROOM 

AND GROUND FLOOR DINING ROOM

47 HEOL SEDDON, 

DANESCOURT, CARDIFF, 

CF5 2QX

Permission 

be granted



18/01849/DCH 06/08/2018  11 TrueBarry 17/08/2018CHANGE THE ROOF OF THE SINGLE 

STOREY EXTENSION FROM A 

PITCHED ROOF TO A FLAT ROOF. IN 

ADDITION, CHANGE THE 2-OFF 

VELUX WINDOWS TO A SINGLE 

FIXED SKYLIGHT - PREVIOUSLY 

APPROVED UNDER 17/01207/DCH

389 WESTERN AVENUE, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2BD

Permission 

be granted

18/01670/DCH 24/07/2018  21 TrueParry-Belcher 14/08/2018THE INSTALLATION OF TWO 

WINDOWS (EACH C.1000MM HIGH X 

600MM WIDE) IN THE SIDE WALL OF 

MY HOUSE TO ENABLE LIGHT INTO 

MY LOUNGE. THE HOLES FOR THE 

WINDOWS WILL NEED CREATING 

(BUILDING WORK) IN THE WALL

4 GERDDI TAF, LLANDAFF, 

CARDIFF, CF5 2SQ

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01594/MNR 05/07/2018  46 TrueCity of Llandaff 

Petanque Club

20/08/2018RETENTION OF PETANQUE COURT 

TO SOUTH OF EXISTING CAR PARK 

ON WASTE GRASSLAND

LLANDAFF ROWING 

CLUB, THE BOAT HOUSE, 

BRIDGE ROAD, 

LLANDAFF, CARDIFF, CF5 

2PT

Permission 

be granted

LLDN

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01607/DCH 04/07/2018  42 TrueHafod Housing 

Association

15/08/2018CONSTRUCTION OF NEW SINGLE 

STOREY SIDE EXTENSION LOCATED 

AT FRONT RIGHT HAND SIDE OF 

EXISTING PROPERTY TO HOUSE 

NEW GROUND FLOOR DISABLED 

ACCESS WC AND SHOWER ROOM

2 HEOL AMLWCH, 

GABALFA, CARDIFF, CF14 

2PT

Permission 

be granted

18/01385/DCH 15/06/2018  54 TrueSingh 08/08/2018REAR SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION 

AND CONVERSION TO SINGLE 

DWELLING

10 WATSON ROAD, 

LLANDAFF NORTH, 

CARDIFF, CF14 2JA

Permission 

be granted



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00918/MNR 18/04/2018  119 FalseEvans 15/08/2018DEVELOPMENT OF DETACHED 

DWELLING, ASSOCIATED ACCESS & 

PARKING

114 RIVER VIEW, 

GABALFA, CARDIFF, CF14 

2QH

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

LLRU

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01466/DCH 21/06/2018  46 Truebear construction 06/08/2018HIP TO GABLE SIDE EXTENSION 

WITH REAR DORMER AND 

ALTERATIONS

4 LYNTON CLOSE, 

LLANRUMNEY, CARDIFF, 

CF3 4BU

Permission 

be granted

PENT

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01581/DCH 02/07/2018  46 TrueJoseph 17/08/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION TO REAR OF PROPERTY 

TO PROVIDE NEW DINING & STUDY 

AREA

91 BRYNFEDW, 

LLANEDEYRN, CARDIFF, 

CF23 9PR

Permission 

be granted

18/01643/DCH 10/07/2018  42 TrueThomas 21/08/2018ERECT AN ENTRANCE PORCH TO 

THE SOUTH-WEST ELEVATION

43 AEL-Y-BRYN, 

LLANEDEYRN, CARDIFF, 

CF23 9LG

Permission 

be granted

PENY

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/01644/DCH 13/07/2018  41 TrueBarton 23/08/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STORY REAR 

EXTENSION AND LOFT CONVERSION

62 AMESBURY ROAD, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

5DX

Permission 

be granted

18/01264/DCH 30/05/2018  79 FalseDavies 17/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

WITH STORE BENEATH

6 WINCHESTER AVENUE, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

9BT

Permission 

be granted

18/01407/DCH 20/06/2018  55 TrueAhmadi 14/08/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY SIDE 

UTILITY EXTENSION AND FIRST 

FLOOR REAR BALCONY

SILVER BIRCHES, 6 

TY-GWYN AVENUE, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

5JJ

Permission 

be granted

18/01559/DCH 27/06/2018  48 TrueTaylor 14/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

AND PARTIAL GARAGE CONVERSION 

TO SEMI DETACHED DWELLING

26 LOTHIAN CRESCENT, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

9HY

Permission 

be granted

18/01367/DCH 08/06/2018  62 FalseSinghrao 09/08/2018EXTENSIONS TO GROUND FLOOR 

AND FIRST FLOOR WITH EXTERNAL 

ALTERATIONS.

126 CARISBROOKE WAY, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

9HX

Permission 

be granted

18/01604/DCH 06/07/2018  31 TrueCrichton-Smith 06/08/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION TO REAR AND SIDE OF 

PROPERTY

29 EARL'S COURT ROAD, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

9DE

Permission 

be granted

18/01722/DCH 19/07/2018  18 TrueJones 06/08/2018CERTIFICATE OF LAWFULNESS 

APPLICATION FOR PROPOSED USE 

OF A DORMER WINDOW TO REAR 

ELEVATION

21 AMESBURY ROAD, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

5DW

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01356/MNR 18/06/2018  71 FalseWitts 28/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 3 

(FINISHING MATERIALS), 4 (SITE 

ENCLOSURES), 5 (LANDSCAPING) 

AND 11 (DRAINAGE) OF 

18/00001/MNR

19 LLANEDEYRN ROAD, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

9DT

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

18/01425/MNR 18/06/2018  71 FalseWatkins 28/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

OF EXISTING OFFICE SPACE 

(CONVERTED GARAGE)

50 CYNCOED ROAD, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

5SH

Permission 

be granted



18/01704/MNR 25/07/2018  28 TrueCunningham 22/08/2018TWO STOREY EXTENSION TO REAR 

AND CONVERSION INTO 4 No. FLATS

65 WATERLOO ROAD, 

PENYLAN, CARDIFF, CF23 

9BL

Permission 

be granted

PLAS

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01625/DCH 06/07/2018  48 TrueChowdhury 23/08/2018SINGLE STOREY SIDE & REAR WITH 

FIRST FLOOR REAR EXTENSIONS 

AND LOFT CONVERSION WITH REAR 

DORMER & EXTERNAL 

ALTERATIONS.

67 GLENROY STREET, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3JY

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01694/DCH 17/07/2018  43 TruePartington 29/08/2018SIDE EXTENSION 46 ROATH COURT ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3SD

Permission 

be granted

18/00624/DCH 07/06/2018  55 TrueParr 01/08/2018REPLACEMENT OF 4 GROUND AND 5 

FIRST FLOOR WINDOWS TO THE 

FRONT OF THE PROPERTY

16 KELVIN ROAD, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF23 5ET

Permission 

be granted

18/01497/DCH 21/06/2018  55 TrueLaydon 15/08/2018REMOVING PVC DOUBLE GLAZED 

WINDOWS AND INSTALLING NEW 

WOODEN SASH DOUBLE GLAZED 

UNITS IN TRADITIONAL STYLE

22 LOCHABER STREET, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3LS

Permission 

be granted

18/01512/DCH 05/07/2018  43 TrueGay 17/08/2018REPLACEMENT WINDOWS 102 NINIAN ROAD, ROATH Permission 

be granted

18/01740/DCH 31/07/2018  20 TrueWatermeyer 20/08/2018CONSTRUCTION OF REAR DORMER 

ROOF EXTENSIONS AND INSERTION 

OF ROOFLIGHT TO THE FRONT 

ELEVATION

21 ROATH COURT ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3SD

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



18/01524/MNR 22/06/2018  56 TrueOrmonde 17/08/2018GROUND FLOOR REAR AND SIDE 

EXTENSION, HIP TO GABLE LOFT 

CONVERSION WITH REAR DORMER 

AND CONVERSION TO FOUR FLATS

47 ELM STREET, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 3QS

Permission 

be granted

18/01341/MNR 20/06/2018  56 TrueAlkhafaji 15/08/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM 3NO FLATS 

TO 4NO SELF CONTAINED FLATS & 

ALTERATIONS

2-4 PEN-Y-WAIN ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

4BB

Permission 

be granted

A/18/00068/MNR 26/06/2018  50 TruePicton Capital Limited 15/08/2018NEW SIGNAGE LONGCROSS COURT, 47 

NEWPORT ROAD, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 0AD

Split 

decision 

(part 

app./part 

ref.)

18/01448/MNR 28/06/2018  47 TrueMr M Salimian 14/08/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM A1 RETAIL 

TO A3 CAFE

141 CITY ROAD, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 3BQ

Permission 

be granted

18/01403/MNR 18/06/2018  44 TrueStone 01/08/2018DORMER TO REAR ANNEX, SINGLE 

STOREY REAR EXTENSION AND 

CONVERT INTO 4 LUXURY 

APARTMENTS

7 CONNAUGHT ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3PT

Permission 

be granted

18/00866/MNR 16/04/2018  109 FalseLane 03/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 5 

(FRONT ENCLOSURE), 7 (MATERIAL 

SAMPLES), 8 (ARCHITECTURAL 

DETAILING), 9 (DRAINAGE) AND 10 

(PEDESTRIAN FOOTWAY) OF 

PLANNING PERMISSION 

17/02780/MNR

36A MOY ROAD, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 4TF

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

18/01366/MNR 11/06/2018  56 TrueZaman 06/08/2018CHANGE OF USE OF PART FIRST 

FLOOR FOR CLASSROOM AND 

OFFICE USES IN AN ANCILLARY 

CAPACITY TO THE COMMUNITY 

CENTRE. RELOCATION OF 2 BED 

FLAT TO EXISTING ROOF SPACE 

(SECOND FLOOR) WITH 

ASSOCIATED DORMER 

EXTENSION(S). ELEVATIONAL 

CHANGES TO COMPRISE RENDER 

DETAILING TO NORTH ELEVATION 

DUE TO STONE DELAMINATION, 

WITH NEW ENTRANCE DOOR TO 

COMMUNAL HALL, AND RAISING OF 

RECESSED FLAT ROOF TO WEST 

ELEVATION

MADNI MUSLIM 

COMMUNITY CENTRE 

TRUST, 1-3 DALCROSS 

STREET, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 4SE

Permission 

be granted



18/01340/MNR 20/06/2018  48 TrueAlkhafaji 07/08/2018CHANGE OF USE OF UPPER FLOORS 

FROM 1NO MAISONETTE TO 3NO 

SELF CONTAINED FLATS

41 NINIAN ROAD, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF23 5EH

Permission 

be granted

18/01428/MNR 14/06/2018  56 TrueGuru Estates 09/08/2018FIRST & SECOND FLOOR 

EXTENSION WITH REAR DORMER 

TO CREATE ADDITIONAL FLAT WITH 

ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING FLAT

131 ALBANY ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3NS

Permission 

be granted

18/01580/MNR 04/07/2018  28 TrueWong 01/08/2018USE OF PROPERTY AS 3 BED HOUSE 

IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION (C4)

47 CROFT STREET, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3DY

Permission 

be granted

18/01587/MNR 02/07/2018  32 TrueDin 03/08/20185 FLATS (PREVIOUSLY 3) 108 CONNAUGHT ROAD, 

ROATH, CARDIFF, CF24 

3PY

Permission 

be granted

18/01784/MNR 31/07/2018  29 TruePicton 29/08/2018REFURBISHMENT OF EXISTING 

OFFICE BUILDING INCLUDING 

REPLACEMENT GLAZING, NEW 

LANDSCAPING TO COURTYARD, 

COLOUR CHANGE TO BRICKWORK

LONGCROSS COURT, 47 

NEWPORT ROAD, ROATH, 

CARDIFF, CF24 0AD

Permission 

be granted

PON

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01597/DCH 18/07/2018  41 TrueBishop 28/08/2018SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

REAR OF HOUSE

21 OAKLEAFE DRIVE, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8AL

Permission 

be granted

18/01458/DCH 27/06/2018  58 FalseImmanuel 24/08/2018CONSTRUCTION OF A FRONT 

PORCH APPROXIMATELY 3.7M2

KADINA, BRIDGE ROAD, 

OLD ST MELLONS, 

CARDIFF, CF3 6UY

Permission 

be granted

18/01579/DCH 04/07/2018  29 TrueBriggs 02/08/2018CONSTRUCTION OF A REAR 

ELEVATION SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION AND REAR ELEVATION 

LOFT CONVERSION WITH DORMER

30 CRANBOURNE WAY, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8SL

Permission 

be granted

18/01546/DCH 04/07/2018  28 TrueOwen 01/08/2018SIDE SECOND STOREY EXTENSION 

OVER EXISTING GARAGE

8 AMBERWOOD CLOSE, 

PONTPRENNAU, 

CARDIFF, CF23 8BZ

Permission 

be granted



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

17/03016/MJR 29/12/2017  224 FalsePersimmon Homes East 

Wales

10/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 39 

(PUBLIC ART) OF 13/00578/DCO

LAND EAST OF CHURCH 

ROAD AND NORTH AND 

SOUTH OF, BRIDGE 

ROAD, OLD ST MELLONS

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00798/MNR 11/05/2018  96 FalseAbbasi-Masoumard 15/08/2018CONSTRUCTION OF DETACHED 3 

BED DORMER TYPE DWELLING 

WITH ON-SITE PARKING

LAND ADJACENT TO 56 

LASCELLES DRIVE, 

PONTPRENNAU

Permission 

be granted

PYCH

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01137/DCH 15/05/2018  92 FalseBeardsworth 15/08/2018PROPOSED EXTENSION OVER 

EXISTING GARAGE TO CREATE 

ADDITIONAL BEDROOM AND 

ENSUITE

31 PENMAES, PENTYRCH, 

CARDIFF, CF15 9QS

Permission 

be granted

18/01413/DCH 19/06/2018  44 TrueGriffiths 02/08/2018CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE 

STOREY CONTEMPORARY GLAZED 

EXTENSION TO THE FRONT OF AN 

EXISTING SINGLE OCCUPANCY 

DOUBLE STOREY RESIDENTIAL 

PROPERTY IN PLACE OF AN 

EXISTING SINGLE STOREY 

EXTENSION

THE ROCK, PARC ST 

CATWG, PENTYRCH, 

CARDIFF, CF15 9LJ

Planning 

Permission 

be refused



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01423/MNR 14/06/2018  64 FalseValley Vets 17/08/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM B8 TO D1 

(VETERINARY CLINIC)

UNIT 2C, 

GWAELOD-Y-GARTH 

INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, 

MAIN ROAD, 

GWAELOD-Y-GARTH, 

CARDIFF, CF15 9PN

Permission 

be granted

RADY

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01641/DCH 10/07/2018  38 TrueSutton 17/08/2018SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO 

REAR OF HOUSE

5 KING'S ROAD, RADYR, 

CARDIFF, CF15 8EB

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01610/MJR 05/07/2018  46 TrueRedrow Homes (South 

Wales)

20/08/2018RE-DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 6 

(PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND THE 

WESTERN POWER DISTRIBUTION 

TRANSFORMER) OF 16/02016/MJR

LAND NORTH OF 

LLANTRISANT ROAD, 

ADJACENT TO CLOS 

PARC RADYR, CARDIFF

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01408/MNR 13/06/2018  56 TrueHusband 08/08/2018PROPOSED CONVERSION OF 

HOUSE INTO 4 No. FLATS, AND 

DEMOLITION AND 

RECONSTRUCTION OF GARAGE AS 

DETACHED HOUSE

11 HEOL ISAF, RADYR, 

CARDIFF, CF15 8AF

Permission 

be granted



RHIW

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01668/DCH 11/07/2018  51 TrueHAWKES 31/08/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY FRONT 

AND REAR EXTENSIONS, FIRST 

FLOOR FRONT AND SIDE 

EXTENSIONS AND INTERNAL 

ALTERATIONS TO PROPERTY.

55 HEOL-Y-COED, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6HQ

Permission 

be granted

18/01359/DCH 09/07/2018  45 TrueMACK 23/08/2018VELUX LOFT CONVERSION, CHANGE 

PLANE OF FRONT LEFT ELEVATION 

OF ROOF

33 BEULAH ROAD, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6LT

Permission 

be granted

18/01307/DCH 08/06/2018  74 FalseDavies 21/08/2018REAR ROOF DORMER WITH 

INCREASE OF RIDGE HEIGHT AND 

ROOFLIGHTS TO THE FRONT

30 TYLA TEG, PANTMAWR, 

CARDIFF, CF14 7TL

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/01741/DCH 23/07/2018  9 TrueJones 01/08/2018AMENDMENTS TO 17/01957/DCH - 

ALTERATIONS TO INTERNAL 

LAYOUT. REVISIONS TO WINDOW 

AND DOOR OPENINGS TO INCLUDE 

A NEW FRENCH DOORS AND A 

GLAZED SCREEN

7 LON TY'N-Y-CAE, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6DD

Permission 

be granted

18/01530/DCH 26/06/2018  38 TrueMyers 03/08/2018TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION 18 LON-YSGUBOR, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6SG

Permission 

be granted

18/01888/DCH 10/08/2018  11 TrueGarman 21/08/2018CHANGE OF THE MATERIAL OF 

EXTERIOR DOORS FROM UPVC TO 

OAK DOORS - PREVIOUSLY 

APPROVED UNDER 18/00008/DCH

2 MIN-Y-NANT, RHIWBINA, 

CARDIFF, CF14 6JR

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



A/18/00069/MNR 27/06/2018  56 TrueParker 22/08/2018SIGNAGE RHIWBINA DENTAL 

SURGERY, 25-27 

HEOL-Y-DERI, RHIWBINA, 

CARDIFF, CF14 6HB

Permission 

be granted

18/01135/MNR 16/05/2018  106 FalseH3G UK Ltd 30/08/2018REPLACEMENT OF 1 NO. EXISTING 

TRI-SECTOR ANTENNA WITH 1 NO. 

NEW TRI-SECTOR ANTENNA 

INCORPORATING A REPLACEMENT 

GRP CHIMNEY; INSTALLATION OF 1 

NO. NEW EQUIPMENT CABINET; 

PLUS ASSOCIATED ANCILLARY 

DEVELOPMENT

8C HEOL-Y-DERI, 

RHIWBINA, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6HF

Permission 

be granted

18/01558/MNR 27/06/2018  43 TrueThreipland 09/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 4 

(LAYOUT AND EXTERNAL 

APPEARANCE), 5 (ARBORICULTURAL 

METHOD STATEMENT AND TREE 

PROTECTION PLAN), 6 (HARD AND 

SOFT LANSCAPING) AND 7 (ROOF 

TILES) OF 13/00160/DCO

WYNDHAM LIVERY, 

WENALLT ROAD, 

RHIWBINA

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

RIVE

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/00487/DCH 06/03/2018  160 FalseJones 13/08/2018GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION, 

RE-BUILD OF FIRST FLOOR, 

INTERNAL ALTERATIONS AND NEW 

DORMER TO LOFT SPACE

4 SEVERN GROVE, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9EN

Permission 

be granted

18/01357/DCH 07/06/2018  56 TrueMcCrann 02/08/2018ALTERATIONS & REFURBISHMENT 

OF THE PROPERTYINCLUDING; 

SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO THE 

REAR OF THE PROPERTY, ROOF 

DORMER TO THE REAR & 

SKYLIGHTS TO THE FRONT, NEW 

OPENINGS & WINDOWS TO THE 

FIRST FLOOR.

80 WYNDHAM ROAD, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9EL

Permission 

be granted

18/01402/DCH 27/06/2018  58 FalseCADWYN HOUSING 

ASSOCIATION

24/08/2018PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR 

EXTENSION TO FLAT No 11, HAFREN 

COURT

11 HAFREN COURT, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9EU

Permission 

be granted



18/01723/DCH 19/07/2018  18 TrueHole 06/08/2018CERTIFICATE OF LAWFULNESS 

APPLICATION FOR PROPOSED USE 

OF A DORMER WINDOW TO THE 

REAR OF ELEVATION

16 LLANFAIR ROAD, 

PONTCANNA, CARDIFF, 

CF11 9QB

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01743/MNR 24/07/2018  30 TrueTaff Housing 

Association & The 

Wallich

23/08/2018CHANGE OF USE OF 6 CLARE ROAD 

TO A RESIDENTIAL HOSTEL (CLASS 

C2) AND ASSOCIATED EXTERNAL 

ALTERATIONS TO 6 AND 8 CLARE 

ROAD INCLUDING REAR DORMER 

EXTENSION

6-8 CLARE ROAD, 

RIVERSIDE, CARDIFF, 

CF11 6QL

Permission 

be granted

18/01633/MNR 09/07/2018  25 TrueRegional Joinery 03/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 2 

(CYCLE PARKING), 3 (REFUSE 

STORAGE), 4 (ROAD TRAFFIC 

NOISE), 5 (RAILWAY NOISE) AND 6 

(RAILWAY VIBRATION) OF 

13/00286/DCI

13 TUDOR STREET, 

RIVERSIDE, CARDIFF, 

CF11 6AB

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

SPLO

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01347/DCH 26/06/2018  52 TrueJames 17/08/2018CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE 

STOREY REAR EXTENSION

30 SWINTON STREET, 

SPLOTT, CARDIFF, CF24 

2NU

Permission 

be granted

18/01433/DCH 21/06/2018  54 TrueSell 14/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR AND SIDE 

EXTENSION TO ACCOMMODATE 

DISABLED USER FACILITIES

15 CADMAN CLOSE, 

PENGAM, CARDIFF, CF24 

2HA

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



17/02918/MNR 13/12/2017  244 FalseS.A. Brain & Company 

Ltd

14/08/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM B1/B8 TO A 

NEW BREWERY PRODUCTION 

FACILITY, INCLUDING HEAD OFFICE 

ACCOMMODATION (B2 USE) AND 

ASSOCIATED DEVELOPMENT

COURTNEY HOUSE, 

PACIFIC BUSINESS PARK, 

PACIFIC ROAD, SPLOTT, 

CARDIFF, CF24 5HJ

Permission 

be granted

18/01760/MJR 26/07/2018  22 TrueDogs Trust 17/08/2018DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 27 

(REPTILE STRATEGY) OF 

APPLICATION 17/01824/MJR

LAND AT NETTLEFOLD 

ROAD, SPLOTT

Full 

Discharge 

of Condition

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01459/MNR 26/06/2018  49 TruePatel 14/08/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM SHOP TO  

RESIDENTIAL, REPLACE SHOP 

FRONT WITH NEW CAVITY WALL 

AND WINDOW FACADE

155 CARLISLE STREET, 

SPLOTT, CARDIFF, CF24 

2PD

Permission 

be granted

TROW

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01416/DCH 26/06/2018  38 TrueKimber 03/08/2018NEW EXTENSION OVER GARAGE TO 

PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FLOOR AREA 

TO EXISTING BEDROOM TO FRONT 

OF HOUSE, AND ADDITIONAL 

ENSUITE ACCESSIBLE FROM 

EXTENDED BEDROOM

249 HERITAGE PARK, ST 

MELLONS, CARDIFF, CF3 

0DU

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision



17/02571/MJR 27/10/2017  292 FalseCity Direction Ltd 15/08/2018OUTLINE PLANNING APPLICATION 

FOR THE DEMOLITION OF THE 

EXISTING OFFICE BUILDINGS, AND 

THE CONSTRUCTION OF 17 NEW 

RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS, NEW 

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS TO VAENDRE 

LANE, PARKING AND ASSOCIATED 

WORKS.

MELROSE HALL, 

CYPRESS DRIVE, ST 

MELLONS, CARDIFF, CF3 

0YZ

Permission 

be granted

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01134/MNR 22/06/2018  42 TrueDwr Cymru Welsh 

Water

03/08/2018INSTALLATION OF A ROOF-MOUNTED 

SOLAR ARRAY

DWR CYMRU WELSH 

WATER, LINEA HOUSE, 

FORTRAN ROAD, ST 

MELLONS, CARDIFF, CF3 

0LT

Permission 

be granted

18/01589/MNR 06/07/2018  28 TrueSmith 03/08/2018TWO STOREY, 3 BEDROOM HOUSE, 

AMENITY SPACE AND PARKING

114 HENDRE ROAD, 

TROWBRIDGE, CARDIFF, 

CF3 1US

Permission 

be granted

WHI

Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01470/DCH 19/06/2018  45 TrueCoray Developments 03/08/2018PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY SIDE 

EXTENSION

9 HEOL CHAPPELL, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 2DA

Planning 

Permission 

be refused

18/00652/DCH 27/03/2018  133 FalseWilkes 07/08/20183-STOREY REAR EXTENSION BALMACARA, 108 

PENDWYALLT ROAD, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 7EH

Permission 

be granted

18/01453/DCH 27/06/2018  54 TrueSmith 20/08/2018SIDE & REAR EXTENSION WITH 

LOFT CONVERSION TO BUNGALOW

22 GLAS-Y-PANT, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 7DB

Permission 

be granted



18/01270/DCH 30/05/2018  85 FalseLago 23/08/2018REAR AND SIDE EXTENSION 

INCORPORATING ALTERATIONS / 

EXTENSIONS TO MAIN ROOF

46 PARK AVENUE, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 7AN

Permission 

be granted

18/01509/DCH 29/06/2018  34 TrueGhattas 02/08/2018SINGLE STOREY EXTENSIONS 12 WESTFIELD ROAD, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1QQ

Permission 

be granted

18/01578/DCH 02/07/2018  30 TrueDJIALLI 01/08/2018CONSTRUCT SINGLE STOREY 

MULTIPURPOSE 

(GYM/MUSIC/STUDIO/WRITING) 

SUBTERRANEAN ROOM INCIDENTAL 

TO THE USE OF THE MAIN HOUSE. 

THE ROOM TO HAVE FLAT ROOF 

AND NOT EXCEED 3M IN HEIGHT. 

THE EXISTING WELL SCREENED 

AREA AROUND THE ROOM TO BE 

LANDSCAPED WITH INDIGENOUS 

PLANTS AND TREES

ST HILARION HOUSE, 

RHIWBINA HILL, 

TONGWYNLAIS, CARDIFF, 

CF14 6UP

Permission 

be granted

18/01508/DCH 22/06/2018  40 TrueRees 01/08/2018PROPOSED TWO STOREY SIDE 

HOUSE EXTENSION

16 KENFIG ROAD, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1HX

Permission 

be granted

18/01593/DCH 06/07/2018  40 TrueDrew 15/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 18 PENLLINE ROAD, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 2AD

Permission 

be granted

18/01765/DCH 01/08/2018  27 TrueBurnell 28/08/2018NON MATERIAL AMENDMENT ON 

PLANNING PERMISSION 

18/01078/DCH TO CHANGE THE 

PITCH ROOF TO A FLAT ROOF

97 VELINDRE ROAD, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 2TG

Permission 

be granted

18/01826/DCH 13/08/2018  15 TrueWoods 28/08/2018SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

EXTENDING LESS THAN 4M BEYOND 

EXISTING HOUSE (AND TYING IN 

WITH GALLEY KITCHEN) INTERNAL 

ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING LAYOUT 

INCLUDING ADDITION OF WC AND 

UTILITY ROOM. ALSO MOVING, 

CREATING AND BLOCKING UP 

DOORWAYS. ALL WORK WILL BE 

CARRIED OUT IN A NEIGHBOURLY 

FASHION.

19 ERW LAS, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1NL

Permission 

be granted



Application 

Number

Registered Days taken 

to decision

8 Week 

target 

Achieved?

Applicant Name Decision DateProposal Location Decision

18/01503/MNR 21/06/2018  48 TrueGatley 08/08/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM OFFICE TO 

4- SURGERY N.H.S. DENTAL 

PRACTICE

UNIT 6, GREENMEADOW 

SPRINGS BUSINESS 

PARK, VILLAGE WAY, 

TONGWYNLAIS, CARDIFF, 

CF15 7NE

Permission 

be granted

18/01332/MNR 13/06/2018  51 TruePortsmouth 03/08/2018CHANGE OF USE FROM A1 RETAIL 

TO RENTABLE TOURIST 

SELF-CATERING ACCOMMODATION 

(SUI GENERIS) AND INSERTION OF 

NEW WINDOW TO REAR

2B MERTHYR ROAD, 

TONGWYNLAIS, CARDIFF, 

CF15 7LF

Permission 

be granted

18/01747/MNR 24/07/2018  38 Truecornick 31/08/2018RENEWAL OF APPLICATION 

13/1533/DCO - PARTIAL 

RECONSTRUCTION AND EXTENSION

19A NORMAN ROAD, 

WHITCHURCH, CARDIFF, 

CF14 1PS

Permission 

be granted


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5a 18/01545/MJR, Land on the East Side of Thornhill Road and North of M4, Lisvane
	SITE LOCAITON PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	DEVELOPMENT EXTENT.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	GENERAL ARRANAGEMENTS.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	PROPOSED BUILDING AND SHELTER.pdf
	Sheets
	C017144-08 - Proposed Building and Shelter


	FLOWER PREPARATION.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	5b 18/01114/MNR, Brodawel, Druidstone Road, Old St Mellons
	plans and elevations.pdf
	Sheets
	A102 - Proposed Plans and Elevations



	5c 18/00576/MJR, Youth Offending Team, The Rise, Pen-Hill Road, Llandaff
	5d 18/01563/MJR, 24 Park Lane Student Living, Park Lane, Cathays Park
	6 Applications decided by Delegated Powers - August 2018



